

Table of Bills

02/03/01	Student Senate Meeting at K-State Salina
02/03/02	Revisions to the Student Activity Fee Funding Regulations
02/03/03	FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
02/03/04	FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
02/03/05	FY 2003 Allocation to Sports Clubs
02/03/06	FY 2003 Allocation to Pakistani Students Association
02/03/07	FY 2003 Allocation to Community Cultural Harmony Week
02/03/08	FY 2002 Campus Wide Organization Closing of Accounts
02/03/09	FY 2002 Institutional Services Closing of Accounts
02/03/10	FY 2002 Academic Competition Team Closing of Accounts
02/03/11	FY 2002 Sports Clubs Closing of Accounts
02/03/12	FY 2002 College Councils Closing of Accounts
02/03/13	FY 2003 Allocation to Pakistani Students Association
02/03/14	FY 2003 Allocation to Sports Club
02/03/15	Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations
02/03/16	Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations
02/03/17	Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations
02/03/18	FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
02/03/19	FY 2003 Allocation to Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators
02/03/20	FY 2003 Allocation to K-State Russian and CIS Students Association
02/03/21	FY 2003 Allocation to Amnesty International
02/03/22	Continuance in the Student Health Privilege Fee
02/03/23	FY 2003 Allocation to Academic Competition Team
02/03/24	FY 2003 Allocation to Up 'Til Dawn
02/03/25	FY 2003 Allocation to Association of Residence Halls
02/03/26	FY 2003 Allocation to Sports Clubs
02/03/27	Educational Opportunity Fund Allocations
02/03/28	FY 2003 Allocation to Women's Rugby
02/03/29	Increase of the University Counseling Services Privilege Fee
02/03/30	Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations
02/03/31	By-Laws Amendment Concerning Elections and Elections Committee
02/03/32	FY 2003 Allocation to Students For the Right to Life
02/03/33	Continuance of the Fine Arts Privilege Fee
02/03/34	Amendment to KSU SGA Statutes, Adding Fine Arts Council Student
02/03/35	Student Activity Fee Budget Continuance
02/03/36	FY 2003 Allocation to Paraguayan Student Association
02/03/37	FY 2003 Allocation to Campus Crusade for Christ
02/03/38	FY 2003 Allocation to PEERS
02/03/39	FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union
02/03/40	FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union
02/03/41	FY 2003 Allocation to Leadership Studies and Programs Ambassadors
02/03/42	FY 2003 Allocation to Ordinary Women
02/03/43	Continuance in the Student Health Privilege Fee (Repeals 02/03//22)

02/03/44 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union
02/03/45 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union
02/03/46 FY 2003 Allocation to Vietnamese Student Association
02/03/47 Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations
02/03/48 Increase of the University Bands Program Privilege Fee
02/03/49 FY 2003 Allocation to Kansas State University Women's Softball Club
02/03/50 Continuance of the Union Program Council Privilege Fee
02/03/51 FY 2003 Allocation to Ecumenical Campus Ministry
02/03/52 Revisions to the Student Activity Fee Funding Regulations
02/03/53 FY 2003 Allocation to GAMMA
02/03/54 FY 2003 Allocation to Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources
02/03/55 FY 2003 Allocation to Ordinary Women
02/03/56 FY 2003 Allocation to Muslim Student Association
02/03/57 FY 2003 Allocation to Ahearn Support
02/03/58 FY 2003 Allocation to Hillel Jewish Student Organization
02/03/59 Increase in Student Publications, Inc. Privilege Fee
02/03/60 Office of Student Activities and Services Privilege Fee Increase
02/03/61 FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
02/03/62 FY 2003 Allocation to KSU Solar Car Racing Team
02/03/63 FY 2003 Allocation to Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club
02/03/64 FY 2003 Allocation to Kansas State University - Manhattan Wrestling Club
02/03/65 FY 2003 Allocation to Students for Environmental Action
02/03/66 FY 2003 Allocation to Japanese Appreciation Alliance
02/03/67 FY 2003 Allocation to Muslim Student Association
02/03/68 FY 2004 Allocation to Muslim Student Association
02/03/69 FY 2003 Allocation to Muslim Student Association
02/03/70 FY 2003 Allocation to African Students Association
02/03/71 FY 2003 Allocation to African Students Association
02/03/72 By-Laws Amendment Concerning Privilege Fee Committee Duties
02/03/73 Statutes Amendment Removing Registration Fee for Student Organizations
02/03/74 FY 2003 Allocation to Asian American Student Union
02/03/75 FY 2003 Allocation to Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators (H.I.P.E.)
02/03/76 FY 2004 Allocation to Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators (H.I.P.E.)
02/03/77 FY 2003 Allocation to International Coordinating Council
02/03/78 FY 2003 Allocation to Sexual Health Awareness Peer Educators
02/03/79 FY 2004 Allocation to Amnesty International
02/03/80 FY 2004 Allocation for Institutional Services
02/03/81 FY 2004 Allocation for Academic Competition Teams
02/03/82 Statutes Amendment Repealing Legal Services Board
02/03/83 By-Laws Amendment to Academic Affairs Standing Committee's Duties
02/03/84 Amendment to SGA Elections Regulations Code
02/03/85 FY 2004 Allocation to Queer Straight Alliance
02/03/86 FY 2003 Allocation to American Red Cross Club
02/03/87 FY 2003 Allocation to KSU Table Tennis
02/03/88 Sports Club Organization Allocations for Fiscal Year 2004

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, and all Student Senators

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Travel distance from the Kansas State University-Salina campus imposes a
7 significant barrier to regular attendance at Student Senate to representatives of the
8 College of Technology and Aviation;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** It is the job of Student Senate to ensure that all students are properly represented
11 in Student Senate;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Over 1000 Kansas State students are currently enrolled at the Kansas State
14 University-Salina campus, representing nearly 5% of the student body; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Most members of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association
17 have never seen the Kansas State University-Salina campus;

18
19 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

20
21 **SECTION 1.** The Executive Committee work with the College of Technology Council (CTC)
22 to arrange a tour of the Salina campus for all Student Senators, Executive Cabinet,
23 and Student Senate Interns on September 26, 2002.

24
25 **SECTION 2.** The Kansas State University Student Senate agrees to convene at the Kansas State
26 University-Salina Campus on the evening of September 26, 2002.

27
28 **SECTION 3.** The Kansas State University Student Senate make each weekly meeting available
29 to the Salina campus using K-State Telecommunications as the Faculty Senate
30 does currently for each of its meetings.

31
32 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
33 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 11, 2002.**

5 **BY:** John O’Hara and Laurie Quaife

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Student Activity Fee Funding Regulations are outdated;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Terms in the regulations need to be further defined so organizations understand
10 everything that is covered under these categories;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** New deadlines need to be added to the funding regulations to allow the
13 Allocations Committee enough time to fully review requests; and

14
15 **WHEREAS,** These regulations need to be updated to make it easier for student organizations to
16 comprehend and follow the allocations process;

17
18 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** Section 13 of the KSU SGA Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

21
22 13-0101 **FUNDING STATUTE**
23 Student Governing Association
24 Kansas State University

25
26
27 13-0102 General

28 A. Definitions

29 1. For the purpose of the Funding Statutes, the following definitions shall apply:

- 30 a) Academic Competition Team. An Academic Competition Team shall be a
31 registered organization designated by the Allocations Committee **as**
32 **having a vested interest in attending competitions at which such teams**
33 **represent the University and its Colleges to further the academic and**
34 **educational status of the University as a whole.**
- 35 b) Student Organization. A Student Organization shall be any registered
36 organization whose primary officers ~~are students and 80% of the~~
37 **organizations membership are Kansas State University students.**
- 38 c) Campus Wide Organization. A Campus Wide Organization shall be any
39 registered student organization not currently registered as an academic
40 competition team, a sports club, or as a college council organization.
- 41 d) University/Community Organizations. A University/Community
42 Organization shall be any campus wide organization of ~~which less than~~
43 **80% of which at least 50%** of the membership is **Kansas State**
44 **University** students.
- 45 e) College Council. A College Council shall be the governing body of a

college of the University, such definition to include the Graduate School as a College.

- f) College Council Organization. A College Council Organization shall be any ~~organization~~ registered organization whose organizational focus shall be academic or professional in nature and ~~may be~~ associated with a specific academic college.
- g) Institutional Service. An Institutional Service shall be any organization so designated by the Allocations Committee **whose sole purpose is to provide services to Kansas State University students.**
- h) Student. A student shall be any KSU student enrolled in a minimum of one (1) hour.
- i) **Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an organization in order to bring a speaker to campus, including their travel, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to perform a planned project or event.**

B. Universal Requirements

1. In order to request funds from the Student Activity Fee in any semesterly period, an organization must fulfill each of the following requirements:
 - a) The organization must be a student group currently registered with the Office of Student Activities and Services or an Institutional Service.
 - b) The organization must have sent a representative to ~~both~~ **one** of the funding workshops held by the Treasurer annually.
 - c) The organization must submit to the SGA Treasurer a statement of the fundraising activities of the organization over the past year, including the specific events and the amounts raised. This statement must be submitted with the organization's funding requests on the Fund Raising Report form available in the Office of Student Activities and Services.
 - d) The organization must be registered for ~~sixty (60)~~ **forty-five (45)** days prior to **requesting the date of the event to receive** Student Activity Fee funds.
 - e) The organization may not receive funds while on probation as designated by the Activities Director.
 - f) Student Activity Fee funds shall not be allocated to projects for the purposes of promoting or opposing a particular political candidate, political or social issue, or religion.
2. Differentiation of Projects. In the case that an organization is submitting multiple requests, each project for which funding is to be requested must be distinct and independent, and must be related to the goals of the organization itself.
3. Fund Raising. All groups should make a reasonable effort to raise funds, either through dues or other events. While not a requirement for funding, the Allocations Committee may reject funding for any requested materials which would commonly be paid for by fund raising at its discretion.

13-0103 Campus Wide Organizations

A. General Criteria

1 1. Open Projects. All projects sponsored by Campus Wide Organizations with
2 student fee funds must show an educational benefit to the students of the
3 University, must be open to all students of the University, and must be free to all
4 students of the University. Such projects must also be held on the University
5 campus or within the Manhattan community. ~~except when the organization is~~
6 ~~traveling~~
7

8 B. Request Process

9 1. Requests. Requests for funding of projects from the Student Activity Fee may be
10 made by Campus Wide Organizations fulfilling the requirements of 13-0102
11 through the completion and submission of a funding request form, available in the
12 Office of Student Activities and Services. A separate funding request form must
13 be submitted for each project the organization wishes to hold, up to a maximum of
14 five projects annually.

15 2. The funding request form must be completed in accordance with the form's
16 instructions. Funds requested for a project must be divided into separate
17 categories, outlined below. Each category must have a detailed description of the
18 items ~~the funds requested for that category are to be used for and an estimate of~~
19 ~~cost for each item.~~ **requested and an estimate of the cost of each item.**

20 a) Promotions. Promotions shall include any expense related to the
21 advertisement of an activity, such as ~~Collegian newspaper~~ advertisements,
22 **KSDB or any** radio advertisements, leaflets or posters, and other such
23 materials **as determined by the Allocations Committee.**

24 b) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an
25 organization in order to bring a speaker **to campus, including their**
26 **travel, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to perform** a planned
27 project or event.

28 c) Rent of Space and Equipment. Rent of space and equipment shall include
29 any expenses related to renting rooms or other areas for performances,
30 meetings, and other such events, as well as any costs related to rental of
31 tables and chairs, movie projectors, or other necessary materials for a
32 project.

33 d) Films. Films shall include any expense for the rental of movies,
34 documentaries, recorded theatrical shows, or other such events.

35 e) **Travel. Travel shall be defined as a request for funds to pay expenses**
36 **related to transportation, lodging and food for Kansas State**
37 **University students. Campus Wide Organizations may be allocated a**
38 **maximum of \$100 per person up to \$1,000 for travel expenses for each**
39 **travel request submitted during the fiscal year. A student may only**
40 **receive one allocation of \$100 even if they are a member of more than**
41 **one student organization taking the same trip. Travel shall be funded**
42 **at the rate applicable to reimbursement for expenditures made by**
43 **individuals traveling for the State of Kansas.**

44 f) Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not
45 reasonably fit in the above categories, **as determined necessary by the**

1 **Allocations Committee, such as supplies. However, this category**
2 **Funding for "other" expenses shall be determined independent of the other**
3 **categories and shall be subject to the limitations on funding, listed below.**

- 4 3. Funding requests for the current year will be considered on a rolling basis, but
5 must be submitted **no later than four** weeks prior to ~~either~~ the date of the
6 project. ~~or the end of the academic semester, whichever is earlier.~~ **Except that,**
7 **all requests for events to be held December 1st through February 15th must be**
8 **turned in by November 1st, all requests for any event to be held March 15th**
9 **through the end of the academic year must be submitted by February 20th,**
10 **and all requests for events to be held in August and September must be**
11 **turned in by May 15th of the previous academic year. The Allocations**
12 **Committee will consider exceptions to these guidelines if an organization has**
13 **special circumstances.**

14 C. Limitations

- 15 1. Services, Where Acquired. Funds allocated must be spent on services offered on
16 the University campus whenever these services are available.
- 17 2. Honorarium. All recipients of an honorarium are required to complete a standard
18 ~~performance contract~~ **letter of agreement** prior to payment. Groups must submit
19 an honorarium ~~data~~ information sheet, ~~performance contract~~ **letter of agreement,**
20 **and a W-9** to receive payment.
- 21 3. Spending Restrictions. Student funds allocated by the Allocations Committee
22 may not be spent on any of the following items:
- 23 a) Food. Food may not be purchased with student funds except unless such
24 materials are to be used in an educational experiment. Prior approval from
25 the Treasurer shall be gained before an expenditure for this exception is
26 made.
- 27 b) Social Events. Student funds may not be spent on any materials pertaining
28 to social functions, parties, or banquets, and may not be spent for any
29 materials in any project where such an event is part thereof, except when
30 the Allocations Committee finds a substantial educational benefit.
- 31 c) Personal Materials. Student funds may not be spent on any personal
32 materials, such as plaques, gifts, awards, flowers, name tags, engravings
33 for specific individuals, photographs, or clothing.
- 34 d) Wages. Student funds may not be spent on wages or compensation of any
35 kind, with the exception of ~~honoraria~~ projectionists and security officers **as**
36 **required by the rental facility.**

37
38 D. Unspent Funds

- 39 1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to a Campus Wide
40 Organization shall be returned to the Reserves for Contingencies Account no later
41 than October 30 of the following fiscal year.

42
43 13-0104 College Councils and College Council Organizations

44 A. General Criteria

- 45 1. Open Projects. All projects sponsored by College Councils or College Council

1 Organizations must show an educational benefit to the students of the individual
2 college, must be open to all students of the University, and must be free to all
3 students of the University.
4

5 B. Duties of the College Councils

- 6 1. Allocation of Funds. Each college council shall be responsible for the processing
7 of funding requests for any organization classified as a College Council
8 Organization. Such funding requests shall be considered and funds allocated in
9 any equitable manner as determined by the individual college councils. Such
10 allocations must be consistent with the Funding regulations which apply to
11 funding of the College Councils. ~~following.~~
12 2. Special Allocations. Special allocations may be made by the College Councils, at
13 their discretion and in any equitable manner which they so choose, to any College
14 Council Organization submitting a request for special allocations to the College
15 Council. Such allocations, however, must adhere to the requirements and
16 restrictions provided in the Funding Statutes in respect to special allocations, 13-
17 0106.
18 3. College Councils shall be responsible for managing the funds of College Council
19 Organizations, ensuring funds allocated to College Councils Organizations are
20 effectively spent for their intended purposes. ~~and approving all budget shifts for~~
21 ~~College Council Organizations.~~
22

23 C. Request Process

- 24 1. Requests. Requests for funding of projects from the Student Activity Fee may be
25 made by College Councils and College Council Organizations fulfilling the
26 requirements of 13-0102 through the completion and submission of a funding
27 request form, available in the Office of Student Activities and Services. College
28 Council Organizations must submit funding request forms to the Allocations
29 Committee in the Office of Student Activities and Services not later than the last
30 academic day of February.
31 2. The College Council funding request form must be completed in accordance with
32 the form's instructions. Funds requested must be divided into those funds
33 requested by each individual College Council Organization, and each individual
34 organization request must be divided in accordance with the categories listed
35 below.
36 a) Promotions. Promotions shall include any expense related to the
37 advertisement of an activity, such as **Collegian newspaper** advertisements,
38 **KSDB or any** radio advertisements, leaflets or posters, and other such
39 materials **as determined by the Allocations Committee.**
40 b) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an
41 organization in order to bring a speaker **to campus, including their**
42 **travel, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to perform** a planned
43 project or event.
44 c) Rent of Space and Equipment. Rent of space and equipment shall include
45 any expenses related to renting rooms or other areas for performances,

1 meetings, and other such events as well as any costs related to rental of
2 tables and chairs, movie projectors, or other necessary materials for a
3 project.

- 4 d) Films. Films shall include any expense for the rental of movies,
5 documentaries, recorded theatrical shows, or other such events.
- 6 e) **Travel. Travel shall be defined as a request for funds to pay expenses**
7 **related to transportation, lodging and food for Kansas State**
8 **University students. College Councils may be allocated a maximum of**
9 **\$100 per person up to \$1,000 for travel expenses for each travel**
10 **request submitted during the fiscal year. A student may only receive**
11 **one allocation of \$100 even if they are a member of more than one**
12 **student organization taking the same trip. Travel shall be funded at**
13 **the rate applicable to reimbursement for expenditures made by**
14 **individuals traveling for the State of Kansas.**
- 15 f) Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not
16 reasonably fit in the above categories, **as determined necessary by the**
17 **Allocations Committee, such as supplies. However, this category**
18 **Funding for "other" expenses shall be determined independent of the other**
19 **categories and shall be subject to the limitations on funding, listed** below.
- 20 g) Open House. This category shall represent a College Council's request for
21 funds related to open house activities.

22 ~~3. The Allocations Committee shall deliver to each college council the requests of~~
23 ~~the College Council's organizations with a College Council budget request form~~
24 ~~by the second Friday of March.~~

25 ~~4. Budget requests forms for College Councils for the following fiscal year,~~
26 ~~including the individual budget request forms of each organization, must be~~
27 ~~completed and submitted to the Allocations Committee in the Office of Student~~
28 ~~Activities and Services not later than the second Friday of April.~~

29 D. Limitations

- 30 1. Services, Where Acquired. Funds allocated by the Allocations Committee must
31 be spent on services offered on the University campus whenever these services are
32 available.
- 33 2. Honorarium. All recipients of an honorarium are required to complete a standard
34 ~~performance contract~~ **letter of agreement** prior to payment. Groups must submit
35 an honorarium data information sheet with ~~performance contract~~ **a letter of**
36 **agreement, and W-9** to receive payment.
- 37 3. Spending Restrictions. Student funds allocated by the Allocations Committee
38 may not be spent on any of the following items:
- 39 a) Food. Food may not be purchased with student funds except unless such
40 materials are to be used in an educational experiment. Prior approval from
41 the Treasurer shall be gained before an expenditure for this exception is
42 made.
- 43 b) Social Events. Student funds may not be spent on any materials pertaining
44 to social functions, parties, or banquets, and may not be spent for any
45 materials in any project where such an event is part thereof, except when

- 1 the Allocations Committee finds a substantial educational benefit.
- 2 c) Personal Materials. Student funds may not be spent on any personal
- 3 materials, such as plaques, gifts, awards, flowers, name tags, engravings
- 4 for specific individuals, photographs, or clothing.
- 5 d) Wages. Student funds may not be spent on wages or compensation of any
- 6 kind, with the exception of projectionists or security officers.
- 7 e) Open House Restrictions. The Treasurer of the Student Governing
- 8 Association shall have the authority to compile a list of materials that may
- 9 not be purchased with student funds for open house activities. Such a list
- 10 will be available in the Office of Student Activities and Services.

11

12 E. Reserve Accounts

- 13 1. College Councils. College Councils which have been allocated funds and have
- 14 not spent or allocated to College Council Organizations the entire allocation
- 15 received at the beginning of each fiscal year, ~~may retain in a reserve account funds~~
- 16 ~~equal to the greater of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) or ten percent (10%) of~~
- 17 ~~the fiscal year's College Council budget. Funds over this amount will be returned~~
- 18 **must return the entire amount of the unspent allocation** to the Reserves for
- 19 Contingencies Account at the end of each fiscal year.

20

21 13-0105 Institutional Services

22 A. General Criteria

- 23 1. Registration. Institutional Services requesting funds from the Student
- 24 Activity Fee must have been registered as an Institutional Service for not
- 25 less than one (1) year prior to such a funding request being made.

26

27 B. Request Process

- 28 1. Requests. Requests for funding of projects from the Student Activity Fee
- 29 may be made by Institutional Services fulfilling the requirements of 13-
- 30 0102 through the completion and submission of a funding request form,
- 31 available in the Office of Student Activities and Services.
- 32 2. Funds requested must be divided into separate categories, outlined below.
- 33 Each category must have a detailed description of the items ~~the funds~~
- 34 ~~requested for that category are to be used for and an estimate of cost for~~
- 35 ~~each item.~~ **requested and an estimate of the cost of each item.**
- 36 a) Promotions. Promotions shall include any expense related to the
- 37 advertisement of an activity, such as **Collegian newspaper**
- 38 advertisements, **KSBD or any** radio advertisements, leaflets or
- 39 posters, and other such materials **as determined by the**
- 40 **Allocations Committee.**
- 41 b) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an
- 42 organization in order to bring a speaker **to campus including their**
- 43 **transportation, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to**
- 44 **perform** a planned project or event.
- 45 c) Rent of Space and Equipment. Rent of space and equipment shall

1 include any expenses related to renting rooms or other areas for
2 performances, meetings, and other such events, as well as any costs
3 related to rental of tables and chairs, movie projectors, or other
4 necessary materials for a project.

- 5 d) Films. Films shall include any expense for the rental of movies,
6 documentaries, recorded theatrical shows, or other such events.
- 7 e) Payroll. Payroll shall include expenses related to the staffing of services
8 provided by the Institutional Service.
- 9 f) Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not
10 reasonably fit in the above categories, **as determined necessary by the**
11 **Allocations Committee, such as supplies. however, this category**
12 **Funding for "other" expenses shall be determined independent of the other**
13 **categories and shall be subject to the limitations on funding, listed below**

- 14 3. Annual budgets must be completed and submitted to the Allocations Committee
15 in the Office of Student Activities and Services not later than the ~~last academic~~
16 **day third week** of February.

17
18 C. Limitations

- 19 1. Services, Where Acquired. Funds must be spent on services offered on the
20 University campus whenever these services are available.
- 21 2. Honorarium. All recipients of an honorarium are required to complete a standard
22 ~~performance contract~~ **letter of agreement, and** honorarium data information
23 sheet, **and W-9** to receive payment.
- 24 3. Spending Restrictions. Student funds allocated by the Allocations Committee
25 may not be spent on any of the following items:
 - 26 a) Food. Food may not be purchased with student funds except unless such
27 materials are to be used in an educational experiment. Prior approval from
28 the Treasurer shall be gained before an expenditure for this exception is
29 made.
 - 30 b) Social Events. Student funds may not be spent on any materials pertaining
31 to social functions, parties, or banquets, and may not be spent for any
32 materials in any project where such an event is part thereof, except where
33 the Allocations Committee finds a substantial academic benefit.
 - 34 c) Personal Materials. Student funds may not be spent on any personal
35 materials, such as plaques, gifts, awards, flowers, name tags, engravings
36 for specific individuals, photographs, or clothing.
 - 37 d) Payroll. Individuals to be paid wages by an Institutional Service must be
38 included on the payroll of the Institutional Service. ~~Individuals must be~~
39 ~~employed by the university department to be included on the payroll of an~~
40 **Institutional Service.**

41
42 D. Unspent Funds

- 43 1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to an Institutional Service
44 shall be returned to the Reserves for Contingencies Account no later than October
45 30 of the following fiscal year.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

13-0106

Sports Clubs

A. General Criteria

- 1. Registration. Sports Clubs requesting funds from the Student Activity Fee must be registered through the Office of Student Activities and Services as a Sports Club prior to a funding request being made.**

B. Request Process

- 1. Requests. Requests for funding from the Student Activity Fee may be made by Sports Clubs fulfilling the requirements of 13-0102 through the completion and submission of an annual budget.**
- 2. Funds requested must be divided into separate categories, outlined below. Each category must have a detailed description of the items requested and an estimate of the cost of each item.**
 - a) Equipment**
 - b) Uniforms**
 - c) Salary for referees and coaches**
 - d) League membership dues**
 - e) Travel. Travel shall include all expenses related to traveling to compete in an sports competition. These expenses could include (but are not limited to) food, registration, lodging, and transportation.**
- 3. Annual budgets must be completed and submitted to the Allocations Committee in the Office of Student Activities and Services no later than the third week in February.**

C. Unspent Funds

- 1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to a Sports Club shall be returned to the Reserves for Contingencies Account no later than October 30 of the following fiscal year.**

13-0107

Academic Competition Teams

A. General Criteria

- 1. Registration. Academic Competition Teams requesting funds from the Student Activity Fee must be registered through the Office of Student Activities and Services as an Academic Competition Team prior to a funding request being made.**

B. Request Process

- 1. Requests. Requests for funding from the Student Activity Fee may be made by Academic Competition Teams fulfilling the requirements of 13-0102 through the completion and submission of an annual budget.**
- 2. Funds requested must be divided into separate categories, outlined**

1 below. Each category must have a detailed description of the items
2 requested and an estimate of the cost of each item
3

4 a) **Travel.** Travel shall include all expenses related to traveling
5 to compete in an academic competition. These expenses could
6 include (but are not limited to) food, registration, lodging, and
7 transportation.

8 b) **Equipment**

9 3. **Annual budgets must be completed and submitted to the**
10 **Allocations Committee in the Office of Student Activities and**
11 **Services no later than the third week in February.**

12 C. **Unspent Funds**

13 1. **Unspent Funds Returned.** All unspent funds allocated to an
14 **Academic Competition Team shall be returned to the Reserves for**
15 **Contingencies Account no later than October 30 of the following**
16 **fiscal year.**

17
18 13-01068 Special Allocations

19 A. Definitions

- 20 1. ~~Special Allocation. Special Allocation shall be defined as any allocation related~~
21 ~~to travel or capital expenditures.~~
- 22 2. ~~Travel. Travel shall be defined as a request for funds to pay expenses related to~~
23 ~~travel, lodging, and food. Campus wide Organizations and College Council~~
24 ~~Groups may be allocated a maximum of \$1,000 per group, and/or a maximum of~~
25 ~~\$100 per person up to \$1,000 for travel expenses for each travel request submitted~~
26 ~~during the fiscal year.~~
- 27 3. 1. Capital Expenditures. Capital Expenditures shall be defined as any request for
28 funds related to the purchase of non-consumable goods that can be considered
29 inventory items and have a useful life of more than one year.
- 30 2. **Special Allocations may be requested for travel to a national competition or**
31 **to pay for an expense that arises during the year that the organization was**
32 **not anticipating.**

33 B. Request Requirements

- 34 1. ~~Travel. Any request for travel must include a statement of the purpose of the~~
35 ~~project, a statement concerning the educational value of the project to the~~
36 ~~university or an academic department, as well as detailed information as to the~~
37 ~~expenses, methods of travel, lodging, and other expenses. Travel shall be funded~~
38 ~~at the rate applicable to reimbursement for expenditures made by individuals~~
39 ~~traveling for the State of Kansas.~~
- 40 2. 1. Capital Expenditures. Any request for funds to purchase capital goods must be
41 accompanied by a statement of the educational value of the purchase to the
42 University or an academic department, a statement of the need for the purchase,
43 and a justified estimate of the cost of the goods at the lowest possible price for a
44 reasonable degree of quality.
- 45 3. 2. Submission of Requests. Requests for special allocations must be submitted to

1 the SGA Treasurer or **designated college council** at least four weeks prior to the
2 planned date of the travel or the purchase of capital goods.
3

4 13-0107 9 Allocations

5 A. ~~Determination, General Method~~

- 6 1. ~~The Allocations Committee shall develop informal guidelines, present them in bill~~
7 ~~form to Student Senate, and have them approved prior to the beginning the~~
8 ~~allocations process for each semester.~~
9 2. ~~The Allocations Committee shall develop such informal guidelines in the~~
10 ~~following categories:~~
11 a. ~~Promotions~~
12 b. ~~Rent of Space~~
13 c. ~~Rent of Equipment~~
14 d. ~~Films~~
15 e. ~~Honoraria~~
16 f. ~~Travel~~
17

18 B.A. Process

- 19 1. After a request form is delivered to the Allocations Committee, the Committee
20 will initially consider the requested allocation. Each group of projects submitted
21 by any one organization will be assigned to a member of the Allocations
22 Committee. This committee member will be responsible for confirming cost
23 estimates and retrieving any additional information the committee deems
24 necessary for making a funding recommendation. **A representative from the**
25 **requesting organization will be asked to attend an Allocations Committee**
26 **meeting to answer any further questions members of the committee might**
27 **have.**
28 2. ~~The committee member will present the findings to the Allocations Committee at~~
29 ~~the meeting following the one at which the project request was assigned. Based~~
30 ~~on the information provided, the Committee shall determine a reasonable level of~~
31 ~~funding for each category of the project and vote to approve this recommended~~
32 ~~allocation to the Student Senate. If the allocation is recommended for a~~
33 ~~University/Community organization the recommended amounts shall be pro-rated~~
34 ~~in accordance with the organizations's percentage of student membership.~~
35 3. Allocations bills submitted to the Student Senate shall include the categories of
36 funding, the requested funding amounts, the recommended funding amounts.
37 4. Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 funds for a project shall be available to the organization sponsoring such project.
39

40 C.B. Expenditure of Funds

- 41 1. Lump Sum Funding. In accordance with the lump sum funding of an
42 organization's project, the organization may spend the funds allocated for a project
43 in any manner in which the organization sees fit, provided that such expenditures
44 fall within the permissible expenditures as outlined in the Funding Statutes.
45 a) Overruns. An organization may spend funds on materials in any category
46 **except honorariums** that exceeds the recommended amount for that

1 category as determined by the Allocations Committee, provided that the
2 total amount spent on a project does not exceed the total amount allocated
3 for the project by the Student Senate.
4

5 13-0108 **10** Administrative

6 A. Workshops

- 7 1. Funding Workshops. The SGA Treasurer and the Coordinator of Student
8 Activities, or designee, shall conduct no fewer than ~~two~~ **four** funding workshops
9 ~~at the beginning of every semester. per year. Funding workshops shall be held~~
10 ~~during the second week of September and the second week of November~~ The
11 time and place of these workshops will be at the discretion of the SGA Treasurer,
12 and prior notice of the time and place of each workshop must be made two weeks
13 before such workshops will be held.

14 B. Organization Designations

- 15 1. The Allocations Committee shall classify all registered organizations as either a
16 Student Organization or a University/Community Organization.
17 2. The Allocations Committee shall have the authority to determine and designate
18 Institutional Services subject to the approval of Student Senate.
19

20 C. Funding Sources

- 21 1. Respective Fee Allocation. Funding requests under the Funding Statutes may
22 only be allocated from the respective funding percentage of the fee.
23 2. Student Activity Fee, Only Source. Funding requests under the Funding Statutes
24 may only receive funding from the Student Activity Fee.
25

26 D. Financial Records

- 27 1. Maintenance. Each organization shall be required to maintain reasonable
28 financial records detailing all income and expenditures.
29 2. Inspection. An organization's financial records must be made available to the
30 Allocations Committee at the written request of the SGA Treasurer.
31

32 E. Violations

- 33 1. Consequences. The SGA Treasurer, with the approval of the Allocations
34 Committee, may place a hold on funding for any project or projects associated
35 with an organization ~~is such if an~~ organization deviates from University policy or
36 the Funding Statutes in administering Student Activity Fee Funds. Serious
37 violations, as determined by the Allocations Committee, shall be referred to the
38 Student Senate, which shall have the authority to revoke funding provided to such
39 an organization. Each organization shall be responsible for the proper handling of
40 all Student Fee Funds.
41
42
43
44
45

SECTION 2. This legislation shall take effect immediately except the amendment to Sec. 13-
2 0104 E. shall take effect July 1st 2002.

3
4
5
6

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MAY 2ND, 2002,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 51-0-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
7 Hispanic American Leadership Organization;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Hispanic Heritage month is an annual event in conjunction with Mexican
14 Independence Day to promote cultural awareness;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Hispanic Heritage month will include a speaker, courtyard activities and a film
17 entitled *Like Water for Chocolate*; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1- Promotions for Hispanic Heritage month along with rent of space and
23 equipment to show *Like Water for Chocolate*. The film will be shown during the
24 heritage month in the Little Theater, on October 15th, at 6:00 p.m.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$500.00	\$200.00
Film	\$500.00	\$500.00
Space & Equipment	\$500.00	\$300.00
TOTAL	\$1500.00	\$1000.00

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

33
34 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1000.00 for the activities described.

35
36 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
37 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
38 the account # 4-90360 of the Hispanic American Leadership Organization.

39
40 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
41 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**
42

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Hispanic American Leadership Organization;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Hispanic American Leadership Organization currently has 30 active members
14 that strive to learn more about the Hispanic culture;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Twenty members will attend the United States Hispanic Leadership Conference
17 held in Chicago, Illinois, from September 19 - 22, 2002;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** Those students will learn leadership skills, attend a career fair, and participate in
20 workshops; and

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
23 Allocations Committee are as follows:

24
25 Project 1 - Travel to the United States Hispanic Leadership Conference in
26 Chicago, Illinois, on September 19 - 22, 2002.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$1,000	\$1,000
TOTAL	\$1,000	\$1,000

27
28
29
30
31
32 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

33
34 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,000 for the activities described.

35
36 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
37 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
38 the account # 4-90360 of the Hispanic American Leadership Organization.

39
40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Sports Club Organizations at Kansas State University;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from each respective
10 sports club, their respective spending trends, and the amount of fund raising in
11 relation to their total budget; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has invested a great deal of time in determining
14 allocations that are representative of the relative financial requirements of each
15 Sports Club Organization;

16
17 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

18
19 **SECTION 1.** Funds are allocated to each of the Sports Club Organizations for Fiscal Year 2003
20 as follows:

21			
22	4-90064	Ultimate Frisbee	\$1,300.00
23	4-90103	Men’s Lacrosse	\$6,500.00
24	4-90114	Cycling Club	\$1,800.00

25
26
27 **TOTAL SPORTS CLUB ALLOCATIONS** **\$9,600.00**

28
29
30 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
31 these funds shall be transferred from the Sports Club Reserve Account # 4-90119
32 to each of the respective sports club accounts listed above.

33
34 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
35 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Pakistani Students Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organizations’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** There are 35 active members of this organization who would like to bring Dr. Zia
14 Mian from Princeton University to campus. Dr. Mian will speak on world issues
15 involving nuclear arms control and his speech will be entitled “Empire as a Way
16 of Life: United States in the 20th Century;”

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Mian will speak in the Union Little Theater on November 4, 2002. The group
19 expects around 100 students to attend; and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
22 follows:

23
24 Project 1- Honorarium for Dr. Mian including his speaking fees and money for
25 lodging and travel; promotions for the event, which will include Collegian ads and
26 flyers, and rental of space and equipment for his lecture.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$400.00	\$400.00
Honorarium	\$1,200.00	\$900.00
Space and Equipment	\$200.00	\$200.00
TOTAL	\$1,800.00	\$1,500.00

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,500.00 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
39 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
40 the account # 4-90126 of the Pakistani Students Association.

41
42 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
43 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-4.**
44

4
5 **BY:** Allocations Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** In past years an account was established under the purview of the Allocations
8 Committee for the purpose of financing Community Cultural Harmony Week,
9 formerly known as Racial Ethnic Harmony Week; and

10
11 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed the performance of this account and
12 determined the proceeds available for the current fiscal year;

13
14
15 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

16
17
18 **SECTION 1.** Funds shall be taken from the SGA Racial Ethnic Harmony Week Foundation
19 Account # C076026 and transferred into the Racial Ethnic Harmony Week
20 Account # C36390 established by the Multicultural Affairs Office.

21
22 **SECTION 2.** Racial Ethnic Harmony Week is hereby allocated \$1,222.83 from Account #
23 C076026.

24
25 **SECTION 3.** Unspent funds from this allocation shall revert back to the SGA Racial Ethnic
26 Harmony Week Foundation Account for reallocation in future years.

27
28 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
29 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**
30

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee is required to close campus-wide organization
7 accounts, which have not spent funds allocated to them in accordance with the
8 Funding Statutes on an annual basis;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee found the following organizations have additional
11 unused funds which are subject to this provision; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The underlined organizations have no specific meaning other than to serve as a
14 visual aid to assist reading the amounts for each organization;

15
16 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

17
18 **SECTION 1.** The amounts listed below shall revert from the individual accounts of the
19 respective campus-wide organizations back to the Reserves for Contingencies
20 Account # 4-90560:

21			
22	4-90003	Indian Student Association	\$ 252.72
23	4-90009	Aikido Club	\$ 400.00
24	4-90025	Apostolic Campus Ministries	\$ 70.00
25	<u>4-90031</u>	<u>Muslim Student Association</u>	<u>\$ 10.00</u>
26	4-90043	Campus Crusade for Christ	\$ 1,189.47
27	4-90044	Lutheran Ministries	\$ 300.00
28	4-90048	Chi Alpha Fellowship	\$ 80.68
29	<u>4-90053</u>	<u>Individuals for Free Thought</u>	<u>\$ 40.69</u>
30	4-90057	American Ethnic Studies Students Assoc.	\$ 600.00
31	4-90059	Ordinary Women	\$ 323.52
32	4-90063	Asian-American Student Association	\$ 227.80
33	<u>4-90120</u>	<u>Black Student Union</u>	<u>\$ 1,000.00</u>
34	4-90124	Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators	\$ 69.30
35	4-90125	Chess Club	\$ 51.63
36	4-90126	Pakistani Student Association	\$ 249.39
37	<u>4-90131</u>	<u>American Red Cross Club</u>	<u>\$ 19.40</u>
38	4-90300	International Coordinating Council	\$.02
39	4-90360	Hispanic American Leadership Organ.	\$ 410.85
40			
41	TOTAL:		\$ 5,295.47

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee is required to close institutional service accounts,
7 which have not spent funds allocated to them in accordance with the Funding
8 Statutes on an annual basis;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee found the following institutional services have
11 additional unused funds which are subject to this provision; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** UFM did not return any portion of their fiscal year 2002 allocations;

14
15 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** The amounts listed below shall revert from the individual institutional service
18 accounts back to the Reserves for Contingencies Account # 4-90560:

19	4-90047	Wildcat Walk Escort Program	\$ 2,066.67
20	4-90540	Women’s Resource Center	\$ 59.18
21			
22			
23	TOTAL:		\$ 2,125.85

24
25 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
26 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**
27

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee is required to close academic competition team
7 accounts, which have not spent funds allocated to them in accordance with the
8 Funding Statutes on an annual basis;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee found the following academic competition teams
11 have additional unused funds which are subject to this provision; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Powercat Pullers and Environmental Design Competition Team did not return
14 any portion of their fiscal year 2002 allocations;

15
16 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

17
18 **SECTION 1.** The amounts listed below shall revert from the individual academic competition
19 team account back to the Academic Competition Team Reserve Account
20 # 4-90005:

21
22 4-90001 Agriculture Competition Teams \$ 230.45

23
24 **TOTAL:** \$ 230.45

25
26 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
27 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee is required to close sports club accounts that have not
7 spent funds allocated to them in accordance with the Funding Statutes on an
8 annual basis;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee found the following sports clubs have additional
11 unused funds which are subject to this provision;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Men’s Rugby Club, Women’s Softball Club, Table Tennis Club, Sailing
14 Club, Women’s Volleyball Club, Men’s Lacrosse Club, Rowing Association,
15 Roller Hockey Club and Water Ski Team did not return any portion of their fiscal
16 year 2002 allocations; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The underlined sports clubs have no specific meaning other than to serve as a
19 visual aid to assist reading the amounts for each club;

20
21 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

22
23 **SECTION 1.** The amounts listed below shall revert from the individual sports club accounts
24 back to the Sports Club Reserve Account # 4-90119:

25			
26	4-90064	Ultimate Frisbee Club	\$ 1,123.44
27	4-90066	Rodeo Club	\$ 650.13
28	4-90071	Ahearn Support	\$ 4,794.00
29	<u>4-90100</u>	<u>Sailing Club</u>	<u>\$ 2,833.00</u>
30	4-90101	Men’s Volleyball Club	\$ 32.14
31	4-90104	Wrestling Club	\$ 98.79
32	4-90106	Men’s Soccer Club	\$ 459.52
33	<u>4-90108</u>	<u>Women’s Soccer Club</u>	<u>\$ 728.54</u>
34	4-90111	Parachute Club	\$ 109.07
35			
36	TOTAL:		\$7,995.63

37
38 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
39 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**
40

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee is required to close college council accounts that have
7 not spent funds allocated to them in accordance with the Funding Statutes on an
8 annual basis;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee found the following college councils have additional
11 unused funds which are subject to this provision; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The college councils of Agriculture, Architecture, Planning & Design, Graduate
14 School and Human Ecology did not return any portion of their fiscal year 2002
15 allocations;

16
17 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

18
19 **SECTION 1.** The amounts listed below shall revert from the individual college council
20 accounts back to the Reserves for Contingencies Account # 4-90560:

21			
22	4-90040	College of Arts & Sciences	\$ 3,580.05
23	4-90130	College of Business Administration	\$ 3,202.76
24	4-90210	College of Education	\$ 477.07
25	4-90220	College of Engineering	\$ 2,777.45
26	4-90520	College of Veterinary Medicine	\$ 1,626.00
27			
28	TOTAL:		\$ 11,663.33

29
30 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002,**
31 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0-0.**

2
3
4
5 **BY:** Allocations Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
8 Pakistani Students Association;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
11 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
12 group;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** There are 35 active members of this organization who would like to show a film
15 entitled “Pakistan and India Under the Nuclear Shadow;”

16
17 **WHEREAS,** These film is being shown to give students background information before Dr.
18 Mian’s lecture on the nuclear arms race; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
21 follows:

22
23 Project 1- Equipment rental and promotions for “Pakistan and India Under the
24 Nuclear Shadow” in the Union Little Theater on October 29, 2002.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$150.00	\$0.00
Rent of Equipment	\$50.00	\$50.00
Video Cassette	\$35.00	\$35.00
Copyright Costs	\$200.00	\$200.00
TOTAL	\$435.00	\$285.00

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$285.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 the account # 4-90126 of the Pakistani Students Association.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2002,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-7.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Sports Club Organizations at Kansas State University;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from each respective
10 sports club, their respective spending trends, and the amount of fund-raising in
11 relation to their total budget; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has invested a great deal of time in determining
14 allocations that are representative of the relative financial requirements of each
15 Sports Club Organization;

16
17 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

18
19 **SECTION 1.** Funds are allocated to the following Sports Club Organization for Fiscal Year
20 2003 as follows:

21
22 4-90102 Women’s Volleyball Club \$2,000.00

23
24
25 **TOTAL SPORTS CLUB ALLOCATION \$2,000.00**

26
27
28 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
29 these funds shall be transferred from the Sports Club Reserve Account # 4-90119
30 to Account # 4-90102 of the Women’s Volleyball Club.

31
32 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2002,**
33 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 52-0.**

4 **BY:** Senate Operations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Elections Regulations are unclear;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The current regulations regarding write-in voting options are vague and
9 ambiguous;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Clarifying the Elections Regulations will ensure a smoother elections process; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The following changes will clarify and improve the current Elections Regulations,
14

15 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** Chapter 41, Section 0121 c. of the Kansas State University Student Governing
18 Association Statutes be amended as follows:

19
20 41-0121 Ballot Forms

- 21
22 c. Write-In Candidates. ~~Appropriate blank spaces shall be included for every office~~
23 ~~for write-in candidates.~~ *Write-in options shall be made available for each office*
24 *excluding the Student Body President/Vice President ticket. The number of write-*
25 *in options shall be equal to the number of positions available for that office.*

26
27 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2002,**
28 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 51-1.**
29

4 **BY:** Senate Operations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Elections Regulations are unclear;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Clarifying the Elections Regulations will ensure a smoother elections process;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** A clearly defined process for the randomization of candidates on the ballots is
11 necessary to accommodate the change to on-line elections; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The following changes will clarify and improve the current Elections Regulations,

14
15 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** Chapter 41, Section 0121 b. of the Kansas State University Student Governing
18 Association Statutes be amended as follows:

19
20 41-0121 Ballot Forms

- 21
22 b. Listing. Candidates shall be listed on the ballot in order as determined by a
23 random ~~selection.~~ *drawing of numbers at the mandatory meetings.* The name of
24 the candidate shall be printed as requested by the candidate in their declaration of
25 candidacy. At a minimum, candidates must use their last name as registered with
26 the university.

27
28 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2002,**
29 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 47-3.**

4 **BY:** Senate Operations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Elections Regulations are unclear;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Clarifying the Elections Regulations will ensure a smoother elections process;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** A new process for the previewing of ballots is necessary to accommodate the
11 change to on-line elections; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The following changes will clarify and improve the current Elections Regulations,

14
15 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** Chapter 41, Section 0122 a. 1. and 2. of the Kansas State University Student
18 Governing Association Statutes be amended as follows:

19
20 41-0122 General Provisions

21
22 a. Inspection

23
24 1. Primary. A ~~copy of the sample~~ ballot for the Primary Election shall be
25 made available to the public for inspection on the Friday prior to the
26 Primary Election. *The location of the sample ballot shall be determined*
27 *and announced by the Chair of the Elections Committee at the mandatory*
28 *meetings.* Each candidate shall *have the opportunity to* verify the accuracy
29 of the *sample* ballot prior to 4:00 p.m. that day.

30
31 2. General. A ~~copy of the Sample~~ ballots for the General Election shall be
32 made available to the public for inspection ~~on the Thursday~~ *Friday* prior to
33 the General Election. Each candidate shall *have the opportunity to* verify
34 the accuracy of the *sample* ballots ~~not later than~~ *prior to* 4:00 p.m. ~~the~~
35 ~~Friday prior to the General Election~~ *that day.*

36
37 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2002,**
38 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 52-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Hispanic American Leadership Organization;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Hispanic Heritage month is an annual event in conjunction with Mexican
14 Independence Day to promote cultural awareness;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Hispanic Heritage month will include a speaker, a film, a folkloric dance group,
17 and a Mariachi performance; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1-Honorarium for the Ballet Folklorico De Topeka, and the Mariachi
23 Estrella to perform at the International Student Center on October 6, 2002, from
24 6:00-10:00 p.m.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$1,000.00	\$750.00
TOTAL	\$1,000.00	\$750.00

25
26
27
28
29 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

30
31
32 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$750.00 for the activities described.

33
34 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
35 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
36 the account #4-90360 of the Hispanic American Leadership Organization.

37
38 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 26TH, 2002,**
39 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 45-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators currently has 12 active members who
14 strive to educate the K-State community about the importance of academic
15 integrity;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** One member will attend the Center for Academic Integrity Annual National
18 Conference held at the University of Virginia, in Charlottesville, Virginia, from
19 October 4-6, 2002;

20
21 **WHEREAS,** This student will learn how to communicate better with students and faculty about
22 the importance and consequences of the Honor System; and

23
24 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
25 Allocations Committee are as follows:

26
27 Project 1 - Travel to the Center for Academic Integrity Annual National
28 Conference at the University of Virginia in Charlottesville, Virginia, from
29 October 4-6, 2002.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$100.00	\$100.00
TOTAL	\$100.00	\$100.00

30
31
32
33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$100.00 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
40 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
41 the account # 4-90124 of the Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON SEPTEMBER 26TH, 2002,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 45-0.**

4
5 **BY:** Allocations Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
8 K-State Russian and CIS Students Association;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
11 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
12 group;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** There are 40 active members of this organization who would like to sponsor
15 weekly showings of classic Russian films;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The group is expecting between 25-30 students at each of these showings, based
18 on previous attendance at such events;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** These films are being shown to educate students on Russian culture and to
21 encourage discussion between Russian and American students; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
24 follows:

25
26 Project 1- Rental for DVDs to be shown weekly in the International Student
27 Center starting October 17, 2002.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Rental of DVD’s	\$50.00	\$50.00
TOTAL	\$50.00	\$50.00

28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$50.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 the account that shall be created for the Russian and CIS Students Association.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 3RD, 2002,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 47-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of
7 Amnesty International;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Amnesty International currently has 20 active members who strive to learn more
14 about human rights;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Five members will attend the 2002 Midwest Regional Conference of Amnesty
17 International, which will be held at DePaul University in Chicago, Illinois, from
18 October 18 - 20, 2002;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The five students will participate in Amnesty’s resolution processes, which will
21 have an influence at the United Nations; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
24 Allocations Committee are as follows:

25
26 Project 1 - Travel to the 2002 Midwest Regional Conference of Amnesty
27 International, which will be held at DePaul University in Chicago, Illinois, from
28 October 18 - 20, 2002;

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$500.00	\$500.00
TOTAL	\$500.00	\$500.00

29
30
31
32
33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$500.00 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
39 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
40 the account # 4-90021 of Amnesty International.

41
42 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 3RD, 2002,**
43 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 47-0.**
44

2
3
4 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Health Privilege Fee provides necessary services to students of
7 Kansas State University; and

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Students have seen many benefits from their Student Health Privilege Fee and
10 Student Health Center;

11
12 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

13
14 **SECTION 1.** The KSU SGA Statutes 29-0101 through 29-0114 are hereby amended to
15 read:

16
17 **LAFENE HEALTH CENTER BUDGET AGREEMENT**

18
19 This agreement made this 10th day of October 2002, between the Kansas State University Student
20 Governing Association (SENATE), and Kansas State University Lafene Health Center
21 (DEPARTMENT).

- 22
- 23 1. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Year 2004, 2005, and
- 24 2006 shall be \$3,222,217.
- 25
- 26 2. The DEPARTMENT BUDGET shall be reviewed prior to Fiscal Year 2007.
- 27
- 28 3. A. No privilege fee funds may be used for paying the Institutional Support Fee.
- 29 B. No privilege fee funds can be used for the remodeling or moving of the Student Health
- 30 Center.
- 31 C. No privilege fee funds may be used to fund a position at Disabled Student Services.
- 32 D. No visitor fee may be implemented by the DEPARTMENT without approval by SENATE.
- 33 E. The DEPARTMENT shall inform SENATE of any capital expenditures over \$5,000 within
- 34 60 days after purchase.
- 35
- 36 4. A Lafene Health Center Reserve Account shall be created by the KSU Controller’s Office and
- 37 set at five percent (currently \$161,110) of the Student Health Privilege Fee. The DEPARTMENT
- 38 shall be responsible for transferring \$161,110 to the new Lafene Health Center Reserve Account in
- 39 the beginning of Fiscal Year 2004.
- 40
- 41 5. Should the DEPARTMENT generate additional revenue that is not currently budgeted for, the
- 42 money shall revert into the Lafene Health Center Reserve Account at the end of each fiscal year.
- 43
- 44 6. The Director of the DEPARTMENT shall make a presentation to the Privilege Fee Committee
- 45 by October 1st of each fiscal year to present the budgeted figures compared to the actual figures from
- 46 the previous fiscal year.
- 47
- 48 7. Should the DEPARTMENT require reserve funds, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall

1 present its need to the Privilege Fee Committee. The need shall meet the requirements from KSU
2 SGA Statute 15-0103. SENATE shall approve all allocations of money from the Lafene Health
3 Center Reserve Account. Should an allocation need to be made during the period that SENATE is
4 not in session, the Vice President of Institutional Advancement, the Student Body President, the
5 Student Senate Chair, and the Privilege Fee Chair shall collectively have the authority to make the
6 allocation. During this period a memo detailing the allocation with the four required signatures shall
7 be sent to the KSU Controller's office and presented to SENATE.
8

9 8. In any fiscal year there are allocations from the Lafene Health Center Reserve Account the
10 Student Health Privilege Fee shall be taken out of cycle the following fiscal year and reviewed by
11 the Privilege Fee Committee. During this review the Committee shall review the previous fiscal
12 year's figures, review the current status of the Lafene Health Center Reserve Account, and determine
13 what actions need to be taken to replenish the Lafene Health Center Reserve Account.
14

15 9. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by Kansas State University Student
16 Senate and/or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with Kansas State University
17 Lafene Health Center regarding funding of budget and use of such funding.
18

19 10. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review by Kansas
20 State University Student Senate and such review could result in decrease or termination of funding
21 of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any rights in any instance shall not constitute
22 a waiver of such rights in that instance or any other instance.
23

24 11. Within 60 days of the end of each fiscal year, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall submit
25 a written summary of the BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for review by the entire
26 Senate body.
27

28 12. No construction or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with privilege fees
29 unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student body. (SGA Constitution
30 Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105)
31

32 13. This agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the State of Kansas.
33

34 14. By signing this agreement, the representative of the respective parties hereby represent that each
35 is duly authorized by his or her part to execute this document on behalf of such party that the party
36 agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.
37

38 15. Bill 02/03/22 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by: the Privilege Fee Chair;
39 the Director of Lafene Student Health Center; the Student Senate Chair; the Assistant Vice President
40 for Institutional Advancement; the Vice President for Institutional Advancement and the Student
41 Body President.
42

43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 10TH, 2002,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 55-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Academic Competition Team;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee considered the extraordinary contributions the
10 Academic Competition Teams make to the reputation of Kansas State University
11 throughout the United States;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Academic Competition Teams have a solid record of not only participating in
14 but winning many of the events they attend; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by the Academic Competition Team and the funding
17 recommendations made are as follows:

18
19 Project 1- FY 2003 Academic Competition Team Allocations

		<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
20	To be created Phi Beta Lambda	\$12,931.24	\$2,000.00
21	TOTAL:	\$12,931.24	\$2,000.00

22
23
24
25 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

26
27 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$2,000 for the activities described.

28
29 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
30 \$2,000.00 shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account # 4-
31 90560 to an account to be created for Phi Beta Lambda.

32
33 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 17TH, 2002,**
34 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of
7 Up 'Til Dawn;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization's spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Up 'Til Dawn will be an all-campus philanthropy to raise money for St. Jude
14 Hospital;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Up 'Til Dawn signed up 16 teams in the first week and has more than 100
17 students working to raise money;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** This organization is hoping to raise approximately \$40,000.00 for St. Jude
20 Hospital through team letter writing and corporate sponsorship;

21
22 **WHEREAS,** At the end of this project, the Up 'Til Dawn executive board is planning to visit
23 St. Jude Hospital in Tennessee; and

24
25 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
26 Allocations Committee are as follows:

27
28 Project 1 - Promotions for Up 'Til Dawn to educate students about their
29 opportunity to be involved in an all-campus philanthropy.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$885.00	\$585.00
Travel	\$200.00	\$0.00
Event Set-up	\$700.00	\$0.00
Facility Rental	\$1300.00	\$0.00
Fund-raising site	\$300.00	\$0.00
Food	\$1500.00	\$0.00
TOTAL	\$4,885.00	\$585.00

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40 Project 2 - Executive board trip to visit St. Jude Hospital

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00

1 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

2
3 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$585.00 for the activities described.

4
5 **SECTION 2.** Project 2 is allocated \$1,000.00 for the activities described.

6
7 **SECTION 3.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
8 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
9 the account to be created for Up 'Til Dawn.

10
11 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 17TH, 2002,**
12 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 51-2.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
7 Association of Residence Halls;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Association of Residence Halls brought Maisie DeVore to speak about
14 determination and perseverance;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Maisie DeVore spent 30 years collecting 90 tons of cans and raised
17 \$100,000 to build Eskridge, KS, a community pool;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** Maisie DeVore shared her story with approximately 80 students at McCain
20 Auditorium on September 25, 2002; and

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
23 follows:

24
25 Project 1- Rent of Space for McCain Auditorium for Maisie DeVore’s
26 presentation.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Rent of Space	\$527.43	\$320.00
TOTAL	\$527.43	\$320.00

27
28
29
30
31 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

32
33 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$320.00 for the activities described.

34
35 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
36 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
37 an account to be created for the Association of Residence Halls.

38
39 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 17TH, 2002,**
40 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 52-1.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State rugby and lacrosse teams use Memorial Stadium to practice and
7 compete;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** It is very time consuming for these teams to have to draw their lines on the field
10 before every practice;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Lines for band, soccer, rugby, and lacrosse were originally planned for the
13 Memorial Stadium turf;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** When the field was completed it only had lines for band and soccer;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University facilities department will be paying for the labor to
18 have these additional lines drawn;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** It will cost \$420.00 from the Sports Clubs reserve account to have these lines
21 painted; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** If there is any money in the Memorial Stadium Turf-SGA Account #7-70430 at
24 the end of the year, this money will be used to reimburse the Sports Clubs reserve
25 account.

26
27 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

28
29
30 **SECTION 1.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
31 \$420.00 shall be taken from the Sports Clubs Reserves Account #4-90119 and
32 transferred to the Ahearn Support Account #4-90071.

33
34 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 17TH, 2002,**
35 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**

BY: Educational Opportunity Fund Committee

WHEREAS, The Educational Opportunity Fund Committee has considered 29 proposals for Educational Opportunity Fund;

WHEREAS, All groups were provided ample opportunity to request Educational Opportunity Funds;

WHEREAS, All groups will have a chance to respond to Educational Opportunity Fund recommendations; and

WHEREAS, The following groups have met all the formal and informal guidelines established by the Kansas Board of Regents and the Kansas State University Student Governing Association;

BE IT ENACTED THAT:

SECTION 1. The following organizations will receive funding from the Fiscal Year 2004 Educational Opportunity Fund budget:

Title of Proposal	FRS Account	Allocated FY 2003	Requested FY 2004	Allocated FY 2004
1. Minority Student Mentoring Program <i>Academic Assistance Center</i>	490827	\$12,120	\$14,990	\$12,120
2. University-Wide Undergraduate Tutorial Service <i>Academic Assistance Center</i>	490803	\$57,275	\$57,275	\$51,275
3. Developing Scholars Graduate Assistantship <i>Academic Assistance Center</i>		\$0	\$8,000	\$0
4. Developing Scholars Supplemental Funding Mini-Grants <i>Academic Assistance Center</i>	490812	\$2,000	\$2,000	\$2,000
5. Graduate Assistant Position <i>Adult Student Services</i>	490820	\$8,000	\$9,300	\$8,000
6. Need Based Scholarship for Full & Part-Time Adult Nontrad Stu. <i>Adult Student Services</i>	490801	\$5,000	\$5,000	\$5,000
7. Minority Student Scholarships <i>College of Architecture, Planning and Design</i>	490801	\$1,000 2 @ \$500	\$9,000 9 @ \$1000	\$500 1@ \$500
8. Non-Traditional Student Scholarships <i>College of Architecture, Planning and DesignI</i>	490801	\$1,000 2 @ \$500	\$4,000 2 @ \$2000	\$500 1@ \$500

Title of Proposal	FRS Account	Allocated FY 2003	Requested FY 2004	Allocated FY 2004
9. KSU Child Development Center Childship Fund <i>KSU Child Development Center</i>	490808	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$65,000
10. Community Service Program "Learning by Serving" <i>K-State Community Service Program</i>	490809	\$10,422	\$12,300	\$9,922
11. Graduate Assistantship in Student Development <i>Counseling and Educational Psychology/College of Ed</i>	490806	\$8,000	\$18,106	\$8,000
12. Provide Scholarships to Students with Learning Disabilities <i>Disability Support Services</i>	490801	\$2,000 4@ \$500	\$2,000	\$1,000 2@ \$500
13. Provide Scholarships to Students with Physical Disabilities <i>Disability Support Services</i>	490801	\$2,000 4@ \$500	\$2,000	\$1,000 2@ \$500
14. Provide Services to Students with Learning Disabilities <i>Disability Support Services</i>	490805	\$8,000	\$8,000	\$8,000
15. Provide Services to Students with Physical Disabilities <i>Disability Support Services</i>	490807	\$8,000	\$8,000	\$8,000
16. MSO Graduate Assistant <i>Multicultural Student Organization Office</i>	490823	\$8,000	\$8,000	\$8,000
17. Diversity & Dual Career Development Undergrad Student Position <i>Office of Diversity and Dual Career Development</i>	490823	\$6,750	\$6,750	\$6,750
18. International Student Scholarships <i>Office of International Programs</i>		\$0	\$10,000	\$0
19. Grad Assistant <i>International Student Center</i>	490811	\$8,000	\$9,300	\$8,000
20. International Student Scholarships <i>International Student Center/International Coordinating Council</i>	490801	\$4,000 8 @ \$500	\$4,000	\$2,000 4@ \$500
21. Preparing KSU Students for the Grad Record Exam <i>McNair Scholars Program/Educational Support Services</i>	\$0	\$8,711	\$0	
22. MEP Scholarships Funds/Grad. Asst. Fellowship <i>Multicultural Engineering Program</i>	490802	\$8,000 Grad Asst.	\$56,000	\$8,000 Grad Asst.
23. Joey Lee Garman Undergraduate Scholarship <i>Racial Ethnic Harmony Week Planning Committee</i>	490801	\$1,000 2 @ \$500	\$1,000	\$500 1@ \$500
24. Graduate Assistant <i>Office of Student Life</i>	490804	\$8,000	\$8,100	\$8,000
25. Upward Bound Math & Science Program <i>Director of Upward Bound Math & Science Program</i>	490818	\$6,653	\$15,510	\$6,653
26. Study Abroad Scholarships for Minority & Under-represented groups <i>Department of Modern Languages</i>		\$0	\$6,000	\$0
27. Pollution Prevention Summer Internship <i>Environmental Health & Safety</i>		\$0	\$6,000	\$0
28. Financial Counseling Center <i>Family Studies and Human Services</i>		\$0	\$19,584	\$0
29. Student Intern to Develop a KSU International Internship Info Center <i>Office of International Programs</i>		\$0	\$6,400	\$0
Total		\$240,220	\$390,326	\$228,220

SECTION 2. These funds shall be transferred from the Educational Opportunity Fund Reserve Account to each project's respective account.

SECTION 3. Any unspent funds shall automatically revert back to the Educational Opportunity Fund Reserve Account at the end of the fiscal year 2004.

SECTION 4. Upon passage of this legislation, a copy of this bill shall be sent to President Jon Wefald and to the Board of Regents for approval.

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON OCTOBER 24TH, 2002,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 55-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Sports Club Organizations at Kansas State University;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from each respective
10 sports club, its respective spending trends, and the amount of fund-raising in
11 relation to its total budget; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has invested a great deal of time in determining
14 allocations that are representative of the relative financial requirements of each
15 Sports Club Organization;

16
17 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

18
19 **SECTION 1.** Funds are allocated to the following Sports Club Organization for Fiscal Year
20 2003 as follows:

21
22 4-90069 Women’s Rugby Club \$965.00

23
24 **TOTAL SPORTS CLUB ALLOCATION \$965.00**

25
26
27 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
28 these funds shall be transferred from the Sports Club Reserve Account # 4-90119
29 to Account # 4-90069 of the Women’s Rugby Club.
30
31
32

2
3
4
5 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** Counseling Services Fee provides necessary services to the students of Kansas
8 State University; and

9
10 **WHEREAS,** Students have seen many benefits of having Counseling Services;

11
12 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

13
14 **SECTION 1.** The KSU SGA Statutes 31-0101 through 31-0111 are hereby amended to read:

15
16 **COUNSELING SERVICES BUDGET AGREEMENT**

17
18 This agreement made this 31st day of October 2002, between the Kansas State University Student
19 Governing Association (SENATE), and Counseling Services (DEPARTMENT).

20
21 1. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Year 2004 shall be
22 \$523,883.00. The DEPARTMENT BUDGET for Fiscal Year 2005 shall be \$534,361.00. The
23 DEPARTMENT BUDGET for Fiscal Year 2006 shall be \$545,048.00. The BUDGET will be
24 reviewed prior to Fiscal Year 2007.

25
26 2. A. No privilege fee funds may be used for paying the Institutional Support Fee.
27 B. No privilege fee funds may be used for the remodeling or moving of the Student Health
28 Center, including the Counseling Services.

29
30 3. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by Kansas State University Student
31 Senate and/or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with the Counseling
32 Services regarding funding of budget and use of such funding.

33
34 4. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review by
35 Kansas State University Student Senate and such review could result in decrease or termination
36 of funding of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any rights in any instance shall
37 not constitute a waiver of such rights in that instance or any other instance.

38
39 5. Within 60 days of the end of each fiscal year, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall submit
40 a written summary of the BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for review by the
41 entire Senate body.

42
43 6. No construction or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with privilege fees
44 unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student body. (SGA
45 Constitution Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105)

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

- 7. This agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the State of Kansas.
- 8. By signing this agreement, the representative of the respective parties hereby represent that each is duly authorized by his or her part to execute this document on behalf of such party that the party agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.
- 9. Bill 02/03/29 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by: the Privilege Fee Chair; the Director of Counseling Services; the Student Senate Chair; the Associate Vice President for Institutional Advancement; the Vice President for Institutional Advancement; and the Student Body President.

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON
OCTOBER 31ST, 2002, WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 50-5.**

4 **BY:** Senate Operations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Elections Regulations are unclear and outdated;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Due to the recent change to online elections, an Elections Review Committee
9 would be more effective to review complaints;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Establishing an Elections Commissioner would make the elections process more
12 efficient; and

13
14 **WHEREAS,** The following changes will improve and clarify the current Elections Regulations;

15
16 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

17
18 **SECTION 1.** Chapter 41 of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association Statues
19 be amended as follows:

20
21
22 **Chapter 41:**
23 **Elections Regulations Code**

24
25 41-01 **Elections Regulations Code**

26
27 41-0101 **Scope**

28
29 The Elections Regulations Code (the "Code") shall govern general and special
30 elections of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association.

31
32 41-0102 **Definitions**

33
34 Active Campaigning. The term "active campaigning" shall mean any direct
35 distribution of campaign materials, verbal or oral encouragement, or other activity of
36 a non-personal nature by one person to another for the purpose of furthering a
37 campaign.

38
39 41-0103 College. The term "college" shall mean each main campus college of the University
40 and the graduate school.

41
42 41-0104 Candidate. The term "candidate" shall mean any individual who has satisfied all of
43 the requirements to run for office in General Election, and has filed a declaration of
44 candidacy with the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*.

- 1 41-0105 Write-In Candidate. The term "write-in candidate" shall mean individuals receiving
2 votes who have not filed a declaration of candidacy.
3
- 4 41-0106 Electoral Race. The term "electoral race" shall mean a contest between one (1) or
5 more candidates for the same office in an election.
6
- 7 41-0107 Student Governing Association Official. The term "Student Governing Association
8 Official" shall mean any individual holding one or more of the offices listed in
9 ~~41-0110~~ 41-0111.
10
- 11 41-0108 Primary Elections
12 a. Dates. The Primary Election shall be held on the Tuesday and Wednesday three
13 weeks prior to Spring break.
14 b. Purpose. The Primary Election shall be held in the event that more than two tickets
15 file for the office of Student Body President/Vice President in order to select the top
16 two vote-getters for the General Election
17
18
19
- 20 41-0109 General Elections
21
- 22 41-0110 Generally
23 a. Dates. The General Election shall be held on the Tuesday and Wednesday two (2)
24 weeks prior to Spring Break for the purpose of electing officers of the Student
25 Governing Association and the College Councils.
26 b. Eligibility to Vote. All students enrolled in at least one credit hour of class work
27 at the main campus of Kansas State University shall be eligible to vote. All
28 students so eligible shall be allowed to vote for any campus position. Students
29 enrolled within a certain college shall be eligible to vote for college positions. All
30 students enrolled in at least one credit hour of class work at KSU-Salina shall be
31 eligible to vote for Student Body President and Student Body Vice President.
32 Eligibility shall be determined by the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* where
33 such eligibility should fall into question with records dated not more than one (1)
34 week prior to the opening of the polls.
35
- 36 41-0111 Offices
37 a. President and Vice President. In the General Election, one presidential ticket,
38 consisting of one Presidential candidate and one Vice Presidential candidate, shall
39 be elected jointly by the student body.
40 b. Student Senators. In the General Election, sixty (60) Student Senators shall be
41 elected by the students of their respective colleges.
42 1. Apportionment of Student Senate Seats. Seats of the Student Senate shall be
43 apportioned among the colleges as outlined in the Kansas State University
44 Student Governing Association Constitution.
45 c. Union Governing Board. In the General Election, as many seats as there are

- 1 available for each position available shall be elected by the student body.
2 d. Board of Student Publications. In the General Election, as many seats as there
3 are available for each position available shall be elected by the student body.
4 e. Fine Arts Council. In the General Election, as many seats as there are
5 available for each position available shall be elected by the student body.
6 f. College Councils. In the General Election, as many seats as there are
7 available for each position available shall be elected by the students of their
8 respective colleges.
9

10 41-0112 Elections Schedule

11
12 41-0113 Generally

- 13 a. Events Schedule. The Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall be
14 responsible for the creation of an annual calendar of events including all
15 deadlines under this Code. The schedule shall be published at the same time as
16 the revised Elections Regulation Code is published.
17 b. Announcement of Schedule. The Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall
18 announce and make available to all campus media, not less than five weeks
19 before the first day of the General Election, the officers to be elected in the
20 General Election, the qualifications and requirements to become a candidate in
21 the General Election, and the events schedule as described in (a) above.
22

23 41-0114 Qualifications

24
25 41-0115 Generally

- 26 a. Qualifications for Candidacy. The qualifications for eligibility to run as a
27 candidate for any Student Governing Association position shall be as
28 established by the Kansas State University Student Governing Association
29 Constitution.
30 b. *Disqualifications.* ~~Elections Committee Members Disqualified. The Elections~~
31 ~~Commissioner, the Deputy Commissioner, and members of the Elections~~
32 ~~Review Committee are disqualified from being a candidate in any election that~~
33 ~~falls during their term of office. under the oversight of the Elections~~
34 ~~Committee while that person is a member of the Elections Committee.~~
35

36 41-0116 Nomination of Candidates

37
38 41-0117 Procedure

- 39 a. Generally. Any person meeting the qualifications of ~~41-0113~~ *41-0115* may
40 become a candidate by complying with the requirements outlined in this section.
41 b. Declaration of Candidacy. Any person seeking to have their name placed on the
42 ballot as a candidate for the offices of Student Body President, Student Body Vice
43 President, Student Senator, Board of Student Publications, Union Governing
44 Board, and the Fine Arts Council shall file a declaration of candidacy with the
45 professional staff of the Office of Student Activities and Services two (2) weeks

1 prior to the General Election.

- 2 c. Filing Requirements. Each candidate shall meet certain filing requirements in
3 order to declare their candidacy. The declaration of candidacy shall include the
4 name of the student, the college the student is enrolled in, and the office being
5 sought by the student.
- 6 d. Mandatory Meetings. Each student seeking to be a candidate must attend one of
7 at least two mandatory meetings completed by 5:00 p.m. on the Tuesday of the
8 week immediately prior to the primary election as specified by the Elections
9 ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*. Candidates may be excused from this requirement
10 only if the candidate has received written permission from the Elections
11 ~~Committee Chairman~~ *Commissioner* prior to the last scheduled meeting
- 12 e. Write-In Candidates. Write-in candidates shall not be required to file the
13 documents necessary under this section nor will candidates elected in the General
14 Election who did not run an active campaign be required to file expenditure
15 reports as specified in ~~41-0142~~ *41-0140*. However, write-in candidates shall be
16 required to follow all other regulations within this Code and shall be subject to the
17 penalties for violations as described in ~~41-0148~~ *41-0140* et seq.
- 18 f. Exceptions. Exceptions as to the date and time of a filing requirement under
19 41-0115 may be made by the Elections ~~Committee Chair~~ *Commissioner* upon
20 determination of reasonable circumstances.

21
22 41-0118 Polls

23
24 41-0119 General Provisions

- 25 a. Responsibility. The Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall be responsible for
26 establishing and maintaining the polling places on the days of the elections. The
27 Elections ~~Committee Chair~~ *Commissioner* shall be responsible for developing
28 specific polling procedures, administering such procedures ~~under the supervision~~
29 ~~of the Elections Committee~~, and ensuring that polling is carried out in an orderly
30 and impartial manner.
- 31 b. Location. Polling places shall be placed in the K-State Student Union. Polling
32 may also take place in University Computing Labs or any personal computer using
33 a KATS ID and PIN number.
- 34 c. Times of Operation. Polling stations shall remain open for not less than eight
35 hours per day for each day of the elections on a continual basis. The Elections
36 ~~Committee Chair~~ *Commissioner* shall have the discretion to maintain polling
37 places beyond these time requirements.
- 38 d. Campaign Activity at Polling Places. Campaign activities at polling places shall
39 be limited as set forth in ~~41-0134~~ *41-0133*.

40
41 41-0120 Ballots

42
43 41-0121 Ballot Forms

- 44 a. Provision. The Elections ~~Committee Chair~~ *Commissioner* shall provide a ballot
45 which shall contain spaces for all general offices to be elected as well as spaces

1 for each referendum or initiative to be voted upon in the General Election. The
2 Elections ~~Committee Chair~~ *Commissioner* shall also provide a ballot for each
3 college which shall provide spaces for all college offices to be elected.

- 4 b. Listing. Candidates shall be listed on the ballot, in order as determined by a
5 random drawing of numbers at the mandatory meetings. The name of the
6 candidate shall be printed as requested by the candidate in his or her declaration of
7 candidacy. At a minimum, candidates must use their last name as registered with
8 the University.
- 9 c. Write-In Candidates. Write-in options shall be made available for each office
10 excluding the Student Body President/Vice President ticket in the general election.
11 The number of write-in options shall be equal to the number of positions available
12 for that office.

13
14 41-0122 General Provisions.

15 a. Inspection

16 1. Primary. A sample ballot for the Primary Election shall be made available to
17 the public for inspection on the Friday prior to the Primary Election. The
18 location of the sample ballot shall be determined and announced by the ~~Chair~~
19 ~~of the Elections Committee~~ *Commissioner* at the mandatory meetings. Each
20 candidate shall have the opportunity to verify the accuracy of the sample ballot
21 prior to 4:00 p.m. that day.

22 2. General. Sample ballots for the General Election shall be made available to
23 the public for inspection on the Friday prior to the General Election. Each
24 candidate shall have the opportunity to verify the accuracy of the sample
25 ballots prior to 4:00 p.m. that day.

26 b. Availability of ballots. Ballots shall be made available as specified in the contract
27 with the elections vendor.

28 c. Security of Ballots. The Elections ~~Committee Chair~~ *Commissioner* shall ensure
29 that all ballots are secure from damage, loss, theft, or alteration. Ballots shall be
30 destroyed one (1) year after the adoption of the election results by the Student
31 Senate.

32
33 41-0123 Voting

34
35 41-0124 Generally

36 a. Voting shall be by secret ballot. To receive a ballot, the voter must follow
37 procedures outlined by the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*. The voter must
38 mark the ballot according to the instructions on the ballot. The voter shall be
39 responsible for submitting the completed ballot to the elections vendor.

40
41 41-0125 Vote Tabulation

42
43 41-0126 Procedure

44 a. Method. Votes for all offices shall be counted electronically by the elections
45 vendor. Votes for write-in candidates shall be tabulated by the Elections

1 ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*, under the supervision of the Coordinator of the Office
2 of Student Activities and Services. Votes shall not be tabulated until the
3 completion of the elections.

- 4 b. Vote Required for Election. The vote required for election to the office of Student
5 Body President and Student Body Vice President shall be a majority of the votes
6 cast in the General Election. The vote required for election to the office of
7 Student Senate, Board of Student Publications, Union Governing Board, and Fine
8 Arts Council shall be a plurality of votes cast.

9
10 41-0127 Certification of Elections

11
12 41-0128 Procedure

- 13 a. Announcement of Unofficial Results. Upon completion of the tabulation of all
14 votes cast in the Primary Election, as necessary, and the General Election, the
15 Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall release the unofficial results. All
16 candidates for the offices of Student Body President and Student Body Vice
17 President will be immediately notified by the Elections ~~Committee Chairman~~
18 *Commissioner* of the unofficial results.
- 19 b. Submission to Student Senate. The Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall
20 submit the unofficial results to the Senate Operations Standing Committee. The
21 Senate Operations Standing Committee shall introduce a resolution for approval
22 to the Student Senate at the second regular meeting of the Student Senate
23 following the General Election or run-off election, as may be necessary. The
24 unofficial elections results will be accompanied by a certification by the Elections
25 ~~Committee Chairman~~ *Commissioner* that the results being submitted are valid.
26 Races in which the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* does not believe such a
27 certification may be made due to pending questions shall not be submitted by the
28 above deadline.
- 29 c. Adoption by Student Senate. The unofficial results shall become official upon
30 their adoption by a majority vote of the Student Senate. Student Senate shall not
31 amend the submitted election results.
- 32 d. Annulment. If, after adoption by a majority vote of the Student Senate, material
33 evidence is discovered to find any election results in doubt, the Student Senate
34 may annul the affected sections of the adopted elections results.
- 35 e. Contested Elections. All students qualified to vote in the General Election shall
36 have the power to contest elections results. A notice of contention of election
37 results must be submitted to the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* no more than
38 two days after the unofficial results have been issued. Upon receipt of such
39 notice, the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall immediately ~~conduct a~~
40 ~~hearing to~~ determine the validity of the contention's claim and shall report such
41 information as it finds necessary to the Student Senate with its submission of the
42 unofficial elections results for adoption.

43
44 41-0129 Campaign Activities

1 41-0130 Definitions.

- 2 a. Residence Hall Regions. The term "residence hall region" shall mean those
3 regions bounded by specific streets which are considered residence hall areas.
4 There shall be two residence hall regions.
- 5 a. The "West Region" is considered to be all university property enclosed by
6 Claflin Road, Denison Avenue, Platt Street, and Sunset Avenue.
- 7 b. The "East Region" is considered to be all university property enclosed by
8 Claflin Road, Manhattan Avenue, Campus Creek Road, Petticoat Lane, and
9 Mid-Campus Drive.
- 10 b. Campaign Materials. The term "campaign materials" shall mean any
11 advertisement, document, or device of any kind whatsoever intended to promote
12 or oppose the election of a candidate.

13
14 41-0131 General Provisions

- 15 a. Conformity. All campaign materials and activities shall conform to the laws of
16 the State of Kansas, the ordinances of the City of Manhattan, the University
17 Activities Board Sales, Solicitation, and Advertising policy, the Political Activity
18 Guidelines, the Association of Residence Halls policy, and all other rules of the
19 University.
- 20 b. Residence Halls. Students must follow Association of Residence Hall policies.
21 The following regulations apply to the Residence Hall Regions outlined in ~~41-~~
22 ~~0131(a.)~~41-0130(a).
- 23 1. Posters are permitted only within the residence halls on the doors of individual
24 resident(s) with the express permission of the resident(s) therein.
- 25 2. No chalking or outdoor hanging of posters is allowed.
- 26 c. Limitation On Postings. With the exception of posters and signs meeting the
27 requirements of ~~41-0135~~ 41-0134 and ~~41-0136~~ 41-0135, no campaign materials
28 shall be leaned against or otherwise affixed to anything on campus.
- 29 d. Removal. All campaign materials shall be removed from the campus proper by
30 the evening of the day following the last day of the General Election. In the event
31 of a run-off election, this provision shall not apply to the candidates for Student
32 Body President and Student Body Vice President, but such materials must be
33 removed by the evening of the day following the run-off election.
- 34 e. Stickers. Stickers shall only be placed on personal property.
- 35 f. Chalking. Chalking is permitted only on sidewalks, excluding stairs and any area
36 not generally intended as a pathway for pedestrians.
- 37 g. Unauthorized Removal. No individual shall remove, deface, obscure, or
38 otherwise tamper with the campaign materials of another candidate.
- 39 h. Class Interference. No campaign activity that disturbs or otherwise interrupts a
40 class shall be permitted.
- 41 i. Mass Distribution. Distribution of campaign materials to individuals must be
42 made by an individual. Campaign activities that distribute materials through any
43 form of contact beyond personal interaction is prohibited. Mass distribution shall
44 include, but is not limited to, canvassing of parking areas, leaving campaign
45 materials unattended or in piles, electronic mail distributions violating university
46 policy on junk e-mail, mailings, and indiscriminate scattering of materials. E-
47 mails containing campaign language may be sent only to persons known by the
48 sender.

1
2 41-0132 Time Limits

- 3 a. Campaign Materials. Items listed in ~~41-0133~~ 41-0134 and ~~41-0134~~ 41-0135 may
4 be displayed after 5:00 p.m. on the Tuesday of the week immediately prior to the
5 Primary Election.
6 b. Tables. Tables may be established by the Primary Election candidates during the
7 Thursday, Friday, and Monday immediately prior to the Primary Election and by
8 candidates for any office during the Thursday, Friday, and Monday immediately
9 prior to the General Election. Tables may only be set up in the Student Union in
10 accordance with Union Governing Board policy and must be staffed at all times
11 when in use.
12

13 41-0133 Election Day Activities

- 14 a. Distance Requirement. No person may actively campaign inside of the Student
15 Union or University Computing Lab or within twenty (20) feet in front of the
16 doors of the Student Union or University Computing Lab.
17 b. Exception. It shall not be considered a violation for a voter to wear passive
18 campaign material, in the form of a shirt, sticker, or other item, in the vicinity of
19 the polls, or while voting, so long as that individual is not loitering.
20 c. Authority. Poll workers shall have the authority to make determinations of
21 loitering or campaigning under ~~41-0134(a)~~ 41-0133(a).
22

23 41-0134 Posters

- 24 a. Definition. The term “poster” shall be defined as any paper campaign material
25 affixed to a wall or stationary object.
26 b. Size. Posters shall be limited in size to 16" x 22", except for those posters placed
27 on portable bulletin boards located within the Student Union, which shall be
28 limited to 8.5" x 11".
29 c. Display. Posters may only be tied to trees and lampposts, posted on residence hall
30 doors, or tacked to bulletin boards in campus buildings. Posters must be secured
31 on all four corners.
32 d. Overlaying. Overlaying of posters is strictly prohibited.
33 e. Outside Display. When used for outside display, posters must be printed in card
34 stock paper.
35

36 41-0135 Banners

- 37 a. Limited Use. Banners may be used only by candidates for the offices of the
38 Student Body President and the Student Body Vice President.
39 b. Securing. Banners must be secured on all four corners and must not impede the
40 flow of traffic through campus.
41 c. Where Displayed. Banners may only be displayed as designated by the Elections
42 ~~Committee~~ Commissioner.
43 d. Banners shall be rotated in an equitable manner as determined by the Elections
44 ~~Committee~~ Commissioner.
45
46
47
48

1 41-0136 Authority to Remove

- 2 a. Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* Authority. ~~Any member of the Elections~~
3 ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall have the authority to remove, with 24-hours
4 notice, any campaign materials found to be in violation of the regulations noted
5 above, at which time the ~~member shall immediately file~~ *candidate shall be*
6 *notified of the a violation complaint with the Elections Committee.*

7
8 41-0137 Campaign Expenses & Contributions

9
10 41-0138 Generally

- 11 a. Definition. The term "campaign expense" shall mean the retail value of any
12 obligations incurred, the retail value of any goods or services donated, and any
13 actual funds expended to promote or oppose the election of any individual to any
14 office. This definition shall include the value of any discounts not available to the
15 general public and the retail value of any services donated. This definition shall
16 not include any fines assessed under this Code.
- 17 b. Personal Contributions Limited. The maximum amount any candidate may
18 contribute toward his or her campaign shall be as follows:
- 19 1. The amount of personal funds each presidential ticket may contribute
20 toward its campaign shall be no more than \$800 for the primary and
21 general election elections combined.
 - 22 2. The amount of personal funds each candidate for Union Governing Board,
23 the Board of Student Publications, and the Fine Arts Council may
24 contribute toward his or her campaign shall be no more than \$125.
 - 25 3. The amount of personal funds each candidate for Student Senate or
26 College Council may contribute toward his or her campaign shall be no
27 more than \$50.
- 28 c. Contributions Limited. Contributions to any candidate may only be accepted if
29 the contribution is being received from a qualified student of Kansas State
30 University (as determined under the Code through ~~41-0109(b)~~ *41-0110(b)*), and
31 limits for all contributions other than personal contributions shall be as follows:
- 32 1. Each Presidential Ticket shall not accept more than \$20.00 from any one
33 student.
 - 34 2. Each candidate for Union Governing Board, the Board of Student
35 Publications, the Fine Arts Council, Student Senate, or College Council
36 shall not accept more than \$5.00 from any one student.
- 37 d. Sources of Values. The candidate shall be responsible for justifying the value of
38 any services received or amounts spend, either through receipt or other reasonable
39 means.

40
41 41-0139 Reporting Requirements

42
43 41-0140 Generally

- 44 a. Expense and Contribution Reports. All Primary Election candidates shall be required
45 to submit an expense and contribution report to the Office of Student Activities and
46 Services no later than 4:00 P.M. on the Friday prior to the Primary Election. All
47 candidates shall be required to submit an expense and contribution report to the

1 Office of Student Activities and Services no later than 4:00 P.M. on the Friday
2 immediately prior to the General Election. A report must be filed even if no expenses
3 were incurred. The Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall be responsible for the
4 provision of standardized expense and contribution report forms. An individual
5 expense and contribution report must be submitted by a candidate for each office the
6 student is a candidate for.

- 7 b. Content. Expense and contribution reports shall itemize all campaign expenses,
8 ~~including contributions to a coalition, if any,~~ and the fair market value of each item
9 listed as determined whether by receipt, proof of purchase, or when unavailable,
10 according to those criteria and requirements of ~~41-1402(a)~~ *41-0138* and ~~41-1402(d)~~
11 *41-0138*. The contribution section of the report shall itemize each amount contributed
12 to the campaign, the name of the donor, and any other information deemed necessary
13 by the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*.
- 14 c. Verification. The Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall review the expense and
15 contribution reports in order to check for accuracy and completeness. The Elections
16 ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* has the authority to make final judgments on cost of items
17 where evidence of cost is absent.
- 18 d. All campaign expense reports must be submitted by the Elections ~~Committee~~
19 *Commissioner* to all persons requesting by 1:00 p.m. on the Sunday prior to the
20 general election. In the event of a run-off election, expense reports for the run-off
21 election must be submitted by the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* to all persons
22 requesting by 7:00 p.m. on the Monday prior to the run-off election.

23
24 41-0141 Enforcement

25
26 41-0142 Scope

- 27 a. All candidates are bound by the Elections Regulation Code and are subject to the
28 penalties stated hereunder for violations of the Code.

29
30 41-0143 Complaints

- 31 a. Filing Complaints. Any election complaints caused by a suspected violation of the
32 code must be filed with the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* within one day after
33 discovery of the suspected violation. Complaints shall be made in such a form that
34 states the name of the filer, the section(s) under which the suspected violation shall
35 have occurred, and shall be signed by the filer.
- 36 b. Notification and Investigation. Upon the receipt of a complaint by the Elections
37 ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*, ~~the Elections Committee Chair~~ *he or she* shall notify the
38 individual(s) suspected of the violation, *and* the individual(s) filing the complaint, ~~and~~
39 ~~the Elections Committee of the complaint. One member of the Elections Committee,~~
40 ~~selected by the Elections Committee Chair, The Elections Commissioner shall act as~~
41 ~~an Enforcement Officer. This individual shall conduct an investigation of the~~
42 ~~suspected violation. During this period, no action may be taken by the Elections~~
43 ~~Committee (except for dismissal of the complaint) without completion of the~~
44 ~~notification and time to contest the complaint (as described below).~~
- 45 c. *Determination of Major/Minor Offense. After receiving a complaint, the Elections*
46 *Commissioner shall determine whether the violation is a major or a minor offense, as*
47 *defined by the Elections Regulations Code.*

- 1 d. ~~Minor Offense. Issuance of Citation.~~ If the Enforcement Officer *Elections*
2 *Commissioner* finds ~~support of a~~ evidence to support the legitimacy of the complaint,
3 the Elections Committee shall issue a citation to the individual(s) thought to be in
4 violation of the Code. The citation shall include the suspected violation and, if a
5 minor offense as defined under ~~41-0147-41-0145~~, *he or she shall issue* an order for
6 resolution. The individual(s) receiving the citation order shall then be required to
7 answer the citation order within ~~one~~ *three class* days after the citation order is issued.
8 The individual(s) may plead guilty or no contest, in which case the individual(s) must
9 complete the order for resolution, or the individual(s) may plead not guilty, in which
10 case a hearing shall be scheduled.
- 11 e. *Major Offense.* If the Elections Commissioner finds evidence to support a major
12 offense, the complaint shall be heard by the Elections Review Committee.
- 13 f. ~~Hearing Board.~~ In the event of a hearing concerning violations of the Code, a Hearing
14 Board shall be organized to hear the complaint. *The Elections Review Committee*
15 *shall conduct hearings concerning all major violations defined by the Elections*
16 *Regulations Code.*
- 17 1. ~~The Hearing Board~~ *Elections Review Committee* shall be made up of *five voting*
18 *members and a chair. Two members from the Judicial Branch shall be appointed*
19 *by the Attorney General with the approval of Student Senate, and three members*
20 *from the Legislative Branch shall be appointed by the Senate Operations*
21 *Committee with the approval of Student Senate. A quorum shall consist of two of*
22 *the appointed legislative members, and one appointed judicial member. The Chair*
23 *shall have a vote only in the case of a tie.* ~~the members of the Elections~~
24 ~~Committee who have not, in the complaint to be considered, acted as a filer of the~~
25 ~~complaint or as an Enforcement Officer.~~
- 26 2. The Chair of the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections Review Committee* shall be selected by
27 ~~the Elections Committee~~ *the current Assistant to the Attorney General or the*
28 *Chairperson of Student Review Board, who shall be appointed by the Attorney*
29 *General with the approval of Student Senate* and shall hold that position
30 throughout the existence of the current Elections Review Committee. ~~At any~~
31 ~~hearing, the individual(s) filing the complaint shall be present, as well as the~~
32 ~~individual(s) responding to the complaint, the Enforcement Officer investigating~~
33 ~~the complaint, and the Elections Committee Chair. The Elections Committee~~
34 ~~Chair shall submit the suspected violation to the Hearing Board, and shall be~~
35 ~~allowed to speak and make arguments. Additionally, the individual(s) responding~~
36 ~~to the complaint shall be allowed to speak and make arguments. The Enforcement~~
37 ~~Officer who investigated the complaint may give testimony.~~
- 38 3. *The Elections Review Committee shall follow the hearing procedures outlined in*
39 *Article VI Section 7A of the By-Laws.*
- 40 g. Determination of Violation. After hearing a complaint, the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections*
41 *Review Committee* shall determine whether or not a violation of the Code was
42 committed and, in the event that a violation did occur, shall determine a reasonable
43 penalty for the violation under those restrictions as set forth in ~~41-0148-41-0146~~.
- 44
45
46
47

1 41-0144 Major Offenses

- 2 a. Major offenses, as defined under the Code, are those following:
- 3 1. Tampering with ballots or other election equipment.
 - 4 2. Casting more than one ballot.
 - 5 3. Deliberate submission of false or misleading information, deliberate omission, or
 - 6 intentionally failing to file required reports.
 - 7 4. Harassment, intimidation, bribery, or fraud with the intent of affecting the
 - 8 outcome of an election.
 - 9 5. Libelous or slanderous statements or conduct.
 - 10 6. Intentional actions to mislead or obstruct the Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*
 - 11 or the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections Review Committee* in the completion of their
 - 12 duties.
 - 13 7. ~~Two~~ *Three* or more minor offenses committed on different occasions.
 - 14 8. Encouragement of the commission of an offense hereunder.
 - 15 9. Incurring campaign expenses that exceed the limit by more than five percent
 - 16 (5%).
 - 17 10. Failing to comply with rulings or pay fines within a reasonable amount of time.
 - 18 11. Failure to comply with the mass distribution regulation under ~~41-0132(j)~~ *41-*
 - 19 *0131(i)*.

20
21 41-0145 Minor Offenses

- 22 a. Minor offenses, as defined under the Code, are any other violations of the Code
- 23 other than those in ~~41-0147(a.)~~ *41-0144(a)*.
- 24

25 41-0146 Penalties

- 26 a. Major Offenses. Upon the determination of the commission of a major offense, the
- 27 ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections Review Committee* may cause the disqualification of such
- 28 candidate(s) from the General Election or impose such other penalties as deemed
- 29 appropriate.
- 30 b. Minor Offenses. Upon the determination by the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections*
- 31 *Commissioner* of a minor offense, the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections Commissioner* may
- 32 impose a fine of up to ten dollars (\$10) per candidate, and/or impose such other
- 33 penalty as deemed appropriate by the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections Commissioner*.
- 34 c. In cases of destruction or damage to campaign materials or election equipment, the
- 35 ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections Commissioner* may order restitution for damaged items to
- 36 those parties whose materials were so damaged.
- 37 d. In assessing penalties, the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections Commissioner and/or Elections*
- 38 *Review Committee* shall consider the severity of the violation or any mitigating factors
- 39 that may be involved in the situation as well as any cooperation provided by any
- 40 person so involved.
- 41 e. Any fines received shall be deposited into the SGA Elections Account.
- 42

43 41-0147 Authority Limited.

- 44 a. Individuals who have been disqualified from the General Election may not take any
- 45 seat they would otherwise have been elected to.
- 46

47 41-0148 Appeals

- 1 41-0149 Generally
2 a. ~~Appeals.~~ Appeals of any decision made by the ~~Hearing Board~~ *Elections*
3 *Commissioner* shall be made to the *Elections Review Committee*.
4 b. *Appeals of any decision made by the Elections Review Committee shall be made to*
5 *the Student Tribunal.*

6
7 41-0150 Special Elections

8
9 41-0151 Emergency Elections

- 10 a. Situation. In the event that the Student Senate Chair and Student Senate Vice Chair
11 are called upon to serve as Interim Student Body President and Student Body Vice
12 President, respectively, due to the common resignation of the Student Body President
13 and Student Body Vice President, the Interim Student Body President may ask the
14 Student Senate to hold an emergency election. Upon such request, an emergency
15 election may be held if approved by a majority of Student Senate selected and
16 qualified.
17 b. Procedure. An emergency election shall be held in accordance with the provisions of
18 the Elections Regulations Code, ~~where applicable, with the exception of 41-0109(a)~~
19 ~~and 41-0402(b) such that all references to the term "General Election" shall be~~
20 ~~replaced by the term "Emergency Election".~~

21
22 41-0152 Post Election Review

- 23
24 41-0153 The Elections Commissioner shall submit to the Student Senate on the third Student
25 Senate meeting after the certification of the election results by the Student Senate a
26 complete analysis of the election held and any recommendations on how to improve
27 or otherwise simplify future elections. The Elections *Review Committee* shall
28 continue in existence until the end of the spring semester.

29
30 *[Passed by Student Senate on October 31st, 2002, as SB 02/03/30. Subsequently*
31 *amended on January 28, 1999 with SB 98/99/69; January 28, 1999 with SB 98/99/70;*
32 *and January 28, 1999 with SB 98/99/71; and January 27, 2000 with SB 99/00/44; and*
33 *February 24, 2000 with SB 99/00/66; and March 30, 2000 with SB 99/00/90; January*
34 *25, 2001, with SB's 00/01/49, 50, 51, 52, 53; and March 29, 2001, with SB 00/01/77;*
35 *and October 31, 2002, with SB 02/03/30.]*

36
37 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON**
38 **OCTOBER 31ST, 2002, WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 54-0.**

BY: Senate Operations Committee

WHEREAS, Due to the recent change to online elections, an Elections Review Committee would be more effective to review complaints;

WHEREAS, Establishing an Elections Commissioner would make the elections process more efficient; and

WHEREAS, The following changes will improve and clarify the election process;

BE IT ENACTED THAT:

SECTION 1: Article 1, Section 1 of the Bylaws be amended as follows:

Article 1

Elections and Elections Committee

Sectn. 1. SGA Elections

A. Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner*

1. Elections ~~Committee~~ *Commissioner* shall be responsible for carrying out the Kansas State University Student Governing Association elections, carrying out all provisions of the Elections Regulations Code, and reviewing and making recommendations to Student Senate concerning revisions of the Elections Regulations Code.
2. ~~The Chairperson of Elections Committee shall be jointly appointed by the Chairperson of Student Senate, and the Student Body President.~~ *The Elections Commissioner shall be appointed by the Chairperson of Student Senate, the Student Body President and the Attorney General and approved by Student Senate by November 1. with the approval by Student Senate.*
3. ~~The Chairperson of Elections Committee shall be a member of the KSU SGA. He/she shall be subject to removal from office of chairperson only through impeachment as described in Article XIII of the KSU SGA Constitution~~

B. *Deputy Commissioner*

1. *The Deputy Commissioner shall be appointed by the Commissioner with the approval of Student Senate.*

2. *Duties of the Deputy Commissioner shall include tasks delegated by the Commissioner, excluding any election code violation rulings.*
- C. The Elections Review Committee
1. *The Elections Review Committee shall be composed of not less than five members not including the ~~Chairperson of Elections Committee~~ chair. There will be two members from the Judicial Branch who will be appointed by the Attorney General with the approval of Student Senate, and three members from the Legislative Branch appointed by the Senate Operations Committee with the approval of Student Senate. No member on the Elections Review Committee shall be a candidate for any office by which the Student Government Elections Committee has authority. ~~They shall be jointly appointed by the Student Body President, the Chairperson of Student Senate, and the Chairperson of Elections Committee. These positions shall be by application to the Chairperson of Student Senate and subject to the approval of Student Senate by December 1.~~*
- D. Election Procedures.
1. The Elections Regulations Code shall govern all Student Governing Association elections at Kansas State University.

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON
OCTOBER 31ST, 2002, WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 54-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
7 Students for the Right to Life;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** This organization will take 14 students to the national March for Life in
14 Washington, D.C. January 19-23, 2003;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** These students will have a chance to participate in education from policy experts
17 and doctors advocating life issues including the death penalty, euthanasia and
18 abortion; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
21 follows:

22
23 Project 1-Travel for students to attend the national March for Life in Washington,
24 D.C. to be held Jan. 19-23, 2003.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00
TOTAL	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00

25
26
27
28
29
30 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

31
32 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,000.00 for the activities described.

33
34 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
35 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to an account to be
36 created for Students for the Right to Life .

37
38 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON NOVEMBER 14TH, 2002,**
39 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-12.**
40
41

2
3
4 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The activities funded by the Fine Arts Privilege Fee add to the experience of
7 student life;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University student body and the Manhattan community have
10 seen many benefits from the current Fine Art Privilege Fee; and

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Fine Arts Council requested a continuance of its budget, which is currently at
13 \$308,841.00;

14
15 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** The KSU Statutes 23-0101 through 23-0111 are hereby amended to read:

18
19 **FINE ARTS BUDGET AGREEMENT**

20
21 This agreement made this 21ST day of November 2002, between the Kansas State University
22 Student Governing Association (SENATE), and Kansas State University Fine Arts Council
23 (DEPARTMENT).

24
25 1. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Years 2004, 2005,
26 and 2006 shall be \$308,841.00. The BUDGET will be reviewed prior to Fiscal Year 2007.

27
28 2. A. All changes in the Fine Arts Council By-Laws and Funding Regulations shall be subject
29 to the approval of Student Senate.

30 B. All Fine Arts Council Privilege Fees must be spent by Fine Arts Council (4-90 accounts).
31 Departments cannot transfer these funds from these accounts to other departments' 4-90
32 accounts or non 4-90 accounts.

33 C. Student Fine Arts groups that are eligible for Fine Arts Council funding are those groups
34 whose primary function is the arts.

35
36 3. The Fine Arts Council Reserve Account (490076) has a current balance of \$24,096.95. The
37 Fine Arts Council Reserve Account will be expended annually over each of the next three years
38 as follows:

39 A. Each department will receive a one percent increase of their budget.

40 B. Student Organizations will be allocated an additional \$5,064.00.

41
42 4. The Fine Arts council shall amend its By-Laws to be in accordance to KSU SGA Statutes 17-
43 01 through 17-0103.

1 5. The DEPARTMENT shall allocate the funds from each year's portion of the BUDGET as
2 follows:

		Privilege	Reserve		
		Fee	Allocation	Total	
3					
4					
5	490050	College of Arch., Planning & Design	\$18,840	\$188	\$19,028
6	490105	McCain Auditorium	\$94,141	\$941	\$95,082
7	490070	Art Department	\$31,380	\$314	\$31,694
8	490380	Diversity and Dual Career	\$5,725	\$57	\$5,782
9	490072	Ebony Theater	\$5,907	\$59	\$5,966
10	490110	Music Dept. Band and Orchestra	\$28,094	\$281	\$28,375
11	490140	Music Dept. Choral and Opera	\$28,094	\$281	\$28,375
12	490225	English Department	\$11,874	\$119	\$11,993
13	490301	International Student Center	\$1,908	\$19	\$1,927
14	490310	Speech, Comm, Theater and Dance Dept.	\$70,878	\$709	\$71,587
15	490088	Student Organizations	<u>\$12,000</u>	<u>\$5,064</u>	<u>\$17,064</u>
16		TOTAL	\$308,841	\$8,032	\$316,873
17					

18 6. At the conclusion of each fiscal year all Department unencumbered funds remaining shall
19 revert back to the Fine Arts Council Reserve Account (490076) and all Student Organization
20 unencumbered funds remaining shall revery back to the Fine Arts Council Student Organization
21 Reserve Account (490088).

22
23 7. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by Kansas State University Student
24 Senate and/or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with Fine Arts
25 regarding funding of budget and use of such funding.

26
27 8. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review by
28 Kansas State University Student Senate and such review could result in decrease or
29 termination of funding of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any rights in any
30 instance shall not constitute a waiver of such rights in that instance or any other instance.

31
32 9. Within 60 days of the end of each fiscal year, the Chair of the DEPARTMENT shall
33 submit a written summary of the BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for review by
34 the entire Senate body.

35
36 10. No construction or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with privilege
37 fees unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student body. (SGA
38 Constitution Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105)

39
40 11. This agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the State of Kansas.

41
42 12. By signing this agreement, the representative of the respective parties hereby represent that
43 each is duly authorized by his or her part to execute this document on behalf of such party that
44 the party agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.

1 13. Bill 02/03/33 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by: the Privilege Fee
2 Chair; the Chair of the Fine Arts Council; the Coordinator of the Office of Student Activities and
3 Services; the Student Senate Chair; the Vice President for Institutional Advancement; the Student
4 Body President; and directors/chairs/department heads of agencies outlined in Section 4.

5
6
7

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON NOVEMBER 21ST, 2002,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 59-0.**

2 **AMENDMENT TO KSU SGA STATUTES, ADDING**
3 **FINE ARTS COUNCIL STUDENT**
4 **ORGANIZATION FUNDING REGULATIONS**

5
6 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Fine Arts Council Student Organization allocation process is currently
9 regulated by the Fine Arts Council under the Fine Arts Council Funding
10 Guidelines;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Fine Arts Council Student Organizations do not have the same allocation process
13 and regulations as the rest of campus wide student organizations;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** It is important that all campus wide student organizations undergo the same
16 allocation process and regulations when receiving SGA funding; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The addition of Chapter 17, Fine Arts Council Student Organization Funding
19 Regulations, to the KSU SGA Statutes will ensure that all Fine Arts Council
20 Student Organizations undergo the same process and are held to the same
21 regulations as other campus wide student organizations;

22
23 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

24
25 **SECTION 1.** The KSU SGA Statutes Chapter 17 read as follows:

26
27 17-01 **Fine Arts Council Student Organization Funding Regulations**

28
29 17-0101 **FUNDING STATUTE**
30 Student Governing Association
31 Kansas State University

32
33
34 17-0102 General
35 A. Definitions
36 1. For the purpose of the Funding Statutes, the following definition shall
37 apply:
38 a) Fine Arts Council Student Organization. A Student Organization
39 whose purposes are related to the arts.

40
41 B. Universal Requirements
42 1. In order to request funds from the Fine Arts Council Fee, an organization
43 must fulfill each of the following requirements:
44 a) The organization must be a student group currently registered with
45 the Office of Student Activities and Services or an Institutional

1 Service.

- 2 b) The organization must have sent a representative to one of the
- 3 funding workshops held by the Treasurer annually.
- 4 c) The organization must submit to the SGA Treasurer a statement of
- 5 the fundraising activities of the organization over the past year,
- 6 including the specific events and the amounts raised. This
- 7 statement must be submitted with the organization's funding
- 8 requests on the Fund Raising Report form available in the Office of
- 9 Student Activities and Services.
- 10 d) The organization must be registered for forty-five (45) days prior to
- 11 the date of the event to receive Student Activity Fee funds.
- 12 e) The organization may not receive funds while on probation as
- 13 designated by the Activities Director.
- 14 f) Student Activity Fee funds shall not be allocated to projects for the
- 15 purposes of promoting or opposing a particular political candidate,
- 16 political or social issue, or religion.
- 17 2. Differentiation of Projects. In the case that an organization is submitting
- 18 multiple requests, each project for which funding is to be requested must
- 19 be distinct and independent, and must be related to the goals of the
- 20 organization itself.
- 21 3. Fund Raising. All groups should make a reasonable effort to raise funds,
- 22 either through dues or other events. While not a requirement for funding,
- 23 the Allocations Committee may reject funding for any requested materials
- 24 which would commonly be paid for by fund raising at its discretion.

25 17-0103 Fine Arts Council Student Organizations

26 A. General Criteria

- 27 1. Open Projects. All projects sponsored by Fine Arts Council Student
- 28 Organizations with student fee funds must show an educational benefit to
- 29 the students of the University, must be open to all students of the
- 30 University, and must be free to all students of the University. Such
- 31 projects must also be held on the University campus or within the
- 32 Manhattan community.

33

34 B. Request Process

- 35 1. Requests. Requests for funding of projects from the Fine Arts Council Fee
- 36 may be made by Fine Arts Council Student Organizations fulfilling the
- 37 requirements of 17-0102 through the completion and submission of a
- 38 funding request form, available in the Office of Student Activities and
- 39 Services. A separate funding request form must be submitted for each
- 40 project the organization wishes to hold, up to a maximum of five projects
- 41 annually.
- 42 2. The funding request form must be completed in accordance with the
- 43 form's instructions. Funds requested for a project must be divided into
- 44 separate categories, outlined below. Each category must have a detailed
- 45 description of the items requested and an estimate of the cost of each item.

- a) Promotions. Promotions shall include any expense related to the advertisement of an activity, such as Collegian advertisements, KSDB or any radio advertisements, leaflets or posters, and other such materials as determined by the Allocations Committee.
- b) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an organization in order to bring a speaker to campus, including their travel, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to perform a planned project or event.
- c) Rent of Space and Equipment. Rent of space and equipment shall include any expenses related to renting rooms or other areas for performances, meetings, and other such events, as well as any costs related to rental of tables and chairs, movie projectors, or other necessary materials for a project.
- d) Films. Films shall include any expense for the rental of movies, documentaries, recorded theatrical shows, or other such events.
- e) Travel. Travel shall be defined as a request for funds to pay expenses related to transportation, lodging and food for Kansas State University students. Fine Arts Council Student Organizations may be allocated a maximum of \$100 per person up to \$1,000 for travel expenses for each travel request submitted during the fiscal year. A student may only receive one allocation of \$100 even if they are a member of more than one student organization taking the same trip. Travel shall be funded at the rate applicable to reimbursement for expenditures made by individuals traveling for the State of Kansas.
- f) Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not reasonably fit in the above categories, as determined necessary by the Allocations Committee, However, this category shall be subject to the limitations on funding, listed below.

3. Funding requests for the current year will be considered on a rolling basis, but must be submitted no later than four weeks prior to the date of the project. Except that, all requests for events to be held December 1st through February 15th must be turned in by November 1st, all requests for any event to be held March 15th through the end of the academic year must be submitted by February 20th, and all requests for events to be held in August and September must be turned in by May 15th of the previous academic year. The Allocations Committee will consider exceptions to these guidelines if an organization has special circumstances.

C. Limitations

- 1. Services, Where Acquired. Funds allocated must be spent on services offered on the University campus whenever these services are available.
- 2. Honorarium. All recipients of an honorarium are required to complete a standard letter of agreement prior to payment. Groups must submit an honorarium information sheet, letter of agreement, and a W-9 to receive payment.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

- 3. Spending Restrictions. Student funds allocated by the Allocations Committee may not be spent on any of the following items:
 - a) Food. Food may not be purchased with student funds except unless such materials are to be used in an educational experiment. Prior approval from the Treasurer shall be gained before an expenditure for this exception is made.
 - b) Social Events. Student funds may not be spent on any materials pertaining to social functions, parties, or banquets, and may not be spent for any materials in any project where such an event is part thereof, except when the Allocations Committee finds a substantial educational benefit.
 - c) Personal Materials. Student funds may not be spent on any personal materials, such as plaques, gifts, awards, flowers, name tags, engravings for specific individuals, photographs, or clothing.
 - d) Wages. Student funds may not be spent on wages or compensation of any kind, with the exception of projectionists and security officers as required by the rental facility.

- D. Unspent Funds
 - 1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to a Fine Arts Council Student Organization shall be returned to the Fine Arts Council Student Group Reserve Account no later than October 30 of the following fiscal year.

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON NOVEMBER 21ST, 2002,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 59-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Student Activities add a great deal to the experience of student life;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Student Activity Fee provides many benefits to students and student groups;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** There are two reasons for the decrease in the Campus Wide Organizations
11 funding category. The first is the creation of the Multicultural Student
12 Organizations funding category. The second is due to the new SGA travel
13 funding guidelines, which have decreased the dollar amounts allocated for travel
14 to Campus Wide Organizations;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The Multicultural Student Organizations have shown the need to have a set
17 budget from SGA to help plan their respective heritage months. This new
18 funding category will allow the Multicultural Student Organizations to provide
19 better programming for the entire student body;

20
21 **WHEREAS,** Due to an increase in the amount of activities funded by College Councils, there
22 is a need for more funding for this category;

23
24 **WHEREAS,** Due to an increase in the number of Academic Completions Teams, there is a
25 need for more funding for this category;

26
27 **WHEREAS,** Due to a decrease in the number of Institutional Services, not as much funding is
28 needed for this category; and

29
30 **WHEREAS,** By reducing the Sports Club funding category, the Sports Club will be able to
31 spend down their reserve account;

32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **Section 1.** KSU SGA Statutes 37-03 through 37-0311 are hereby amended to read:

36
37 **STUDENT ACTIVITY FEE BUDGET AGREEMENT**

38
39 This agreement made this 10th day of December 2002, between the Kansas State University
40 Student Governing Association (SENATE), and the Kansas State University Student Activities,
41 Account # 4-90000 (DEPARTMENT).

42
43 1. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Years 2004 and 2005
44 shall be \$211,579. The BUDGET will be reviewed prior to Fiscal Year 2006.
45
46

1 2. The annual DEPARTMENT BUDGET shall be allocated as follows:

2	Campus Organizations:	\$24,000.00
3	Multicultural Organizations	\$14,000.00
4	College Councils:	\$60,000.00
5	Academic Competition:	\$45,000.00
6	Institutional Services:	\$25,579.00
7	Sports Clubs:	\$43,000.00

8
9
10 These amounts are the minimum that must be allocated to fund these areas. However, at the
11 discretion of the Allocations Committee and approval from Student Senate, additional funds may
12 be disbursed from the respective reserves for contingencies accounts.
13

14 3. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by Kansas State University Student
15 Senate and or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with Kansas State
16 University Student Activities regarding funding of budgets and use of such funding.
17

18 4. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review by
19 Kansas State University Student Senate and such review could result in decrease or termination
20 of funding of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any of its rights in any instance
21 shall not constitute a waiver of such rights in that instance or in any other instance.
22

23 5. Within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall submit
24 a written summary of BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for review by the entire
25 Senate Body.
26

27 6. No construction of or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with privilege
28 fees unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student body. (SGA
29 Constitution Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105)
30

31 7. The agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the state of Kansas.
32

33 8. By signing this agreement, the representatives of the respective parties hereby represent that
34 each is duly authorized by his or her party to execute this document on behalf of such party and
35 that the party agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.
36

37 9. Bill 02/03/35 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by the Privilege Fee
38 Committee Chair, the SGA Treasurer, the Student Senate Chair, the Student Body President, the
39 Coordinator of Student Activities and Services, and the Vice President for Institutional
40 Advancement.

41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 55-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Paraguayan Student Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** This organization is bringing artist Berta Rojas, described by the Washington Post
14 as a “guitarist extraordinaire,” to perform at Kansas State University;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Berta Rojas has performed in such venues as Weill Recital Hall in Carnegie Hall
17 and Coolidge Auditorium in the Library of Congress;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** Berta Rojas has released two albums, both reflections of her South American
20 heritage;

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The concert will offer Kansas State students the opportunity to be introduced to
23 compositions by other great Paraguayan composers, such as Agustin Barros; and

24
25 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
26 follows:

27
28 Project 1- Funding to bring Berta Rojas from Baltimore, Maryland, to McCain
29 Auditorium to perform on the night of March 13, 2003.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$3,000.00	\$3,000.00
Airfare	\$284.00	\$200.00
Lodging & Meals	\$400.00	\$0.00
Promotions	\$763.00	\$763.00
Rent of Space	\$654.39	\$564.39
TOTAL	\$5,101.39	\$4,527.39

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

40
41 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$4,527.39 for the activities described.
42
43
44
45

1 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
2 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
3 the account #4-90007 of the Paraguayan Student Association.
4

5 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002,**
6 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-2.**
7
8
9
10
11
12

2
3 **BY:** Allocations Committee

4
5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the Campus
6 Crusade for Christ;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
9 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** This organization will attend the annual Denver Christmas Conference and has
12 participated in several fund-raising endeavors to that end, including an annual fund-
13 raising dinner, a letter writing campaign and private contributions from individual donors;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The organization anticipates that 150 students will be attending this conference
16 from Kansas State University;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The event is open to all students and promoting this event is vital to ensuring equal
19 opportunity for attendance for all students;

20
21 **WHEREAS,** Students attending the conference will attend lectures and participate in a host of
22 community service projects aimed at the inner-city Denver area; and

23
24 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
25 follows:

26
27 Project 1- Travel and Promotions for the Campus Crusade for Christ’s annual trip
28 to the Denver Christmas Conference to be held Jan. 2-7, 2003.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
31 Travel	\$1000.00	\$1000.00
32 Promotions	\$400.00	\$200.00
33 TOTAL	\$1,400.00	\$1,200.00

34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,200 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
40 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the account #4-
41 90043 of the Campus Crusade for Christ.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 46-4.**

2
3 **BY:** Allocations Committee

4
5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
6 PEERS (Proactive Educators for the Elimination of Rape & Sexual Assault)
7 Student Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** This organization will be sponsoring a V-Day campaign to raise awareness of
14 violence against women;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** During this campaign, “The Vagina Monologues” will be performed by Kansas
17 State University students February 27, 28 & March 1, 2003, in the Union
18 Ballroom, to educate others on the many effects of violence against women;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** In order to make this event a success, PEERS would like to promote this
21 campaign to students by making flyers, placing ads in the Collegian and
22 purchasing a banner; and

23
24 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
25 follows:

26
27 Project 1- Promotions for the V-Day campaign to educate students on the many
28 effects of violence against women.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$1,132.00	\$900.00
TOTAL	\$1,132.00	\$900.00

29
30
31
32
33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$900.00 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
39 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
40 the account #4-90127 of PEERS.

41
42 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002,**
43 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-1.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Black Student Union;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Students will have the opportunity to participate in a cultural celebration of
14 Kwanzaa, an African-American spiritual holiday;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Kyle Clark will be speaking over the seven principles of Kwanzaa;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Kyle Clark is an experienced presenter over this topic, has traveled throughout the
19 Midwest speaking to many universities and organizations, and is currently getting
20 his master’s degree at the University of Austin in educational administration; and

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
23 follows:

24
25 Project 1- Guest Lecturer Kyle Clark will be speaking over the seven principles of
26 Kwanzaa on December 8, 2002, at the International Student Center.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$500	\$500
Airfare	\$200	\$200
Promotions	\$75	\$75
Rent of Space	\$25	\$25
TOTAL	\$800	\$800

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$800 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
40 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
41 the account #4-90120 of the Black Student Union.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 51-2.**

1 **BILL 02/03/40**

**FY 2003 ALLOCATION TO
BLACK STUDENT UNION**

2
3 **BY:** Allocations Committee

4
5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
6 Black Student Union;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
9 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
10 group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Black Student Union will be bringing Danny Glover to Kansas State to
13 lecture on the contributions of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. during the Civil Rights
14 era of the 1960's;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Danny Glover is a well-known actor, director, and producer; the expected
17 attendance is over 1,700 students;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The total cost of the program is estimated to be \$21,600.00; and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
22 follows:

23
24 Project 1- Honorarium to bring Danny Glover to McCain Auditorium on the night
25 of January 21, 2003 to speak on the life and legacy of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
HONORARIUM	\$1,000	\$1,000
TOTAL	\$1,000	\$1,000

26
27
28
29
30
31 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

32
33 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,000.00 for the activities described.

34
35 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
36 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
37 the account #4-90120 of the Black Student Union.

38
39 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002,**
40 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 53-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Leadership Studies and Programs;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Students will have the opportunity to hear new ideas on leadership styles and
14 motivational strategies to increase commitment within student organizations and
15 other areas of life;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Jeffrey Cafaude will be speaking in the morning to the College of Business
18 Administration. In the afternoon his presentation will be open to all students, and
19 an evening presentation will be held for the Athletic Department;

20
21 **WHEREAS,** This will be the seventh annual event held by this group; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
24 follows:

25
26 Project 1- Guest Lecturer Jeffrey Cafaude, founder of Idea Architects, will be
27 speaking about leadership and commitment on April 3, 2003, in the Little Theater
28 of the Student Union.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$1,500	\$1,500
Promotions	\$250	\$250
TOTAL	\$1,750	\$1,750

29
30
31
32
33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1750 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
40 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
41 the account #4-90118 of the Leadership Studies and Programs.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON**
44 **JANUARY 23RD, 2003, WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 46-0.**
45

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Ordinary Women;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** This group is planning to bring Cardyn Gage to campus to perform an alternative
14 version of “Joan of Arc” in a one-woman play;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Cardyn Gage has been a national finalist for the Lambda Literary Award for her
17 performance of this play;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The purpose of this play is to stress the importance of Joan of Arc’s strength and
20 determination through a feminist perspective; and

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
23 follows:

24
25 Project 1- Honorarium and Promotions for Cardyn Gage’s performance of “Joan
26 of Arc” in a one-woman play to be performed March 10th or 11th , 2003, in the
27 Little Theater of the Student Union.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$2,000	\$1,500
Promotions	\$100	\$100
TOTAL	\$2,100	\$1,600

28
29
30
31
32
33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1600 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
39 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
40 the account #4-90059 of the Ordinary Women.

41
42 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON**
43 **JANUARY 23RD, 2003, WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 45-0.**
44

5 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Student Health Privilege Fee provides necessary services to students of
8 Kansas State University; and

9
10 **WHEREAS,** Students have seen many benefits from their Student Health Privilege Fee and
11 Student Health Center;

12
13 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

14
15 **SECTION 1.** Bill 02/03/22 is hereby repealed.

16
17 **SECTION 2.** The KSU SGA Statutes 29-0101 through 29-0114 are hereby amended to
18 read:

19
20 **LAFENE HEALTH CENTER BUDGET AGREEMENT**

21
22 This agreement made this 10th day of December 2002, between the Kansas State University Student
23 Governing Association (SENATE), and Kansas State University Lafene Health Center
24 (DEPARTMENT).

25
26 1. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Year 2004, 2005, and
27 2006 shall be \$3,222,217.

28
29 2. The DEPARTMENT BUDGET shall be reviewed prior to Fiscal Year 2007.

- 30
31 3. A. No privilege fee funds may be used for paying the Institutional Support Fee.
32 B. No privilege fee funds can be used for the remodeling or moving of the Student Health
33 Center.
34 C. No privilege fee funds may be used to fund a position at Disabled Student Services.
35 D. Should a visitor fee be implemented by the DEPARTMENT, the Student Health Privilege
36 Fee shall be taken out of cycle and reviewed by the Privilege Fee Committee.
37 E. The DEPARTMENT shall inform SENATE of any capital expenditures over \$5,000 within
38 60 days after purchase.

39
40 4. The DEPARTMENT shall maintain in their operating budget a five percent reserve of their
41 BUDGET.

42
43 5. The Director of the DEPARTMENT shall make a presentation to the Privilege Fee Committee
44 by October 1st of each fiscal year to present the budgeted figures compared to the actual figures from
45 the previous fiscal year.

1 6. In any fiscal year the DEPARTMENT's operating budget drops below the five percent reserve
2 of their BUDGET the Student Health Privilege Fee shall be taken out of cycle the following fiscal
3 year and reviewed by the Privilege Fee Committee. During this review the Committee shall review
4 the previous fiscal year's figures and determine what actions need to be taken to replenish the five
5 percent reserve.

6
7 7. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by Kansas State University Student
8 Senate and/or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with Kansas State University
9 Lafene Health Center regarding funding of budget and use of such funding.

10
11 8. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review by Kansas
12 State University Student Senate and such review could result in decrease or termination of funding
13 of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any rights in any instance shall not constitute
14 a waiver of such rights in that instance or any other instance.

15
16 9. Within 60 days of the end of each fiscal year, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall submit
17 a written summary of the BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for review by the entire
18 Senate body.

19
20 10. No construction or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with privilege fees
21 unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student body. (SGA Constitution
22 Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105)

23
24 11. This agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the State of Kansas.

25
26 12. By signing this agreement, the representative of the respective parties hereby represent that each
27 is duly authorized by his or her part to execute this document on behalf of such party that the party
28 agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.

29
30 13. Bill 02/03/43 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by: the Privilege Fee Chair;
31 the Director of Lafene Student Health Center; the Student Senate Chair; the Assistant Vice President
32 for Institutional Advancement; the Vice President for Institutional Advancement and the Student
33 Body President.

34
35 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002,**
36 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 51-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Black Student Union;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Black Student Union will be taking 56 students to attend the Big XII
14 Conference on Black Student Government’s annual leadership conference;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** This conference will be held February, 20-23, 2003 at the University of
17 Oklahoma;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The conference will be geared toward the professional development of the
20 students who attend and will include speakers such as Bertice Berry, George
21 Fraser, and Tony Brown; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
24 Allocations Committee are as follows:

25
26 Project 1 - Travel to the Big XII Conference on Black Student Government’s
27 annual leadership conference at the University of Oklahoma February, 20-23,
28 2003.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00
TOTAL	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00

29
30
31
32
33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,000.00 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
39 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
40 the account # 4-90120 of the Black Student Union.

41
42 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON JANUARY 30TH, 2003,**
43 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 54-0.**
44

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Black Student Union;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Black Student Union will hosting 18 different programs during Black History Month
13 to educate Kansas State University students;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** During this month the Black Student Union will be bringing Myrlie Evers-Williams to
16 speak to students on February 11, 2003 at 7:00pm in Forum Hall;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Myrlie Evers-Williams is a civil rights activist and the former president of the NAACP;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** This event will be co-sponsored with Union Program Council and will be followed by a
21 showing of the movie “Ghosts of Mississippi”; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
24 Allocations Committee are as follows:

25
26 Project 1 - Honorarium for Myrlie Evers-Williams to speak to students about civil rights
27 issues on February 11, 2003 at 7:00 pm in Forum Hall. Promotions will be for calendars
28 containing all of the events for Black History month.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$7,900.00	\$7,900.00
Promotions	\$300.00	\$300.00
TOTAL	\$8,200.00	\$8,200.00

29
30
31
32
33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$8,200.00 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
40 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the account
41 # 4-90120 of the Black Student Union.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED SENATE ON JANUARY 30TH, 2003,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 54-0.**
45

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Vietnamese Student Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Vietnamese Student Association will be presenting their Tet show, which is to
13 celebrate their Lunar New Year;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** This show will consist of traditional Vietnamese activities such as the Lion Dance,
16 Karate show, Comedy skit and a cultural dance;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The Tet show will be presented in the Union ballroom on February 8, 2003;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** They are expecting around 300 students to be in attendance; and

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
23 Allocations Committee are as follows:

24
25 Project 1 - Rental of Space for the Union Ballroom to host the Vietnamese Student
26 Association’s Tet show and Promotions to advertise this event to students in the
27 Collegian.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Rental of Space	\$45.00	\$45.00
Promotions	\$145.00	\$145.00
TOTAL	\$190.00	\$190.00

28
29
30
31
32
33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$190.00 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
39 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the account
40 # 4-90013 of the Vietnamese Student Association.

41
42 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON JANUARY 30TH, 2003,**
43 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 54-0.**
44
45

4 **BY:** Senate Operations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Elections Regulations contain errors and references to practices no longer
7 followed; and

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The following changes will improve and clarify the current Elections Regulations;

10
11 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

12
13 **SECTION 1.** Chapter 41 of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association Statues
14 be amended as follows:

15
16
17 **Chapter 41:**
18 **Elections Regulations Code**

19
20 41-01 **Elections Regulations Code**

21
22 41-0101 **Scope**

23
24 The Elections Regulations Code (the "Code") shall govern general and special
25 elections of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association.

26
27 41-0102 **Definitions**

28
29 Active Campaigning. The term "active campaigning" shall mean any direct
30 distribution of campaign materials, verbal or oral encouragement, or other activity of
31 a non-personal nature by one person to another for the purpose of furthering a
32 campaign.

33
34 41-0103 College. The term "college" shall mean each main campus college of the University
35 and the graduate school.

36
37 41-0104 Candidate. The term "candidate" shall mean any individual who has satisfied all of
38 the requirements to run for office in General Election, and has filed a declaration of
39 candidacy with the Elections Commissioner.

40
41 41-0105 Write-In Candidate. The term "write-in candidate" shall mean individuals receiving
42 votes who have not filed a declaration of candidacy.

43
44 41-0106 Electoral Race. The term "electoral race" shall mean a contest between one (1) or
45 more candidates for the same office in an election.

1
2 41-0107 Student Governing Association Official. The term "Student Governing Association
3 Official" shall mean any individual holding one or more of the offices listed in
4 41-0111.
5

6 41-0108 Primary Elections

- 7 a. Dates. The Primary Election shall be held on the Tuesday and Wednesday three
8 weeks prior to Spring break.
9 b. Purpose. The Primary Election shall be held in the event that more than two tickets
10 file for the office of Student Body President/Vice President in order to select the top
11 two vote-getters for the General Election
12
13

14
15 41-0109 General Elections
16

17 41-0110 Generally

- 18 a. Dates. The General Election shall be held on the Tuesday and Wednesday two (2)
19 weeks prior to Spring Break for the purpose of electing officers of the Student
20 Governing Association and the College Councils.
21 b. Eligibility to Vote. All students enrolled in at least one credit hour of class work
22 at the main campus of Kansas State University shall be eligible to vote. All
23 students so eligible shall be allowed to vote for any campus position. Students
24 enrolled within a certain college shall be eligible to vote for college positions. All
25 students enrolled in at least one credit hour of class work at KSU-Salina shall be
26 eligible to vote for Student Body President and Student Body Vice President.
27 Eligibility shall be determined by the Elections Commissioner where such
28 eligibility should fall into question with records dated not more than one (1) week
29 prior to the opening of the polls.
30

31 41-0111 Offices

- 32 a. President and Vice President. In the General Election, one presidential ticket,
33 consisting of one Presidential candidate and one Vice Presidential candidate, shall
34 be elected jointly by the student body.
35 b. Student Senators. In the General Election, sixty (60) Student Senators shall be
36 elected by the students of their respective colleges.
37 1. Apportionment of Student Senate Seats. Seats of the Student Senate shall be
38 apportioned among the colleges as outlined in the Kansas State University
39 Student Governing Association Constitution.
40 c. Union Governing Board. In the General Election, as many seats as there are
41 available for each position available shall be elected by the student body.
42 d. Board of Student Publications. In the General Election, as many seats as there
43 are available for each position available shall be elected by the student body.
44 e. Fine Arts Council. In the General Election, as many seats as there are
45 available for each position available shall be elected by the student body.

- 1 f. College Councils. In the General Election, as many seats as there are
2 available for each position available shall be elected by the students of their
3 respective colleges.
4

5 41-0112 Elections Schedule

6
7 41-0113 Generally

- 8 a. Events Schedule. The Elections Commissioner shall be responsible for the
9 creation of an annual calendar of events including all deadlines under this
10 Code. The schedule shall be published at the same time as the revised
11 Elections Regulation Code is published.
12 b. Announcement of Schedule. The Elections Commissioner shall announce and
13 make available to all campus media, not less than five weeks before the first
14 day of the General Election, the officers to be elected in the General Election,
15 the qualifications and requirements to become a candidate in the General
16 Election, and the events schedule as described in (a) above.
17

18 41-0114 Qualifications

19
20 41-0115 Generally

- 21 a. Qualifications for Candidacy. The qualifications for eligibility to run as a
22 candidate for any Student Governing Association position shall be as
23 established by the Kansas State University Student Governing Association
24 Constitution.
25 b. Disqualifications. The Elections Commissioner, the Deputy Commissioner,
26 and members of the Elections Review Committee are disqualified from being
27 a candidate in any election that falls during their term of office.
28

29 41-0116 Nomination of Candidates

30
31 41-0117 Procedure

- 32 a. Generally. Any person meeting the qualifications of 41-0115 may become a
33 candidate by complying with the requirements outlined in this section.
34 b. Declaration of Candidacy. Any person seeking to have their name placed on the
35 ballot as a candidate for the offices of Student Body President, Student Body Vice
36 President, Student Senator, Board of Student Publications, Union Governing
37 Board, and the Fine Arts Council shall file a declaration of candidacy with the
38 professional staff of the Office of Student Activities and Services *three (3) two (2)*
39 weeks prior to the General Election.
40 c. Filing Requirements. Each candidate shall meet certain filing requirements in
41 order to declare their candidacy. The declaration of candidacy shall include the
42 name of the student, the college the student is enrolled in, and the office being
43 sought by the student.
44 d. Mandatory Meetings. Each student seeking to be a candidate must attend one of
45 at least two mandatory meetings completed by 5:00 p.m. on the Tuesday of the

1 week immediately prior to the primary election as specified by the Elections
2 Commissioner. Candidates may be excused from this requirement only if the
3 candidate has received written permission from the Elections Commissioner prior
4 to the last scheduled meeting

- 5 e. Write-In Candidates. Write-in candidates shall not be required to file the
6 documents necessary under this section nor will candidates elected in the General
7 Election who did not run an active campaign be required to file expenditure
8 reports as specified in 41-0140. However, write-in candidates shall be required to
9 follow all other regulations within this Code and shall be subject to the penalties
10 for violations as described in 41-0140 et seq.
- 11 f. Exceptions. Exceptions as to the date and time of a filing requirement under
12 41-0115 may be made by the Elections Commissioner upon determination of
13 reasonable circumstances.

14
15 41-0118 Polls

16
17 41-0119 General Provisions

- 18 a. Responsibility. The Elections Commissioner shall be responsible for establishing
19 and maintaining the polling places on the days of the elections. The Elections
20 Commissioner shall be responsible for developing specific polling procedures,
21 administering such procedures and ensuring that polling is carried out in an
22 orderly and impartial manner.
- 23 b. Location. Polling places shall be placed in the K-State Student Union. Polling
24 may also take place in University Computing Labs or *on* any personal computer
25 ~~using a KATS ID and PIN number.~~
- 26 c. Times of Operation. Polling stations shall remain open for not less than eight
27 hours per day for each day of the elections on a continual basis. The Elections
28 Commissioner shall have the discretion to maintain polling places beyond these
29 time requirements.
- 30 d. Campaign Activity at Polling Places. Campaign activities at polling places shall
31 be limited as set forth in 41-0133.

32
33 41-0120 Ballots

34
35 41-0121 Ballot Forms

- 36 a. Provision. The Elections Commissioner shall provide a ballot which shall contain
37 spaces for all general offices to be elected as well as spaces for each referendum
38 or initiative to be voted upon in the General Election. The Elections
39 Commissioner shall also provide a ballot for each college which shall provide
40 spaces for all college offices to be elected.
- 41 b. Listing. Candidates shall be listed on the ballot, in order as determined by a
42 random drawing of numbers at the mandatory meetings. The name of the
43 candidate shall be printed as requested by the candidate in his or her declaration of
44 candidacy. At a minimum, candidates must use their last name as registered with
45 the University.

- 1 c. Write-In Candidates. Write-in options shall be made available for each office
2 excluding the Student Body President/Vice President ticket *in the General*
3 *Election*. The number of write-in options shall be equal to the number of
4 positions available for that office.
5

6 41-0122 General Provisions.

7 a. Inspection

8 1. Primary. A sample ballot for the Primary Election shall be made available to
9 the public for inspection on the Friday prior to the Primary Election. The
10 location of the sample ballot shall be determined and announced by the
11 Elections Commissioner at the mandatory meetings. Each candidate shall
12 have the opportunity to verify the accuracy of the sample ballot prior to 4:00
13 p.m. that day.

14 2. General. Sample ballots for the General Election shall be made available to
15 the public for inspection on the Friday prior to the General Election. *The*
16 *location of the sample ballots shall be determined and announced by the*
17 *Elections Commissioner at the mandatory meetings*. Each candidate shall have
18 the opportunity to verify the accuracy of the sample ballots prior to 4:00 p.m.
19 that day.

20 b. Availability of ballots. Ballots shall be made available as specified in the contract
21 with the elections vendor.

22 c. Security of Ballots. The Elections Commissioner shall ensure that all ballots are
23 secure from damage, loss, theft, or alteration. Ballots shall be destroyed one (1)
24 year after the adoption of the election results by the Student Senate.
25

26 41-0123 Voting

27
28 41-0124 Generally

29 a. Voting shall be by secret ballot. To receive a ballot, the voter must follow
30 procedures outlined by the Elections Commissioner. The voter must mark the
31 ballot according to the instructions on the ballot. The voter shall be responsible
32 for submitting the completed ballot to the elections vendor.
33

34 41-0125 Vote Tabulation

35
36 41-0126 Procedure

37 a. Method. Votes for all offices shall be counted electronically by the elections
38 vendor. ~~Votes for write-in candidates shall be tabulated by the Elections~~
39 ~~Commissioner, under the supervision of the Coordinator of the Office of Student~~
40 ~~Activities and Services~~. Votes shall not be tabulated until the completion of the
41 elections.

42 b. Vote Required for Election. The vote required for election to the office of Student
43 Body President and Student Body Vice President shall be a majority of the votes
44 cast in the General Election. The vote required for election to the office of
45 Student Senate, Board of Student Publications, Union Governing Board, and Fine

1 Arts Council shall be a plurality of votes cast.

2
3 41-0127 Certification of Elections

4
5 41-0128 Procedure

- 6 a. Announcement of Unofficial Results. Upon completion of the tabulation of all
7 votes cast in the Primary Election, as necessary, and the General Election, the
8 Elections Commissioner shall release the unofficial results. All candidates for the
9 offices of Student Body President and Student Body Vice President will be
10 immediately notified by the Elections Commissioner of the unofficial results.
- 11 b. Submission to Student Senate. The Elections Commissioner shall submit the
12 unofficial results to the Senate Operations Standing Committee. The Senate
13 Operations Standing Committee shall introduce a resolution for approval to the
14 Student Senate at the second regular meeting of the Student Senate following the
15 General Election ~~or run-off election, as may be necessary~~. The unofficial
16 elections results will be accompanied by a certification by the Elections
17 Commissioner that the results being submitted are valid. Races in which the
18 Elections Commissioner does not believe such a certification may be made due to
19 pending questions shall not be submitted by the above deadline.
- 20 c. Adoption by Student Senate. The unofficial results shall become official upon
21 their adoption by a majority vote of the Student Senate. Student Senate shall not
22 amend the submitted election results.
- 23 d. Annulment. If, after adoption by a majority vote of the Student Senate, material
24 evidence is discovered to find any election results in doubt, the Student Senate
25 may annul the affected sections of the adopted elections results.
- 26 e. Contested Elections. All students qualified to vote in the General Election shall
27 have the power to contest elections results. A notice of contention of election
28 results must be submitted to the Elections Commissioner no more than two days
29 after the unofficial results have been issued. Upon receipt of such notice, the
30 Elections Commissioner shall immediately determine the validity of the
31 contention's claim and shall report such information as it finds necessary to the
32 Student Senate with its submission of the unofficial elections results for adoption.

33
34 41-0129 Campaign Activities

35
36 41-0130 Definitions.

- 37 a. Residence Hall Regions. The term "residence hall region" shall mean those
38 regions bounded by specific streets which are considered residence hall areas.
39 There shall be two residence hall regions.
- 40 a. The "West Region" is considered to be all university property enclosed by
41 Claflin Road, Denison Avenue, Platt Street, and Sunset Avenue.
- 42 b. The "East Region" is considered to be all university property enclosed by
43 Claflin Road, Manhattan Avenue, Campus Creek Road, Petticoat Lane, and
44 Mid-Campus Drive.
- 45 b. Campaign Materials. The term "campaign materials" shall mean any

advertisement, document, or device of any kind whatsoever intended to promote or oppose the election of a candidate.

41-0131 General Provisions

- a. Conformity. All campaign materials and activities shall conform to the laws of the State of Kansas, the ordinances of the City of Manhattan, the University Activities Board Sales, Solicitation, and Advertising policy, the Political Activity Guidelines, the Association of Residence Halls policy, and all other rules of the University.
- b. Residence Halls. Students must follow Association of Residence Hall policies. The following regulations apply to the Residence Hall Regions outlined in 41-0130(a).
 - 1. Posters are permitted only within the residence halls on the doors of individual resident(s) with the express permission of the resident(s) therein.
 - 2. No chalking or outdoor hanging of posters is allowed.
- c. Limitation On Postings. With the exception of posters and signs meeting the requirements of 41-0134 and 41-0135, no campaign materials shall be leaned against or otherwise affixed to anything on campus.
- d. Removal. All campaign materials shall be removed from the campus proper by 7:00 p.m. ~~the evening of the day following the last day of the General Election. Candidates in the Primary Election failing to qualify for the General Election shall remove all campaign materials from the campus property by 7:00 p.m. the day following the last day of the Primary Election. In the event of a run-off election, this provision shall not apply to the candidates for Student Body President and Student Body Vice President, but such materials must be removed by the evening of the day following the run-off election.~~
- e. Stickers. Stickers shall only be placed on personal property.
- f. Chalking. Chalking is permitted only on sidewalks, excluding stairs and any area not generally intended as a pathway for pedestrians.
- g. Unauthorized Removal. No individual shall remove, deface, obscure, or otherwise tamper with the campaign materials of another candidate.
- h. Class Interference. No campaign activity that disturbs or otherwise interrupts a class shall be permitted.
- i. Mass Distribution. Distribution of campaign materials to individuals must be made by an individual. Campaign activities that distribute materials through any form of contact beyond personal interaction is prohibited. Mass distribution shall include, but is not limited to, canvassing of parking areas, leaving campaign materials unattended or in piles, electronic mail distributions violating university policy on junk e-mail, mailings, and indiscriminate scattering of materials. E-mails containing campaign language may be sent only to persons known by the sender.

41-0132 Time Limits

- a. Campaign Materials. Items listed in 41-0134 and 41-0135 may be displayed after 5:00 p.m. on the Tuesday of the week immediately prior to the Primary Election.
- b. Tables. Tables may be established by the Primary Election candidates during the Thursday, Friday, and Monday immediately prior to the Primary Election and by candidates for any office during the Thursday, Friday, and Monday immediately

1 prior to the General Election. Tables may only be set up in the Student Union in
2 accordance with Union Governing Board policy and must be staffed at all times
3 when in use.
4

5 41-0133 Election Day Activities

- 6 a. Distance Requirement. No person may actively campaign inside of the Student
7 Union or University Computing Lab or within twenty (20) feet in front of the
8 doors of the Student Union or University Computing Lab.
9 b. Exception. It shall not be considered a violation for a voter to wear passive
10 campaign material, in the form of a shirt, sticker, or other item, in the vicinity of
11 the polls, or while voting, so long as that individual is not loitering.
12 c. Authority. Poll workers shall have the authority to make determinations of
13 loitering or campaigning under 41-0133(a).
14

15 41-0134 Posters

- 16 a. Definition. The term "poster" shall be defined as any paper campaign material
17 affixed to a wall or stationary object.
18 b. Size. Posters shall be limited in size to 16" x 22", except for those posters placed
19 on portable bulletin boards located within the Student Union, which shall be
20 limited to 8.5" x 11".
21 c. Display. Posters may only be tied to trees and lampposts, posted on residence hall
22 doors, or tacked to bulletin boards in campus buildings. Posters must be secured
23 on all four corners.
24 d. Overlaying. Overlaying of posters is strictly prohibited.
25 e. Outside Display. When used for outside display, posters must be printed in card
26 stock paper.
27

28 41-0135 Banners

- 29 a. Limited Use. Banners may be used only by candidates for the offices of the
30 Student Body President and the Student Body Vice President.
31 b. Securing. Banners must be secured on all four corners and must not impede the
32 flow of traffic through campus.
33 c. Where Displayed. Banners may only be displayed as designated by the Elections
34 Commissioner.
35 d. Banners shall be rotated in an equitable manner as determined by the Elections
36 Commissioner.
37

38 41-0136 Authority to Remove

- 39 a. Elections Commissioner Authority. The Elections Commissioner shall have the
40 authority to remove, within 24-hours notice, any campaign materials found to be
41 in violation of the regulations noted above, at which time the candidate shall be
42 notified of the violation.
43

44 41-0137 Campaign Expenses & Contributions

45 41-0138 Generally

- 46 a. Definition. The term "campaign expense" shall mean the retail value of any
47 obligations incurred, the retail value of any goods or services donated, and any
48

1 actual funds expended to promote or oppose the election of any individual to any
2 office. This definition shall include the value of any discounts not available to the
3 general public and the retail value of any services donated. This definition shall
4 not include any fines assessed under this Code.

- 5 b. Personal Contributions Limited. The maximum amount any candidate may
6 contribute toward his or her campaign shall be as follows:
- 7 1. The amount of personal funds each presidential ticket may contribute
8 toward its campaign shall be no more than \$800 for the primary and
9 general election elections combined.
 - 10 2. The amount of personal funds each candidate for Union Governing Board,
11 the Board of Student Publications, and the Fine Arts Council may
12 contribute toward his or her campaign shall be no more than \$125.
 - 13 3. The amount of personal funds each candidate for Student Senate or
14 College Council may contribute toward his or her campaign shall be no
15 more than \$50.
- 16 c. Contributions Limited. Contributions to any candidate may only be accepted if
17 the contribution is being received from a qualified student of Kansas State
18 University (as determined under the Code through 41-0110(b)), and limits for all
19 contributions other than personal contributions shall be as follows:
- 20 1. Each Presidential Ticket shall not accept more than \$20.00 from any one
21 student.
 - 22 2. Each candidate for Union Governing Board, the Board of Student
23 Publications, the Fine Arts Council, Student Senate, or College Council
24 shall not accept more than \$5.00 from any one student.
- 25 d. Sources of Values. The candidate shall be responsible for justifying the value of
26 any services received or amounts spend, either through receipt or other reasonable
27 means.

28
29 41-0139 Reporting Requirements

30
31 41-0140 Generally

- 32 a. Expense and Contribution Reports. All Primary Election candidates shall be required
33 to submit an expense and contribution report to the Office of Student Activities and
34 Services no later than 4:00 P.M. on the Friday prior to the Primary Election. All
35 candidates shall be required to submit an expense and contribution report to the
36 Office of Student Activities and Services no later than 4:00 P.M. on the Friday
37 immediately prior to the General Election. A report must be filed even if no expenses
38 were incurred. The Elections Commissioner shall be responsible for the provision of
39 standardized expense and contribution report forms. An individual expense and
40 contribution report must be submitted by a candidate for each office the student is a
41 candidate for.
- 42 b. Content. Expense and contribution reports shall itemize all campaign expenses, and
43 the fair market value of each item listed as determined whether by receipt, proof of
44 purchase, or when unavailable, according to those criteria and requirements of 41-
45 0138 and 41-0138. The contribution section of the report shall itemize each amount
46 contributed to the campaign, the name of the donor, and any other information
47 deemed necessary by the Elections Commissioner.

- 1 c. Verification. The Elections Commissioner shall review the expense and contribution
2 reports in order to check for accuracy and completeness. The Elections
3 Commissioner has the authority to make final judgments on cost of items where
4 evidence of cost is absent.
- 5 d. All campaign expense reports must be submitted by the Elections Commissioner to
6 all persons requesting by 1:00 p.m. on the Sunday prior to the general election. In the
7 event of a *Primary Election* ~~run-off election~~, expense reports for the *Primary Election*
8 ~~run-off election~~ must be submitted by the Elections Commissioner to all persons
9 requesting by ~~7:00~~ 1:00 p.m. on the ~~Monday~~ *Sunday* prior to the *Primary Election*
10 ~~run-off election~~.

11
12 41-0141 Enforcement

13
14 41-0142 Scope

- 15 a. All candidates are bound by the Elections Regulation Code and are subject to the
16 penalties stated hereunder for violations of the Code.

17
18 41-0143 Complaints

- 19 a. Filing Complaints. Any election complaints caused by a suspected violation of the
20 code must be filed with the Elections Commissioner within one day after discovery of
21 the suspected violation. Complaints shall be made in such a form that states the name
22 of the filer, the section(s) under which the suspected violation shall have occurred,
23 and shall be signed by the filer.
- 24 b. Notification and Investigation. Upon the receipt of a complaint by the Elections
25 Commissioner, he or she shall notify the individual(s) suspected of the violation, and
26 the individual(s) filing the complaint. The Elections Commissioner shall conduct an
27 investigation of the suspected violation.
- 28 c. Determination of Major/Minor Offense. After receiving a complaint, the Elections
29 Commissioner shall determine whether the violation is a major or a minor offense, as
30 defined by the Elections Regulations Code.
- 31 d. Minor Offense. If the Elections Commissioner finds support of a minor offense as
32 defined under 41-0145, he or she shall issue an order for resolution. The individual(s)
33 receiving the order shall then be required to answer the order within three class days
34 after the order is issued.
- 35 e. Major Offense. If the Elections Commissioner finds evidence to support a major
36 offense, the complaint shall be heard by the Elections Review Committee.
- 37 f. The Elections Review Committee shall conduct hearings concerning all major
38 violations defined by the Elections Regulations Code.
- 39 1. The Elections Review Committee shall be made up of five voting members and a
40 chair. Two members from the Judicial Branch shall be appointed by the Attorney
41 General with the approval of Student Senate, and three members from the
42 Legislative Branch shall be appointed by the Senate Operations Committee with
43 the approval of Student Senate. A quorum shall consist of two of the appointed
44 legislative members, and one appointed judicial member. The Chair shall have a
45 vote only in the case of a tie.
- 46
47

- 1 2. The Chair of the Elections Review Committee shall be the current Assistant to the
- 2 Attorney General or the Chairperson of Student Review Board, who shall be
- 3 appointed by the Attorney General with the approval of Student Senate and shall
- 4 hold that position throughout the existence of the current Elections Review
- 5 Committee.
- 6 3. The Elections Review Committee shall follow the hearing procedures outlined in
- 7 Article VI Section 7A of the By-Laws.
- 8 g. Determination of Violation. After hearing a complaint, the Elections Review
- 9 Committee shall determine whether or not a violation of the Code was committed
- 10 and, in the event that a violation did occur, shall determine a reasonable penalty for
- 11 the violation under those restrictions as set forth in 41-0146.

12
13 41-0144 Major Offenses

- 14 a. Major offenses, as defined under the Code, are those following:
- 15 1. Tampering with ballots or other election equipment.
- 16 2. Casting more than one ballot.
- 17 3. Deliberate submission of false or misleading information, deliberate omission, or
- 18 intentionally failing to file required reports.
- 19 4. Harassment, intimidation, bribery, or fraud with the intent of affecting the
- 20 outcome of an election.
- 21 5. Libelous or slanderous statements or conduct.
- 22 6. Intentional actions to mislead or obstruct the Elections Commissioner or the
- 23 Elections Review Committee in the completion of their duties.
- 24 7. Three or more minor offenses committed on different occasions.
- 25 8. Encouragement of the commission of an offense hereunder.
- 26 9. Incurring campaign expenses that exceed the limit by more than five percent
- 27 (5%).
- 28 10. Failing to comply with rulings or pay fines within a reasonable amount of time.
- 29 11. Failure to comply with the mass distribution regulation under 41-0131(i).

30
31 41-0145 Minor Offenses

- 32 a. Minor offenses, as defined under the Code, are any other violations of the Code
- 33 other than those in 41-0144(a).

34
35 41-0146 Penalties

- 36 a. Major Offenses. Upon the determination of the commission of a major offense, the
- 37 Elections Review Committee may cause the disqualification of such candidate(s)
- 38 from the General Election or impose such other penalties as deemed appropriate.
- 39 b. Minor Offenses. Upon the determination by the Elections Commissioner of a minor
- 40 offense, the Elections Commissioner may impose a fine of up to ten dollars (\$10) per
- 41 candidate, and/or impose such other penalty as deemed appropriate by the Elections
- 42 Commissioner.
- 43 c. In cases of destruction or damage to campaign materials or election equipment, the
- 44 Elections Commissioner may order restitution for damaged items to those parties
- 45 whose materials were so damaged.
- 46 d. In assessing penalties, the Elections Commissioner and/or Elections Review
- 47 Committee shall consider the severity of the violation or any mitigating factors that

1 may be involved in the situation as well as any cooperation provided by any person so
2 involved.

- 3 e. Any fines received shall be deposited into the SGA Elections Account.
4

5 41-0147 Authority Limited.

- 6 a. Individuals who have been disqualified from the General Election may not take any
7 seat they would otherwise have been elected to.
8

9 41-0148 Appeals

10
11 41-0149 Generally

- 12 a. Appeals of any decision made by the Elections Commissioner shall be made to the
13 Elections Review Committee.
14 b. Appeals of any decision made by the Elections Review Committee shall be made to
15 the Student Tribunal.
16

17 41-0150 Special Elections

18
19 41-0151 Emergency Elections

- 20 a. Situation. In the event that the Student Senate Chair and Student Senate Vice Chair
21 are called upon to serve as Interim Student Body President and Student Body Vice
22 President, respectively, due to the common resignation of the Student Body President
23 and Student Body Vice President, the Interim Student Body President may ask the
24 Student Senate to hold an emergency election. Upon such request, an emergency
25 election may be held if approved by a majority of Student Senate selected and
26 qualified.
27 b. Procedure. An emergency election shall be held in accordance with the provisions of
28 the Elections Regulations Code.
29

30 41-0152 Post Election Review

- 31
32 41-0153 The Elections Commissioner shall submit to the Student Senate on the third Student
33 Senate meeting after the certification of the election results by the Student Senate a
34 complete analysis of the election held and any recommendations on how to improve
35 or otherwise simplify future elections. The Elections *Review* Committee shall
36 continue in existence until the end of the spring semester.
37

38 *[Passed by Student Senate on October 31st, 2002, as SB 02/03/30. Subsequently*
39 *amended on January 28, 1999 with SB 98/99/69; January 28, 1999 with SB 98/99/70;*
40 *and January 28, 1999 with SB 98/99/71; and January 27, 2000 with SB 99/00/44; and*
41 *February 24, 2000 with SB 99/00/66; and March 30, 2000 with SB 99/00/90; January*
42 *25, 2001, with SB's 00/01/49, 50, 51, 52, 53; and March 29, 2001, with SB 00/01/77;*
43 *and October 31, 2002, with SB 02/03/30.]*
44

45 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON**
46 **OCTOBER 31ST, 2002, WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 54-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Kansas State University Women’s Softball Club;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University Women’s Softball Club has been invited to play in the
13 University of Dallas Spring Tournament and the University of Dallas has made certain
14 concessions to ensure that the Kansas State University Women’s Softball Club will be in
15 attendance;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University Women’s Softball Club has received a FY2003 allocation
18 prior to this request in the amount of \$2000.00; however, due to the invitational nature of
19 the tournament, it was not possible to have foreseen this added expenditure;

20
21 **WHEREAS,** The invitation is a testament to the success of the Kansas State University Women’s
22 Softball Club; and

23
24 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
25 Allocations Committee are as follows:

26
27 Project 1 - Travel and lodging for the Kansas State University Women’s Softball Club to
28 attend the University of Dallas Spring Tournament March 9-11 in Dallas, Texas.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$880.00	\$880.00
Lodging	\$240.00	\$240.00
TOTAL	\$1120.00	\$1120.00

29
30
31
32
33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1120.00 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
40 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the
41 account # 4-90073 of the Kansas State University Women’s Softball Club.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 6TH, 2003,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 50-0.**

5 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Union Program Council adds a great deal to the experience of student life;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The K-State student body has seen many benefits from the Union Program
10 Council fee; and

11
12 **WHEREAS,** After Hours has proven to be a valuable programming addition to our University;

13
14
15 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** KSU SGA Statute 37-08 is hereby amended to read:

18 **UNION PROGRAM COUNCIL BUDGET AGREEMENT**

19
20
21 This agreement made this 13th day of February 2003, between the Kansas State
22 University Student Governing Association (SENATE), and Kansas State University Union
23 Program Council (DEPARTMENT).

- 24
25 1. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Year 2004
26 shall be \$210,184. This money must be spent on expenses related to Union Program
27 Council. The BUDGET will be reviewed prior to academic year 2004-2005.
- 28
29 2. Of the funds allocated for Fiscal Year 2004, \$66,000 shall be allocated for After
30 Hours, which shall be expended by June 31, 2004. Within 60 days of the end of
31 Fiscal Year 2004, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall submit a written
32 summary of the BUDGET expenditures for equipment to the Privilege Fee Chair for
33 review by the entire Senate body.
- 34
35 3. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by Kansas State University
36 Student Senate and/or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with
37 DEPARTMENT regarding funding of budgets and use of such funding.
- 38
39 4. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review
40 by Kansas State University Student Senate and such review could result in decrease
41 or termination of funding of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any
42 of its rights in any instance shall not constitute a waiver of such rights in that instance
43 or in any other instance.
- 44
45 5. Within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall
46 submit a written summary of BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for
47 review by the entire Senate Body.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

6. No construction of or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with privilege fees unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student body. (SGA Constitution Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105)
7. The agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the state of Kansas.
8. By signing this agreement, the representatives of the respective parties hereby represent that each is duly authorized by his or her party to execute this document on behalf of such party and that the party agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.
9. Bill 02/03/50 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by: the Privilege Fee Committee Chair, the Student Senate Chair, the Student Body President, the President of Union Program Council, the Union Executive Director, and the Vice President for Institutional Advancement.

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 13TH, 2003,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 49-0.**

1 **BILL 02/03/51**

2 **FY 2003 ALLOCATION TO**
3 **ECUMENICAL CAMPUS MINISTRIES**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
6 Ecumenical Campus Ministries;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
9 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
10 group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Ecumenical Campus Ministries will be taking eight students to serve children
13 and help build houses in Ciudad Victoria, Mexico;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** These students will be working with the children at a youth center and serving as
16 mentors;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** These students will be working on their community service project March 16-23;
19 and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
22 follows:

23
24 Project 1- Travel for eight students to do community service in Ciudad Victoria, Mexico.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$800	\$800
TOTAL	\$800	\$800

25
26
27
28
29
30 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

31
32 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$800.00 for the activities described.

33
34 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
35 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
36 the account to be created for the Ecumenical Campus Ministries.

37
38 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 13TH, 2003,**
39 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-2.**
40

3
4
5
6 **BY:** Allocations Committee

7
8 **WHEREAS,** There are problems with the current way college councils are allocating their
9 funds;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** It is important to make this a more uniform process so all student groups
12 requesting student fee money follow the same procedures;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** By creating a new committee to hear college council organizations' requests on a
15 per-event basis it will be possible to give more money to the groups who will
16 really put it to good use; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Multicultural student organizations need to be added to the regulations;

19
20 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

21
22 **SECTION 1.** Section 13 of the KSU SGA Statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

23
24 13-0101 **FUNDING STATUTE**
25 Student Governing Association
26 Kansas State University

27
28
29 13-0102 General

30 A. Definitions

31 1. For the purpose of the Funding Statutes, the following definitions shall apply:

- 32 a) Academic Competition Team. An Academic Competition Team shall be a
33 registered organization designated by the Allocations Committee as having
34 a vested interest in attending competitions at which such teams represent
35 the University and its Colleges to further the academic and educational
36 status of the University as a whole.
- 37 b) Student Organization. A Student Organization shall be any registered
38 organization whose primary officers and 80% of the organizations
39 membership are Kansas State University students.
- 40 c) Campus Wide Organization. A Campus Wide Organization shall be any
41 registered student organization not currently registered as an academic
42 competition team, a sports club, or as a college council organization.
- 43 d) University/Community Organizations. A University/Community
44 Organization shall be any campus wide organization of which at least 50%
45 of the membership is Kansas State University students.

- e) College Council. A College Council shall be the governing body of a college of the University, such definition to include the Graduate School as a College.
- f) College Council Organization. A College Council Organization shall be any registered organization whose organizational focus shall be academic or professional in nature and associated with a specific academic college.
- g) Institutional Service. An Institutional Service shall be any organization so designated by the Allocations Committee whose sole purpose is to provide services to Kansas State University students.
- h) **Multicultural Student Organizations. Multicultural Student Organizations shall be defined as a student organization that puts together a heritage month, this includes the Asian American Student Union, Black Student Union, Hispanic American Leadership Organization, and the Native American Student Association,**
- i) Student. A student shall be any KSU student enrolled in a minimum of one (1) hour.
- j) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an organization in order to bring a speaker to campus, including their travel, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to perform a planned project or event.

B. Universal Requirements

- 1. In order to request funds from the Student Activity Fee in any semesterly period, an organization must fulfill each of the following requirements:
 - a) The organization must be a student group currently registered with the Office of Student Activities and Services or an Institutional Service.
 - ~~b) The organization must have sent a representative to one of the funding workshops held by the Treasurer annually.~~
 - b) The organization must submit to the SGA Treasurer a statement of the fundraising activities of the organization over the past year, including the specific events and the amounts raised. This statement must be submitted with the organization's funding requests on the Fund Raising Report form available in the Office of Student Activities and Services.
 - c) The organization must be registered for forty-five (45) days prior to the date of the event to receive Student Activity Fee funds.
 - d) The organization may not receive funds while on probation as designated by the Activities Director.
 - e) **Open Projects. All projects sponsored by Campus Wide Organizations with student fee funds must show an educational benefit to the students of the University, must be open to all students of the University, and must be free to all students of the University. Such projects must also be held on the University campus or within the Manhattan community.**
 - ~~f) Student Activity Fee funds shall not be allocated to projects for the purposes of promoting or opposing a particular political candidate,~~

~~political or social issue, or religion.~~

2. Differentiation of Projects. In the case that an organization is submitting multiple requests, each project for which funding is to be requested must be distinct and independent, and must be related to the goals of the organization itself.
3. Fund Raising. All groups should make a reasonable effort to raise funds, either through dues or other events. While not a requirement for funding, the Allocations Committee may reject funding for any requested materials which would commonly be paid for by fund raising at its discretion.

13-0103 Campus Wide Organizations

~~A. General Criteria~~

- ~~1. Open Projects. All projects sponsored by Campus Wide Organizations with student fee funds must show an educational benefit to the students of the University, must be open to all students of the University, and must be free to all students of the University. Such projects must also be held on the University campus or within the Manhattan community.~~

B A. Request Process

1. Requests. Requests for funding of projects from the Student Activity Fee may be made by Campus Wide Organizations fulfilling the requirements of 13-0102 through the completion and submission of a funding request form, available in the Office of Student Activities and Services. A separate funding request form must be submitted for each project the organization wishes to hold, up to a maximum of five projects annually.
2. The funding request form must be completed in accordance with the form's instructions. Funds requested for a project must be divided into separate categories, outlined below. Each category must have a detailed description of the items requested and an estimate of the cost of each item.
 - a) Promotions. Promotions shall include any expense related to the advertisement of an activity, such as Collegian advertisements, KSDB or any radio advertisements, leaflets or posters, and other such materials as determined by the Allocations Committee.
 - b) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an organization in order to bring a speaker to campus, including their travel, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to perform a planned project or event.
 - c) Rent of Space and Equipment. Rent of space and equipment shall include any expenses related to renting rooms or other areas for performances, meetings, and other such events, as well as any costs related to rental of tables and chairs, movie projectors, or other necessary materials for a project.
 - d) Films. Films shall include any expense for the rental of movies, documentaries, recorded theatrical shows, or other such events.
 - e) Travel. Travel shall be defined as a request for funds to pay expenses related to transportation, lodging and food for Kansas State University students. Campus Wide Organizations may be allocated a maximum of

1 \$100 per person up to \$1,000 for travel expenses for each travel request
2 submitted during the fiscal year. A student may only receive one allocation
3 of \$100 even if they are a member of more than one student organization
4 taking the same trip. Travel shall be funded at the rate applicable to
5 reimbursement for expenditures made by individuals traveling for the
6 State of Kansas.

7 f) Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not
8 reasonably fit in the above categories, as determined necessary by the
9 Allocations Committee, However, this category shall be subject to the
10 limitations on funding, listed below.

11 3. Funding requests for the current year will be considered on a rolling basis, but
12 must be submitted no later than four weeks prior to the date of the project. Except
13 for, all requests for events to be held ~~December 1st through February 15th must be~~
14 ~~turned in by November 1st, all requests for any event to be held March 15th~~
15 through the end of the academic year must be submitted by **the last Friday in**
16 February, and all requests for events to be held in August and September must be
17 ~~turned in by May 15th of the previous academic year.~~ The Allocations Committee
18 will consider exceptions to these guidelines if an organization has special
19 circumstances.

20 **€ B. Limitations**

- 21 1. Services, Where Acquired. Funds allocated must be spent on services offered on
22 the University campus whenever these services are available.
- 23 2. Honorarium. All recipients of an honorarium are required to complete ~~a standard~~
24 ~~letter of agreement prior to payment.~~ Groups must submit an honorarium
25 information sheet, ~~letter of agreement~~, and a W-9 to receive payment.
- 26 3. Spending Restrictions. Student funds allocated by the Allocations Committee
27 may not be spent on any of the following items:
 - 28 a) Food. Food may not be purchased with student funds except unless such
29 materials are to be used in an educational experiment. Prior approval from
30 the Treasurer shall be gained before an expenditure for this exception is
31 made.
 - 32 b) Social Events. Student funds may not be spent on any materials pertaining
33 to social functions, parties, or banquets, and may not be spent for any
34 materials in any project where such an event is part thereof, except when
35 the Allocations Committee finds a substantial educational benefit.
 - 36 c) Personal Materials. Student funds may not be spent on any personal
37 materials, such as plaques, gifts, awards, flowers, name tags, engravings
38 for specific individuals, photographs, or clothing.
 - 39 d) Wages. Student funds may not be spent on wages or compensation of any
40 kind, with the exception of projectionists and security officers as required
41 by the rental facility.

42
43 **Ð-C. Unspent Funds**

- 44 1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to a Campus Wide
45 Organization shall be returned to the Reserves for Contingencies Account no later

1 than ~~October 30~~ **the last Friday in October** of the following fiscal year.

2
3 13-0104 College Councils

4 A. General Criteria

- 5 1. Open Projects. All projects sponsored by College Councils or College Council
6 Organizations must show an educational benefit to the students of the individual college,
7 must be open to all students of the University, and must be free to all students of the
8 University.

9
10 ~~B. Duties of the College Councils~~

- 11 ~~1. Allocation of Funds. Each college council shall be responsible for the processing~~
12 ~~of funding requests for any organization classified as a College Council~~
13 ~~Organization. Such funding requests shall be considered and funds allocated in~~
14 ~~any equitable manner as determined by the individual college councils. Such~~
15 ~~allocations must be consistent with the Funding regulations which apply to~~
16 ~~funding of the College Councils.~~
17 ~~2. Special Allocations. Special allocations may be made by the College Councils, at~~
18 ~~their discretion and in any equitable manner which they so choose, to any College~~
19 ~~Council Organization submitting a request for special allocations to the College~~
20 ~~Council. Such allocations, however, must adhere to the requirements and~~
21 ~~restrictions provided in the Funding Statutes in respect to special allocations, 13-~~
22 ~~0106.~~
23 ~~3. College Councils shall be responsible for managing the funds of College Council~~
24 ~~Organizations, ensuring funds allocated to College Councils Organizations are~~
25 ~~effectively spent for their intended purposes.~~

26
27 **E B. Request Process**

- 28 **1. Requests. Requests for funding of projects from the Student Activity Fee**
29 **may be made by a College Council Organization fulfilling the requirements**
30 **of 13-0102 through the completion and submission of a funding request form,**
31 **available in the Office of Student Activities and Services, submitted to the**
32 **College Council Funding Group. A separate funding request form must be**
33 **submitted for each project the organization wishes to hold.**
34 **2. Requests must be submitted to the College Council Funding Group. This**
35 **committee's membership will consist of the Treasurer of the nine College**
36 **Councils, the Allocations Committee Chair will appoint three at-large**
37 **members, and the Vice-Chair of the Student Senate Allocations Committee.**
38 **3. Requests to the College Council Funding Group will be considered on a**
39 **rolling basis, but must be submitted no later than four weeks prior to the**
40 **date of the project. The College Council Funding Group will consider**
41 **exceptions to these guidelines if an organization has special circumstances.**
42 **4. The Vice-Chair of the Student Senate Allocations Committee will serve as the**
43 **chair of the College Council Funding Group and will only have a vote in the**
44 **case of a tie. Quorum for the College Council Funding Group will be 6 voting**
45 **members. Each college council may designate a proxy if their Treasurer is**
46 **unable to attend.**

1 **5. The College Council budget approval form must be signed by both the**
2 **Allocations Chair and Vice- Chair.**

3 ~~2. 6.~~ The College Council funding request form must be completed in accordance with
4 the form's instructions. Funds requested must be divided into those funds
5 requested by each individual College Council Organization, and each individual
6 organization request must be divided in accordance with the categories listed
7 below.

- 8 a) Promotions. Promotions shall include any expense related to the
9 advertisement of an activity, such as Collegian advertisements, KSDB or
10 any radio advertisements, leaflets or posters, and other such materials as
11 determined by the Allocations Committee.
- 12 b) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an
13 organization in order to bring a speaker to campus, including their travel,
14 lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to perform a planned project or
15 event.
- 16 c) Rent of Space and Equipment. Rent of space and equipment shall include
17 any expenses related to renting rooms or other areas for performances,
18 meetings, and other such events as well as any costs related to rental of
19 tables and chairs, movie projectors, or other necessary materials for a
20 project.
- 21 d) Films. Films shall include any expense for the rental of movies,
22 documentaries, recorded theatrical shows, or other such events.
- 23 e) Travel. Travel shall be defined as a request for funds to pay expenses
24 related to transportation, lodging and food for Kansas State University
25 students. College Councils may be allocated a maximum of \$100 per
26 person up to \$1,000 for travel expenses for each travel request submitted
27 during the fiscal year. A student may only receive one allocation of \$100
28 even if they are a member of more than one student organization taking the
29 same trip. Travel shall be funded at the rate applicable to reimbursement
30 for expenditures made by individuals traveling for the State of Kansas.
- 31 f) Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not
32 reasonably fit in the above categories, as determined necessary by the
33 Allocations Committee. However, this category shall be subject to the
34 limitations on funding, listed below.
- 35 g) Open House. This category shall represent a College Council's request for
36 funds related to open house activities.

37 **Ð C. Limitations**

- 38 1. Services, Where Acquired. Funds allocated by the Allocations Committee must
39 be spent on services offered on the University campus whenever these services are
40 available.
- 41 2. Honorarium. All recipients of an honorarium are required to complete ~~a standard-~~
42 ~~letter of agreement prior to payment.~~ Groups must submit an honorarium
43 information sheet ~~with a letter of agreement~~, and W-9 to receive payment.
- 44 3. Spending Restrictions. Student funds allocated by the Allocations Committee
45 may not be spent on any of the following items:
- 46 a) Food. Food may not be purchased with student funds except unless such

1 materials are to be used in an educational experiment. Prior approval from
2 the Treasurer shall be gained before an expenditure for this exception is
3 made.

- 4 b) Social Events. Student funds may not be spent on any materials pertaining
5 to social functions, parties, or banquets, and may not be spent for any
6 materials in any project where such an event is part thereof, except when
7 the Allocations Committee finds a substantial educational benefit.
- 8 c) Personal Materials. Student funds may not be spent on any personal
9 materials, such as plaques, gifts, awards, flowers, name tags, engravings
10 for specific individuals, photographs, or clothing.
- 11 d) Wages. Student funds may not be spent on wages or compensation of any
12 kind, with the exception of projectionists or security officers.
- 13 e) Open House Restrictions. The Treasurer of the Student Governing
14 Association shall have the authority to compile a list of materials that may
15 not be purchased with student funds for open house activities. Such a list
16 will be available in the Office of Student Activities and Services.

17
18 **E D.** Reserve Accounts

- 19 1. College Councils. College Councils which have been allocated funds and have
20 not spent or allocated to College Council Organizations the entire allocation
21 received at the beginning of each fiscal year, must return the entire amount of the
22 unspent allocation to the Reserves for Contingencies Account ~~at the end of each~~
23 ~~fiscal year.~~ **no later than the last Friday in October of the following fiscal**
24 **year.**

25
26 13-0105 Institutional Services

27 A. General Criteria

- 28 1. Registration. Institutional Services requesting funds from the Student
29 Activity Fee must have been registered as an Institutional Service for not
30 less than one (1) year prior to such a funding request being made.

31
32 B. Request Process

- 33 1. Requests. Requests for funding of projects from the Student Activity Fee
34 may be made by Institutional Services fulfilling the requirements of 13-
35 0102 through the completion and submission of a funding request form,
36 available in the Office of Student Activities and Services.
- 37 2. Funds requested must be divided into separate categories, outlined below.
38 Each category must have a detailed description of the requested and an
39 estimate of the cost of each item.
 - 40 a) Promotions. Promotions shall include any expense related to the
41 advertisement of an activity, such as Collegian advertisements,
42 KSBD or any radio advertisements, leaflets or posters, and other
43 such materials as determined by the Allocations Committee.
 - 44 b) Honoraria. Honoraria shall include any funds requested by an
45 organization in order to bring a speaker to campus including their
46 transportation, lodging costs, and food, as well as their fee to

perform a planned project or event.

- c) Rent of Space and Equipment. Rent of space and equipment shall include any expenses related to renting rooms or other areas for performances, meetings, and other such events, as well as any costs related to rental of tables and chairs, movie projectors, or other necessary materials for a project.
- d) Films. Films shall include any expense for the rental of movies, documentaries, recorded theatrical shows, or other such events.
- e) Payroll. Payroll shall include expenses related to the staffing of services provided by the Institutional Service.
- f) Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not reasonably fit in the above categories, as determined necessary by the Allocations Committee. However, this category shall be subject to the limitations on funding, listed below

- 3. Annual budgets must be completed and submitted to the Allocations Committee in the Office of Student Activities and Services not later than the ~~third week of February.~~ **last Friday in February.**

C. Limitations

- 1. Services, Where Acquired. Funds must be spent on services offered on the University campus whenever these services are available.
- 2. Honorarium. All recipients of an honorarium are required to complete ~~a standard letter of agreement,~~ and an honorarium information sheet, and W-9 to receive payment.
- 3. Spending Restrictions. Student funds allocated by the Allocations Committee may not be spent on any of the following items:
 - a) Food. Food may not be purchased with student funds except unless such materials are to be used in an educational experiment. Prior approval from the Treasurer shall be gained before an expenditure for this exception is made.
 - b) Social Events. Student funds may not be spent on any materials pertaining to social functions, parties, or banquets, and may not be spent for any materials in any project where such an event is part thereof, except where the Allocations Committee finds a substantial academic benefit.
 - c) Personal Materials. Student funds may not be spent on any personal materials, such as plaques, gifts, awards, flowers, name tags, engravings for specific individuals, photographs, or clothing.
 - d) Payroll. Individuals to be paid wages by an Institutional Service must be included on the payroll of the Institutional Service.

D. Unspent Funds

- 1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to an Institutional Service shall be returned to the Reserves for Contingencies Account no later than ~~October 30~~ **the last Friday in October** of the following fiscal year.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

13-0106

Sports Clubs

A. General Criteria

1. Registration. Sports Clubs requesting funds from the Student Activity Fee must be registered through the Office of Student Activities and Services as a Sports Club prior to a funding request being made.

B. Request Process

1. Requests. Requests for funding from the Student Activity Fee may be made by Sports Clubs fulfilling the requirements of 13-0102 through the completion and submission of an annual budget.
2. Funds requested must be divided into separate categories, outlined below. Each category must have a detailed description of the items requested and an estimate of the cost of each item.
 - a) Equipment
 - b) Uniforms
 - c) Salary for referees ~~and coaches~~
 - d) League membership dues
 - e) Travel. Travel shall include all expenses related to traveling to compete in an sports competition. These expenses could include (but are not limited to) food, registration, lodging, and transportation.
 - f) **Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that do not reasonably fit in the above categories, as determined necessary by the Allocations Committee. However, this category shall be subject to the limitations on funding, listed below.**
3. Annual budgets must be completed and submitted to the Allocations Committee in the Office of Student Activities and Services no later than the ~~third week~~ **the last Friday** in February.

C. Unspent Funds

1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to a Sports Club shall be returned to the Reserves for Contingencies Account no later than **the last Friday in October** ~~30~~ of the following fiscal year.

13-0107

Academic Competition Teams

A. General Criteria

1. Registration. Academic Competition Teams requesting funds from the Student Activity Fee must be registered through the Office of Student Activities and Services as an Academic Competition Team prior to a funding request being made.

B. Request Process

1. Requests. Requests for funding from the Student Activity Fee may be made by Academic Competition Teams fulfilling the requirements of

- 1 13-0102 through the completion and submission of an annual budget.
2 2. Funds requested must be divided into separate categories, outlined
3 below. Each category must have a detailed description of the items
4 requested and an estimate of the cost of each item
5
6 a) Travel. Travel shall include all expenses related to traveling to
7 compete in an academic competition. These expenses could
8 include (but are not limited to) food, registration, lodging, and
9 transportation.
10 b) Equipment
11 c) **Other. This category shall include any expenses for items that**
12 **do not reasonably fit in the above categories, as determined**
13 **necessary by the Allocations Committee. However, this**
14 **category shall be subject to the limitations on funding, listed**
15 **below.**
16 3. Annual budgets must be completed and submitted to the
17 Allocations Committee in the Office of Student Activities and Services
18 no later than the ~~third week~~ **last Friday** in February.
19 C. Unspent Funds
20 1. Unspent Funds Returned. All unspent funds allocated to an
21 Academic Competition Team shall be returned to the Reserves for
22 Contingencies Account no later than the **last Friday in** October 30 of the
23 following fiscal year.
24
25
26

27 **13-0108 Multicultural Student Organizations**

28 **A. General Criteria**

- 29 1. **Registration. Multicultural Student Organizations requesting funds**
30 **from the Student Activity Fee must be registered through the Office**
31 **of Student Activities and Services as a Multicultural Student**
32 **Organization prior to a funding request being made.**

33 **B. Request Process**

- 34 1. **Requests. The Asian American Student Union, Black Student Union,**
35 **Hispanic American Leadership Organization, and the Native**
36 **American Student Association who put together” heritage months”**
37 **will be given a block allocation of \$3,500 each at the beginning of**
38 **each fiscal year for the events during their heritage month.**
39 2. **These funds can only be spent on heritage month activities.**
40 3. **Unused funds shall revert back into the reserves for contingencies**
41 **account no later than the last Friday in October.**
42
43
44
45
46

1 13-0108 **9** Special Allocations

2 A. Definitions

- 3 1. Capital Expenditures. Capital Expenditures shall be defined as any request for
4 funds related to the purchase of non-consumable goods that can be considered
5 inventory items and have a useful life of more than one year.
6 2. Special Allocations may be requested for travel to a national competition or to pay
7 for an expense that arises during the year that the organization was not
8 anticipating.

9 B. Request Requirements

- 10
11 1. Capital Expenditures. Any request for funds to purchase capital goods must be
12 accompanied by a statement of the educational value of the purchase to the
13 University or an academic department, a statement of the need for the purchase,
14 and a justified estimate of the cost of the goods at the lowest possible price for a
15 reasonable degree of quality.
16 2. Submission of Requests. Requests for special allocations must be submitted to
17 the SGA Allocations chairman or ~~designated~~ College Council **Funding Group** at
18 least four weeks prior to the planned date of the travel or the purchase of capital
19 goods.
20

21 13-0109 **10.** Allocations of funds for Academic Competition Teams, Campus Wide
22 **Organizations, Institutional Services, and Sports Clubs**
23
24

25 A. Process

- 26 1. After a request form is delivered to the Allocations Committee, the ~~C~~committee
27 will initially consider the requested allocation. A representative from the
28 requesting organization will be asked to attend an Allocations Committee meeting
29 to answer any further questions members of the committee might have.
30 2. Based on the information provided, the Committee shall determine a reasonable
31 level of funding for each category of the project and vote to approve this
32 recommended allocation to the Student Senate.
33 3. Allocations bills submitted to the Student Senate shall include the categories of
34 funding, the requested funding amounts, the recommended funding amounts.
35 4. Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President
36 funds for a project shall be available to the organization sponsoring such project.
37

38 B. Expenditure of Funds

- 39 1. Lump Sum Funding. In accordance with the lump sum funding of an
40 organization's project, the organization may spend the funds allocated for a project
41 in any manner in which the organization sees fit, provided that such expenditures
42 fall within the permissible expenditures as outlined in the Funding Statutes.
43 a) Overruns. An organization may spend funds on materials in any category
44 except honorariums that exceeds the recommended amount for that
45 category as determined by the Allocations Committee, provided that the
46 total amount spent on a project does not exceed the total amount allocated

for the project by the Student Senate.

13-010911. Allocations of funds for College Council Organizations

A. Process

- 1. After a request form is delivered to the College Council Funding Group, the Committee will initially consider the requested allocation. A representative from the requesting organization will be asked to attend a College Council Funding Group meeting to answer any further questions members of the committee might have.**
- 2. Based on the information provided, the Committee shall determine a reasonable level of funding for each category of the project and vote to approve this recommended allocation to the Allocations Committee Chair.**
- 3. Allocation forms submitted to the Allocations Committee Chair shall include the categories of funding, the requested funding amounts, the recommended funding amounts.**
- 4. Upon signature of the Allocations Committee Chair and Vice-Chair funds for a project shall be available to the organization sponsoring such project.**

B. Expenditure of Funds

- 1. Lump Sum Funding. In accordance with the lump sum funding of an organization's project, the organization may spend the funds allocated for a project in any manner in which the organization sees fit, provided that such expenditures fall within the permissible expenditures as outlined in the Funding Statutes.**
 - a) Overruns. An organization may spend funds on materials in any category except honorariums that exceeds the recommended amount for that category as determined by the Allocations Committee, provided that the total amount spent on a project does not exceed the total amount allocated for the project by the Student Senate.**

13-0102 Administrative

~~A. Workshops~~

- ~~1. Funding Workshops. The SGA Treasurer and the Coordinator of Student Activities, or designee, shall conduct no fewer than four funding workshops per year. The time and place of these workshops will be at the discretion of the SGA Treasurer, and prior notice of the time and place of each workshop must be made two weeks before such workshops will be held.~~

B A. Organization Designations

- 1. The Allocations Committee shall classify all registered organizations as either a Student Organization or a University/Community Organization.**
- 2. The Allocations Committee shall have the authority to determine and designate Institutional Services subject to the approval of Student Senate.**

1 **E B.** Funding Sources

- 2 1. Respective Fee Allocation. Funding requests under the **Student Activity Fee**
3 Funding Statutes may only be allocated from the respective funding percentage of
4 the fee **and its respective reserve account.**
5 2. Student Activity Fee, Only Source. Funding requests under the Funding Statutes
6 may only receive funding from the Student Activity Fee.
7

8 **E C.** Financial Records

- 9 1. Maintenance. Each organization shall be required to maintain reasonable
10 financial records detailing all income and expenditures.
11 2. Inspection. An organization's financial records must be made available to the
12 Allocations Committee at the written request of the SGA Treasurer.
13

14 **E D.** Violations

- 15 1. Consequences. The SGA Treasurer, with the approval of the Allocations
16 Committee, may place a hold on funding for any project or projects associated
17 with an organization if an organization deviates from University policy or the
18 Funding Statutes in administering Student Activity Fee Funds. Serious violations,
19 as determined by the Allocations Committee, shall be referred to the Student
20 Senate, which shall have the authority to revoke funding provided to such an
21 organization. Each organization shall be responsible for the proper handling of all
22 Student Fee Funds.
23

24 **SECTION 2.** This legislation shall take effect immediately.

25
26 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 27TH, 2003,**
27 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 35-9.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Greeks Advocating Mature Management of Alcohol (GAMMA) organization;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Greeks Advocating Mature Management of Alcohol currently has 70 active members and
13 will be sending eight members to the Area V GAMMA Spring Conference at Tan-tara
14 Resort in the Lake of the Ozarks;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University chapter of Greeks Advocating Mature Management
17 of Alcohol is the only chapter of a Big XII university to have not previously
18 attended this conference;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The delegates to this conference will participate in discussions promoting alcohol and
21 drug education; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made by the
24 Allocations Committee are as follows:

25
26 Project 1 - Travel and lodging for the Kansas State University chapter of Greeks
27 Advocating Mature Management of Alcohol to attend Area V GAMMA Spring
28 Conference at Tan-tara Resort in the Lake of the Ozarks on April 10-13, 2003 .

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
31 Travel	\$100.00	\$100.00
32 Lodging	\$300.00	\$300.00
33 Registration	\$400.00	\$400.00
34 TOTAL	\$800.00	\$800.00

35
36 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

37
38 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$800.00 for the activities described.

39
40 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
41 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the account
42 #4-90033 of the Greeks Advocating Mature Management of Alcohol.

43
44 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 20TH, 2003,**
45 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 52-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
7 Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Related Studies;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has never received a previous request from this
10 organization as this is the inaugural year for the Kansas State University chapter of
11 Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Related Studies;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Related Studies will be taking eight
14 students to the Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Related Studies
15 National Conference in Atlanta, Georgia;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** These students will have the opportunity to network with other association members and
18 national officers, attend leadership seminars, and participate in academic seminars and
19 forums;

20
21 **WHEREAS,** The National Conference will be hosting an internship and job fair to provide students
22 the chance to gain employment experience; and

23
24 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
25 follows:

26
27 Project 1- Travel for eight students to the Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources,
28 and Related Studies National Conference in Atlanta, GA on March 27-29,
29 2003.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$800	\$800
TOTAL	\$800	\$800

30
31
32
33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$800.00 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
40 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the account to
41 be created for Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Related Studies.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 20TH, 2003,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 52-0.**

2
3 **BY:** Allocations Committee

4
5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
6 Ordinary Women;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
9 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
10 group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Ordinary Women will be sponsoring the 4th Annual Take Back the Night rally on
13 April 25, 2003, to raise awareness about issues facing women and society;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** This group has continued to improve this event, expecting attendance around 400,
16 and;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
19 follows:

20
21 Project 1- Funding for the “Take Back the Night Rally”. Magdalen Hsu-Li, a
22 professional music artist, painter, poet, and speaker, will be speaking on violence
23 against women.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Rent of Space	\$50	\$50
Rent of Equipment	\$245	\$245
Honorarium	\$1,800	\$1,000
Promotions	\$410	\$410
TOTAL	\$2,505	\$1,705

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

33
34 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,705.00 for the activities described.

35
36 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
37 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
38 the account #4-90059 of the Ordinary Women.

39
40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 20TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 38-8.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
7 Muslim Student Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Muslim Student Association would like to bring Homed Ghazali to give a
10 presentation entitled "Understanding Your Muslim Neighbor";

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Homed Ghazali is the former vice president of the Islamic Society of North
13 America;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** Students will have a chance to learn about Muslim social customs during this
16 presentation, which will be held February 20, 2003, in the Union Sunflower Room
17 at 7:00 p.m.; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1- Honorarium for Homed Ghazali and promotions to inform students
23 about the event.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$750.00	\$650.00
Promotions	\$250.00	\$200.00
TOTAL	\$1,000.00	\$850.00

24
25
26
27
28
29
30 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

31
32 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$850.00 for the activities described.

33
34 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
35 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
36 the account #4-90031 of the Muslim Student Association.

37
38 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 13TH, 2003,**
39 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-1.**
40

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
7 Ahearn Support account;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** There has been an increase in the use of Memorial Stadium by the sports clubs
14 this year;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Due to liability issues, a supervisor must be present during practices to turn on
17 and off the stadium lights; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1- An additional allocation to the Ahearn Supervisor Support Account to
23 cover the additional supervisor costs for the rest of this fiscal year.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Salary	\$3,080.29	\$3,080.29
TOTAL	\$3,080.29	\$3,080.29

24
25
26
27
28
29 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

30
31 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$3,080.29 for the activities described.

32
33 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
34 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
35 the account #4-90071 of the Ahearn Support.

36
37 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 20TH, 2003,**
38 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 51-1.**
39
40
41

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the Hillel
7 Jewish Student Organization;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Hillel Jewish Student Organization would like to host a Sedar Dinner to celebrate
13 the Jewish Holiday of Passover;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** Rabbi Dan Breslaur will be coming to speak and facilitate the dinner activities;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The Hillel Jewish Student Organization will be holding this event on April 18, 2003, in
18 the Union at 6:00 p.m.;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** Due to the costs of the meal, students will be expected to pay to cover their individual
21 costs; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
24 follows:

25
26 Project 1- Promotions for the Hillel Jewish Student Organization’s Sedar Dinner to be
27 held on April 18th, 2003 in the Union at 6:00 p.m.

	Request	Recommendation
Promotions	\$330.00	\$200.00
Honorarium	\$500.00	\$0.00
Food	\$1800.00	\$0.00
TOTAL	\$2,630.00	\$200.00

28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$200.00 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
40 funds shall be transferred from the reserves for contingencies account to the account to
41 be created for the Hillel Jewish Student Organization.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-2.**

2
3
4
5 **By:** Privilege Fee Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** Student Publications adds to the experience of student life;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University student body and community have seen many
10 benefits from the current Student Publications, Inc. Fee;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Due to the sluggish economy, income from advertising and sales will not keep
13 pace with increasing expenses; and

14
15 **WHEREAS,** Student Publications Inc. is projecting steeper losses over the next three years;

16
17
18 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** KSU SGA Statues 30-0101 through 30-0110 are hereby amended to read:

21
22 **THE STUDENT PUBLICATIONS INC. BUDGET AGREEMENT**

- 23
24 1. This agreement made this 6th day of March, 2003, between the Kansas State University
25 Student Governing Association (SENATE), and Board of Directors of Student
26 Publications Inc. (DEPARTMENT).
- 27
28 2. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Year 2004 shall
29 be \$345,995. The DEPARTMENT BUDGET for Fiscal Year 2005 shall be \$376,995.
30 The DEPARTMENT BUDGET for Fiscal Year 2006 shall be \$406,994. Each of the
31 Fiscal Year BUDGETS includes a \$60,001 allocation that can only be spent on
32 equipment.
- 33
34 3. The following items shall be considered contractual items:
 - 35
36 A. No student fee funds shall be used for the purchase of food or for social functions.
 - 37
38 B. No student fee funds shall be used for the creation or printing of publications
39 which fall outside the mission of Student Publications Inc. to serve the entire
40 campus or its primary publications (e.g. the Royal Purple, K-State Collegian,
41 e-Collegian, and the University Phone Directory.)
 - 42
43 C. No student fee funds shall be expended without authorization from the Finance
44 Committee of the Board of Directors of Student Publications Inc.

1 D. Shall be in compliance with KSU SGA Statutes 36-0401.
2

3 4. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by the Kansas State University
4 Student Senate and/or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with the
5 Board of Directors of Student Publications Inc. regarding funding of budgets and use of
6 such funding.
7

8 5. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review by
9 Kansas State University Student Senate and such review could result in decrease or
10 termination of funding of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any rights in
11 any instance shall not constitute a waiver of such rights in that instance or any other
12 instance.
13

14 6. Within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall
15 submit a written summary of BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for
16 review by the entire Senate body.
17

18 7. No construction or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with Privilege
19 Fees unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student body.
20 (SGA Constitution Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105)
21

22 8. This agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the State of Kansas.
23

24 9. By signing this agreement, the representatives of the respective parties hereby represent
25 that each is duly authorized by his or her party to execute this document on behalf of such
26 party and that the party agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.
27

28 10. Bill 02/03/59 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by the Privilege Fee
29 Chair, the Chair of the Board of Directors of Student Publications Inc., the Director of
30 Student Publications Inc., the Finance Chair of the Board of Directors of Student
31 Publications Inc., the Student Senate Chair, the Vice President for Institutional
32 Advancement, and the Student Body President.
33

34 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
35 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-2.**

2
3
4
5
6 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee, Todd Kohman, Megan Menagh, and Sarah Sourk

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Office of Student Activities and Services provides crucial and valuable
9 services to Kansas State University students and student groups;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** The SafeRide Program has a mission to save lives and prevent injuries and
12 damage to property by offering students and their guests a safe alternative to
13 drunken driving and other threatening situations;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** During the general student election in the spring of 2002, a plebiscite vote
16 regarding the SafeRide Program was on the ballot and the results are as follows:

17	Would KSU students benefit from a SafeRide?	Yes	2692
18		No	566
19		Abstain	494
20			
21			
22	Would you utilize SafeRide?	Yes	1923
23		No	1299
24		Abstain	530
25			
26	Would you pay \$2.00 per semester for SafeRide?	Yes	2146
27		No	1012
28		Abstain	504
29			

30 **WHEREAS,** SafeRide services shall be given to Kansas State University students who are
31 currently enrolled in class and their guests, following the display of the KSU
32 student identification card;

33
34 **WHEREAS,** SafeRide dates of operation will coincide with the Kansas State University
35 academic calendar. Hours of operation will be from Thursday through Saturday
36 from 11pm to 3am the following morning; and

37
38 **WHEREAS,** The SafeRide Coordinator will work with the Office of Student Activities and
39 Services to monitor the SafeRide Program, track usage, develop and maintain a
40 marketing campaign and report to Student Senate at least twice per semester;

41
42 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

43
44 **SECTION 1.** The KSU SGA Statutes 37-0401 through 37-0410 are hereby amended to read:
45

1 **OFFICE OF STUDENT ACTIVITIES AND SERVICES BUDGET AGREEMENT**

2
3 **This agreement made this 6th day of March, 2003, between the Kansas State University**
4 **Student Governing Association (SENATE), and Kansas State University Office of**
5 **Student Activities and Services (DEPARTMENT).**
6

- 7
8 1. The annual DEPARTMENT privilege fee budget (BUDGET) for Fiscal Year 2004 shall
9 be \$341,361. The annual DEPARTMENT BUDGET for Fiscal Year 2005 shall be
10 \$260,762. The BUDGET will be reviewed prior to Fiscal Year 2005.
- 11 2. Internal Auditing Services. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association
12 will provide, through the Office of Student Activities and Services Privilege Fee, the
13 amount of \$18,000 annually to obtain auditing services from the Kansas State University
14 Internal Audit Office. This amount will be set at the level of \$18,000 per year for five
15 years beginning with FY 1999 through FY 2004, at which time the amount and services
16 will be reevaluated by the Privilege Fee Committee and Student Governing Association
17 to determine if the service should continue or be eliminated.

18
19 The Kansas State University Internal Audit Office will dedicate approximately 1,000
20 hours per year to conducting audits on the specified Privilege Fee receiving agencies for
21 that year. A Privilege Fee Agency will be defined as any agency that directly receives
22 funding from any campus privilege fee. The audits will be set on a standard routine
23 schedule and determined by the Privilege Fee Committee in conjunction with the Vice
24 President of Administration and Finance and the Director of the Office of Internal Audit.
25 The order of audits will be determined prior to the beginning of the next fiscal year.

26
27 The Kansas State University Office of Internal Audit will utilize the same practices and
28 processes to audit Privilege Fee Agencies as it would for any other university department
29 or organization. These audits will assess the soundness, adequacy and application of
30 accounting, financial, and other operating controls; determine adherence to Federal, State,
31 University and Kansas State University Student Governing Association policies and
32 procedures; assess compliance with applicable law, regulations and generally accepted
33 accounting principles; ascertain whether program results are consistent with established
34 objectives; ascertain the adequacy of controls for safeguarding University and Student
35 Governing Association assets and funds from losses of all kinds; and assist in the
36 improvement of University operations by making constructive suggestions and
37 recommendations. In accordance with university policy, the Internal Audit Office shall
38 submit a working draft to the Privilege Fee agency. The agency will have an opportunity
39 to respond to any recommendations of the Internal Audit. In accordance with university
40 procedure, upon completion of the report it will be made available to the Kansas Board of
41 Regents, the appropriate university officials, the Privilege Fee Committee and the Kansas
42 State University Student Governing Association.

- 43
44 3. SafeRide Program. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association will
45 provide, through the Office of Student Activities and Services Privilege Fee, the amount

1 of \$70,966 for one Fiscal Year to obtain a SafeRide Program. The SafeRide Program has
2 a mission to save lives and prevent injuries and damage to property by offering students
3 and their guests a safe alternative to drunken driving and other threatening situations.
4 SafeRide services shall be given to Kansas State University students who are currently
5 enrolled in class and their guests, following the display of the KSU student identification
6 card. SafeRide dates of operation will coincide with the Kansas State University
7 academic calendar. Hours of operation will be from Thursday through Saturday from
8 11pm to 3am the following morning. The SafeRide Coordinator will work with the
9 Office of Student Activities and Services to monitor the SafeRide Program, track usage,
10 develop and maintain a marketing campaign and to report to Student Senate at least twice
11 per semester.
12

13 The Student Governing Association SafeRide Coordinator shall provide information
14 about responsible drinking to students at any event that SafeRide is being promoted.
15
16

- 17 4. This agreement supercedes any previous agreement made by Kansas State University
18 Student Senate and/or Kansas State University Student Governing Association with the
19 Kansas State University Office of Student Activities and Services regarding funding of
20 budgets and use of such funding.
21
- 22 5. Any breach of this agreement by the DEPARTMENT will result in automatic review by
23 Kansas State University Student senate and such review could result in decrease or
24 termination of funding of the BUDGET. The failure of SENATE to exercise any of its
25 rights in any instance shall not constitute a waiver of such rights in that instance or in any
26 other instance.
27
- 28 6. Within 60 days of the end of each fiscal year, the Director of the DEPARTMENT shall
29 submit a written summary of BUDGET expenditures to the Privilege Fee Chair for
30 review by the entire Senate body.
31
- 32 7. No construction of or renovation of a building or facility at KSU is permitted with
33 privilege fees unless the fee was established by a binding referendum vote of the student
34 body. (SGA Constitution Article V Section 510 Letter D and Article XI Section 1105).
35
- 36 8. This agreement shall be governed by and subject to the laws of the state of Kansas.
37
- 38 9. By signing this agreement, the representatives of the respective parties hereby represent
39 that each is duly authorized by his or her party to execute this document on behalf of such
40 party and that the party agrees to be bound by the provisions of the agreement.
41
- 42 10. Bill 02/03/60 becomes effective upon execution of this agreement by the Privilege Fee
43 Chair, the Coordinator of Student Activities and Services, the Student Senate Chair, the
44 Vice President for Institutional Advancement, the Vice President for Administration and
45 Finance, and the Student Body President.

1
2
3
4
5
6

SECTION 2. From and after July 1, 2003, Bill 01/02/37 is hereby repealed and all previous budget agreements for Fiscal Years 2004 and 2005 with the DEPARTMENT are null and void.

**THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

5 **BY:** Allocations Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
8 Hispanic American Leadership Organization;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
11 organizations's spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
12 group;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** The 2nd annual Central States Hispanic Students Leadership Conference promotes
15 diversity, cultural pride, and empowerment;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** There are 30 members in this organization and 10 are attending this conference;
18 and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
21 follows:

22
23 Project 1- Travel to the 2nd annual Central States Hispanic Students Leadership
24 Conference in Kansas City, April 11-13, 2003.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Lodging	\$170.00	\$170.00
Registration Fees	\$300.00	\$300.00
TOTAL	\$470.00	\$470.00

25
26
27
28
29
30
31 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

32
33 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$470.00 for the activities described.

34
35 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
36 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
37 the account # 4-90360 of the Hispanic American Leadership Organization.
38

39 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
40 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 KSU Solar Car Racing Team;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The KSU Solar Car Racing Team is an academic competition team of about 25
14 students who design, build, and race solar-powered cars; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
17 follows:

18
19 Project 1- The KSU Solar Car Racing Team will be racing two of their solar-
20 powered cars May 12-16, 2003, in the Formula Sun Grand Prix, held at the
21 Heartland Park Racetrack in Topeka, KS.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Registration	\$200.00	\$200.00
Travel	\$800.00	\$800.00
TOTAL	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00

22
23
24
25
26
27
28 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

29
30 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,000 for the activities described.

31
32 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
33 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
34 an account for the KSU Solar Car Racing Team to be created upon passage of this
35 legislation.

36
37 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
38 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the
7 Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club holds an annual chess
14 tournament on the KSU campus, with 20 participants in 2002;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club tournament is free to KSU
17 students, and \$3.00 to \$5.00 for non-students;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club wants to increase
20 participation in tournament by promoting the 2003 event to campus chess players;
21 and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
24 follows:

25
26 Project 1- Promotions for the annual Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club
27 tournament to be held in the Student Union.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$315.00	\$250.00
TOTAL	\$315.00	\$250.00

28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$250.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 the account #4-90125 of the Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations request of the Kansas
7 State University Wrestling Club;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University Wrestling Club has 20 active members who have
13 been competing in tournaments throughout the year;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University Wrestling Club recently hosted the Southwestern
16 Conference Championships, at which 11 members of the team qualified to compete in
17 the National Collegiate Wrestling Association’s National Championships;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** Over the past four years the Kansas State University Wrestling Club has placed 8th,
20 14th, 5th, and 9th respectively in this National Championship;

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
23 follows:

24
25 Project 1- Transportation, lodging, subsistence, and entry fees for 11 members of the Kansas
26 State University Wrestling Club to compete in the National Collegiate Wrestling Association’s
27 National Championship Tournament in Easton, Pennsylvania, March 13-16, 2003.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
28 Transportation	\$628.03	\$628.03
29 Lodging	\$540.00	\$540.00
30 Subsistence	\$250.00	\$0
31 Entry Fee	\$275	\$0
32 TOTAL	\$1,693.03	\$1,168.03

33
34
35 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

36
37 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,168.03 for the activities described.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
40 funds shall be transferred from the Sports Club Reserve Account to the account #4-
41 90104 of the Kansas State University Wrestling Club.

42
43 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
44 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Students For Environmental Action;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** There are 15 active members in this organization;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** This organization has raised approximately \$150 by selling recycled
16 notebooks and reclaimed carpets to students;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Earth Day celebrations are aimed at informing students on how they can have a
19 positive impact on the environment, including an informative table in the union,
20 an expert speaker of alternative forms of energy, and a film documenting negative
21 impacts on electronic waste; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
24 follows:

25
26 Project 1- Promotions and Publicity to advertise this event to Kansas State
27 University students.

	Request	Recommendation
Promotions	\$275	\$275
TOTAL:	\$275	\$275

28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$275 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 the account 4-90061 of the Students For Environmental Action.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Japanese Appreciation Alliance;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** This organization has 60 active members and this festival will be full of events,
14 displays, demonstrations, and activities relating to Japanese culture and language;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** This event will be held April 26, 2003, in the KSU Student Union and it will
17 educate visitors about the customs of Japan and expose people to new traditions;
18 and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
21 follows:

22
23 Project 1- Honorarium for Terry Baldrige to come and perform cultural Japanese
24 music. Promotions for these events in the Collegian.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$150.00	\$150.00
Honorarium	\$525.00	\$525.00
Travel	\$60.00	\$0.00
TOTAL	\$735.00	\$675.00

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

33
34 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$675.00 for the activities described.

35
36 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
37 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
38 the account #4-90121 of the Japanese Appreciation Alliance.

39
40 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
41 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Muslim Student Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Adnan Bayazid’s lecture is entitled “Islam, Christianity, and Judaism a
14 cooperative approach” and will be held on March 27, 2003, in the KSU Student
15 Union;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Asnan Bayazid is the religious leader of the Islamic Center of Greater Kansas City
18 and is involved in several education tolerance and dialogue efforts; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
21 follows:

22
23 Project 1- Honorarium for Adnan Bayzaid to come and speak on March 27, 2003.
24 Promotions to advertise this event to students in the Collegian.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honoraria	\$750.00	\$500.00
Promotions	\$250.00	\$150.00
TOTAL	\$1000.00	\$650.00

25
26
27
28
29
30
31 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

32
33 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$650.00 for the activities described.

34
35 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
36 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
37 the account #4-90031 of the Muslim Student Association.

38
39 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
40 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Muslim Student Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** This lecture is on September 9, 2003, in the KSU Student Union;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The topic of the lecture is “Scientific Miracles of the Quran” presented by Khalid
16 Habib of Tulsa Oklahoma; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
19 follows:

20
21 Project 1- Honorarium for Khalid Habib to come and speak on September 9th.
22 Promotions for this event will advertise this activity in flyers and the Collegian.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$750.00	\$500.00
Hotel	\$150.00	\$0.00
Advertisement	\$250.00	\$150.00
TOTAL	\$1150.00	\$650.00

23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

31
32 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$650.00 for the activities described.

33
34 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
35 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
36 the account #4-90031 of the Muslim Student Association.

37
38 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
39 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 35-2-3.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Muslim Student Association;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The speaker, Abu Usamah Atthahabi of Peoria, Illinois, has his B.S.C. in African
14 American History, B.S.C in Arabic language, and B.S.C in Islamic Tradition and
15 Ideology;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The speaker’s topic will be “What makes Islam Different?” This lecture will be
18 April 3, 2003, in the KSU Student Union; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
21 follows:

22
23 Project 1- Honorarium for Abu Usamah Atthahabi to come and speak on April
24 3,2003. Promotions for this event will advertise this activity in flyers and the
25 Collegian.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$600.00	\$600.00
Promotions	\$150.00	\$150.00
Gas	\$200.00	\$0.00
TOTAL	\$950.00	\$750.00

26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$750.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 the account #4-90031 of the Muslim Student Association.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 39-1.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 African Student Union;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** This event will be a cultural experience to share characteristics of African heritage
14 with members of the KSU community;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The African Student Union will rent the Houston ballroom to share a night of
17 music and culture with Kansas State University students; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1- Rental of Space and Equipment for the Houston ballroom. Promotions
23 to advertise this events to students through flyers and the Collegian.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Rent of Space	\$250.00	\$250.00
Equipment	\$400.00	\$400.00
Food	\$500.00	\$0.00
Drinks	\$200.00	\$0.00
Promotions	\$50.00	\$150.00
TOTAL	\$1400.00	\$700.00

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$700.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 the account #4-90014 of the African Student Union.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 African Student Union;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The African Student Union would like to travel to the Nelson-Atkins Museum in
14 Kansas City, Missouri;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** These students will be traveling to participate in a workshop on the Art of the
17 Lega: Meaning and Metaphor in Central Africa and lectures on the myth and
18 rituals in modern art; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
21 follows:

22
23 Project 1- Travel and registration for the African Student Union to attend a
24 workshop at the Nelson-Atkins Museum in Kansas City.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Lodging	\$600.00	\$300.00
Gas	\$60.00	\$0.00
Car Rental	\$200.00	\$0.00
Museum Fees	\$220.00	\$220.00
TOTAL	\$1020.00	\$520.00

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$520.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 the account #4-90014 of the African Student Union.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-0.**

2
3
4
5
6
7 **BY:** Privilege Fee Committee

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The amount of Privilege Fees collected during Fiscal Year 2003 will be less than
10 the amount of Privilege Fees allocated under contract for Fiscal Year 2003; and

11
12 **WHEREAS,** There needs to be better communication between the Privilege Fee Committee
13 and the Kansas State University Controller’s Office concerning the exact dollar
14 amounts that SGA is under contract;

15
16 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

17
18 **SECTION 1. KSU SGA by-laws to the constitution Article V, Section 9.G.3 shall be**
19 **amended to read:**

- 20
21 3. Review of Privilege Fees and Issues of Long-Range Financial Planning.
22 Privilege Fees are line-item fees collected as part of the tuition and fees paid by
23 students and are established and reviewed by Student Senate based on analysis
24 from Privilege Fee Committee, and are subject to the approval of the Kansas
25 Board of Regents.
- 26 a. Privilege Fee Reviews. Privilege Fee Committee shall conduct fee reviews
27 and set fees for a three year cycle. The committee may request reports
28 from privilege fee recipients in years that their fee is not being reviewed.
29 Any breach of the agreement/contract between the Kansas State University
30 Student Governing Association and the privilege fee recipient shall result
31 in automatic review of the fee by the Privilege Fee Committee. In
32 situations not outlined in the agreement/contract, the Privilege Fee
33 Committee may review a fee at any time by a majority vote of those
34 committee members selected and qualified. Any member of the Kansas
35 State University Student Governing Association may request that a fee
36 be reviewed out of cycle at any time. Bonds may be collected for a
37 duration of longer than three years. If during the year of a fee review, no
38 funding bill is passed for an agency under review, or if any party of a fee
39 agreement fail to sign the agreement, then the fee shall be terminated at the
40 end of the current fiscal year, unless other provisions have been adopted.
 - 41 b. Long-Range Financial Planning. Any issues of long-range financial
42 planning relating to student fee monies, the SGA budget, or serving the
43 student body shall be considered by Privilege Fee Committee.
- 44

1 *c. Upon completion of a each fiscal year review, the Privilege Fee*
2 *Committee shall submit to the Kansas State University Controller's*
3 *office a complete list of contracted amounts of all privilege fees for that*
4 *fiscal year, and all future fiscal years where available.*

5
6 *e. d.* Privilege fee and long-range planning information shall be made public as
7 soon as conveniently possible.

8 *d. e.* Funding Partnerships. In the case where the State of Kansas and the KSU
9 students engage in a funding partnership such as a matching grant,
10 Privilege Fee Committee shall be responsible annually to review how the
11 funds are being spent and the effectiveness of those expenses on
12 improving student life. ~~Privilege Fee Committee shall then submit a~~
13 ~~report to the appropriate university official concerning spending~~
14 ~~recommendations for the next fiscal year.~~

15
16 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
17 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

2 **STATUTES AMENDMENT REMOVING**
3 **REGISTRATION FEE FOR STUDENT ORANIZATIONS**

4 **BY:** MaryElizabeth Kasper, Laurie Quaife, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Erica Smith

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Student Organizations registering with the Office of Student Activities and Services are
7 required to pay a \$5.00 fee;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The \$5.00 fee was approved on the schedule of charges by the controller’s office to
10 offset the cost of printing “The Source”;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** “The Source” is now available on-line and is no longer printed for distribution;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** The \$5.00 fee can no longer be used for its appropriate purpose; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The Campus Activities Board finds it is in the best interest of student organizations and
17 the Office of Student Activities and Services to remove the fee from the requirements for
18 a student organization to register;

19
20 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

21
22 **SECTION 1.** Section 07-0401 B. of the KSU-SGA Statutes be amended to read as follows:

23
24 B. Registration

- 25 1. Organizations requesting registration shall submit a completed registration form ~~and~~
26 ~~a \$5.00 registration fee~~ to the Office of Student Activities and Service.
- 27 2. Previously registered organizations must also have a current copy of their
28 Constitution on file in the Office of Student Activities and Services. New organizations
29 shall be recognized for sixty (60) days from the time that registration is requested to
30 submit a Constitution with the office.
- 31 3. The Coordinator of the Office of Student Activities and Services or designee, who
32 shall serve as the Activities Director, shall check forms for completeness and
33 compliance with University rules and regulations.
- 34 4. The Activities Director shall have the authority to register, deny registration, require
35 additional information, or require corrective actions be taken by organizations
36 requesting registration.
- 37 5. A copy of the registration form shall be provided to the Allocations Committee for
38 classification of registered organizations.
- 39 6. All registered organizations shall be required to renew registration annually.
40 Registered organizations shall submit a completed registration form ~~and a \$5.00~~
41 ~~registration fee~~ to the Office of Student Activities and Services between the dates of
42 March 25 - April 26. Failure to register by the required date may result in loss of
43 services provided to registered organizations.
- 44 7. Registered organizations shall submit an up-to-date roster of all members to the
45 Office of Student Activities and Services at the end of the first semester of the
46 academic year.

47
48 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 6TH, 2003,**
49 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 41-0.**
50

1 **BILL 02/03/74**

2 **FY 2003 ALLOCATION TO**
3 **ASIAN AMERICAN STUDENT UNION**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
6 Asian American Student Union;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
9 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
10 group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Asian American Student Union will be planning activities for their heritage
13 month including their “Taste of Asia” activity, films and a Tae-Kwan-Do
14 demonstration;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** During their heritage month, the film “Enter the Dragon” will be shown on March
17 25th in Forum Hall at 7:00 p.m.; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1 - Promotions, Honorarium for Demonstration, and films for Asian
23 Heritage Month:

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Taste of Asia	\$350.00	\$0.00
AASU T-Shirts	\$200.00	\$0.00
Films	\$1,200.00	\$600.00
Advertising	\$150.00	\$150.00
Honorarium	\$100.00	\$100.00
TOTAL	\$2,000.00	\$850.00

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$850.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 account #4-90063 of the Asian American Student Union.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-0.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Honesty and Integrity Peer Educators (H.I.P.E.);

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** H.I.P.E. has sponsored an Integrity Week for the past two years;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** This will be the first year that H.I.P.E. will be working with the Student
16 Governing Association Judicial System to create an Integrity and Responsibility
17 Week; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1- Mike Adams, former principal of Piper High School, will give a speech
23 on April 14, 2003, in Forum Hall, giving examples of real world integrity and
24 principles in action.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$600.00	\$600.00
Promotions	\$50.00	\$50.00
TOTAL	\$650.00	\$650.00

25
26
27
28
29
30
31 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

32
33 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$650.00 for the activities described.

34
35 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
36 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
37 the account #4-90124 of H.I.P.E.

38
39 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
40 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Honesty and Integrity Peer Educators (H.I.P.E.)

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Center for Academic Integrity (CAI) Annual Conference is being held in
14 October, 2003, in San Diego, California, and H.I.P.E. is sending two students to
15 this year’s CAI conference;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** H.I.P.E. has been sending student members to the CAI conference for the past two
18 years;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The first students who attended became Honor Council members and subsequent
21 student attendees have brought back constructive ideas for improving their peer
22 education system at Kansas State University; and

23
24 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
25 follows:

26
27 Project 1 - Travel to the 2003 Center for Academic Integrity Annual Conference:

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Travel	\$200.00	\$200.00
TOTAL	\$200.00	\$200.00

28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$200.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
38 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
39 account #4-90124 of H.I.P.E.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-0.**
43

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 International Coordinating Council;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** International Week is aimed at promoting awareness of the diversity of the Kansas State
13 University campus and bringing together students from all nationalities to teach cultural
14 understanding;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** International Week has been an annual event for more than 25 years and the expected
17 participation for this year’s April 14 - 19 festival is 60 to 100 students;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The schedule of events includes an international cultural exhibition, fashion show, panel
20 discussion concerning war, festival of talents, two martial arts demonstrations, and a
21 potluck picnic; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
24 follows:

25
26 Project 1 - International Coordinating Council - 2003 International Week events:

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$260.30	\$260.30
Honorarium	\$350.00	\$350.00
Equipment Rental	\$265.00	\$265.00
TOTAL	\$875.30	\$875.30

27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$875.30 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
39 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to account #4-
40 90300 of the International Coordinating Council.

41
42 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
43 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-0.**

1 **BILL 02/03/78**

2 **FY 2004 ALLOCATION TO**
3 **SEXUAL HEALTH AWARENESS**
4 **PEER EDUCATORS (S.H.A.P.E.)**

5 **BY:** Allocations Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
8 Sexual Health Awareness Peer Educators (S.H.A.P.E.);

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
11 organizations-s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by
12 this group;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** Six students will be traveling to Washington, D.C. for the Peer Educator Activity
15 Conference on November 13-16, 2003; and

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
18 follows:

19
20 Project 1- Travel to the Peer Educator Activity Conference in Washington, D.C.

21
22

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
23 Travel	\$5300.00	\$600.00
24 TOTAL	\$5300.00	\$600.00

25

26 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

27
28 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$600.00 for the activity described.

29
30 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
31 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the account # 4-
32 90123 of the Sexual Health Awareness Peer Educators (S.H.A.P.E.).

33
34 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
35 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-0.**

2
3 **BY:** Allocations Committee

4
5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
6 Amnesty International;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization,
9 the organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by
10 this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** William Schulz, executive director of Amnesty International USA, will be
13 coming to speak on human rights as part of the Lou Douglas Lecture Series;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** As a part of his visit, he would like to go a separate workshop with the local
16 amnesty chapter;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Schulz will be here in September, 2003 to give both presentations, and students
19 will have a chance to have a more personal discussion in the separate session
20 offered by the local Amnesty chapter; and

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
23 follows:

24
25 Project 1- Honorarium fee for William Schulz to come and do a separate
26 workshop with the local Amnesty International chapter.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$1,000.00	\$500.00
TOTAL:	\$1,000.00	\$500.00

27
28
29
30
31
32 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

33
34 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$500.00 for the activities described.

35
36 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
37 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
38 the account 4-90021 of Amnesty International.

39
40 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 27TH, 2003,**
41 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 27-11-3.**

1 **BILL 02/03/80**

**FY 2004 ALLOCATIONS FOR
INSTITUTIONAL SERVICES**

2
3 **BY:** Allocations Committee

4
5 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
6 Institutional Services;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Institutional Services provide Kansas State University students with many
9 benefits and services that enhance their opportunities to receive educational
10 experiences outside of the classroom; and

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by the Institutional Services and the funding
13 recommendations made are as follows:

14 Project 1-FY 2004-Institutional Services allocations

		Request	Recommendation
17			
18	4-90510 UFM	\$15,205.00	\$14,764.50
19	4-90540 Women's Center	<u>\$16,000.00</u>	<u>\$10,814.50</u>
20	TOTAL:	\$31,205.00	\$25,579.00

21
22
23 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

24
25 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$25,579.00 for the activities described.

26
27 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
28 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account #4-
29 90560 to the respective accounts of the Institutional Services listed above.

30
31 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
32 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Academic Competition Teams;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee considered the extraordinary contributions the Academic
10 Competition Teams make to the reputation of Kansas State University throughout the
11 United States;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Academic Competition Teams have a solid record of not only participating in
14 but winning many of the events they attend; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by the Academic Competition Teams and the funding
17 recommendations made are as follows:

18
19 Project 1- FY 2004 Academic Competition Teams Allocations

		Request	Recommendation
21			
22	4-90005 Agriculture Competition Teams	\$30,000	\$29,500
23	4-90056 Quarter-Scale Tractor Team	\$6,000	\$4,500
24	4-90137 Aero Design Team	\$1,000	\$1,000
25	4-90133 Formula Design Team	\$1,000	\$1,000
26	4-90134 Mini Baja Team 1	\$1,000	\$1,000
27	4-90136 Mini Baja Team 2	\$1,000	\$1,000
28	4-90438 Speech Unlimited	\$11,418	\$8,000
29	4-90128 Phi Beta Lambda	\$7,925	\$3,000
30	4-90099 Environmental Design Team	\$2,410	\$500
31	4-90149 Solar Car Racing Team	<u>\$2,700</u>	<u>\$2,500</u>
32	TOTAL:	\$64,453	\$52,000

33
34 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

35
36 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$52,000 for the activities described.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
39 \$6,768.34 shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account
40 #4-90560 to the account #4-90005 of the Academic Competition Teams Reserve Account,
41 and the funds listed above shall be transferred from the Academic Competition Teams
42 Reserve Account to the respective accounts of each Academic Competition Team listed
43 above.

44
45 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
46 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**
47

2
3
4 **BY:** John O'Hara and MaryElizabeth Kasper

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Legal Services Board was created to oversee the operation and
7 implementation of Legal Services in all policy matters;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Student Attorney is now overseen by the Coordinator of Student Activities
10 and Services;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Coordinator of Student Activities observes the Student Attorney daily and is
13 capable of reviewing the Attorney's performance; and

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The Legal Services Board is no longer needed to evaluate the legal services
16 offered by the Office of Student Activities and Services and therefore no longer
17 has a purpose;

18
19 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

20
21 **SECTION 1.** Section 07-05 of the KSU-SGA Statutes are hereby repealed.

22
23 **SECTION 2.** All remaining sections be renumbered accordingly.

24
25 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
26 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-1.**
27
28

2 **BY-LAWS AMENDMENT TO ACADEMIC**
3 **AFFAIRS STANDING COMMITTEE’S DUTIES**

4 **BY:** John O’Hara, Travis Stryker, Seth Bridge, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd
5 Kohman

6
7 **WHEREAS,** Last spring the Kansas Board of Regents directed that additional FY 2003 tuition
8 revenues be used for enhancements rather than replacing state general funds;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** The increase in tuition at Kansas State University for FY 2004 will generate
11 approximately \$10 million additional revenue;
12

13 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University needs to fulfill its obligations to the students and designate a
14 large portion of the increased tuition revenue for FY 2004 towards visible, student-
15 centered enhancements;
16

17 **WHEREAS,** The use of tuition money directly relates to academics at the university and any plans for
18 its use should be overseen by the Academic Affairs Standing Committee; and
19

20 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University needs to develop its own four-year tuition increase investment
21 plan;
22

23 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

24
25 **SECTION 1.** The KSU-SGA By-Laws Article V Section 9.I be amended to read as follows:
26

27 I. Academic Affairs & University Relations Standing Committee shall be responsible for all
28 academic issues on campus and the maintenance of good relations between Kansas State
29 University faculty and the Student Governing Association. The Committee shall:
30

- 31 1. Initiate any programs, activities or projects it may deem necessary for the general
32 academic welfare and benefit of the Kansas State University student body.
- 33 2. Bridge the information gap between students and the Kansas State University
34 academic infrastructure.
- 35 3. *In cooperation with the Executive Committee and University Administration, discuss,*
36 *develop, and maintain a plan to invest tuition increases in student-centered university*
37 *enhancements. The committee shall review and establish priorities for the enhancements*
38 *annually in cooperation with the Executive Committee and University Administration.*
- 39 4. Strive to maintain the high quality of education in the Kansas State University
40 classrooms.
- 41 5. Provide an avenue of communication between the faculty and the Kansas State
42 University student body.

43
44 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 27TH, 2003,**
45 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 40-0-1.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Senate Operations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Recent changes to the SGA Elections Regulations Code have made older guidelines
7 unnecessary;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** SGA elections are no longer held in the Kansas State Student Union;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Current regulations restrict valuable campaign activity; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Amending the current SGA Elections Regulations Code will promote greater student,
14 candidate and SGA interaction.

15
16 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

17
18 **SECTION 1.** Chapter 41 of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association Statutes be
19 amended as follows:

20
21 41-0132 Time Limits

- 22 a. Campaign Materials. Items listed in 41-0134 and 41-0136 may be displayed after
- 23 5:00 p.m. on the Tuesday of the week immediately prior to the Primary Election.
- 24 b. Tables. Tables may be established by the Primary Election candidates *beginning on the*
- 25 *Thursday immediately prior to the Primary Elections. Tables may be established by all General*
- 26 *Election candidates beginning on the Thursday immediately prior to the General Elections. All*
- 27 *tables are to be removed following the completion of their respective elections. No table is to be*
- 28 *placed or staffed during weekends. ~~during the~~*
- 29 ~~Thursday, Friday, and Monday immediately prior to the Primary Election and by~~
- 30 ~~candidates for any office during the Thursday, Friday, and Monday immediately prior to~~
- 31 ~~the General Election.~~ Tables may only be set up in the Student Union in accordance
- 32 with Union Governing Board policy and must be staffed at all times when in use.

33
34 41-0133 Election Day Activities

- 35 a. Distance Requirement. No person may actively campaign inside ~~of the Student Union~~
- 36 ~~or a~~ University Computing Lab or within twenty (20) feet in front of the doors of ~~the~~
- 37 ~~Student Union or a~~ University Computing Lab.
- 38 b. Exception. It shall not be considered a violation for a voter to wear passive campaign
- 39 material, in the form of a shirt, sticker, or other item, in the vicinity of the polls, or while
- 40 voting, so long as that individual is not loitering.
- 41 c. Authority. Poll workers shall have the authority to make determinations of loitering or
- 42 campaigning under 41-0133(a).

43
44 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 27TH, 2003,**
45 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 39-1-1.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the Queer
7 Straight Alliance;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this group;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Robert Minor will be speaking on “Understanding Homophobia and Understanding
13 Gender.” Dr. Minor is a professor of religious studies at the University of Kansas;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The educational benefit of the Coming Out Day Conference is to provide the KSU
16 campus an opportunity for education and enlightenment on issues such as sexual
17 orientation, coming out, religion and spirituality, health, unique legal issues, health
18 relationships, gender stereotyping, homophobia, and historical perspectives of gay,
19 lesbian, bisexual, and transgendered people; and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
22 follows:

23
24 Project 1- Coming Out Day to be held on October 11th, 2003-honorarium for Dr. Minor,
25 workshop presenters, and film.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Honorarium	\$600.00	\$600.00
Honorarium	\$200.00	\$200.00
Film	\$200.00	\$200.00
TOTAL	\$1,000.00	\$1,000.00

26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$1,000.00 for the activities described.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President, these
38 funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to the account
39 #4-90095 of the Queer Straight Alliance.

40
41 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,**
42 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 42-0.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 American Red Cross Club;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The club would like to make cards that have safety numbers to pass out to
14 students at various locations in the Union and at Red Cross events;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** These cards would also direct students to the American Red Cross Club’s website
17 where they could get more information on tenant safety; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
20 follows:

21
22 Project 1- Funding to make these cards to hand out to students.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
Promotions	\$225.00	\$225.00
TOTAL	\$225.00	\$225.00

23
24
25
26
27
28 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

29
30 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$225.00 for the activity described.

31
32 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
33 these funds shall be transferred from the Reserves for Contingencies Account to
34 the account #4-90131 of the American Red Cross Club.

35
36 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 27TH, 2003,**
37 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 35-3.**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Table Tennis Club;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from this organization, the
10 organization’s spending trends, and the past funding of projects submitted by this
11 group;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Two club members will be traveling to compete at the ACUI Nationals
14 Tournament held at Pennsylvania State University, March 27 through March 31;
15 and

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The funds requested by this group and the funding recommendations made are as
18 follows:

19
20 Project 1- ACUI Nationals Tournament held at Pennsylvania State University.

	<u>Request</u>	<u>Recommendation</u>
21 Transportation	\$450.00	\$0.00
22 Lodging	\$350.00	\$350.00
23 Registration	\$200.00	\$200.00
24 TOTAL	\$1,000.00	\$550.00

25
26
27
28 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

29
30 **SECTION 1.** Project 1 is allocated \$550.00 for the activity described.

31
32 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
33 these funds shall be transferred from the Sports Clubs Reserves Account #4-
34 90098 to the account #4-90119 of the KSU Table Tennis Club.

35
36 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 27TH, 2003,**
37 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 41-0.**

2 **SPORTS CLUB ORGANIZATION**
3 **ALLOCATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2004**

4 **BY:** Allocations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee received and reviewed the allocations requests of the
7 Sports Club Organizations at Kansas State University;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has reviewed past requests from each respective
10 Sports Club, their respective spending trends, and the amount of fund-raising in
11 relation to their total budget; and

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Committee has invested a great deal of time in determining
14 allocations that are representative of the relative financial requirements of each
15 Sports Club Organization;

16
17 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

18
19 **SECTION 1.** Funds are allocated to each of the Sports Club Organizations for Fiscal Year 2004
20 as follows:

21			
22	4-90066	Rodeo Club	\$11,000.00
23	4-90068	Men’s Rugby Team	\$1,800.00
24	4-90100	Sailing Club	\$1,100.00
25	4-90101	Men’s Volleyball Team	\$1,900.00
26	4-90104	Wrestling Team	\$3,500.00
27	4-90106	Men’s Soccer Team	\$4,000.00
28	4-90108	Women’s Soccer Team	\$3,500.00
29	4-90109	Roller Hockey Club	\$6,000.00
30	4-90111	Parachute Club	\$1,700.00
31	4-90112	Kansas State Rowing Assn. (Men’s Crew)	\$6,000.00
32	4-90115	Water Ski Team	\$2,600.00
33	4-90069	Women’s Rugby	\$1,500.00
34	4-90073	Women’s Softball	\$2,000.00
35	4-90064	Ultimate Frisbee Club	\$1,550.00
36	4-90067	Swim Club	\$1,500.00
37	4-90098	Table Tennis Club	\$100.00
38	4-90102	Women’s Volleyball Club	\$2,000.00
39	4-90103	Men’s Lacrosse Club	\$7,500.00
40	4-90114	Cycling Club	\$1,800.00
41			
42		TOTAL SPORTS CLUB ALLOCATIONS	\$61,050.00
43			
44			
45			

1 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage by the Student Senate and signature of the Student Body President,
2 these funds shall be transferred from the Sports Club Reserve Account #4-90119
3 to each of the respective sports club accounts listed above.
4

5 **THIS BILL PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 27TH, 2003,**
6 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 38-0.**
7
8

Table of Resolutions

Resolution 02/03/01	Approval of the Attorney General Nominee Interview Committee
Resolution 02/03/02	Commendation to Mark Norfleet
Resolution 02/03/03	Commendation to Julie Stilson
Resolution 02/03/04	Proclamation of Integrity Week
Resolution 02/03/05	Approval of New Student Senator
Resolution 02/03/06	Approval of Standing Committee Chairs and Secretary
Resolution 02/03/07	Approval of New Student Senator
Resolution 02/03/08	Commendation to Faculty Senate President Cia Verschelden
Resolution 02/03/09	Commendation to Kansas State University Speech Unlimited
Resolution 02/03/10	Support of Student Effort to Keep Higher Education a Priority in the State Budget
Resolution 02/03/11	Approval of Student Senate Parliamentarian
Resolution 02/03/12	Approval of Fine Arts Council Appointments
Resolution 02/03/13	Approval of Student Body President's Cabinet
Resolution 02/03/14	Approval of Educational Opportunity Fund Committee Appointments
Resolution 02/03/15	Approval of Union Governing Board Appointments
Resolution 02/03/16	Commendation to Dianne Urban
Resolution 02/03/17	Commendation to Recipients of 2002 Presidential Awards
Resolution 02/03/18	Approval of Attorney General
Resolution 02/03/19	Approval of University Committee Appointments
Resolution 02/03/20	Approval of Honor Council Appointments
Resolution 02/03/21	Approval of Fine Arts Council Funding Guidelines Changes
Resolution 02/03/22	Approval of Fine Arts Council Appointment
Resolution 02/03/23	Approval of New Student Senator
Resolution 02/03/24	Approval of New Student Senator
Resolution 02/03/25	Approval of Student Senate Interns
Resolution 02/03/26	Approval of University Committee Appointments
Resolution 02/03/27	Approval of Judicial Branch Appointment
Resolution 02/03/28	Approval of Judicial Branch Appointments
Resolution 02/03/29	Approval of Fine Arts Council Appointments
Resolution 02/03/30	Support for Student Union Restroom Renovation
Resolution 02/03/31	SGA Approval of Designation of Wildcat Walk to KSU ARH
Resolution 02/03/32	Approval of SafeRide Task Force Appointments
Resolution 02/03/33	Approval of KSDB Board Appointments
Resolution 02/03/34	Approval of Educational Opportunity Fund Appointment
Resolution 02/03/35	Approval of Athletic Ticket Sales Committee
Resolution 02/03/36	Resolution to Thank September 26th Meeting Hosts
Resolution 02/03/37	Approval of New Student Senators
Resolution 02/03/38	Resolution to Modify Sales, Solicitation and Advertising Policy
Resolution 02/03/39	Resolution to Commend Alumni Association
Resolution 02/03/40	Approval of New Student Senator
Resolution 02/03/41	Approval of Recreational Services Council Appointment
Resolution 02/03/42	Resolution to Thank Voter Registration Sponsors
Resolution 02/03/43	Resolution to Support Pack the Library Night: Rally for Higher Education

Resolution 02/03/44 Student Senate Recommendations for the Disbursement of the City/University
Resolution 02/03/45 Commendation to Senator William L. Muir
Resolution 02/03/46 Resolution to Improve Air Quality on the K-State Campus
Resolution 02/03/47 Resolution to Support Principles of Community at Oklahoma State University
Resolution 02/03/48 Student Senate Recommendations for the Disbursement of the City/University
Resolution 02/03/49 Commendation to Dr. Frank Tracz
Resolution 02/03/50 Resolution to Thank "Pack the Library Night" Featured Guests
Resolution 02/03/51 Resolution to Thank "Pack the Library Night: Rally for Higher Education"
Resolution 02/03/52 Resolution to Commend KSU 2002 Crop Judging Team
Resolution 02/03/53 Resolution to Commend Kyle Cott
Resolution 02/03/54 Resolution to Commend JJ Jones
Resolution 02/03/55 Resolution to Thank the Library Staff and Administration
Resolution 02/03/56 Amendments to Senate Standing Rules
Resolution 02/03/57 Approval of Elections Commissioner
Resolution 02/03/58 Approval of Standing Committee Chair
Resolution 02/03/59 Approval of New Student Senators
Resolution 02/03/60 Approval of Elections Review Committee Members
Resolution 02/03/61 Approval of Elections Review Committee Chair and Judicial Members
Resolution 02/03/62 Resolution to Amend Standing Rules
Resolution 02/03/63 Resolution to Honor Astronauts of Space Shuttle Columbia
Resolution 02/03/64 Resolution to Commend Ben Champion
Resolution 02/03/65 Resolution to Place Smoking Policy Change Plebiscite Questions on the
Resolution 02/03/66 Resolution for a Safer Housing Week
Resolution 02/03/67 Resolution to Support the Global Education Initiative
Resolution 02/03/68 Resolution for Higher Education
Resolution 02/03/69 Resolution to Strongly Encourage Faculty Use of K-State Online
Resolution 02/03/70 Resolution to Strongly Encourage Kansas State University Administration to
Resolution 02/03/71 Approval of 2003 SGA Election Results
Resolution 02/03/72 Approval of New Student Senator
Resolution 02/03/73 Resolution to Thank City of Manhattan Code Services
Resolution 02/03/74 Honorary Naming of the Student Union Plaza Area
Resolution 02/03/75 Resolution to Commend Jennyfer Owensby
Resolution 02/03/76 Resolution to Commend LaToya Kennedy
Resolution 02/03/77 Commendation to 2002-2003 Student Senate and Student Senate Interns
Resolution 02/03/78 Commendation to Student Senate Standing Committee Chairs, Election
Resolution 02/03/79 Commendation to Attorney General
Resolution 02/03/80 Commendation to Student Senate Chair and Student Senate Vice Chairs
Resolution 02/03/81 Commendation to Student Body President and Student Body Vice President
Resolution 02/03/82 Resolution to Commend Gayle Spencer
Resolution 02/03/83 Approval of Honor Council Appointment

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/01**

**APPROVAL OF THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL
NOMINEE INTERVIEW
COMMITTEE**

2
3
4
5
6 **BY:** Tara Hull and Matt Wolters

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Article V, Section 8 of the KSU SGA By-Laws provides for the creation of the
9 Attorney General Nominee Interview Committee;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** the Attorney General shall appoint three members of the Judicial Branch and the
12 Chair of Student Senate shall appoint six Student Senators to the Committee,
13 subject to the approval of Student Senate; and

14
15 **WHEREAS,** the Attorney General Nominee Interview Committee must be appointed at the first
16 Student Senate meeting of the term;

17
18 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** The following Judicial Board members and Student Senators be approved as
21 members of the Attorney General Nominee Interview Committee:

22
23 Shelly Anderson, Chancellor of Student Tribunal
24 Chris Haynes, Chair of Student Review Board, or designee
25 Brian Glick, Marlatt Hall Judicial Board Associate Justice
26 Delvin Higginson, Student Senator
27 Mary Elizabeth Kasper, Student Senator
28 Kari Krier, Student Senator
29 Sarah Sourk, Student Senator
30 Jeremy Stohs, Student Senator
31 Travis Stryker, Student Senator

32
33 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
34 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 4TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/02**

**COMMENDATION TO
MARK NORFLEET**

2
3
4
5 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, and all Student Senators

6
7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Barry M. Goldwater Scholarship, awarded to students of science, math, or
9 engineering, is a prestigious award that recognizes undergraduate students who
10 plan a career in research;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Mark Norfleet was selected as a member of the 2002 class of Goldwater Scholars;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** Mark Norfleet, the 44th K-State student to receive this award since its inception in
15 1989, deserves recognition for his part in continuing K-State's tradition of leading
16 the nation's public universities in Goldwater Scholarship recipients; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** This scholarship recognizes Mark's continued diligent work on researching the
19 properties of strong divisibility sequences and his goal to earn a Ph.D. in
20 mathematics;

21
22 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

23
24 **SECTION 1.** Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends Mark
25 Norfleet on his selection as a Barry M. Goldwater Scholar and wishes him the
26 best in pursuing his career goals researching and instructing mathematics at the
27 university level.

28
29 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution shall be sent to Mark Norfleet, his parents Charles and
30 Rhonda Norfleet, Provost James Coffman, and President Jon Wefald upon
31 passage.

32
33
34 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT**
35 **SENATE BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 11TH , 2002.**

4
5 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, and all Student Senators

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The Barry M. Goldwater Scholarship, awarded to students of science, math, or
8 engineering, is a prestigious award that recognizes undergraduate students who
9 plan a career in research;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Julie Stilson was selected as a member of the 2002 class of Goldwater Scholars;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Julie Stilson, the 45th K-State student to receive this award since its inception in
14 1989, deserves recognition for her part in continuing K-State's tradition of
15 leading the nation's public universities in Goldwater Scholarship recipients;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** This scholarship recognizes Julie's continued diligent work on researching
18 algorithms applied to Bayesian Networks; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** Julie has also served Kansas State through her involvement as an Enhanced
21 University Experience lab instructor, assisting students with College and
22 Intermediate Algebra;

23
24 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

25
26 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends Julie
27 Stilson on her selection as a Barry M. Goldwater Scholar and wishes her the best
28 in pursuing her career goals researching artificial intelligence and serving as a
29 university professor.

30
31 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution shall be sent to Julie Stilson, her parents Evelyn and
32 Mickey Stilson, Provost James Coffman, and President Jon Wefald upon passage.

33
34
35 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT**
36 **SENATE BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 11TH , 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/04**

**PROCLAMATION OF
INTEGRITY WEEK**

2
3
4 **BY:** Vicki Conner and Zac Cook

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Academic integrity, which is presumed to mean that "...in academic matters one's
7 work is performed honestly and without unauthorized aid," should be a foundation
8 of the collegiate educational experience;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University initiated an Undergraduate Honor System based on
11 personal integrity in 1999;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Students and faculty alike need to be reminded of the importance of integrity and
14 informed of the implications of academic dishonesty;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Honesty and Integrity Peer Educators (HIPE) is a student organization that works
17 to educate the campus community about the Honor System; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** HIPE members have planned a number of activities for the week of April
20 15 through April 19, 2002, to promote integrity at K-State;

21
22 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

23
24 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association proclaims the week
25 of April 15 through April 19, 2002, as Integrity Week and encourages K-State
26 students and faculty to address the issue of academic integrity.

27
28 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be sent to President Jon Wefald; Provost James
29 Coffman; Dr. Marc A. Johnson, Dean of the College of Agriculture; Dennis L.
30 Law, Dean of the College of Architecture, Planning and Design; Dr. Stephen
31 White, Interim Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences; Dr. Yar M. Ebadi, Dean
32 of the College of Business Administration; Dr. Michael C. Holen, Dean of the
33 College of Education; Terry King, Dean of the College of Engineering; Dr. Carol
34 Kellett, Dean of the College of Human Ecology; Dr. Dennis Kuhlman, Dean of
35 the College of Technology and Aviation; Dr. Ralph C. Richardson, Dean of the
36 College of Veterinary Medicine; Phil Anderson, Director of the Undergraduate
37 Honor System; and Dr. Helene Marcoux, Associate Director of the Undergraduate
38 Honor System.

39
40 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT**
41 **SENATE BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 11TH , 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/05**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATOR

2
3 **BY:** Matt Wolters

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There is a vacancy in the office of Student Senator for the College of Engineering;
6 and

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Ross Stutterheim was the next highest vote getter in the College of Engineering;

9
10 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

11
12 **SECTION 1.** Ross Stutterheim be approved as Student Senator for the College of Engineering.

13
14 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT**
15 **SENATE BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 11TH , 2002.**

4 **BY:** John O’Hara and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** It is necessary to appoint and ratify the chairs of Student Senate standing
7 committees and the Student Senate Secretary;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** These positions were adequately advertised;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Applications and interviews were made available to all students who showed
12 interest in the KSU Student Governing Association;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** There were 21 applicants for these seven positions; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** These seven individuals were chosen on the basis of their leadership ability,
17 experience, and dedication to serving K-State students throughout the coming
18 year;

19
20 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

21
22 **SECTION 1.** The following individuals be approved for their respective offices for the 2002-
23 2003 term:

24		
25	Seth T. Bridge	Academic Affairs and University Relations
26	Laurie Quaife	Allocations
27	Julie Quackenbush	Governmental Relations
28	Travis Stryker	Privilege Fee
29	Bill Harlan	Senate Operations
30	Eleri Griffin	Student Affairs & Social Services
31	Maggie Trambly	Student Senate Secretary
32		

33 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
34 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 18TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/07**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATOR

2
3 **BY:** Vicki Conner and John O'Hara

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There is a vacancy in the office of Student Senator for the College of Arts and
6 Sciences; and

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Leslie VanNordstrand had the next highest vote total in the College of Arts and
9 Sciences;

10
11 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

12
13 **SECTION 1.** Leslie VanNordstrand be approved as Student Senator for the College of Arts and
14 Sciences.

15
16 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
17 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 18TH, 2002.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/08

**COMMENDATION TO FACULTY SENATE
PRESIDENT CIA VERSCHELDEN**

BY: Danny Callahan and Zac Cook

WHEREAS, Faculty Senate President Cia Verschelden has continually listened to and encouraged the voices of Kansas State University students;

WHEREAS, Cia Verschelden has often taken the road less traveled by her peers in Faculty Senate by vocalizing unpopular viewpoints;

WHEREAS, In addition to her work in Faculty Senate, Cia Verschelden has devoted much time and effort as Associate Professor in the Department of Sociology, Anthropology, and Social Work; and

WHEREAS, Cia Verschelden has worked to increase communication between Student Senate, Faculty Senate, Classified Senate, the administration, the Kansas Board of Regents, and other educational institutions;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association expresses its thanks and gratitude to Cia Verschelden for her hard work and dedication to improving Kansas State University as Faculty Senate President.

SECTION 2. Upon passage of this resolution a copy be sent to President Jon Wefald; Provost James Coffman; Vice President Bob Krause; Head of the Department of Sociology, Anthropology, and Social Work Leonard Bloomquist; members of the Kansas State University Faculty Senate; and Faculty Senate President Cia Verschelden.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE
BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/09

**COMMENDATION TO
KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY
SPEECH UNLIMITED**

BY: Vicki Conner, Emily King, John O'Hara, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Lori Alexander, Lindsay Bathel, Matt Beaven, Kelli Benton, Suzanne Blakely, Nick Bowser, Tyler Breeden, Seth Bridge, Sheldon Bucl, Nasrina Burnett, Danny Callahan, Katherine Carter, Mick Charney, Yu Chen, Ryan Conway, Ryan Garret, Erin Green, Eleri Griffin, Essence Halliburton, Delvin Higginson, Eric Hoopingarner, Ali Karimi, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Brad Kingsley, Tanner Klingzell, Kari Krier, Amber Laferty, Damian Lair, Sam Meier, Emily Meissen, Bill Muir, Tammy Jo Osborn, Ben Procter, Lindsey Porter, Haley Prophet, Julie Quackenbush, Laurie Quaife, Abbie Rondeau, Kristine Sheedy, Erica Smith, Travis Smith, Sarah Sourk, Layne Stafford, Spencer Stelljes, Jeremy Stohs, Travis Stryker, Ross Stutterheim, Lisa Tirrell, Maggie Trambly, Haley Urkevich, Leslie VanNordstrand, Andrea Zimmer

WHEREAS, The Kansas State University Speech Unlimited team recently competed in the National Individual Events Tournament (NIET) at Bradley University in Peoria, Illinois;

WHEREAS, KSU Speech Unlimited team members won national championships in two of the twelve categories. Nathan Jackson won the Prose competition, and Rachel Potucek won the Communication Analysis competition;

WHEREAS, KSU Speech Unlimited is the only team in the nation to have multiple champions;

WHEREAS, KSU Speech Unlimited is one of only eight collegiate programs to have qualified students for the NIET every year since its inception 25 years ago;

WHEREAS, This is the first time a KSU team member has ever won the Prose competition;

WHEREAS, KSU has more NIET Communication Analysis titles than any other school; and

WHEREAS, KSU Speech Unlimited finished seventh overall at the NIET;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and congratulates the Kansas State University Speech Unlimited team on its seventh place finish at nationals.

SECTION 2. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association also commends and congratulates Nathan Jackson and Rachel Potucek for winning their respective national titles.

SECTION 3. A copy of this resolution be sent to President Jon Wefald; Head of the Department of Speech, Communication, Theatre and Dance David Procter; Speech Unlimited Head Coach Craig Brown; Kansas State University Speech Unlimited team members and assistant coaches; and the parents of Nathan Jackson and Rachel Potucek.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE
BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/10

**SUPPORT OF STUDENT EFFORT TO
KEEP HIGHER EDUCATION A PRIORITY
IN THE STATE BUDGET**

BY: Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Vicki Conner, John O’Hara, Lori Alexander, Lindsay Bathel, Matt Beaven, Kelli Benton, Suzanne Blakely, Nick Bowser, Tyler Breeden, Seth Bridge, Sheldon Bucl, Nasrina Burnett, Danny Callahan, Katherine Carter, Mick Charney, Yu Chen, Ryan Conway, Ryan Garret, Erin Green, Eleri Griffin, Essence Halliburton, Delvin Higginson, Eric Hoopingarner, Ali Karimi, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Brad Kingsley, Tanner Klingzell, Kari Krier, Amber Laferty, Damian Lair, Sam Meier, Emily Meissen, Bill Muir, Tammy Jo Osborn, Ben Procter, Lindsey Porter, Haley Prophet, Julie Quackenbush, Laurie Quaiife, Abbie Rondeau, Kristine Sheedy, Erica Smith, Travis Smith, Sarah Sourk, Layne Stafford, Spencer Stelljes, Jeremy Stohs, Travis Stryker, Ross Stutterheim, Lisa Tirrell, Maggie Trambly, Haley Urkevich, Leslie VanNordstrand, Andrea Zimmer

WHEREAS, The state of Kansas is currently facing a budget crisis, with the state debt exceeding \$700 million;

WHEREAS, Beginning April 23rd, discussion will begin on the budget in a joint House/Senate conference committee;

WHEREAS, Numerous proposals will be considered in the above mentioned conference committee;

WHEREAS, The possibility that higher education funding could be decreased is real;

WHEREAS, Kansas State University and each of the other Regents universities will experience detrimental effects if funding is indeed cut. Proposed cuts would undoubtedly have a negative impact on both academic and extracurricular programs throughout the University; and

WHEREAS, K-State Student Senators were elected by their peers to represent the students’ concerns;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association urges the Kansas Legislature either to maintain current funding levels or to increase funding for higher education.

SECTION 2. Student Senators shall begin a campaign to maintain higher education funding levels within the state budget. Each senator shall be responsible for contacting, either in writing or by telephone, the Representative from his/her home district and voicing the funding concerns.

SECTION 3. Student Senate encourages K-State students to make their voices heard by contacting their respective Representatives.

SECTION 4. A copy of this resolution be sent to Bill Graves, Governor of Kansas; Dave Kerr, Senate President; Lana Oleen, Senate Majority Leader; Anthony Hensley, Senate Minority Leader; Kent Glasscock, Speaker of the House; Sheri Weber, House Majority Leader; Jim Garner, House Minority Leader; Kenny Wilk, Appropriations Committee Chair; Dr. Jon Wefald, Kansas State University President; Bob Krause, Vice President of Institutional Advancement; and Tom Rawson, Vice President of Administration and Finance.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 18TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/11**

**APPROVAL OF STUDENT
SENATE PARLIAMENTARIAN**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O'Hara and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** It is necessary to appoint and ratify the Student Senate Parliamentarian;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The position of Student Senate Parliamentarian was adequately advertised in the
9 Collegian; and

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Applications were made available to all students who showed interest in the KSU
12 Student Governing Association;

13
14 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

15
16 **SECTION 1.** Chad Bontrager be approved as Student Senate Parliamentarian for the 2002-2003
17 term.

18
19 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
20 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

BY: John O’Hara and Vicki Conner

WHEREAS, The Student Body President and Student Senate Chair are required to make appointments to Fine Arts Council;

WHEREAS, The Council serves as an important function and plays an integral part in the funding strategy for the arts on campus; and

WHEREAS, All of these individuals meet the requirements for appointments set forth in the Kansas State University Fine Arts Council Constitution and By-Laws;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The following individual be approved as a member of the Fine Arts Council as appointed by the Student Body President:

Stuart Lovejoy

SECTION 2. The following individuals be approved as members of the Fine Arts Council as appointed by the Student Senate Chair:

Kari Krier
Spencer Stelljes

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/13**

**APPROVAL OF STUDENT BODY
PRESIDENT’S CABINET**

2
3
4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President must appoint a cabinet;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The positions on the Student Body President’s Cabinet were sufficiently
9 advertised; and

10
11 **WHEREAS,** The following individuals proved to be best qualified for their respective
12 positions;

13
14 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

15
16 **SECTION 1.** The following people be approved as members of the 2002-2003 Student Body
17 President’s Cabinet:

- | | | |
|----|------------------------------------|------------------|
| 18 | Chief of Staff | Emily King |
| 19 | Academic Quality Coordinator | Aaron Sloup |
| 20 | Adult Student Services Coordinator | Kim Bosco |
| 21 | College Council Coordinator | Jessica Shamet |
| 22 | Environmental Concerns Coordinator | Matt Steele |
| 23 | Governmental Relations Director | David McCandless |
| 24 | International Affairs Director | Josh Sturgis |
| 25 | Multicultural Affairs Director | Naureen Kazi |
| 26 | Off-Campus Housing Coordinator | Greg Prieb |
| 27 | On-Campus Housing Coordinator | Erin Slattery |
| 28 | Public Relations Director | Summer Alford |
| 29 | Student Life Coordinator | Megan Menagh |
| 30 | Technology Coordinator | Robert Sumners |

31
32
33
34 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT**
35 **SENATE ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/14**

2 **APPROVAL OF**
3 **EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY FUND**
4 **COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS**

5 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner
6

7 **WHEREAS,** Section 12-0101 of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association
8 Statutes requires the Student Senate Chair to appoint two Student Senators to the
9 Educational Opportunity Fund Committee;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Section 12-0101 of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association
12 Statutes requires the Student Body President to appoint four at-large members to
13 the Educational Opportunity Fund Committee;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** These appointments must be approved by the Student Senate;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Educational Opportunity Fund Committee positions were sufficiently advertised;
18 and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The following individuals proved to be the best qualified for their respective
21 positions;

22
23 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

24
25 **SECTION 1.** The following Student Senators appointed by the Student Senate Chair be
26 approved as members of the Educational Opportunity Fund Committee for the
27 2002-2003 term:

28
29 Erica Smith
30 MaryElizabeth Kasper
31

32 **SECTION 2.** The following individuals appointed by the Student Body President be approved
33 as members of the Educational Opportunity Fund Committee for the 2002-2003
34 term:

35
36 Kris Kellim
37 Missy Herron
38 Kim Freed
39 Luke Miller
40

41 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
42 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/15**

2 **APPROVAL OF**
3 **UNION GOVERNING BOARD**
4 **APPOINTMENTS**

5 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Senate Chair must appoint one Student Senate representative to the
7 Union Governing Board;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President must appoint a multicultural representative to the
10 Union Governing Board;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Student Senate Chair in consultation with the Vice Chair considered all
13 interested individuals; and

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President in consultation with the Vice President considered all
16 interested individuals;

17
18 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** Hayley Urkevich be approved as the Student Senate representative to the Union
21 Governing Board.

22
23 **SECTION 2.** Abryn Neal be approved as the multicultural representative to the Union
24 Governing Board.

25
26 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
27 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/16

**COMMENDATION TO
DIANNE URBAN**

BY: Office of Student Activities and Services Director Spencer, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Vicki Conner, John O'Hara, Lori Alexander, Lindsay Bathel, Matt Beaven, Kelli Benton, Suzanne Blakely, Nick Bowser, Tyler Breeden, Seth Bridge, Sheldon Bucl, Nasrina Burnett, Danny Callahan, Katherine Carter, Mick Charney, Yu Chen, Ryan Conway, Ryan Garret, Erin Green, Eleri Griffin, Essence Halliburton, Delvin Higginson, Eric Hoopingarner, Ali Karimi, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Brad Kingsley, Tanner Klingzell, Kari Krier, Amber Laferty, Damian Lair, Sam Meier, Emily Meissen, Bill Muir, Tammy Jo Osborn, Ben Procter, Lindsey Porter, Haley Prophet, Julie Quackenbush, Laurie Quaife, Abbie Rondeau, Kristine Sheedy, Erica Smith, Travis Smith, Sarah Sourk, Layne Stafford, Spencer Stelljes, Jeremy Stohs, Travis Stryker, Ross Stutterheim, Lisa Tirrell, Maggie Trambly, Haley Urkevich, Leslie VanNordstrand, Andrea Zimmer, Tara Hull, Emily King, Kim Bosco, Matt Steele, Josh Sturgis, Erin Slattery, Summer Alford, Aaron Sloup, David McCandless, Naureen M. Kazi, Greg Prieb, Megan Menagh, Robert Summers.

WHEREAS, The Kansas State University Student Attorney works to promote student rights by giving advice, drafting documents such as wills and contracts, and providing limited representation in litigation;

WHEREAS, As the K-State Student Attorney, Dianne Urban has devoted countless hours to the above mentioned responsibilities;

WHEREAS, Dianne served in this position for 19 years;

WHEREAS, Dianne has been a model of service for the K-State community;

WHEREAS, Dianne showed her caring personality by graciously giving holiday care packages to the student government leaders each year; and

WHEREAS, Dianne will retire from the Student Attorney position in the 2002-2003 academic year;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends Student Attorney Dianne Urban for her commitment of time and service to Kansas State University students and expresses its gratitude for her outstanding performance in office.

SECTION 2. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association wishes Dianne Urban the very best in her future endeavors.

SECTION 3. A copy of this resolution be sent to Dianne Urban, her husband Dr. James Urban, and their children upon passage.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MAY 2ND, 2002.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/17

**COMMENDATION TO RECIPIENTS
OF 2002 PRESIDENTIAL AWARDS**

BY: Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O'Hara, and Vicki Conner

WHEREAS, Each year President Jon Wefald honors outstanding Kansas State University faculty members with his Presidential Awards;

WHEREAS, Seven faculty members were selected to receive the 2002 awards from the more than 1,600 Kansas State University faculty members;

WHEREAS, The recipients of these awards have demonstrated exceptional commitment to the success of Kansas State University students;

WHEREAS, Amit Chakrabarti, Michael Davis, Deborah Murray, Chris Sorensen, and Scott Todd each received the 2002 Presidential Award for Outstanding Undergraduate Teaching;

WHEREAS, Sonny Ramaswamy received the 2002 Presidential Award for Outstanding Department Head; and

WHEREAS, Julie Katz received the 2002 Presidential Award for Outstanding Advisor;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and congratulates Amit Chakrabarti, Michael Davis, Deborah Murray, Chris Sorensen, Scott Todd, Sonny Ramaswamy, and Julie Katz, and expresses its thanks for their commitment to the excellence of Kansas State University.

SECTION 2. A copy of this resolution be sent to President Jon Wefald; Provost James Coffman; Vice President for Administration and Finance Tom Rawson; Vice President for Institutional Advancement Bob Krause; Dean of the College of Agriculture Marc A. Johnson; Dean of the College of Architecture, Planning and Design Dennis L. Law; Interim Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences Stephen White; Dean of the College of Business Administration Yar M. Ebadi; Dean of the College of Education Michael C. Holen; Dean of the College of Engineering Terry King; Dean of the College of Human Ecology Carol Kellett; Dean of the College of Technology and Aviation Dennis Kuhlman; Dean of the College of Veterinary Medicine Ralph C. Richardson; and Presidential Award Winners Amit Chakrabarti, Michael Davis, Julie Katz, Deborah Murray, Sonny Ramaswamy, Chris Sorensen, and Scott Todd.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE
BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MAY 2, 2002.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Attorney General is the head of the Judicial Branch of the KSU SGA;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The position of Attorney General was sufficiently advertised;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The KSU SGA By-Laws provide that the Attorney General Nominee Interview
11 Committee be composed of six student senators appointed by the Student Senate
12 Chair, and three judicial members appointed by the current Attorney General or
13 Chancellor of Student Tribunal;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The Attorney General Nominee Interview Committee was appointed by former
16 Student Senate Chair Matt Wolters and Attorney General Tara Hull; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The Attorney General Nominee Interview Committee met on April 22, 2002 and
19 recommended individual to the Student Body President for appointment as
20 Attorney General;

21
22 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

23
24 **SECTION 1.** John Graham be approved as Attorney General for the 2002-2003 term of office.

25
26 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
27 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON APRIL 25TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/19**

2 **APPROVAL OF UNIVERSITY**
3 **COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The following people have been selected by the Student Body Vice President in
7 consultation with the Student Body President to serve on university-wide
8 committees during the 2002-2003 term; and
9

10 **WHEREAS,** These appointments are subject to approval by Student Senate;

11
12 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

13
14 **SECTION 1.** The following individuals be approved to serve on the respective committees for
15 the 2002-2003 term:

16
17 Recreational Service Council

18 Thomas Stewart

19 Julie Wondra

20
21 Campus Recycling Advisory Committee

22 Beth Schild

23
24 Undergraduate Grievance Committee

25 Katie Luthi

26 Israel Stanage

27
28 Out-of-State Fee Appeals Board

29 Brent Felton

30
31 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
32 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MAY 2ND, 2002.**

2
3
4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Emily King, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body Vice President, in consultation with the Student Body
7 President, must appoint students to serve on the Honor Council;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Honor Council hears complaints of student academic dishonesty;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Student representation is vital for the Honor Council to represent student voice
12 and concern;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** These positions were sufficiently advertised, and applications were made
15 available to all interested students;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** There are vacancies on the Honor Council in the colleges of Education,
18 Engineering, Human Ecology, and Technology and Aviation; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The following appointments are subject to Student Senate approval;

21
22 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

23
24 **SECTION 1.** Jessica Shamet be approved as a member of the Honor Council for the College of
25 Education.

26
27 **SECTION 2.** Brent Depperschmidt be approved as a member of the Honor Council for the
28 College of Engineering.

29
30 **SECTION 3.** Valerie Landwehr be approved as a member of the Honor Council for the College
31 of Human Ecology.

32
33 **SECTION 4.** Terrance Thornton be approved as a member of the Honor Council for the College
34 of Technology and Aviation.

35
36 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
37 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MAY 2ND, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/21**

**APPROVAL OF FINE ARTS COUNCIL
FUNDING GUIDELINE CHANGES**

2
3
4 **BY:** Spencer Stelljes, John Ketchum, Mandy Achilles, Layne Stafford, Brandon
5 Kauffman
6

7 **WHEREAS,** Section 07-0118 of the KSU SGA Statutes states that amendments to the Fine
8 Arts Council Funding Guidelines must be approved by Student Senate;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** Fine Arts Council voted to amend its Funding Guidelines in April; and
11

12 **WHEREAS,** The proposed changes will improve and clarify the Fine Arts Council's allocating
13 process;
14

15 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** The following amendment to the Fine Arts Council Funding Guidelines,
18 contained in Section 07-0204 of the KSU SGA Statutes is hereby approved.
19

20 07-0204 Section I: Classification
21

22 Section I: Classification

- 23 A. Only student organizations which are classified as fine arts as per the
24 definition given by the FAC by the ~~University~~ *Campus* Activities Board
25 are eligible for funding.
26 B. After the funding classification of student organizations by the ~~University~~
27 *Campus* Activities Board, the FAC Chair may ask for re-classification of
28 any group whose main function is NOT Fine Art in nature by writing a
29 letter to said group and the ~~University~~ *Campus* Activities Board Chair
30 asking for clarification.
31

32 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
33 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MAY 2ND, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/22**

**APPROVAL OF FINE ARTS
COUNCIL APPOINTMENT**

2
3

4 **BY:** John O’Hara and Vicki Conner

5

6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President and Student Senate Chair are required to make
7 appointments to Fine Arts Council;

8

9 **WHEREAS,** The Council serves as an important function and plays an integral part in the funding
10 strategy for the arts on campus; and

11

12 **WHEREAS,** This individual meets the requirements for appointments set forth in the Kansas State
13 University Fine Arts Council Constitution and By-Laws;

14

15 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

16

17 **SECTION 1.** Brad Kingsley be approved as a member of the Fine Arts Council as appointed by the
18 Student Senate Chair.

19

20

21

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MAY 2ND, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/23**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATOR

2
3 **BY:** John O'Hara and Vicki Conner

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There is a vacancy in the office of Student Senator for the College of Arts and
6 Sciences; and

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Travis Weigel had the next highest vote total in the College of Arts and Sciences;

9
10 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

11
12 **SECTION 1.** Travis Weigel be approved as Student Senator for the College of Arts and
13 Sciences.

14
15
16 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
17 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 5TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/24**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATOR

2
3 **BY:** John O'Hara and Vicki Conner

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There is a vacancy in the office of Student Senator for the College of Business
6 Administration; and

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Mike Hart and Corbin Navis tied for the next highest vote total in the College of
9 Business Administration; and

10
11 **WHEREAS,** The College of Business Administration College Council voted to have Mike Hart
12 serve as the new Student Senator;

13
14 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

15
16 **SECTION 1.** Mike Hart be approved as Student Senator for the College of Business
17 Administration.

18
19
20 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
21 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 5TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/25**

**APPROVAL OF STUDENT
SENATE INTERNS**

2
3
4 **BY:** Amber Lafferty, Vicki Conner and Bill Harlan

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The position of Student Senate Intern was sufficiently advertised;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Sixty-nine applications for Student Senate Intern positions were received, and
9 thirty-six applicants were interviewed; and

10
11 **WHEREAS,** The selection process was conducted in accordance with the Kansas State
12 University Student Governing Association Constitution and By-Laws;

13
14 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

15
16 **SECTION 1.** The following individuals be approved as Student Senate Interns for the 2002-
17 2003 Student Senate term:

18
19 Anne Bianculli Sarah Laib
20 Stephanie Biggs Jeremy Long
21 Bronwyn Bridge Lindsay MacAdam
22 Regina Busse Casey Mattke
23 Whitney Coen Hannah Mueldener
24 Megan Connor Blair Reynolds
25 Abby Lynn Crow Tom Robison
26 Alison Darby Tricia Smith
27 Jason Heaser Aaron Starr
28 Bryce Huschka Suzanne Steffens
29 Kristin Kay Emilee Wallace
30 Katie Kennedy Mark Wichman
31 Kristin Kiehnhoff

32
33 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
34 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/26**

2 **APPROVAL OF UNIVERSITY**
3 **COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John Graham, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, Student Body Vice President, and the Student Senate
7 Chair are required to make appointments to University committees; and

8
9 **WHEREAS,** These appointments are subject to approval by Student Senate;

10
11 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

12
13 **SECTION 1.** The following individuals be approved to serve on the respective committees for
14 the 2002-2003 term:

- 15
16
17 3000 Academic Affairs Committee
18 Seth Bridge
- 19
20 3035 University Calendar Committee
21 Sheldon Bucl
- 22
23 3040 The University Library Committee
24 Monica Bergkamp
25 Kristopher Smalley
- 26
27 3050 The General Scholarship and Student Financial Aid Committee
28 Mandy Achilles
29 Sarah Baade
30 Katherine Luthi
- 31
32 7170 The Computer and Information Technology Advisory Committee
33 Michael Robbins
- 34
35 8020 University Committee on Governmental Issues
36 Seth Bridge
37 Vy Bui
38 Nick Flentie
39 David McCandless
40 Julie Quackenbush
41 Travis Stryker
- 42
43 8033 Intercollegiate Athletic Council
44 Vy Bui
45 Marc Merryman

- 1
2 8034 Information Resource Management Council
3 Jeremy Bielski
4
5 8038 Campus Recycling Advisory Committee
6 Joe Arb
7
8 8040 The Advisory Committee on Campus Development
9 Todd Kohman
10
11 8041 Council on Parking Operations
12 Michelle Bergman
13 Kelly Givens
14 Chris Greene
15
16
17 8042 Parking Citations Appeals Board
18 Natalie Gervis
19 Lindsey Hines
20 Ryan Jones
21 Taylor Nedrow
22 Nick Shigouri
23 Debbie Swann
24
25 8050 Campus Environmental Health and Safety
26 Matt Steele
27
28 8054 Council on Police Activities and Campus Security
29 Anne Bianculli
30 Bronwyn Bridge
31 Kelly Givens
32 Bryce Huschka
33 Megan Molander
34 Taylor Nedrow
35
36 8060 Communicable Diseases Committee
37 Abbie Rondeau
38
39 8071 Student Discrimination Review Committee
40 Josh Felts
41 Nick Flentie
42 Latoya Loren
43 Abryn Neal
44 Jared Parker
45 Leslie Perrin

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

8075 Commission on the Status of Women
 Vy Bui
 Nasarina Burnett
 Natalie Rolfe

8077 Presidential Commission on Multicultural Affairs
 MaryElizabeth Kasper
 Erica Smith

8250 International Activities Council
 Josh Sturgis

8500 Committee on Religion
 Evan Koehn
 Kecia Seyb
 Brandon Smith
 Suzanne Steffans
 Dustin Taylor

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/27**

**APPROVAL OF JUDICIAL
BRANCH APPOINTMENT**

2
3 **BY:** John Graham and Zac Cook

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There is a need for positive outreach to promote development and growth within
6 the community;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** There is a need to increase the effectiveness of the Judicial Branch;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** This position would be a valuable resource and addition to the Judicial Branch;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The following candidate is qualified for the position; and

13
14 **WHEREAS,** The appointment is subject to the approval of Student Senate;

15
16 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

17
18 **SECTION 1.** Shelly Anderson be approved to serve as the Assistant to the Attorney General,
19 with the following duties:

- 20
21 1. Serve as Vice-Chair on Judicial Council.
22
23 2. Oversee and implement programming to educate the campus community and
24 increase awareness in regards to the Judicial System and its purpose and
25 functions.
26
27 3. Review and maintain educational materials pertaining to the Judicial System,
28 such as the webpage, pamphlets, manuals and other written materials.
29
30 4. Focus on retention, diversity and recruitment within the Judicial Branch.

31
32 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
33 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/28**

**APPROVAL OF JUDICIAL
BRANCH APPOINTMENTS**

2
3 **BY:** John Graham and Zac Cook

4
5 **WHEREAS,** The positions for the Judicial Boards were sufficiently advertised;

6
7 **WHEREAS,** These appointments are subject to approval by Student Senate; and

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The selection process was conducted in accordance with the KSU SGA
10 Constitution;

11
12 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

13
14 **SECTION 1.** The following individuals be approved as Judicial Board members for the 2002-
15 2003 term:

16
17 **Student Tribunal**

18 Daniel Creekmore-Chancellor

19 Whitney Jarvis

20 Ashley Umberger

21 Christine Baker

22 Hanas Cader

23
24 **Student Review Board**

25 Chris Haynes-Chair

26 Chad Tillery

27 Jolene Goodheart

28 Walter Gray

29 Jon Elliott

30
31 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
32 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002.**

2
3

4 **BY:** John O’Hara, Vicki Conner, Zac Cook, and Todd Kohman

5

6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, Student Body Vice President, and Student Senate Chair are
7 required to make appointments to Fine Arts Council;

8

9 **WHEREAS,** The Council plays an integral role in the funding strategy for arts on campus; and

10

11 **WHEREAS,** The following individuals meet the requirements for appointments set forth in the
12 Kansas State University Fine Arts Council Constitution and By-Laws;

13

14 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

15

16 **SECTION 1.** The following individuals be approved as members of the Fine Arts Council as
17 appointed by the Student Body President:

18

- 19 Mandy Achilles
- 20 Matthew Fallesen
- 21 John Ketchum

22

23

24 **SECTION 2.** The following individual be approved as a member of the Fine Arts Council as
25 appointed by the Student Senate Chair:

26

- 27 Lisa Tirrell

28

29 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
30 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2002.**

31

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/30**

**SUPPORT FOR STUDENT UNION
RESTROOM RENOVATION**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O’Hara, Vicki Conner, Zac Cook, and Todd Kohman

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The K-State Student Union offers a wide range of programs, facilities, and
7 services;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Student Union is the center for social, recreational, and cultural activities of
10 the K-State community;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Student Union provides a place where students, faculty, alumni, and guests
13 can come together to exchange ideas and information and interact informally,
14 thereby adding to the educational experience in a way not available in the
15 classroom;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Student Senate Resolution 00/01/53 approved \$220,000 to bring Forum Hall into
18 compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act (ADA); and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The ADA work in Forum Hall cost less than the budgeted amount;

21
22 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

23
24 **SECTION 1.** The Student Governing Association support the Union’s effort to utilize the
25 savings from the afore mentioned Forum Hall allocation to rennovate the
26 restrooms in the Student Union to meet ADA requirements.

27
28 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas State University Student Union
29 Executive Director, Bernard Pitts, and Vice President of Administration and
30 Finance, Tom Rawson.

31
32 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
33 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2002.**
34

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/31**

**SGA APPROVAL OF DESIGNATION
OF WILDCAT WALK TO KSU ARH**

2
3
4 **BY:** Student Affairs and Social Services Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Student participation in the Wildcat Walk escort program has steadily decreased
7 over the past three years;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Wildcat Walk program has the potential to be a valuable asset to the safety of
10 Kansas State University students;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Wildcat Walk has no current director and would be well-served under an
13 organized University group such as the Kansas State University Association of
14 Residence Halls; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The KSU ARH is willing to take responsibility for improving the Wildcat Walk
17 program by advertising to new students, promoting volunteer opportunities, and
18 locating escort stations in both Hale Library and the Residence Halls;

19
20 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

21
22 **SECTION 1.** Kansas State University SGA gives full support and approval to KSU ARH in
23 directing the Wildcat Walk escort program.

24
25 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution shall be sent to Josh Perme, President of
26 the KSU ARH, and Jim Stoutenborough, President of Marlatt Hall.

27
28 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
29 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 3RD, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/32**

2 **APPROVAL OF SAFERIDE**
3 **TASK FORCE APPOINTMENTS**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Section 5. A.-D. of Bill 01/02/73 outlines selection of SafeRide Task Force
7 members;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The composition of the SafeRide Task Force is as follows:

10
11 Two Student Senators appointed by the Student Senate Chair;
12 The Student Body Vice President;
13 Two at-large members jointly appointed by the Student Senate Privilege
14 Fee Committee Chair, Student Body President, and the Student Senate
15 Chair; One faculty member to be appointed jointly by the Faculty Senate
16 President, the Student Body President, and the Student Senate Chair;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Consideration was given to all interested students; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The faculty member appointment was jointly considered by the Faculty Senate
21 President, the Student Body President, and the Student Senate Chair;

22
23 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

24
25 **SECTION 1.** Danny Callahan and Sarah Sourk be approved as the Student Senate
26 representatives to the SafeRide Task Force.

27
28 **SECTION 2.** Andy Newton and Joe Pacey be approved as the at-large members of the SafeRide
29 Task Force.

30
31 **SECTION 3.** Gayle Spencer be approved as the faculty member to the SafeRide Task Force.

32
33 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
34 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 3RD, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/33**

2 **APPROVAL OF KSDB**
3 **BOARD APPOINTMENTS**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, in conjunction with the Student Body Vice President,
7 must appoint two student at-large representatives to the KSDB Board; and

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President in consultation with the Vice President considered all
10 interested individuals;

11
12 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

13
14 **SECTION 1.** Christine Baker and Eric Hoopingarner be approved as the student at-large
15 representatives to the KSDB Board.

16
17 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be sent to Todd Simon, Director of the A.Q. Miller
18 School of Journalism.

19
20 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
21 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 3RD, 2002.**
22

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/34**

2 **APPROVAL OF EDUCATIONAL**
3 **OPPORTUNITY FUND APPOINTMENT**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, in conjunction with the Student Body Vice President,
7 must appoint four student at-large representatives to the Educational Opportunity
8 Fund Committee;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** One previously appointed student is unable to serve on the Educational
11 Opportunity Fund Committee;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** It is the job and responsibility of the Student Body Vice President to maintain
14 representation to all university committees including EOF; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, in consultation with the Vice President, considered
17 all interested individuals;

18
19 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

20
21 **SECTION 1.** Laurie Werth be approved as the replacement at-large student representative to the
22 Educational Opportunity Fund Committee.

23
24 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
25 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 3RD, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/35**

2 **APPROVAL OF ATHLETIC**
3 **TICKET SALES COMMITTEE**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, in conjunction with the Student Body Vice President,
7 must appoint six student at-large representatives to the Athletic Ticket Sales
8 Committee; and

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, in consultation with the Vice President, considered
11 all interested individuals;

12
13 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

14
15 **SECTION 1.** Andy Allison-Gallimore, Vy Bui, Greg Woodyard, Joe Arb, Jeff Casad, and Marc
16 Merryman be approved as the student representatives to the Athletic Ticket Sales
17 Committee.

18
19 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be sent to Tim Weiser, Director of the
20 Kansas State University Athletics Department.

21
22 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
23 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 3RD, 2002.**
24

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/36**

2 **RESOLUTION TO THANK**
3 **SEPTEMBER 26TH MEETING HOSTS**

4 **BY:** Vicki Conner, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, Lindsay Bathel, Suzanne
5 Blakely, Nick Bowser, Tyler Breeden, Seth Bridge, Sheldon Bucl, Nasrina
6 Burnett, Danny Callahan, Katherine Carter, Ryan Garrett, Eleri Griffin, Mike
7 Hart, Delvin Higginson, Eric Hoopingarner, Brad Kingsley, Tanner Klingzell,
8 Amber Lafferty, Damian Lair, Emily Meissen, Bill Muir, Tammy Jo Osborn,
9 Lindsey Porter, Laurie Quaife, Abbie Rondeau, Travis Smith, Sarah Sourk,
10 Jeremy Stohs, Travis Stryker, Lisa Tirrell, Maggie Trambly, Haley Urkevich,
11 Leslie VanNordstrand, Travis Weigel, Ann Bianculli, Stephanie Biggs, Whitney
12 Coen, Abby Lynn Crow, Alison Darby, Bryce Huschka, Kristin Kay, Katie
13 Kennedy, Kristin Kiehnhoff, Sarah Laib, Jeremy Long, Hannah Mueldener, Blair
14 Reynolds, and Suzanne Steffens

15
16 **WHEREAS,** 34 Student Senators, 14 Senate Interns, and two members of the Executive Branch
17 traveled to Salina on Thursday, September 26th, 2002;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** While there, Student Governing Association members from the College of
20 Technology and Aviation gave one-hour tours of their campus;

21
22 **WHEREAS,** These Salina students provided a location for the Student Senate meeting that
23 night;

24
25 **WHEREAS,** A number of the Salina SGA members also attended our meeting;

26
27 **WHEREAS,** The visit allowed SGA members from the Manhattan campus to become better
28 acquainted with the College of Technology and Aviation; and

29
30 **WHEREAS,** The Salina students were gracious hosts for the evening;

31
32 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

33
34 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association of the Manhattan
35 campus expresses its gratitude for the hospitality shown by our colleagues on the
36 Salina campus.

37
38 **SECTION 2.** The KSU SGA especially thanks Salina Student Body President Lynsey Burnett,
39 Vice President Betty Pina, and Senate Chair Brandon Vavra for their efforts in
40 coordinating and carrying out this visit.

41
42 **SECTION 3.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution shall be sent to Lynsey Burnett, Betty
43 Pina, Brandon Vavra, and the Student Governing Association of the College of
44 Technology and Aviation.

1
2
3

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE
BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 10TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/37**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATORS

2
3 **BY:** John O’Hara and Vicki Conner

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There are eight vacancies for the office of Student Senator for the Graduate
6 School;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** All graduate students who received votes for the Student Senator positions were
9 notified of the vacancies, and only Andi Law accepted; and

10
11 **WHEREAS,** The Graduate Student Council has appointed six graduate students to serve as
12 their Student Senate representatives;

13
14 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

15
16 **SECTION 1.** Ramesh Mohan, Jennifer Duclos, Allen Trater, Altaf Karim, Jawwad Qureshi,
17 Mark Threeton, and Andi Law be approved as Student Senators for the Graduate
18 School.

19
20 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
21 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 10TH, 2002.**
22

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/38**

2 **RESOLUTION TO MODIFY**
3 **SALES, SOLICITATION, AND**
4 **ADVERTISING POLICY**

5
6 **BY:** Student Affairs and Social Services Committee, David McCandless

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas Board of Regents has approved a policy requiring each of the Regent
9 Universities to file an official campus solicitation policy with the Board Office in
10 Topeka;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University currently adheres to the Sales, Solicitation, and
13 Advertising Policy listed in the Student Rights and Responsibilities of the Student
14 Life Handbook;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The aforementioned policy has not been revised in quite some time; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** Students have expressed a need for revision to the policy before official filing
19 with the Board of Regents;

20
21 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

22
23 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association requests the
24 following revisions and additions be noted before official filing, so that the
25 official campus solicitation policy shall read as follows:

26
27 Sales, Solicitation, and Advertising Policy

28
29 Facilities of Kansas State University are primarily for University purposes of
30 instruction, research, and public service; they are not available for unrestricted use
31 by non-university groups. The regulation of commercial activity ~~on the campus~~
32 and the posting and distribution of advertising materials *on the campus* is
33 necessary so that it does not interfere with the academic mission of the University,
34 and so that income gained from activities held on campus benefits the University.

35
36 Sales and Solicitation

37
38 1. No solicitation of credit card applications will take place on campus during the
39 week before or the two weeks following the beginning day of each semester.
40 Solicitation of credit card applications is also prohibited the week prior to the last
41 day of each semester.

42
43 2. University-affiliated, state-owned property may not be used for commercial
44 sales or solicitation except:

1 ~~1~~. A. In conjunction with or sponsored by a ~~registered student organization,~~
2 *student organization registered through the Office of Student Activities and*
3 *Services*, in accordance with University regulations.

4
5 ~~2~~. B. Individual students in their residence hall rooms who have the approval of
6 their hall governing board *or the Association of Residence Halls*.

7
8 ~~3~~ C. Individual students limited to special events only, in the area between Seaton
9 Hall and the K-State Student Union, in the quadrangle north of Hale Library, and
10 in the quadrangle east of Calvin Hall, in accordance with University regulations.

11
12 ~~4~~ D. Business-type activities when such activities are conducted by a department,
13 which are related to the research and/or educational objectives of the institution,
14 and ~~as long as~~ income remains within the institution.

15
16 3. All solicitors falling under the above guidelines shall adhere to the following:

17
18 A. *Educational material approved by the Office of Student Activities and Services*
19 *must be provided to each person that completes a credit card application.*

20
21 ~~2. Goods distributed by solicitors shall not be of an obscene or offensive nature~~
22 ~~and shall be deemed appropriate by the Office of Student Activities and Services.~~

23
24 B. *A no harassment policy shall be observed. Harassment shall be defined as*
25 *continued solicitation of goods and/or services by a solicitor to a solicitee beyond*
26 *the initial verbal refusal on the part of the solicitee. Solicitors shall not*
27 *physically obstruct solicitees.*

28
29 Advertising

30
31 1. University-affiliated, state-owned property may not be used for commercial
32 advertising except in conjunction with or when sponsored by a registered student
33 organization or University department, ~~and providing~~ *provided* that the
34 organization or department is clearly identified as the sponsor. The University
35 does not lend its name to the advertisement and/or endorsement of commercial
36 enterprises ~~and~~ *or* products.

37
38 2. All advertising falling under the above guidelines shall conform to the
39 following:

40
41 a. Advertising ~~shall tell the truth and~~ shall reveal *all* significant facts, the
42 concealment of which would mislead the public.

43 b. Advertising shall avoid the use of exaggerated or unprovable claims *or*
44 *testimonials*. It is the responsibility of the advertiser to provide proof of claims

1 ~~made~~ upon request.

2 c. Advertising shall be free of statements, illustrations, or implications which are
3 libelous or obscene.

4 d. Advertising shall offer only merchandise or services ~~which~~ *that* are readily
5 available for purchase at the advertised price.

6 e. Advertising of guarantees and warranties shall be explicit, including nature and
7 extent of the guarantee or warranty and the identity and responsibility of the
8 guarantor or warrantor.

9 ~~f. Advertising containing testimonials shall be limited to those of competent
10 witnesses who are reflecting a real and honest choice.~~

11
12 3. Activities advertised by Kansas State University organizations do not imply
13 official endorsement by the University. In order to conform to the KSU Logo
14 System Guidelines, organizations wishing to use the University logo or seal
15 should contact the University Publications Director, University Publications, 5
16 Anderson Hall.

17
18 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas State University
19 President Jon Wefald, Dean of Student Life Pat Bosco, and the Kansas State
20 University Union Governing Board.

21
22 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON**
23 **OCTOBER 31ST, 2002, WITH A VOTE OF 41-6.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/39**

**RESOLUTION TO COMMEND
ALUMNI ASSOCIATION**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O’Hara, Vicki Conner, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet,
5 Student Senate Body, Student Senate Interns
6

7 **WHEREAS,** Students are considered alumni after completion of one semester at Kansas State
8 University;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** The Alumni Association has awarded over \$122,000 in student scholarships this
11 academic year through PowerCat license plate sales and alumni club fund-raising;
12

13 **WHEREAS,** With more than 37,500 members, K-State’s Alumni Association is ranked No. 1
14 in the Big 12 for percentage of members to graduates;
15

16 **WHEREAS,** The Alumni Association supports 28 alumni clubs in the state of Kansas and 70
17 out-of-state alumni clubs throughout the nation;
18

19 **WHEREAS,** The Alumni Association controls and maintains a database of current addresses
20 and information for 98 percent of its members and 95 percent of all K-State
21 alumni, being the best system of its kind and therefore, an enormous asset to
22 Kansas State University;
23

24 **WHEREAS,** The KSU Alumni Association has built a new on campus Alumni Center from
25 private funds and has moved its headquarters there; and
26

27 **WHEREAS,** Students are encouraged to use these facilities for student meetings, studying, and
28 social events;
29

30 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**
31

32 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Alumni Association shall be commended for its
33 continued success in keeping Kansas State University Alumni connected with the
34 University.
35

36 **SECTION 2.** Student Senate shall have a reception on November 14th, 2002, prior to the
37 Student Senate meeting in the Alumni Center.
38

39 **SECTION 3.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution shall be sent to Amy Button Renz, Alumni
40 Association President; and Tim Lindemuth, Editor of the K-Stater Magazine
41 Alumni Publication.
42

43 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 17TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/40**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATOR

2
3 **BY:** John O'Hara and Vicki Conner

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There is a vacancy in the office of Student Senator for the College of Arts and
6 Sciences; and

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Andrew Hayhurst had the next highest vote total that accepted the offer to serve as
9 Student Senator in the College of Arts and Sciences;

10
11 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

12
13 **SECTION 1.** Andrew Hayhurst be approved as Student Senator for the College of Arts and
14 Sciences.

15
16 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
17 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 17TH, 2002.**
18
19
20

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/41**

2 **APPROVAL OF RECREATIONAL**
3 **SERVICES COUNCIL APPOINTMENT**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, and Vicki Conner

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, in conjunction with the Student Body Vice President,
7 must appoint two student at-large representatives to the Recreational Services
8 Council;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** One previously appointed student is unable to serve on the Recreational Services
11 Council;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** It is the job and responsibility of the Student Body Vice President to maintain
14 representation to all university committees including Recreational Services
15 Council; and

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body President, in consultation with the Vice President, considered
18 all interested individuals;

19
20 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

21
22 **SECTION 1.** Taylor Nedrow be approved as the replacement at-large student representative to
23 the Recreational Services Council.

24
25 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
26 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 17TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/42**

**RESOLUTION TO THANK VOTER
REGISTRATION SPONSORS**

2
3
4 **BY:** All Student Senators, Senate Interns, and Executive Branch Members

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The elections process is vital to the continuity of American democracy;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Voter registration is an integral part of the elections process;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** The Student Governing Association of Kansas State University sponsored a voter
11 registration challenge at the K-State vs. Oklahoma State football game on
12 Saturday, Oct. 12, 2002;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** Jeff Levin and Varney's Bookstore provided 50 very visible t-shirts worn by voter
15 registration volunteers;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Wal-Mart provided 20 clipboards for the voter registration drive,

18
19 **WHEREAS,** Dillon's and Meade Lumber provided ink pens for the voter registration drive,
20 and;

21
22 **WHEREAS,** The support of these businesses helped make Cat's Challenge 2002 a success;

23
24 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

25
26 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association wishes to express our
27 thanks and gratitude to the sponsors of the 2002 Cat's Challenge Voter
28 Registration Drive.

29
30 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution be sent to Jeff Levin and Varney's
31 Bookstore, Wal-Mart, Dillon's, and Meade Lumber.

32
33 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
34 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 24TH, 2002.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/43

**RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT
PACK THE LIBRARY NIGHT:
RALLY FOR HIGHER EDUCATION**

BY: John O'Hara, Vicki Conner, Seth Bridge, Julie Quackenbush, Nicholas Bowser, Academic Affairs and University Relations Committee, Governmental Relations Committee, Student Senate, Student Senate Interns, and the Executive Cabinet

WHEREAS, The shortfall in state revenues has forced Kansas State University to cut its budget twice this year, resulting in a \$9.3 million reduction in spending power;

WHEREAS, A portion of the 25% tuition increase intended to fund needed university improvements has instead been used to reinforce areas negatively affected by the reduction in state support;

WHEREAS, Due to the state budget crisis, Hale Library was forced to make cuts in the amount of \$315,713, resulting in hours being cut by 20%;

WHEREAS, After students petitioned to reinstate the Library hours, University President Jon Wefald made a one-time, one-semester allocation from a University Reserves Account to fund Library operating costs;

WHEREAS, The reduction in Hale Library hours is just one example of how state budget cuts have affected the students of Kansas State University;

WHEREAS, Kansas State University's mission includes enriching the lives of the citizens of Kansas by extending to them opportunities to engage in life-long learning and to benefit from the results of research;

WHEREAS, Further constraints on the university budget will hinder not only student academic progress and research opportunities but ultimately the State of Kansas; and

WHEREAS, Kansas State University President Jon Wefald and fellow administrators authored an article in the October 10, 2002 Kansas State Collegian that will articulate the University's situation to elected officials and candidates for those elected offices;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

- SECTION 1.** Kansas State University Student Governing Association supports a “Pack the Library Night: Rally for Higher Education” to be held the night of November 12, 2002. Interested students will stay in the Library throughout the night to show their support for increasing funding of higher education.
- SECTION 2.** At midnight there shall be a reception and program on the second floor library foyer.
- SECTION 3.** Student Governing Association expresses their gratitude to Kansas State University President Jon Wefald and Dean of Hale Library Brice Hobrock for their continued support for the Hale Library and Higher Education.
- SECTION 4.** Upon passage a copy of this resolution be sent to: candidates for the Governor of Kansas Tim Shallenburger and Kathleen Sebelius, Senate President Dave Kerr, Senate Vice President Sandy Praeger, Senate Majority Leader Lana Oleen, Senate Minority Leader Anthony Hensley, Senate Minority Whip Christine Downey, House Speaker Kent Glasscock, Speaker Pro Tem Clay Aurand, House Majority Leader Shari Weber, House Majority Whip Patricia Lightner, House Minority Leader Jim Garner, Members of the Education Committees, Members of the Kansas Board of Regents, Governor of Kansas Bill Graves, Kansas State University President Jon Wefald, Provost James Coffman, Dean of Hale Library Brice Hobrock, Vice President for Institutional Advancement Bob Krause, Vice President for Administration and Finance Tom Rawson, and Faculty Senate.
- SECTION 5.** A copy of the October 10, 2002 Kansas State Collegian article be sent with this resolution.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 24TH, 2002.**

1 **SECTION 4.** Prior to discussion of allocations from the fund in calendar year 2006, the administration
2 shall also revisit the Governmental Relations Committee to discuss the progress of
3 funded projects. This will allow the committee members to make educated
4 recommendations for the fund disbursement in the next calendar year.

5
6 **SECTION 5.** A copy of this resolution shall be given to President Jon Wefald, Interim Assistant Vice
7 President for Administration and Finance John Struve, Director of Facilities, Planning
8 and University Architect Gerry Carter, Dean of Student Life Pat Bosco, Faculty Senate
9 President Al Cochran, all members of the City/University Projects Fund Committee,
10 and members of the Manhattan City Commission.

11

RESOLUTION 02/03/45

**COMMENDATION TO
SENATOR WILLIAM L. MUIR**

BY: Student Affairs and Social Services Committee, Student Senate, Student Senate Interns, the Executive Branch, and Standing Committee Chairs

WHEREAS, The position of Faculty Representative to Student Senate is a demanding and rigorous task;

WHEREAS, Ten years ago this October William L. Muir was appointed Faculty Representative to the Kansas State University Student Senate;

WHEREAS, William Muir has fulfilled his position with professional distinction for more than a decade; and

WHEREAS, The Kansas State University Student Governing Association has widely benefitted from his years of service;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The members of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association wish to extend our thanks and gratitude to William L. Muir for his many years of dedication.

SECTION 2. Upon passage a copy of this resolution be sent to Assistant Vice President for Community Relations William L. Muir, Kansas State University President Jon Wefald, Vice President for Institutional Advancement Bob Krause, Vice President for Administration and Finance Tom Rawson, Dean of Student Life Pat Bosco, and Faculty Senate President Al Cochran.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON OCTOBER 24TH, 2002.**

4
5 **BY:** Zac Cook, Eleri Griffin, David McCandless, Vicki Conner, and Travis Weigel

6
7 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University supports the improvement of air quality for its students,
8 faculty, staff, and visitors through a policy prohibiting smoking within thirty feet of the
9 entrances to campus buildings;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Litter on campus is unsightly and may discourage prospective students from choosing
12 Kansas State;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** Small bits of litter composed of cotton and paper incessantly blowing about require
15 facilities personnel to perform extraneous labor-intensive tasks;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** It behooves Kansas State University to maintain the prolonged health of its inhabitants
18 as they will be future alumnae and probable supporters of the University;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** Individuals who breathe Environmental Tobacco Smoke are inhaling at least 60
21 carcinogens, including formaldehyde and benzo[a]pyrene, and six developmental
22 toxicants, including nicotine and carbon monoxide;

23
24 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association should support measures
25 that promote a more beautiful environment, eliminate unnecessary labor, and facilitate
26 prolonged health; and

27
28 **WHEREAS,** It is an individual's right to choose to smoke in his or her private residence, and it is
29 every person's right to choose to refrain from being exposed to smoking at any time;

30
31 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

32
33 **SECTION 1.** Tobacco smoking be banned on the property of Kansas State University.

34
35 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution shall be sent to President Jon Wefald,
36 Vice President for Administration and Finance Tom Rawson, and Director of
37 Environmental Health and Safety Steve Galitzer for approval.

RESOLUTION 02/03/47

**RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT
PRINCIPLES OF COMMUNITY AT
OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY**

BY: All Student Senators, Senate Interns, and Executive Branch Members

WHEREAS, One of the primary missions of an institution of higher education is to provide a safe and welcoming learning environment for all of its students;

WHEREAS, In order for this environment to exist, a learning community that values respect for others whose races, ethnicities, genders, ages, abilities, sexual orientations, religious or political beliefs, and economic statuses are different from its own;

WHEREAS, A university-wide pronouncement of support for these principles of community in the form of a written statement enforced by the university is necessary for the principles to be taken with the importance they warrant;

WHEREAS, In the aftermath of recent events at Oklahoma State University, the University's need for a statement outlining the community principles it embodies has become apparent;

WHEREAS, Oklahoma State University, including its administration, faculty, staff, and students would benefit from the University's adoption of a meaningful statement of its community principles;

WHEREAS, A similar Principles of Community statement has served Kansas State University well in cultivating an environment of open-mindedness and respect for others regardless of differences; and,

WHEREAS, A Statement of Values at the University of Missouri-Columbia has served them well in cultivating an environment of open-mindedness and respect for others regardless of differences;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The Kansas State University Student Governing Association extends its support for the adoption of a statement of community principles at Oklahoma State University.

SECTION 2. Upon passage, a copy of this resolution be sent to James Halligan, Oklahoma State University President; Dr. Marvin Keener, OSU Executive Vice-President and Provost; Dr. Lee Bird, OSU Vice-President for Student Affairs; Dr. Earl Mitchell, OSU Associate Vice-President of Multicultural Affairs; Jerry Gill, OSU Alumni Association Executive Director; Ross McKnight, OSU Foundation Chair; Ron Area, OSU Foundation President; Fred Harlan, Oklahoma Agricultural and

Mechanical Colleges Board of Regents Chair; Hans Brisch, Oklahoma Higher Education Chancellor; Carl Renfro, Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education Chair; Court Smith, OSU Student Body President; Destiny Warrior, OSU Student Body Vice-President; Cherish King, OSU Student Senate Chair; Ed Lawry, OSU Faculty Council Chair; President of the OSU Afro-American Student Association; April Marciszewski, Editor of the Daily O'Collegian Newspaper; Paris Rossiter, Kansas State University Black Student Union President; and Angela Johnson, Big XII Council on Black Student Government Chair.

SECTION 3. A copy of K-State's Principles of Community Statement shall be included with this resolution.

SECTION 4. A copy of the University of Missouri-Columbia's Statement of Values shall be included with this resolution.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE
BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON NOVEMBER 7TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/48**

**STUDENT SENATE RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE DISBURSEMENT OF THE
CITY/UNIVERSITY PROJECTS FUND FOR
CALENDAR YEAR 2004**

2
3
4
5
6 **BY:** The Governmental Relations Committee

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The 1993-1994 Student Senate supported the annexation of the Kansas State
9 University campus by the city of Manhattan;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Students at Kansas State University contribute large amounts of money to the
12 city's economy through the payment of sales taxes and franchise fees generated by
13 the sale of items on the K-State campus;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The City/University Projects Fund was established to return these tax revenues to
16 K-State students in the form of projects that benefit both the city of Manhattan
17 and Kansas State University;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** Students should continue to have an active voice in the usage of funds derived
20 from their sales tax dollars as they have since the fund's creation;

21
22 **WHEREAS,** Current city estimates predict a total of \$307,700 in the City/University Projects
23 fund available for projects in calendar year 2004;

24
25 **WHEREAS,** President Jon Wefald has requested that Student Senate submit a prioritized list of
26 projects to be funded from the City/University Projects Fund in calendar year
27 2004;

28
29 **WHEREAS,** Student Senate's priority list has typically been the framework for the president's
30 recommendation to the city of Manhattan concerning the usage of City/University
31 Projects Fund monies;

32
33 **WHEREAS,** The Governmental Relations Committee has reviewed student, administration,
34 and city project proposals for CY 2004; and

35
36 **WHEREAS,** The projects listed below are believed to be of the most benefit to the students of
37 Kansas State University and the City of Manhattan in 2004;

38
39 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

40
41 **SECTION 1.** Previously committed funding for the ongoing programs listed below are
42 recommended to be continued to their completion:

- 43
44 1. Extending the stone wall on Anderson Avenue and on Denison Avenue: \$90,000
45

- 1 2. Installation of a fire hydrant on North Manhattan Avenue: \$10,000
2

3 **SECTION 2.** Since Kansas State University is currently recycling at a rate equivalent to only
4 20% of the national average and recycling is believed to be one of the most
5 important environmental duties of K-State students, the facilitation of the current
6 recycling program shall be considered of utmost importance.
7

- 8 1. In Calendar Year 2004, the recycling program is
9 recommended to receive an allocation of: \$135,000
10

11 2. This money should be used to purchase a recycling vehicle with at least one
12 compacting compartment. This vehicle will decrease the amount of manpower
13 required to recycle while simultaneously increasing K-State's recycling capacity.
14

15 3. Any funds remaining after the purchase of the truck should be used to purchase
16 new refuse storage bins that are compatible with the truck.
17

18 4. The Facilities and Maintenance department in charge of the recycling program
19 should pursue other means of acquiring additional funds needed for improving the
20 program including grants and the Kansas State University Custodial budget.
21

22 **SECTION 3.** The remaining \$72,700 is recommended to be distributed as follows:
23

- 24 1. The restoration of the contingency balance within the fund: \$10,000
25

- 26 2. The replacement of aging and diseased trees on campus: \$15,000
27

- 28 3. The improvement of sidewalks, lighting, and campus safety: \$47,700
29

30 a. Lighting improvements should focus specifically on the following
31 locations:
32

33 1. Along North Manhattan Avenue from Claflin to Anderson
34

35 2. Along Denison Avenue by the crosswalk from the West
36 Stadium parking lot to Ahearn Field House and by the
37 crosswalks near Marlatt and Goodnow Halls
38

39 3. Along Claflin near the residence halls
40

41 4. In and around the University Gardens
42

43 b. Sidewalk improvements should be directed towards the section of
44 walkway at the foot of the hill leading towards the Derby Complex.
45

1 **SECTION 4.** The Kansas State University administration shall inform Student Senate of the
2 actual allocations made by the Manhattan City Commission from the
3 City/University Projects Fund in spring of 2003.
4

5 **SECTION 5.** Prior to discussion of allocations from the fund in calendar year 2005, the
6 administration shall also revisit the Governmental Relations Committee to discuss
7 the progress of funded projects. This will allow the committee members to make
8 educated recommendations for the fund disbursement in the next calendar year.
9

29 **SECTION 6.** A copy of this resolution shall be given to Kansas State University President Jon
30 Wefald, Interim Associate Vice President for Administration and Finance John
31 Struve, Faculty Senate President Al Cochran, Director for Facilities Custodial
32 Services John Woods, all members of the City/University Fund Projects Fund
33 Committee, and members of the Manhattan City Commission.
34

35 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON**
36 **NOVEMBER 21ST, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/49**

**COMMENDATION TO
DR. FRANK TRACZ**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O’Hara, Vicki Conner, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet, Student
5 Senate Body, Student Senate Interns

6
7 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Frank Tracz came to Kansas State University ten years ago as Director of Bands;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Being a collegiate band director requires energy, enthusiasm, and a bit of insanity;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Frank Tracz has led the Kansas State University Marching Band in 73 home games, 6
12 away games, 2 Big XII Championships, and 8 bowl trips;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** The Kansas State University Marching Band has more than doubled in size since 1993,
15 growing to nearly 300 members;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Frank Tracz has led the KSU Cat Band, the Volleyball Band, and the Aggieville Pub
18 Crawl Band in performances and pep rallies too numerous to count;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Frank Tracz has conducted “Wildcat Victory” and “Wabash Cannonball” hundreds
21 of thousands of times;

22
23 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Frank Tracz is President of the Big XII Band Directors Association and a Mortar
24 Board Outstanding Faculty Member, and he has received recognition and numerous
25 awards including the prestigious Stamey award for Outstanding Teaching, and most
26 recently he was presented with the Outstanding Bandmaster Award from the Kansas
27 Bandmasters Association; and

28
29 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Frank Tracz spends part of his free time conducting the Manhattan Municipal Band
30 and continues to be a highly respected and valued member of the Manhattan, Kansas
31 community;

32
33 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

34
35 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association expresses its thanks and
36 gratitude to Dr. Frank Tracz for his ten years of hard work and dedication to placing
37 students first and representing Kansas State University in the best way possible.

38
39 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage of this resolution, a copy be sent to Kansas State University President Dr.
40 Jon Wefald, Associate Vice President and Dean of Student Life Pat Bosco, Head of
41 Music Department Dr. Paul Hunt, and Director of Bands Dr. Frank Tracz.

42
43 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
44 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON NOVEMBER 21ST, 2002.**
45

RESOLUTION 02/03/50

**RESOLUTION TO THANK
“PACK THE LIBRARY NIGHT”
FEATURED GUESTS**

BY: Vicki Conner, John O’Hara, Todd Kohman, Zac Cook, Executive Cabinet, Student Senate Interns, and the following Student Senators: Lori Alexander, Lindsay Bathel, Matt Beaven, Kelli Benton, Suzanne Blakely, Nick Bowser, Tyler Breeden, Seth Bridge, Sheldon Bucl, Nasrina Burnett, Danny Callahan, Katherine Carter, Mick Charney, Ryan Conway, Ryan Garrett, Erin Green, Eleri Griffin, Essence Halliburton, Bill Harlan, Mike Hart, Andrew Hayhurst, Delvin Higginson, Eric Hoopingarner, Mary Elizabeth Kasper, Altaf Karim, Brad Kinglsey, Tanner Klingzell, Amber Laferty, Damian Lair, Andi Law, Sam Meier, Emily Meissen, Ramesh Mohan, Bill Muir, Tammy Jo Osborn, Ben Procter, Lindsey Porter, Haley Prophet, Julie Quackenbush, Laurie Quaife, Jawwad Qureshi, Abbie Rondeau, Kristine Sheedy, Erica Smith, Travis Smith, Sarah Sourk, Layne Stafford, Jeremy Stohs, Travis Stryker, Ross Stutterheim, Mark Threeton, Lisa Tirrell, Maggie Trambly, Allen Trater, Haley Urkevich, Leslie VanNordstrand, Travis Weigel, and Andrea Zimmer

WHEREAS, The Kansas State University Student Governing Association sponsored a “Pack the Library Night: Rally for Higher Education” on Tuesday, November 12th, 2002;

WHEREAS, The program included an hour long rally, a letter writing campaign, and speeches on the topic of higher education funding;

WHEREAS, The purpose of this event was to call attention to the state budget crisis and to rally support for higher education funding in Kansas;

WHEREAS, A number of elected officials throughout the state were notified of the event to illustrate the concern of the K-State community for support of higher education;

WHEREAS, Representative elect Sydney Carlin, Senate Majority Leader Lana Oleen, and Representative elect Roger Reitz stayed at Hale Library into the early hours of Wednesday morning for the event and were the night’s featured speakers, offering insight into the state’s situation; and

WHEREAS, “Pack the Library Night” would not have been as meaningful and successful without the participation of the aforementioned elected officials;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The KSU SGA expresses its gratitude to Sydney Carlin, Lana Oleen, and Roger Reitz for their willingness to participate in “Pack the Library Night” and commends them for their commitment to higher education in the state of Kansas.

SECTION 2. A copy of this resolution be sent to Sydney Carlin, Lana Oleen, and Roger Reitz upon passage.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON NOVEMBER 21ST, 2002.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/51

**RESOLUTION TO COMMEND THE
SPONSORS FOR PACK THE LIBRARY
NIGHT: RALLY FOR HIGHER EDUCATION**

BY: John O'Hara, Vicki Conner, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet,
Student Senate Body, Student Senate Interns

WHEREAS, The "Pack the Library Night: Rally for Higher Education" was an overwhelming success;

WHEREAS, Students became more aware of Kansas' current budget crisis;

WHEREAS, Over 250 students and faculty attended the rally and protest portion of "Pack the Library Night: Rally for Higher Education;"

WHEREAS, Over 500 students participated in the letter writing campaign to the students' representatives and program;

WHEREAS, Without the sponsors' generosity, this event would not have been a success or possible; and

WHEREAS, These sponsors continually benefit student organizations on the Kansas State University Campus;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

SECTION 1. The members of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association would like to extend our thanks and appreciation to Steve Levin of the Union Bookstore, Jake Wassenburg of Pepsi, Rick Hernandez of Domino's, Patrick Lee of N-Zone, Subs 'N Such, Wal-Mart, K-Mart, Kentucky Fried Chicken, Sonic, Dairy Queen, Chipotle, Schlotzsky's, Dara's, Walgreens, Carlos O'Kelly's, Blockbuster, and Subway.

SECTION 2. Upon passage a copy of this resolution will be sent to Steve Levin of the Union Bookstore, Jake Wassenburg of Pepsi, Rick Hernandez of Domino's, Patrick Lee of N-Zone, Subs 'N Such, Wal-Mart, K-Mart, Kentucky Fried Chicken, Sonic, Dairy Queen, Chipotle, Schlotzsky's, Dara's, Walgreens, Carlos O'Kelly's, Blockbuster, and Subway.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON NOVEMBER 21ST, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/52**

2 **COMMENDATION TO 2002**
3 **KSU CROP JUDGING TEAM**

4 **BY:** All Student Senators, Interns, and Executive Branch Members

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The 2002 Kansas State University Crop Judging Team competed in the Kansas
7 City Board of Trade Collegiate Crop Judging Contest and the Chicago Collegiate
8 Crop Judging Contest;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** Team members Kyle Cott, Jon Kerschen, and Mark Dilts dedicated much of this
11 semester preparing for the two contests with their coach, Dr. Gerry Posler;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The team placed first at the Kansas City Board of Trade Collegiate Crop Judging
14 Contest and first at the Chicago Collegiate Crop Judging Contest, receiving top
15 awards in the areas of Seed Analysis, Grain Grading, and Plant and Seed
16 Identification at both contests; and

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The 2002 team is the highest scoring Crop Judging Team ever from K-State;

19
20 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

21
22 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends the 2002
23 KSU Crop Judging Team for the excellent rankings they received during their
24 competitions this year and recognizes the hard work they put into bringing
25 recognition to our university.

26
27 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be sent to Kyle Cott, Jon Kerschen, Mark Dilts, their
28 parents, President Jon Wefald, Head of the Department of Agronomy David
29 Mengel, and Dr. Gerry Posler.

30
31 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
32 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/53**

**COMMENDATION TO
KYLE COTT**

2
3
4 **BY:** All Student Senators, Interns, and Executive Branch Members

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Kyle Cott is an agronomy student in the College of Agriculture at Kansas State
7 University;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Kyle Cott was chosen as the American Star in Agricultural Placement by the
10 National FFA Organization on October 31, 2002;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The American Star in Agricultural Placement award recognizes students who have
13 developed the best Supervised Agricultural Experience program of more than
14 460,000 FFA members;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Kyle Cott is the seventh Star Award winner from Kansas in the 75-year history of
17 the FFA;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** The star award is the highest honor bestowed upon an FFA member; and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** Kyle Cott has brought recognition to the state of Kansas, Kansas State University,
22 and the College of Agriculture;

23
24 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

25
26 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and
27 congratulates Kyle Cott on his selection as the National FFA Organization's
28 American Star in Agricultural Placement.

29
30 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to Kyle Cott, his parents Richard and Jody Cott,
31 President Jon Wefald, Dean of the College of Agriculture Marc Johnson,
32 Associate Dean of the College of Agriculture Larry Erpelding, Head of the
33 Department of Agronomy David Mengel, and Kansas FFA Executive Secretary
34 Mary Kane.

35
36 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
37 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/54**

**COMMENDATION TO
JJ JONES**

2
3
4 **BY:** All Student Senators, Interns, and Executive Branch Members

5
6 **WHEREAS,** JJ Jones is an animal sciences and industry student in the College of Agriculture at
7 Kansas State University;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** JJ Jones was elected central region vice president of the National FFA
10 Organization on November 2, 2002;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** JJ Jones is one of six national officers representing more than 460,000 FFA
13 members;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** JJ Jones will travel more than 100,000 miles representing FFA and agriculture and
16 meet with thousands of students, business partners, policy makers, and community
17 members during his year of service;

18
19 **WHEREAS,** JJ Jones is the 16th national officer from the Kansas FFA Association in FFA's
20 75-year history;

21
22 **WHEREAS,** JJ Jones will take a year hiatus from Kansas State University to fulfill his
23 commitment; and

24
25 **WHEREAS,** JJ Jones has brought recognition to the state of Kansas, Kansas State University,
26 and the College of Agriculture;

27
28 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

29
30 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and
31 congratulates JJ Jones on his election to national FFA office.

32
33 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to JJ Jones, his parents Larry and Diane Jones,
34 President Jon Wefald, Dean of the College of Agriculture Marc Johnson,
35 Associate Dean of the College of Agriculture Larry Erpelding, and Kansas FFA
36 Executive Secretary Mary Kane.

37
38 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
39 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002.**

4 **BY:** All Student Senators, Interns and Executive Branch

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The “Pack the Library Night: Rally for Higher Education” was an overwhelming
7 success;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Over 250 students and faculty attended the rally portion of “Pack the Library
10 Night: Rally for Higher Education;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Over 500 students participated in the letter writing campaign to the students’
13 representatives and programs;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** All of the events took place in and around Hale Library;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The library staff and administrators assisted in the rally by setting up speaking and
18 food areas, providing security and staff, and donating facility space and time; and

19
20 **WHEREAS,** The assistance of the library staff and administration proved invaluable to the
21 success of the rally;

22
23 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

24
25 **SECTION 1.** Kansas State University Student Governing Association extends their thanks and
26 gratitude to the staff and administration of Hale Library for their assistance on
27 “Pack the Library: Rally for Higher Education.”

28
29 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage a copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas State University
30 President Jon Wefald, Dean of Hale Library Brice Hobrock, Dean of Student Life
31 Pat Bosco, Associate Dean Karen Cole, Assistant to the Dean Karen McCulloh,
32 Director of Administrative Services of Hale Library Jean Darbyshire, Reference
33 Librarian Sara Kearns, and Hale Library Building Superintendent Emanuel
34 Arnold.

35
36 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
37 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002.**
38

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/56**

AMENDMENTS TO STANDING RULES

2
3 **BY:** Bill Harlan, Chad Bontrager, Lori Alexander, Lisa Tirrell, Sarah Laib, Ben
4 Procter, and Bill Muir

5
6 **WHEREAS,** Many of the questions asked to debaters during Student Senate are inappropriate
7 and out of order;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Often these questions are asked to make points and debate issues with speakers
10 because members don't feel they have an adequate opportunity to make their
11 points before the body;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The ability to call the previous question after only three speakers from each side
14 have had the opportunity to speak limits members' ability to debate important
15 issues;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Allowing more speakers to debate before the question is called will provide
18 members the opportunity to make their points through debate rather than asking
19 questions that are out of order; and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** Shortening the amount of time allowed for each debate and question period will
22 still allow for Student Senate meeting to run efficiently;

23
24 **BE IT ENACTED THAT:**

25
26 **SECTION 1.** KSU SGA Statute 42-0204.I. is hereby amended to read:

- 27
28 I. There shall be a time limit of ~~five~~ *four* minutes for each person with
29 speaking privileges for debate and ~~five~~ *three* minutes for questions
30 *regarding the debate*. ~~Individuals without speaking privileges will be~~
31 ~~allowed a total time limit of five four minutes for debate and five three~~
32 ~~minutes for questions regarding the debate when time has been yielded to~~
33 ~~such individuals.~~ Student Senate may allow any person to ~~continue for~~
34 ~~another five minutes~~ *extend the period of time* for debate and questions by
35 majority vote.

36
37 **SECTION 2.** KSU SGA Statute 42-0205.B. is hereby amended to read:

- 38
39 B. The question shall not be called until *after five* ~~at least three~~ speakers in
40 the affirmative and ~~three~~ *five* speakers in the negative have been given the
41 opportunity to present before the Student Senate. *Thereafter, a Student*
42 *Senator may call the previous question without being recognized for*
43 *debate.*

1 **SECTION 3.** KSU SGA Statute 42-0206.G. shall be added as:
2

3 G. *A Point of Information shall be in order when no speaker is recognized for*
4 *debate or questions, and shall be directed to the Chair to be answered or*
5 *referred at the Chair's discretion.*
6

7 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
8 **ON DECEMBER 5TH, 2002.**
9
10
11

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/57**

**APPROVAL OF ELECTIONS
COMMISSIONER**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O'Hara and Zac Cook

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Elections Commissioner is jointly appointed by the Student Body President,
7 the Attorney General, and the Student Senate Chair; and

8
9 **WHEREAS,** This appointment is subject to approval by Student Senate;

10
11 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

12
13 **SECTION 1.** Mark Threeton be approved as Elections Commissioner for the 2002-2003 SGA
14 term.

15
16 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
17 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON JANUARY 23RD, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/58**

APPROVAL OF STANDING COMMITTEE CHAIR

2
3 **BY:** John O'Hara

4
5 **WHEREAS,** It is necessary to appoint and ratify the chairs of Student Senate standing
6 committees;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan resigned his position upon the acceptance of
9 the Interim Assistant Coordinator for Student Activities; and

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Senator Lisa Tirrell was previously Vice Chair of the Senate Operations
12 Committee;

13
14 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

15
16 **SECTION 1.** Lisa Tirrell be approved as the Senate Operations Chair for the remainder of the
17 2002-2003 term.

18
19 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
20 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON JANUARY 23RD, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/59**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATORS

2
3 **BY:** John O'Hara

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There are vacancies in the office of Student Senator for the College of Arts and
6 Sciences, College of Agriculture, and the Graduate School;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Christine Baker, Heath Starr, and Kim Freed had the next highest vote total in the
9 College of Arts and Sciences; and Chad Bontrager had the next highest vote total
10 in the College of Agriculture; and

11
12 **WHEREAS,** Paul White has been selected by the Graduate Student Council to fulfill the eighth
13 graduate senator position;

14
15 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

16
17 **SECTION 1.** Christine Baker, Heath Starr, and Kim Freed be approved as Student Senators for
18 the College of Arts and Sciences; Chad Bontrager be approved as Student Senator
19 for the College of Agriculture; and Paul White be approved as Student Senator for
20 the Graduate School.

21
22 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
23 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON JANUARY 30TH, 2003.**
24

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/61**

2 **APPROVAL OF ELECTIONS REVIEW**
3 **COMMITTEE CHAIR & JUDICIAL MEMBERS**

4 **BY:** John Graham, Ben Procter, Lori Alexander, Chad Bontrager

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Elections Regulations Code calls for the creation of a five member Elections
7 Review Committee;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Committee is composed of two voting members from the Judicial Branch
10 appointed by the Attorney General;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Committee Chair must be either the current Assistant to the Attorney General
13 or the Chairperson of the Student Review Board;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** The Chairperson is appointed by the Attorney General;

16
17 **WHEREAS,** Adam Veatch and Kyla Scott are currently members of the Judicial Branch; and

18
19 **WHEREAS,** Shelly Anderson is the current Assistant to the Attorney General;

20
21 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

22
23 **SECTION 1.** The following students are appointed to serve on the Elections Review
24 Committee:

25
26 Shelly Anderson - Chair
27 Adam Veatch - Judicial Member
28 Kyla Scott - Judicial Member

29
30 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
31 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON JANUARY 30TH, 2003.**
32
33
34

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/62**

**RESOLUTION TO AMEND
STANDING RULES**

2
3
4 **BY:** Senate Operations Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** During SGA elections many members of SGA use time during Senate to
7 campaign;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** KSU SGA Statutes 41-0102 defines active campaigning as “any direct distribution
10 of campaign materials, verbal or oral encouragement, or other activity of a non-
11 personal nature by one person to another for the purpose of furthering a
12 campaign;”

13
14 **WHEREAS,** Such campaigning is a distraction to the proceedings of the meeting; and

15
16 **WHEREAS,** This campaigning hinders Senate’s ability to run efficiently;

17
18 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** KSU SGA Statute 42-0209 shall be added as follows:

21
22 **Limitations on Campaigning**

23
24 No election campaigning, as defined in KSU SGA Statute 41-0102, shall be
25 allowed during any Student Senate meeting at which official SGA business is
26 conducted.

27
28 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 6TH, 2003,**
29 **WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 29-17.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/63**

2 **RESOLUTION TO HONOR ASTRONAUTS**
3 **OF SPACE SHUTTLE COLUMBIA**

4 **BY:** John O'Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Student Senators,
5 Student Senate Interns, Executive Cabinet

6
7 **WHEREAS,** The legacy of the space shuttle Columbia will be remembered forever;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** This mission was unprecedented with the first Israeli man, Indian woman, and
10 seventh African American in space;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** These men and women were pursuing their lifelong dream of improving life on
13 Earth for future generations;

14
15 **WHEREAS,** They made the ultimate sacrifice for the betterment of humankind; and

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The bold exploration of space must go on;

18
19 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

20
21 **SECTION 1.** Kansas State University Student Governing Association recognizes and honors:
22 Rick D. Husband, William C. McCool, Michael P. Anderson, David M. Brown,
23 Kalpana Chawla, Laurel Blair Salton Clark, and Ilan Ramon, astronauts aboard
24 Space Shuttle Columbia.

25
26 **SECTION 2.** Student Senate shall recognize a moment of silence in honor and remembrance of
27 these brave individuals.

28
29 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
30 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON FEBRUARY 6TH, 2003.**
31

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/64**

**RESOLUTION TO COMMEND
BEN CHAMPION**

2
3
4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Student Senators,
5 Student Senate Interns, Executive Cabinet
6

7 **WHEREAS,** The Rhodes Scholarship is one of the highest honors of academic prestige in the
8 United States, bestowed upon only 32 U.S. students each year;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** 2003 is the centennial year of the Rhodes Scholarship;
11

12 **WHEREAS** Only 3,200 Americans have won the scholarship;
13

14 **WHEREAS,** The Rhodes Scholarship provides a \$40,000-\$60,000 grant to its recipients for
15 graduate study at Oxford University in Oxford, England;
16

17 **WHEREAS,** The 32 Rhodes scholars of 2003 were selected from a national pool of 981
18 applicants;
19

20 **WHEREAS,** The Rhodes Scholarship is awarded on the basis of high academic achievement,
21 integrity of character, a spirit of unselfishness, respect for others, potential for
22 leadership, and physical vigor; and

23 **WHEREAS,** Ben Champion displayed all these qualities to be selected as Kansas State
24 University’s seventh Rhodes scholar;
25

26 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**
27

28 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends Ben
29 Champion on his outstanding achievement.
30

31 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution be sent to Ben Champion, his parents
32 Mike and Paula Champion, Kansas State University President Jon Wefald,
33 Scholarship Advisor Jim Hohenbary, Chemistry Department Head Peter
34 Sherwood, and Associate Vice President for Institutional Advancement Pat
35 Bosco.
36

37 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
38 **BY UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON FEBRUARY 6TH, 2003.**
39
40

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/65**

2 **RESOLUTION TO HAVE PLEBISCITE VOTE ON**
3 **SMOKING POLICY CHANGE QUESTIONS ON THE**
4 **SPRING 2003 ELECTION BALLOT**

5 **BY:** Student Affairs and Social Services Committee

6
7 **WHEREAS,** A smoking policy change would affect every student attending Kansas State University;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Students deserve the right to voice their opinions about a major policy change;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Student opinions can be used to inform the Student Governing Association as to the
12 wishes of their constituents in any action taken with regard to a smoking policy change;
13 and

14
15 **WHEREAS,** It is in the best interest of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association to
16 gather an official student opinion;

17
18 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** The following plebiscite questions shall be placed on the Spring 2003 Election Ballot;

21
22 1. Should Kansas State University enact changes to its current smoking policy?

23 Kansas State University's current policy prohibits smoking inside buildings and within
24 30 feet of all entrances.

25 A. Yes

26 If yes, continue to question 2

27 B. No

28
29 2. What change to the smoking policy should be implemented at Kansas State
30 University?

31 A. Campus Wide Ban (No smoking on all of Kansas State University's
32 Manhattan campus, including parking lots, residence halls, and athletic
33 complexes)

34 B. Academic Area Ban (Smoking allowed only outside residence halls, athletic
35 complexes and in parking lots)

36 C. Designated Smoking Areas (Number of marked smoking areas throughout
37 campus)

38 D. Abolish current policy (Eliminate smoking policy restrictions in order to
39 allow smoking within 30 feet of building entrances)

40
41 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas State University President Jon
42 Wefald, Associate Vice President for Institutional Advancement Pat Bosco, and Interim
43 Assistant Coordinator of Student Activities Bill Harlan.

44
45 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
46 **ON FEBRUARY 13TH, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/66**

**RESOLUTION FOR A SAFER
HOUSING WEEK**

2
3
4 **BY:** Student Affairs and Social Services Committee

5
6 **WHEREAS,** A majority of Kansas State University students live in private residences off-
7 campus;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** Inspections of these domiciles is necessary to ensure landlords are maintaining
10 residences to Manhattan city codes;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The City of Manhattan currently has a free inspection service; and

13
14 **WHEREAS,** It is the responsibility of the Student Governing Association to inform students of
15 these services;

16
17 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

18
19 **SECTION 1.** Student Governing Association supports the adoption of a “Safer Housing Week”
20 from February 24th to February 28th, 2003, to inform students of Manhattan’s
21 housing codes, free inspections and tenants’ rights.

22
23 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage a copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas State University
24 President Jon Wefald, City of Manhattan Building Official Brad Claussen, Human
25 Resources Specialist Larry Hackney and Assistant City Manager Sammi Mangus.

26
27 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON**
28 **FEBRUARY 20TH, 2003.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/67

**RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT
OF THE GLOBAL EDUCATION INITIATIVE**

BY: Privilege Fee Committee, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet

WHEREAS, Cultural competency enhances the marketability of Kansas State University students in the global economy by allowing them to adapt to and work with peoples from all walks of life and be truly effective in tomorrow's world;

WHEREAS, The Provost's Strategic Planning committee established in September 2000, identified nine themes including "Enhance International Emphasis";

WHEREAS, This theme included High Priority Action Items—"Integrate international content into the curricula" and "Recruit more international undergraduate students"—as well as Moderate Priority Action Items—"Expand Opportunities for K-State students to study abroad," "Expand Existing International Programs and International Academic Area Studies," and "Improve recruitment and retention services for international students and faculty";

WHEREAS, The American Council on Education's poll, "One Year Later: Attitudes about International Education Since September 11," indicates that 79 percent of Americans agree students should study abroad during college and 80 percent agree the presence of international students on U.S. campuses enriches the learning experience for American students;

WHEREAS, The implementation of the Global Education Initiative shall show the Kansas State University community's dedicated stance and commitment to international education and encourage increased financial support from alumni and the private sector;

WHEREAS, The Kansas State University student body and Manhattan community will benefit from increased support of international programs; and

WHEREAS, The November 2001 National Association of State Universities and Land-Grant Colleges report "Major Obstacles and Best Practices in International Education Exchanges" identifies lack of financial support being one of the limiting factors for expanding international educational exchanges;

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

- SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association supports an appropriation of approximately \$1.70 per student per semester to the Global Education Initiative.
- SECTION 2.** The Global Education Initiative shall be funded \$1.25 per student per semester for scholarship support for international education and be administered through the Office of International Programs.
- SECTION 3.** The Global Education Initiative shall be funded \$0.45 per student per semester earmarked for a shuttle service for Kansas State and International students to be transported between Manhattan and Kansas City International Airport, and for a graduate teachers assistant position to coordinate the scholarship program.
- SECTION 4.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas State University President Jon Wefald, Vice President for Institutional Advancement Robert Krause, Vice President for Administration and Finance Tom Rawson, Kansas State Alumni Association President Amy Renz, Kansas State Foundation President and Chief Executive Officer Gary Hellebust, Chairman of the Executive Committee Lee Borck, and University of Kansas Student Body President Jonathan Ng.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON FEBRUARY 27TH, 2003,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 46-2.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/68**

**RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT
HIGHER EDUCATION**

2
3
4 **BY:** Kansas State University Manhattan and Salina Student Governing Associations

5
6 **WHEREAS,** A college education is necessary for Americans to get ahead in the workforce;

7
8 **WHEREAS,** Kansas has an outstanding record of maintaining access to a college education for a large
9 number of its citizens;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Maintaining this high level of access to a college education is vital to building an
12 effective, motivated, and competent workforce for the state of Kansas;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** The role of a state land-grant research institution is to provide benefit to all residents of
15 the state, by educating the state's citizens in the traditional college setting, as well as
16 through the outreach work of a quality research and extension system;

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The state of Kansas, through legislative and executive action, has promised to adequately
19 fund its institutions of higher education; and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** These promises of funding are in jeopardy of being left unfulfilled;

22
23 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

24
25 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association implores the Kansas
26 Legislature and Governor Kathleen Sebelius to place the most urgent priority on
27 fulfilling their funding obligations to the Board of Regents and the Kansas Regents
28 institutions.

29
30 **SECTION 2.** Upon passage, a copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas Governor Kathleen Sebelius,
31 Lieutenant Governor John Moore, Secretary of Administration Howard Fricke, all
32 members of the Kansas Legislature, KU Student Body President Jonathan Ng, PSU
33 Student Body President Janelle Huppe, FHSU Student Body President Daron Jamison,
34 ESU Student Body President Christina Kerns, WSU Student Body President Adam Kice,
35 KSU-Salina Student Body President Lynsey Burnett, Kansas Board of Regents President
36 Reginald Robinson, Kansas Board of Regents Chair Jack Wempe, all members of the
37 KSU Foundation Board of Trustees, KSU Foundation President and CEO Gary
38 Hellebust, KSU President Jon Wefald, Associate Vice President for Institutional
39 Advancement Pat Bosco, Dean of the College of Technology and Aviation Dennis
40 Kuhlman, KSU Alumni Association President Amy Button Renz, Assistant to the
41 President Sue Peterson, Dean and Director of K-State Research and Extension Marc
42 Johnson, and Vice President for Institutional Advancement Bob Krause.

43
44 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
45 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 13TH, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/69**

**RESOLUTION TO STRONGLY ENCOURAGE
FACULTY USE OF K-STATE ONLINE**

2
3
4 **BY:** Robert Sumners, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Eric Hoopingarner, David
5 McCandless, Academic Affairs
6

7 **WHEREAS,** Students need a central location to access class information;
8

9 **WHEREAS,** K-State Online provides assistance to faculty through web help and class sessions;
10

11 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University is growing through the increased use of online
12 technology; and
13

14 **WHEREAS,** K-State Online provides all of these services to faculty and students at Kansas
15 State University;
16

17 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**
18

19 **SECTION 1.** All faculty with a class roster are strongly encouraged to utilize K-State Online by
20 posting either a class syllabus or having a link to their class webpage.
21

22 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be sent to Kansas State University Provost James
23 Coffman, Faculty Senate President Al Cochran, Vice Provost for Information
24 Technology Beth Unger, Faculty Senate Academic Affairs Committee Chair
25 Jackie Spears, Dean of the College of Agriculture Marc A. Johnson; Dean of the
26 College of Architecture, Planning and Design Dennis L. Law; Interim Dean of the
27 College of Arts and Sciences Stephen White; Dean of the College of Business
28 Administration Yar M. Ebadi; Dean of the College of Education Michael C.
29 Holen; Dean of the College of Engineering Terry King; Dean of the College of
30 Human Ecology Carol Kellett; Dean of the College of Technology and Aviation
31 Dennis Kuhlman; and Dean of the College of Veterinary Medicine Ralph C.
32 Richardson.
33

34 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
35 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 6TH, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/70**

2 **RESOLUTION TO STRONGLY ENCOURAGE**
3 **KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY ADMINISTRATION**
4 **TO DESIGNATE LARGE PORTION OF FY 2004**
5 **INCREASED TUITION REVENUE FOR**
6 **UNIVERSITY ENHANCEMENTS**

7 **BY:** John O'Hara, Travis Stryker, Seth Bridge, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook,
8 Todd Kohman
9

10 **WHEREAS,** Last spring the Kansas Board of Regents directed that additional FY 2003 tuition
11 revenues be used for enhancements rather than replacing state general funds;
12

13 **WHEREAS,** The increase in tuition at Kansas State University for FY 2004 will generate
14 approximately \$10 million additional revenue;
15

16 **WHEREAS,** The University Administration has been in discussion with Student Government
17 and its leaders throughout this year to examine the five-year tuition strategy and to
18 seek feedback and direction;
19

20 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University needs to fulfill its obligations to the students and
21 designate a large portion of the increased tuition revenue for FY 2004 towards
22 visible, student-centered enhancements;
23

24 **WHEREAS,** The University of Kansas has designated \$8.6 million this year and each year for
25 the next four years for University enhancements in its overall five-year tuition
26 increase investment plan with the remainder of the increase going to financial aid
27 and annual general maintenance costs;
28

29 **WHEREAS,** As a whole, KU's five-year plan would bring in 100 new faculty (net), bring in 40
30 to 50 new staff, increase GTA salaries by 30 percent, waive GRA tuition, increase
31 student wages by \$0.50 per hour, allocate \$150,000 to multicultural affair
32 programs, give a \$500,000 allocation to improve classroom conditions, provide
33 funds for online enrollment enhancements, give additional computers and
34 upgraded equipment for all general use computer labs on campus, and provide
35 funds for additional advising and International Student Services, among other
36 things; and
37

38 **WHEREAS,** Kansas State University needs to develop its own four-year tuition increase
39 investment plan;
40

41 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**
42

43 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Administration is strongly encouraged to designate a
44 large portion of the increased tuition revenue towards University student-centered
45 enhancements.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

SECTION 2. The Administration is strongly encouraged to use the \$9.00 per credit hour “technology surcharge” solely towards technology enhancements and not on anything other than technological enhancements.

SECTION 3. The Academic Affairs Committee, in cooperation with the Executive Committee and the University Administration, shall meet to discuss the priorities for student-centered University enhancements and shall create a four-year tuition increase investment plan.

SECTION 4. A copy of this resolution shall be sent to Kansas State University President Jon Wefald, Vice President for Institutional Advancement Bob Krause, Vice President for Administration and Finance Tom Rawson, Provost James Coffman, Dean of Student Life Pat Bosco, and each member of the Kansas Board of Regents.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE ON MARCH 13TH, 2003,
WITH A ROLL CALL VOTE OF 43-0.**

RESOLUTION 02/03/71

APPROVAL OF 2003 SGA ELECTIONS RESULTS

BY: Senate Operations Committee and the Elections Commissioner

WHEREAS, The Student Governing Association Primary Election on February 25 and 26, 2003, and the General Election on March 4 and 5, 2003, were both run in a fair and equitable manner by the rules set forth in the KSU SGA By-Laws, Statutes and 2003 Election Campaign Regulations;

WHEREAS, Section 41-0128(b) of the Elections Regulations Code requires the Elections Commissioner to submit the unofficial results to the Senate Operations Standing Committee; to introduce a resolution for approval to Student Senate at the second regular meeting of the Student Senate following the General Election; and

WHEREAS, Student Senate has the authority to approve election results;

BE IT RESOLVED:

SECTION 1. Student Senate approves the results of the 2003 SGA Elections and the election of the following:

STUDENT BODY PRESIDENT and STUDENT BODY VICE PRESIDENT
John O'Hara and Travis Stryker

UNION GOVERNING BOARD (One-Year Term)(2 Positions)
David McCandless
Dustin Kammerer

UNION GOVERNING BOARD (Two-Year Term)(3 Positions)
Jason Heaser
Melody McElwain
Tie Vote: Christine Baker, Gregory Huschka, and Kevin Keatley

BOARD OF STUDENT PUBLICATIONS (One-Year Term)(3 Positions)
Nick Flentie
Emily Meissen
Erin Slattery

BOARD OF STUDENT PUBLICATIONS (Two-Year Term)(1 Position)
Patrice Holderbach

FINE ARTS COUNCIL (One-Year Term)(1 Position)

Melody McElwain

FINE ARTS COUNCIL (Two-Year Term)(1 Position)

Victoria Lowdon

COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE STUDENT SENATORS (5 Positions)

Lori Alexander

Cody Echols

Michael Burns

Whitney Coen

Abby Crow

COLLEGE OF ARCHITECTURE, PLANNING & DESIGN STUDENT SENATORS
(2 Positions)

Lindsay Bathel

Brad Kingsley

COLLEGE OF ARTS & SCIENCES STUDENT SENATORS (18 Positions)

Tammy Jo Osborn

Ben Procter

Laura Wood

Layton Ehmke

Stephanie Biggs

Lindsay Porter

Vicki Conner

Paige Tibbets

David McCandless

Seth Bridge

Ashley Friesen

Emily Meissen

Abbie Rondeau

Katie Bartko

Christine Marie Baker

Sarah Laib

Naureen Kazi

Jared Kyner

COLLEGE OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION STUDENT SENATORS (8 Positions)

John O'Hara

Maggie Trambly

Hayley Urkevich

Lisa Tirrell

Damian Lair

Zach Hauser

Anne Bianculli
Sheldon Bucl

COLLEGE OF EDUCATION STUDENT SENATORS (5 Positions)

Alison Darby
Hannah Mueldener
Suzanne Steffens
Kristin Kiehnhoff
Quenten Troyer

COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING STUDENT SENATORS (8 Positions)

Julie Quackenbush
Kelli Simmelink
Lindsey Porter
Kristine Sheedy
Sam Meier
Ben Long
Katie Kennedy
Zach Stover

COLLEGE OF HUMAN ECOLOGY STUDENT SENATORS (5 Positions)

Amber Lafferty
Melinda Green
Eleri Griffin
Melissa Green
Tie Vote: Jayme Sauber, Melissa Wagner and Katie Horton

COLLEGE OF VETERINARY MEDICINE STUDENT SENATOR (1 Position)

No Person Elected

GRADUATE SCHOOL STUDENT SENATORS (8 Positions)

Suzanne Lueker
Altaf Karim
Mark Threeton
Diane Hess
Srikanth Sankaran
Girish Nehate
Robert Kula
Tie Vote: Ayesha Rizvi, Angel Wilson, Angela Sickles, Kishan Kulkami, Jyostsna Rawal, Aditya Sakhalkar, Matthew Grieshop, Ganesh Bora and Md Uddin

SECTION 2. Vacancies in these offices shall be filled by the person receiving the next highest number of votes.

**THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY
UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 13TH, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/72**

APPROVAL OF NEW STUDENT SENATOR

2
3 **BY:** John O'Hara and MaryElizabeth Kasper

4
5 **WHEREAS,** There is a vacancy in the office of Student Senator for the Senate term of 2003-
6 2004 for the College of Business Administration; and

7
8 **WHEREAS,** David Hart had the next highest vote total to serve as Student Senator in the
9 College of Business Administration;

10
11 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

12
13 **SECTION 1.** David Hart be approved as Student Senator for the Senate term of 2003-2004 for
14 the College of Business Administration.

15
16 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
17 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
18

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/73**

**RESOLUTION TO THANK CITY OF
MANHATTAN CODE SERVICES**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive
5 Cabinet, Student Senate Body, Student Senate Interns
6

7 **WHEREAS,** Safer Housing Week was successful in its mission to inform the student body of
8 the services offered through the City of Manhattan;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** Brad Claussen and Manhattan Code Services assisted the Kansas State University
11 Student Governing Association in its efforts by providing valuable information
12 and informational packets; and
13

14 **WHEREAS,** The City of Manhattan Code Services Department deserves formal recognition of
15 their ongoing efforts to ensure safe and healthy living standards for Kansas State
16 University students;
17

18 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association extends its thanks
21 and gratitude to the City of Manhattan Code Services’ office for their participation
22 in SGA Safer Housing Week and their continued efforts to ensure safe and healthy
23 living environments for Kansas State University students.
24

25 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution shall be sent to Kansas State University President Jon
26 Wefald, City of Manhattan Building Official Brad Claussen, Human Resources
27 Specialist Larry Hackney, Assistant to the City Manager Sammi Mangus, and City
28 Manager Ron Fehr.
29

30 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
31 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
32

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/74**

2 **HONORARY NAMING OF THE**
3 **STUDENT UNION PLAZA AREA**

4 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet,
5 Student Senate Interns, Lori Alexander, Christine Baker, Lindsay Bathel, Matt Beaven,
6 Suzanne Blakely, Chad Bontrager, Tyler Breeden, Seth Bridge, Sheldon Bucl, Danny
7 Callahan, Katherine Carter, Mick Charney, Ryan Conway, Jennifer Duclos, Kim Freed,
8 Ryan Garrett, Eleri Griffin, Essence Halliburton, Mike Hart, Andrew Hayjurst, Delvin
9 Higginson, Eric Hoopingarner, Altaf Karim, Brad Kingsley, Tanner Klingzell, Amber
10 Laferty, Sam Meier, Emily Meissen, Ramesh Mohan, Bill Muir, Tammy Jo Osborn, Ben
11 Procter, Lindsey Porter, Julie Quackenbush, Laurie Quaife, Jawwad Qureshi, Kristine
12 Sheedy, Erica Smith, Travis Smith, Sarah Sourk, Layne Stafford, Heath Starr, Jeremy
13 Stohs, Travis Stryker, Ross Stutterheim, Mark Threeton, Lisa Tirrell, Maggie Trambly,
14 Haley Urkevich, Leslie VanNordstrand, Paul White, Andrea Zimmer
15

16 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Pat J. Bosco has contributed extensive amounts of dedication, time, and
17 energy to Kansas State University and the enrichment of student life;
18

19 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Pat J. Bosco has been an administrator of Kansas State University for over a
20 quarter-century;
21

22 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Pat J. Bosco should be honored for his continuous service to the University
23 and to the quality of student life at Kansas State University; and
24

25 **WHEREAS,** Dr. Pat J. Bosco originally envisioned the closing of the street between Seaton
26 Hall and the Kansas State Student Union and the creation of the plaza area;
27

28 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

29
30 **SECTION 1.** Student Senate strongly encourages the Administration to rename the area
31 between Seaton Hall and the Kansas State Student Union (formerly known as the
32 “Free Speech Zone”) to be named the “Bosco Student Plaza.”
33

34 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be sent to Dean of Student Life Pat J. Bosco, Kansas
35 State University President Jon Wefald, President of Kansas State University
36 Alumni Association Amy Button Renz, Vice President for Institutional
37 Advancement Bob Krause, Director of Facilities Planning Jerry Carter, College of
38 Business Academic Advisor Julie Katz, and Associate Professor Jeff Katz.
39

40 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE**
41 **ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/75**

**RESOLUTION TO COMMEND
JENNYFER OWENSBY**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive
5 Cabinet, Student Senate Body, Student Senate Interns
6

7 **WHEREAS,** Jennyfer Owensby has been a tremendous asset to the Student Governing
8 Association over the course of the five years she has worked in the Office of
9 Student Activities and Services;
10

11 **WHEREAS,** The fact that many student leaders seek advice, recommendations, and help from
12 her are a true testimony to the respect she has earned during her time;
13

14 **WHEREAS,** Jennyfer has helped develop ideas and initiate changes in the funding regulations
15 to better serve student organizations;
16

17 **WHEREAS,** She has been a true friend to many of the student leaders and employees in the
18 Office of Student Activities and Services;
19

20 **WHEREAS,** Her long hours of care and concern for the employees and student leaders in the
21 Office of Student Activities and Services make it a positive environment to work
22 and allow the opportunity to achieve the goals of all parties; and
23

24 **WHEREAS,** Without her assistance the student leaders and employees would be unable to
25 accomplish all the necessary tasks and goals at hand;
26

27 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**
28

29 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends Jennyfer
30 Owensby for her extraordinary commitment of time and service to Kansas State
31 University and the Office of Student Activities and Services, and expresses its
32 thanks and gratitude for her outstanding work.
33

34 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to Jennyfer Owensby and her husband upon
35 passage.
36

37 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
38 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
39

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/76**

**RESOLUTION TO COMMEND
LATOYA KENNEDY**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive
5 Cabinet, Student Senate Body, Student Senate Interns
6

7 **WHEREAS,** LaToya Kennedy is a tremendous help to everyone in the Office of Student
8 Activities and Services;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** She always demonstrates a positive attitude while selflessly devoting time and
11 energy to helping make this institution a better place;
12

13 **WHEREAS,** Her long hours of care and concern for the employees and student leaders in the
14 Office of Student Activities and Services make it a positive environment to work
15 and allow the opportunity to achieve the goals of all parties; and
16

17 **WHEREAS,** Without her assistance the student leaders and employees would be unable to
18 accomplish all the necessary tasks and goals at hand;
19

20 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**
21

22 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends LaToya
23 Kennedy for her extraordinary commitment of time and service to Kansas State
24 University and the Office of Student Activities and Services, and expresses its
25 thanks and gratitude for her outstanding work.
26

27 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to LaToya Kennedy and her parents upon
28 passage.
29

30 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
31 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
32

4 **BY:** Bill Muir, Mick Charney, Zac Cook and Todd Kohman

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The 2002-2003 Student Senate was elected on March 6, 2002, and was sworn into office
7 on April 4, 2002, and will adjourn sine die on March 27, 2003;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** 88 Bills and 83 Resolutions were considered by the 2002-2003 Student Senate, with 87
10 Bills passed into law (98.86% enactment rate) and 81 Resolutions adopted (97.75%
11 adoption rate);

12
13 **WHEREAS,** The 2002-2003 Student Senate and Student Senate Interns labored for over 77.5 hours
14 during its 27 meetings in Manhattan and Salina in the 7 school months of existence for
15 the benefit of the Kansas State University Student Body (an average of over 11.1 hours
16 per month and of 2.87 hours per meeting);

17
18 **WHEREAS,** The service of the elected Student Senators and Student Senate Interns has been
19 exemplary, benefitting both students and the University; and

20
21 **WHEREAS,** The Faculty Representatives to Student Senate and the Student Body President and
22 Student Body Vice President have valued and treasured their time with the members of
23 the 2002-2003 Student Senate and Student Senate Interns, and feel that appropriate
24 recognition of their service is in order and necessary;

25
26
27 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

28
29 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and
30 congratulates the 2002-2003 Student Senate and Student Senate Interns for their service
31 and dedication to Kansas State University, and expresses its thanks and gratitude for
32 their outstanding performance in office.

33
34 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to each member of the 2002-2003 Student Senate and
35 Student Senate Intern upon passage.

36
37 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
38 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
39

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/78**

2 **COMMENDATION TO STUDENT SENATE STANDING**
3 **COMMITTEE CHAIRS, ELECTIONS COMMISSIONER AND**
4 **OTHER MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE**

5 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet, Student Senate
6 Body, Student Senate Interns

7
8 **WHEREAS,** The Constitution and By-Laws of the Kansas State University Student Governing Association
9 specify that that Student Senate shall be organized into Standing Committees, and that the
10 Elections Commissioner shall be responsible for carrying out the KSU SGA elections;

11
12 **WHEREAS,** The Constitution and By-Laws provide for the election of a Student Senate Intern Coordinator and
13 a Student Senate Representative to Faculty Senate, and for the selection of a Student Senate
14 Secretary;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** The Allocations Standing Committee, the Privilege Fee Standing Committee, the Senate
17 Operations Standing Committee, the Academic Affairs and University Relations Standing
18 Committee, the Student Affairs and Social Services Standing Committee and the Governmental
19 Relations Standing Committee are specified in the KSU SGA By-Laws as the six Standing
20 Committees of Student Senate; and the Elections Commissioner is specified in the KSU SGA By-
21 Laws and Statutes as responsible for SGA Elections; and

22
23 **WHEREAS,** These members of the Student Senate Executive Committee and the Elections Commissioner have
24 provided leadership, guidance and direction to their respective Standing Committee or Election
25 Committee and the Student Senate;

26
27 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

28
29 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and congratulates the
30 following members of the Student Senate Executive Committee of the Kansas State University
31 Student Senate and the Elections Commissioner for their service and dedication to Kansas State
32 University, and expresses its thanks and gratitude for their outstanding leadership and performance
33 in office:

- 34
- 35 Laurie A. Quaife Allocations Standing Committee Chair
- 36 Travis E. Stryker Privilege Fee Standing Committee Chair
- 37 William L. Harlan and
- 38 Lisa M. Tirrell Senate Operations Standing Committee Chairs
- 39 Seth T. Bridge Academic Affairs and University Relations Standing Committee Chair
- 40 Eleri A. Griffin Student Affairs and Social Services Standing Committee Chair
- 41 Julie M. Quackenbush Governmental Relations Standing Committee Chair
- 42 Mark D. Threeton Elections Commissioner
- 43 Amber E. Lafferty Student Senate Intern Coordinator
- 44 Tanner N. Klingzell Student Senate Representative to Faculty Senate
- 45 Maggie L. Trambly Student Senate Secretary
- 46 Chad A. Bontrager Student Senate Parliamentarian
- 47

48 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to each of these Student Senate Executive Committee members
49 and the Elections Commissioner and their parents upon passage.

50
51 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
52 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
53

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/79**

COMMENDATION TO ATTORNEY GENERAL

2
3 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet,
4 Student Senate Body, Student Senate Interns
5

6 **WHEREAS,** The Attorney General is the non-partisan head of the Judicial Branch of the Kansas State
7 University Student Governing Association--a position of trust and responsibility over a
8 multi-faceted and broad-based group of boards, council and judicial officers;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** John V. Graham served as SGA Attorney General during the 2002-2003 term;
11

12 **WHEREAS,** John Graham has served with distinction and devotion and as a role model for all student
13 leaders during his term in office; and
14

15 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body of Kansas State University has benefitted from the selfless devotion of
16 John Graham to his office;
17

18 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

19
20 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and
21 congratulates John V. Graham for his commitment of time and service to Kansas State
22 University, and expresses its thanks and gratitude for his outstanding leadership and
23 performance as SGA Attorney General.
24

25 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to John Graham and his parents, Jack and Elaine
26 Graham, Norton Kansas, upon passage.
27

28 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
29 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
30

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/80**

2 **COMMENDATION TO STUDENT SENATE CHAIR**
3 **AND STUDENT SENATE VICE CHAIRS**

4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive Cabinet, Student Senate Body, Student Senate
5 Interns

6
7 **WHEREAS,** John M. O’Hara has served the 2002-2003 Student Senate with distinction as Student
8 Senate Chair and MaryElizabeth K. Kasper and Victoria L. Conner have served the
9 2002-2003 Student Senate with distinction as Student Senate Vice Chairs;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper and Vicki Conner have been and are continuing to
12 be involved in numerous aspects of student government;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper and Vicki Conner have devoted long hours of care
15 and concern for the students of Kansas State University; and

16
17 **WHEREAS,** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper and Vicki Conner have been trusted friends and
18 comrades of all members of Student Senate;

19
20 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

21
22 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and
23 congratulates Student Senate Chair John M. O’Hara and Student Senate Vice Chairs
24 MaryElizabeth K. Kasper and Victoria L. Conner for their commitment of time and
25 service to Kansas State University, and expresses its thanks and gratitude for their
26 outstanding leadership and performance in office.

27
28 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper and Vicki
29 Conner and their parents upon passage.

30
31 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
32 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
33

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/81**

2 **COMMENDATION TO STUDENT BODY PRESIDENT**
3 **AND STUDENT BODY VICE PRESIDENT**

4 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Executive Cabinet, Student Senate Body, Student
5 Senate Interns

6
7 **WHEREAS,** Zachary A. Cook and Todd M. Kohman were elected Student Body President and
8 Student Body Vice President on March 27, 2002, and sworn in on April 4, 2002;

9
10 **WHEREAS,** Zac Cook and Todd Kohman have continually worked for the enhancement of Kansas
11 State University, its students, faculty and staff;

12
13 **WHEREAS,** Zac Cook and Todd Kohman have selflessly devoted time and energy to their offices
14 during their term of office;

15
16 **WHEREAS,** Zac Cook and Todd Kohman have superbly represented the Kansas State University
17 Student Governing Association before the President of the University, the State Board of
18 Regents and the Kansas Legislature;

19
20 **WHEREAS,** Zac Cook and Todd Kohman have actively worked for student issues and have been
21 essential in the implementation of the SafeRide program and the Global Education
22 Initiative; and

23
24 **WHEREAS,** Zac Cook and Todd Kohman have been effective and responsible student leaders;

25
26
27 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

28
29 **SECTION 1.** Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends and congratulates
30 Student Body President Zachary A. Cook and Student Body Vice President Todd M.
31 Kohman for their commitment of time and service to Kansas State University, and
32 expresses its thanks and gratitude for their outstanding leadership and performance in
33 office.

34
35 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to Zac Cook, Mary Cook, and Todd Kohman and their
36 parents upon passage.

37
38 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
39 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**
40

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/82**

**RESOLUTION TO COMMEND
GAYLE SPENCER**

2
3
4 **BY:** John O’Hara, MaryElizabeth Kasper, Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, Executive
5 Cabinet, Student Senate Body, Student Senate Interns
6

7 **WHEREAS,** Gayle L. Spencer has just completed her duty as Chair of the National Association
8 for Campus Activities;
9

10 **WHEREAS,** She has impressively represented Kansas State University;
11

12 **WHEREAS,** Her accomplishments in NACA include downsizing regions and increasing
13 diversity;
14

15 **WHEREAS,** Her long hours of care and concern for the employees and student leaders in the
16 Office of Student Activities and Services make it a positive environment to work
17 and allow the opportunity to achieve the goals of all parties; and
18

19 **WHEREAS,** Without her assistance the student leaders and employees would be unable to
20 accomplish all the necessary tasks and goals at hand;
21

22 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**
23

24 **SECTION 1.** The Kansas State University Student Governing Association commends Gayle
25 Spencer for her extraordinary commitment of time and service to Kansas State
26 University and the Office of Student Activities and Services, and expresses its
27 thanks and gratitude for her outstanding work.
28

29 **SECTION 2.** A copy of this resolution be given to Gayle Spencer and her mother.
30

31 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
32 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**

1 **RESOLUTION 02/03/83**

**APPROVAL OF HONOR COUNCIL
APPOINTMENT**

2
3
4 **BY:** Zac Cook, Todd Kohman, John O’Hara and MaryElizabeth Kasper

5
6 **WHEREAS,** The Student Body Vice President, in consultation with the Student Body
7 President, must appoint students to serve on the Honor Council;

8
9 **WHEREAS,** The Honor Council hears complaints of student academic dishonesty;

10
11 **WHEREAS,** Student representation is vital for the Honor Council to represent student voice
12 and concern;

13
14 **WHEREAS,** There is a vacancy on the Honor Council in the College of Architecture Planning,
15 and Design; and

16
17 **WHEREAS,** The following appointment is subject to Student Senate approval;

18
19 **BE IT RESOLVED THAT:**

20
21 **SECTION 1.** Brad Kingsley be approved as a member of the Honor Council for the College of
22 Architecture, Planning and Design.

23
24 **THIS RESOLUTION PASSED STUDENT SENATE BY**
25 **UNANIMOUS CONSENT ON MARCH 27TH, 2003.**

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
Date April 18, 2002
Time 7:00 p.m.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge

ROLL CALL

Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Vice Chair Conner: Rally for Higher Education
Board of Regents
Chairman O'Hara: Hand in committee preference forms ASAP
Appointments to be made- Union Governing Board – 1 position
Parliamentarian – 1 position
Education Opportunities Fund – 2 positions
Fine Arts Council – 3 positions

Proxies: Quaife for Quackenbush
Stohs for Sourk
Conner for Bucl
Procter for Green
Alexander for Bowser
Sourk for Rondeau
Breden for Garrett
Charney for Muir

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan
Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife
Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker
Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge
S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin
Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Coordinator Spencer: List serve-see Gayle if you need to be added
Selection for Students Attorney committee-Looking for people
College Bowl volunteers, April 27 – Sign up
Enroll for zero credit hour class
President Cook: Rally for Higher Education
Board of Regents- 40/60 Rule, an increase in upper level course requirement
Meeting with Governor
Faculty Senate Representative Klingzell:
Academic Advising

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/07 Approval of New Student Senator

Moved by Benton, Read by Conner, Moved unanimous consent, Passes unanimously

Res 02/03/06 Approval of Standing Committee Chairs and Secretary

Moved by Kasper, Read by Conner, Moved unanimous consent, fails. Positive debate Conner, Call for a voice vote, passed by majority.

FINAL ACTION

None

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/08 Commendation to Faculty Senate President Cia Vercshelden

Moved by Krier, read by Callahan, referred to Senate Opps

Res 02/03/09 Commendation to Kansas State University Speech Unlimited

Moved by Urkevich, Read by King, Referred to Senate Opps

Res 02/03/10 Support of Student Effort to Keep Higher Education a Priority in the State Budget

Moved by Kasper, read by Cook, Referred, Moved Special Orders by Conner, Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper- Passed Unanimously

OPEN PERIOD

Callahan: Faculty Softball game
Cook: Accountability for Res 02/03/10
Stafford: Men's Glee Club Concert, All Faiths Chapel at 7:30 p.m. April 19, 2002-\$5 charge
Conner: Congratulations new chairmen/women and secretary
Smith: United Black Voices, All Faiths Chapel, Saturday April 20, free
O'Hara: Make sure you're on the list serve!

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

02.03/08 & 02/03/09 referred to Senate Opps committee

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS REVISIONS

none

ADJOURNMENT

Time : 7:50 p.m.

Moved by Stelljes to adjourn until April 25 at 7:00 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
APRIL 23, 2002
8:00 P.M.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge

ROLL CALL

OPEN PERIOD

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Quaife for Quackenbush

Callahan for Conner

Tirrell for Lafferty

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan:

Senate Operations Committee meeting was held Tuesday at 8:00 in OSAS.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife:

Brief Allocations meeting immediately following Senate.

Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker:

Brief Privilege Fee meeting immediately following Senate.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge:

Brief Academic Affairs meeting immediately following Senate.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin:

Brief SASS meeting immediately following Senate.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush:

NONE

DIRECTORS REPORTS

President Cook: NONE

Coordinator Spencer: NONE

Faculty Senate Representative Klingzell:

Thursday, May 2, in Nickels Hall there will be persuasive speeches at 2:00

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/11 Approval of Parliamentarian

Moved by Stohs, Chair turned to Senate Operations Chairman Harlan, Read by O'Hara, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/12 Approval of Fine Arts Council Appointments

Moved by Burnett, Chair turned to Parliamentarian Chad Bontrager, read by O'Hara, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/13 Approval of Student Body President's Cabinet

Moved by Griffin, read by Vice President Kohman, Questions, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, fails, Passes by majority voice vote.

Res 02/03/14 Approval of Educational Opportunity Fund Committee Appointments

Moved by Kasper, read by Kohman, Unanimous consent called for by Callahan, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/15 Approval of Union Governing Board Appointments

Moved by Callahan, read by Kohman, moved unanimous consent by Benton, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/18 Approval of Attorney General

Moved by Stelljes, read by Kohman, questions, moved unanimous consent called by Kasper, passes unanimously. *John Graham is sworn in.*

FINAL ACTION

Res 02/03/08 Commendation to Faculty Senate President Cia Verschelden

Changes: Grammatical changes made in Senate Operations, no other new changes.

Debate - Callahan, and unanimous consent called for by Callahan. Passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/09 Commendation to Kansas State University Speech Unlimited

Changes: Add all senators, and King addressed other changes. Kasper called for unanimous consent, passed unanimously.

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/16 Commendation to Dianne Urban

Moved by Rondeau, Chair turned to Parliamentarian Bontrager, read by O'Hara, held for referral.

Res 02/03/17 Commendation to Recipients of 2002 Presidential Awards

Moved by Callahan, read by Kohman, held for referral.

OPEN PERIOD

Karimi yields his time to Jim Stovtenborough (Association of Residence Halls): Spoke on the possibility of turning Wildcat Walk program over to the ARH from the SGA. Questions were addressed.

Vice President Kohman: Cabinet members met immediately following Senate.

Green: Free scoop of ice cream at Baskin Robbins next Wednesday from 6-10:00 pm.

Griffin: Thanks to the outstanding people in this body.

Smith: BSU Awards Ball Saturday in KSU room, \$5.

O'Hara: Last meeting will be next Thursday.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/16 and Res 02/03/17 referred to Senate Operations Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Time 8:55 PM.

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
Date 5/2/02
Time 7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Muir moves to extend first speakers minutes to 25 minutes.

Beth Unger & Rob Caffey on Electronic Student Services.

O'Hara asks to extend open period for twenty minutes, no objections.

Jake Mooney on Business Honors Program.

Josh Leonard on SGA Elections Process.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Chairman O'Hara: Executive meeting Sunday at 7:00 PM.
Goals of committees will be posted in OSAS.
Appointments to be made next fall:

Proxies: Conner for Bucl
 Procter for Green
 Alexander for Bowser
 Quaife for Stryker
 Osborn for Burnett
 Stohs for Kasper
 Absent: Bontrager

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan: Last meeting for year was last week. Passed out legislation in the agenda.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Met on Sunday.

Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker:

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge: Met Sunday and today. Issues: Library hours, relations with alumni center. Goals were passed out of committee.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin: Met on Sunday, discussed goals. Meetings will be at 6:00 Sunday evening in OSAS.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Conner announces that GR will be meeting immediately following senate.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

President Cook: Credit card solicitation, database for alumni living abroad and offer internships abroad through connections, grants from Pepsi for international programs, option of getting student voting member on Board of Regents, increase communication with KU Senate.

Vice President Kohman: At large member appointments will be made in September.

Coordinator Spencer:

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/19 Approval of University Committee Appointments

Moved by Benton, read by Kohman, moved unanimous consent by Stelljes, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/20 Approval of Honor Council Appointments

Moved by Prophet, read by Kohman, moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/22 Approval of Fine Arts Council

Moved by Smith, read by Conner, moved unanimous consent by Stelljes, passes unanimously.

FINAL ACTION

F 10-0 Res 02/03/16 Commendation to Dianne Urban

Chair turned to Senate Operations Chair Harlan. Previously made changes. Positive debate, Chairman O'Hara. Moved Unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously.

F 10-0 Res 02/03/17 Commendation to Recipients of 2002 Presidential Awards

Moved unanimous consent by Conner, passes unanimously.

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/02 Revisions to the Student Activity Fee Funding Regulations

Moved by Tirrell, moved to suspend the rules by suspending the readings by Stelljes, friendly to suspend the readings but to read the changes made by Harlan. Moved special orders by Griffin, positive debate Griffin, passes special orders. Moved into final action. Questions/changes. Positive debate Quaiife. Changes made. Roll call vote, passes 51-0-0.

Res 02/03/21 Approval of Fine Arts Council Funding Guideline Changes

Moved by Stohs, read by Stelljes, moved special orders by Stafford, positive debate. Moved into final action. Moved unanimous consent by Stelljes, passes unanimously.

OPEN PERIOD

Senator Muir: Introduction of Jeff Dugon and discussion of open period specifications.

Vice President Kohman: President Cook is engaged.

Vice Chair Conner: Congratulations to President Cook, and Governmental Relations Committee will meet immediately following Senate.

Chief of Staff King: Had first meeting, discussed goals and plans.

Director of International Affairs Sturgis: Need volunteers to go pick up international students at airport.

Senator Smith: BSU Ball will be held in KSU Ballrooms at 7:00 PM, Saturday, May 4. Attire is formal and there is a \$7 charge at the door, \$5 in advance.

President Cook: Swear in Cabinet Members.

Chairman O'Hara: Letter from Senate President Dave Kerr regarding Res 02/03/10. Discussed vacancies in Business and Graduate Senate seats. This is the last meeting!

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

NONE

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ADJOURNMENT

TIME: 9:30 PM.

Moved by Stelljes, passes.

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
Date 9/4/2002
Time 7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the Pledge

ROLL CALL

OPEN PERIOD

Dr. Bosco, Dean of Student Life: Introduction of recruiting video producer and thanks for our hard work.
Director of bands, Dr. Tracz: Thank you for Memorial Field.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

ANNOUNCEMENTS

O'Hara: Moment of silence in respect of our peers who have passed on.
September 11, Observance: Remembrance, Hope, and Commitment. Noon in the Union Plaza.
Announcement of committee appointment availabilities.
Proxies need to be made 24 hours in advance.

Proxies: Beaven for Green
Smith for Halliburton
Tirrell for Rondeau

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan: Elections regulation changes (possibly in-house) meeting on Monday. Regular meetings will be on Tuesday nights.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Meeting on Sunday nights.

Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker: Meeting on Monday and Lafene tour.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge: Online transcripts, ect....Sept 15, at 9:00 p.m.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin: OSAS conference room, 6:00 p.m. on Sunday.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Voter Registration, next meeting Monday, 9:30 p.m. OSAS.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Vice Chair Conner: Retreat and visitation information.

Chief of Staff King: Next meeting September 18, at 6:30. Issues: Voter registration, on campus recycling, Collegian articles, ect.

Intern Coordinator Lafferty: Interns will be here next week, committee chairs

Faculty Senate Representative Klingzell: Writing assessment and plus minus system are some issues.

Governmental Director McCandless: City Commission Meetings are the first and third Tuesdays at 7:00 p.m. in City Hall.

International Affairs Sturgis: Conversational English program needs volunteers.

VP Kohman: Thank you to Bosco for support, and Union workers for assistance.

President Cook: September 12th, is the meeting with the budget up-dates. Let your respective college know. September 18th is an open forum in Union Courtyard, September 18th and 19th is the Board of Regents meeting. September 24th & 25th is the career fair. Meeting in Salina is September 26th. October 19th is the Alumni Center ribbon cutting. October 30th is possible KU Senate meeting.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 20/03/23 Approval of New Student Senator

Read by Conner, Moved Unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/24 Approval of New Student Senator

Read by Conner, Moved Unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/03 FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization

Moved by Benton, second by Tirrell, read by Meier, held for referral

Bill 02/03/04 FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization

Moved by Smith, second by Stohs, read by Meier, held for referral

Bill 02/03/05 FY 2003 Allocations to Sports Clubs

Moved by Osborn, second by Krier, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/06 FY 2003 Allocation to Pakistani Students Association

Moved by Callahan, second by Urkevich, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/07 FY 2003 Allocation to Community Cultural Harmony Week

Moved by Quackenbush, second by Meissen, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/08 FY 2002 Campus-Wide Organization Closing of Accounts

Moved by Stryker, second by Benton, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/09 FY 2002 Institutional Services Closing of Accounts

Moved by Weigel, second by Krier, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/10 FY 2002 Academic Competition Team Closing of Accounts

Moved by Hart, second by Breeden, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/11 FY 2002 Sports Clubs Closing of Accounts

Moved by Procter, second by Bathel, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/12 FY 2002 College Councils Closing of Accounts

Moved by Klingzell, second by Bucl, read by Quaife, held for referral.

FINAL ACTION

None

OPEN PERIOD

President Cook: Congratulations to Senator Muir on new title.

Senator Weigel: September 11 announcements and Alumni Center usage.

Chairman O'Hara: Only 3 unexcused absences are allowed.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bills 02/03/03, 02/03/04, 02/03/05, 02/03/06, 02/03/07, 02/03/08, 02/03/09, 02/03/10, 02/03/11, 02/03/12 were referred to the Allocations Committee.

**ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS
REVISIONS**

NONE

ADJOURNMENT

Time

Moved by Senator Erica Smith

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
Date September, 12th, 2002
7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge

ROLL CALL

OPEN PERIOD

Vice-Provost for Academic Services and Technology & Dean of Continuing Education, Elizabeth Unger: Online services.

Rob Caffey, Director of Mediated Information Technology Assistance: Online ballots and elections.

Rebecca Gould, Director of Information Technology Assistance Center: ITEC services.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Chairman O'Hara: Committee Assignments

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan: Elections Legislation will be passed out of committee this week.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: HALO and HYPE representatives scheduled for next meeting.

Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker: Lafene tour, 7:00 p.m. Sunday, main entrance. Budget review will follow tour.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge: Online transcripts and Library hours will be discussed at the meeting on Sunday, at 9:00p.m.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin: Sunday, 6:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room will be the next meeting. Wildcat Walk Legislation, Off-Campus housing pamphlet, and how to get student input will be discussed, as well as ideas for a service project.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be held, Tuesday, 9:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Board of Regents, GAPS week planning, and voter registration will be discussed.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Coordinator Spencer: New Students Attorney, Susan Henson.

Vice-Chair Conner: Visitations: Wednesday, October 23, is the deadline for the first visitation. Interns will go with mentors. Second visitation deadline will be

November 20. Topics to discuss: voter registration, transcripts, library hours, tuition, ect. Pick up packets from OSAS for visitations.
Intern Coordinator Lafferty: Intern mentors are needed.
Chief of Staff King: Next cabinet meeting will be Thursday.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

- Res 02/03/25 Approval of Student Senate Interns
Moved by Benton, Read by Lafferty, Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, Passes Unanimously.
- Res 02/03/26 Approval of University Committee Appointments
Moved by Tirrell, Read by Kohman, moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.
- Res 02/03/27 Approval of Judicial Branch Appointment
Moved by Klingzell, read by Graham, moved unanimous by Kasper, passes unanimously
- Res 02/03/28 Approval of Judicial Branch Appointments
Moved by Stohs, read by Graham, moved unanimous
- Res 02/03/29 Approval of Fine Arts Council Apointments
Moved by Breeden, read by Conner, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

FINAL ACTION

- F 7-0 Bill 02/03/03 FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
Vote: 52/0/0
- F 7-0 Bill 02/03/04 FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
Vote: 52/0/0

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/05 FY 2003 Allocations to Sports Clubs

- Vote: 52/0/0
- F 7-0 Bill 02/03/06 FY 2003 Allocation to Pakistani Students Association
Vote: 41/4/7
- F 7-0 Bill 02/03/07 FY 2003 Allocation to Community Cultural Harmony Week
Vote: 52/0/0
- F 7-0 Bill 02/03/08 FY 2002 Campus-Wide Organization Closing of Accounts
Vote: 52/0/0
- F 7-0 Bill 02/03/09 FY 2002 Institutional Services Closing of Accounts
Vote: 52/0/0
- F 7-0 Bill 02/03/10 FY 2002 Academic
Vote: 52/0/0

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

- Bill 02/03/13 FY 2003 Allocation to Pakistani Students Association
Moved by Callahan, Read by Quaipe, Held for referral.
- Bill 02/03/14 FY 2003 Allocation to Sports Club
Moved by Benton, Read by Quaipe, held for referral.
- Res 02/03/30 Support For Student Union Restroom Renovation
Moved by Hallibuton, Read by Conner, held for referral.
- Bill 02/03/15 Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations

Moved by Porter, read by Harlan, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/16 Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations

Moved by Smith, read by Harlan, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/17 Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations

Moved by Stryker, read by Harlan, held for referral.

OPEN PERIOD

Conner: Pick up visitation packets

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bills 02/03/13 and 02/03/14 were referred to the Allocations Committee.

Bills 02/03/15, 02/03/16, and 02/03/17 were referred to Senate Operations Committee.

Resolution 02/03/30 was referred to the SASS committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS REVISIONS

NONE

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Smith. Passes Unanimously

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
103 College Center
Salina Campus
September 26th, 2002
8:05 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Vice Chair Conner called the meeting to order at 8:05 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Vice Chair Conner led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Introduction of Salina SGA members.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Senator Muir: Library hours changed back to previous hours and enrollment is up.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Allocations will meet on Sunday, 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, 5:30 in OSAS. Lafene visitation fee will be discussed.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge: Unofficial transcripts and dead week will be on the agenda for the next meeting.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin: Next meeting will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. at Java.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Intern Coordinator Lafferty: Intern retreat will be held on the 29th of September, from 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m., executive is urged to attend.

President Cook: Board of Regents requires Credit Card solicitation policy before next meeting. October 12th will be a voter registration drive/challenge. Registration will occur at the football game, and we will be competing against KU.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/18 FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
Allocation changed from \$800 to \$750. Passes 45/0/0

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/19 FY 2003 Allocation to Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators
Passes 45/0/0

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/31 SGA Approval of Designation of Wildcat Walk to KSU ARH

Moved by Meissen, Read by Griffin, held for referral.
Bill 02/03/20 FY 2003 Allocation to K-State Russian and CIS Students
Association

Moved by Stohs, read by Quaiife, held for referral.
Bill 02/03/21 FY 2003 Allocation to Amnesty International
Moved by Lafferty, read by Quaiife, held for referral.

OPEN PERIOD

Vice Chair Conner said that visitations are due October 23rd, continue to take petitions around, they are still valid.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/31 will be referred to the Student Affairs and Social Services Committee, Bills 02/03/20 and 02/03/21 will be referred to the Allocations Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

8:55 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
DATE OCTOBER 3rd, 2002
7:10 p.m.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Director of Honors Program, Phil Anderson: Honors Program.

Assistant Vice President of Administration and Finance: Lafene Privilege Fee.

Emily Bell & Matt Bell, KSU Ambassadors: Ambassador Program.

Sol and Catherine: Up Til' Dawn benefiting St. Jude Hospital. Contact information: sdp8943@ksu.edu

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan: Next meeting will be Tuesday, at 6:00 p.m. Discussion will include elections and a possible elections commissioner. Please attend and bring concerns.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday in OSAS at 7:00 p.m.

Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS. Discussion will include Lafene, please attend and bring concerns.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge: Next meeting will be Sunday, at 9:00 p.m. in OSAS. Continue with library hour petitions.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin: Sunday, at 6:00 p.m. will be the next meeting; discussion will include on-campus solicitation, Manhattan St. safety ideas, ect.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Tuesday at Java in Aggieville at 9:00 p.m. On October 14th and 15th there will be tables in the Union promoting voter registration. There will also be a table at the Recreational Center on the 14th from 6-9 p.m. On October 31st we are attempting to get the Lieutenant General and the Secretary of State to come to campus.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

President Cook: Tuesday October 8th at 4:00, Senator Steve Morris will be here to talk to us about state funding concerns. Cats Challenge 2002 will be October 12th. Line Schedules will be \$2. Please help to increase efficiency of Online Line Schedules by providing input. Project Vote Smart will be sending information for Governmental Relations. Collegiate Readership Program will have a pilot program for four weeks starting October 28th. The cost of implementing this program would be from \$5-6 per person in Privilege Fee. Surveys will be used to determine the benefit of the program.

Vice President Kohman: Educational Opportunities Fund met and will be making cuts. Next meeting will be Tuesday at 9:00 p.m. in OSAS. SafeRide Task Force will meet again Thursday, at 6:00 p.m. outside of Big 12 room. Give blood next week.

Chief of Staff, King: Thursday, October 17th at 6:30 p.m. in OSAS will be the next Cabinet meeting. KU voter registration challenge will occur on October 12th. Please help; contact her at sdp8943@ksu.edu

Vice Chair Conner: 34 senators, 14 interns, President Cook, and Vice President Kohman were in attendance at the Salina meeting. We received tours of the Salina Campus and had our regular meeting.

Faculty/Senate Rep. Klingzell: Fall 2003 freshmen will be required to complete 45 hours of 300+ classes. Out of class exam procedures may change. Discussed the possibility of having no classes on the afternoon of Open House.

Chairman O'Hara: Senate Meeting on the 17th will include a funding presentation; please attend.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/32 Approval of SafeRide Task Force Appointments

Moved by Meier, read by Kohman, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/33 Approval of KSDB Board Appointments

Moved by Sourk, read by Kohman, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/34 Approval of Educational Opportunity Fund Appointment

Moved by Halliburton, read by Kohman, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/35 Approval of Athletic Ticket Sales Committee

Moved by Stafford, read by Kohman, moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously.

FINAL ACTION

F 10-0 Res 02/03/31 SGA Approval of Designation of Wildcat Walk to ARH

Moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

F 10-0 Bill 02/03/20 FY 2003 Allocation to K-State Russian CIS Students Association

Positive Debate: Chair Quaife, Intern Crow. Passes 48/0/0.

F 10-0 Bill 02/03/21 FY 2003 Allocation to Amnesty International

Positive debate: Chair Quaife. Passes 48/0/0.

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/22 Increase in the Student Health Privilege Fee

Moved by Griffin, read by Urkevich, held for referral.

Res 02/03/36 Resolution to Thank September 26th Meeting Hosts

Moved by Benton, read by Conner, moved Special Orders by Klingzell, motion withdrawn. Held for referral.

OPEN PERIOD

Conner: Meeting on 31st may possibly be a costume senate.

Sheedy: Abby Mais is head of blood drive.

Cook: Speak easy is planned to October 17th, immediately following Senate.

O'Hara: Privilege Fee meeting on Monday 7:00 p.m. in OSAS is strongly recommended. Free parking for students at men and women's basketball games is available.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/22 will be referred to the Privilege Fee Committee, Resolution 02/03/36 will be referred to the Executive committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS REVISIONS

ROLL CALL

Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Halliburton moved for adjournment at 9:01 p.m. until October 10th at 7:00 p.m. Passes.

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
October 10, 2002
7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

46 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Bob Krause, Vice President of Institutional Advancement: New Student Enrollment Center and funding.

Matt Pruett, UPC President: Lewis Black, and UPC activities.

Dave Mayor: KSU Police.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Stohs for Kasper
 Stryker for Urkevich
 Quackenbush for Porter
 Meier for Benton
 Intern Mattke-excused

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan: Elections process will be discussed at the meeting on Tuesday at 6:00 p.m.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: College Council Allocations process will be under review. Next meeting will be Sunday, 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Privilege Fee Chair Travis Stryker: University Counseling Services will be under review next week. The meeting will be Tuesday, 7:00 p.m. at Lafene.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge: Library petitions, and advising improvements are issues on the agenda for Sunday, 9:00 p.m.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin: Free Speech Zone on campus, increased police at controversial events, safety issues including crosswalks and lighting on campus, and safety at Jarvis will be discussed at the next meeting on Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS. Mayors Parade is coming up on December 2nd. It begins at 4:30 in the Dillards parking lot.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Voter Registration Tables on Monday and Tuesday, from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. and at the Recreational Center in the evening. There will be pamphlets concerning local elections and there will be a Letter to the Editor in the Collegian concerning voter registration. On October 31st there will be a forum with guest speakers including Lieutenant Governor candidate Moore, a

representative from candidate Shallenburger, and Attorney General candidate Biggs and possibly a representative from candidate Kline.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

President Cook: Solicitation policy, voter registration drive is on Saturday.

Vice President Kohman: EOF will meet Tuesday, in the OSAS Conference Room at 8:00 p.m. Attend with concerns. SafeRide Committee meeting is TBA. Online line schedules can be printed off.

Chief of Staff King: Voter registration drive needs all of our support.

Chair O'Hara: Proxies, Board of Regents will meet on Wednesday and Thursday of next week. If you plan on attending please contact Chair O'Hara, President Cook, or Chair Quackenbush. The senate meeting on the 17th will include a budget presentation from the administration.

Vice Chair Conner: Visitations, Library Hours update information had been sent over list serve, voter registration drive is on Saturday, and SGA Up 'Til Dawn team needs more members.

Intern Coordinator Lafferty: Mentors, take interns to visitations.

Faculty Senate Klingzell: Faculty Senate met on Tuesday: Out of class exams will be reported on the line schedule.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/37 Approval of New Student Senators

Moved by Garret, read by Conner, moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously.

FINAL ACTION

F 9-0 Bill 02/03/22 Continuance in the Student Health Privilege Fee

Positive debate: Chair Stryker. Passes 55/0/1.

F 8-0 Res 02/03/36 Resolution to Thank September 26th Meeting Hosts

Moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously.

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/23 FY 2003 Allocation to Academic Competition Team

Moved by Garrett, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/24 FY 2003 Allocation to Up 'Till Dawn

Moved by Sourk, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/25 FY 2003 Allocation to Association of Residence Halls

Moved by moved by Tirrell, read by Meier, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/26 FY 2003 Allocation to Sports Clubs

Moved by Alexander, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Res 02/03/38 Resolution to Modify Sales, Solicitation, and Advertising Policy

Moved by Halliburton, read by King, held for referral.

Res 02/03/39 Resolution to Commend Alumni Association

Moved by Alexander, read by Meissen, held for referral.

OPEN PERIOD

Director McCandellless: Wildcat 91.1 concerns have been discussed and resolved. A Wildcat Zone with music will be created.

Senator Smith: BSU Fashion Show will be on October the 19th, in Forum Hall at 7:00 p.m. Tickets are \$3 in advance and \$5 at the door.

Vice Chair Conner: Thank you new Graduate Students for joining this body. There will be a Speak Easy following next weeks meeting.

Chair Griffin: SASS meets on Sundays at 6:00 p.m. Res 02/03/38 will be discussed.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bills 02/03/23, 02/03/24, 02/03/25, 02/03/26 will be referred to the Allocations Committee. Res 02/03/39 will be referred to the Academic Affairs and University Relations Committee. Res 02/03/38 will be referred to the Student Activities and Social Services Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

51 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Senator Smith moved for adjournment at 9:15 p.m. until October 17th, at 7:00 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
October 17, 2002
7:00 p.m.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

53 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Provost Coffman, Vice President of Administration and Finance, Rawson, and Vice President of Institutional Advancement, Krause: State and University Budgets.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Bridge for Stryker
 Osborne for Burnett
 Garrett for Breeden

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations Chair Bill Harlan: Next meeting is on Tuesday, 6:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Seth Bridge: Next meeting will be Sunday, 9:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

S.A.S.S. Chair Eleri Griffin: Next meeting will be on Sunday, 6:00 p.m. in the OSAS conference room.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Tuesday, 9:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Vice President Kohman: EOF will meet Tuesday, at 9:00 p.m. in OSAS, and SafeRide will meet Tuesday, at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Chair O'Hara: All legislation needs to be turned in to Chair O'Hara's mailbox and Chair Harlan's mailbox by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday.

Vice Chair Conner: Visitations are due Wednesday.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/40 Approval of New Student Senator

Moved by Alexander, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

Res 02/03/41 Approval of Recreational Services Council Appointment

Moved by Halliburton, moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

FINAL ACTION

F 9-0 Bill 02/03/23 FY 2003 Allocation to Academic Competition Team

Positive debate: Quaife Passes 53/0/0

F 9-0 Bill 02/03/24 FY 2003 Allocation to Up 'Till Dawn

Positive debate: Quaife Passes 51/2/0

F 9-0 Bill 02/03/25 FY 2003 Allocation to Association of Residence Halls

Positive debate: Meier Passes 52/1/0

F 9-0 Bill 02/03/26 FY 2003 Allocation to Sports Clubs

Positive debate: Meier Passes 53/0/0

F 7-0 Res 02/03/39 Resolution to Commend Alumni Association

Moved unanimous consent by Kasper, passes unanimously.

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/27 Educational Opportunity Fund Allocations

Moved by Tirrell, Moved to suspend first reading by Kasper, passes, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/28 FY 2003 Allocation to Women's Rugby

Moved by Alexander, held for referral.

Res 02/03/42 Resolution to Thank Voter Registration Sponsors

Moved by Alexander, held for referral.

OPEN PERIOD

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/27 Referred to EOF Committee

Bill 02/03/28 Referred to the Allocations Committee

Res 02/03/42 Referred to the Governmental Relations Committee

Legislation Held In Committee

Res 02/03/38 Resolution to Modify Sales, Solicitation, and Advertising Policy

Held to Student Activities and Social Services Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

Bylaws Article One, under review

ROLL CALL

53 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Senator Smith moved for adjournment until October 24, at 7:00 p.m. Passes.

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
October 24, 2002
7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

50 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Fred Newton, Director of Counseling Services: Increase Counseling Services privilege fee.

Sydney Carlin, Representative for ????????????????

Dave Mayor: City-University Project Fund.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Qureshi for Mohan
 VanNordstrand for Rondeau
 Hayhurst for Stohs
 Zimmer for Sheedy
 Meissen for Sourk
 Meuer for Benton
 Bowser for Alexander
 Law for Duclos

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations: Next meeting is on Tuesday, 6:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Bill 02/03/38 has been tabled indefinitely.

Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Fine Arts Council will be under review at the next meeting.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Senator Kasper: Next meeting will be Sunday, 9:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Pack the Library Night, Rally for Higher Education is on November 12th, and help is needed. Petitions for library hours need to be turned in by next week.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Tuesday, 9:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. The City-University Project Fund recommendation is still under review and will be moved to be held in committee.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Director McCandell: Next Tuesday is Election Day.

Intern Coordinator Lafferty: Interns are going to classrooms to talk about SGA as their project.

Vice Chair Conner: **Second Visitation will be due November 23rd.**

President Cook: K-State budgets are available. Five SGA members traveled to KU Senate on Wednesday.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

Res 02/03/44 Student Recommendation for the Disbursement of the
City/University Project Fund

Moved to be Referred to committee by Quackenbush Positive Debate: Quackenbush Passes

F 9-0 Res 02/03/38 Resolution to Modify Sales, Solicitation, and Advertising Policy

Moved to Amend by Conner Positive Debate: Conner, Weigel, Laib

Negative Debate: McCandelless, Heaser, Kohman

Moved Previous Question by Meier Positive Debate: Meier

Negative Debate: Griffin

Motion of Previous Question Passes

Division Called by Stafford Amendment Fails

Moved to Amend by Conner Positive Debate: Conner, Meier, Burnett

Negative Debate: Kingsley, Beaven, Heaser

Moved Previous Question by Meier Positive Debate: Meier Passes

Amendment Passes 43/7/4

Changes moved by Muir Moved Unanimous Consent by Muir Passes unanimously

Positive Debate on motion as amended: Heaser, Griffin, McCandelless, Weigel

Negative Debate on motion as amended: Conner

Motion Passes 41/6/8

F 9-1 Bill 02/03/29 Increase of the University Counseling Services Privilege Fee

Positive Debate: Stryker, Urkevich, Osborn yielded speaking privileges to Dir. Newton, Green,

Negative Debate: Cook

Moved Previous Question by Procter Passes

Bill passes 50/5/1

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/30 Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations

Positive Debate: Tirrell Passes 54/0/0

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/31 By-Laws Amendment Concerning Elections and Elections

Committee

Positive Debate: Laib 54/0/0

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/46 Resolution to Improve Air Quality on the K-State Campus

Moved by Conway, read by Cook, held for referral

Res 02/03/47 Resolution to Support Principles of Community at Oklahoma State

University

Moved by Halliburton, read by McCandelless, held for referral

OPEN PERIOD

Director McCandelless: Leadership Challenge retreat.

Halliburton: BSU Homecoming Ceremony is Tuesday, in the Little Theater at 7:30 p.m.

Multicultural Ambassador applications are available.

Griffin: SASS will be meeting at 9:00 p.m. in Union Station on Sunday.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/44 is referred to the Governmental Relations Committee

Res 02/03/4746 referred to Student Affairs and Social Services.

**ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS
REVISIONS**

NONE

ROLL CALL

49 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Senator Smith moved for adjournment until November 7th at 7:00 p.m.

Legislation held in Committee:

Bill 02/03/28 FY 2003 Allocation to Women's Rugby

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
October 31, 2002
7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

50 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Fred Newton, Director of Counseling Services: Increase Counseling Services privilege fee.

Sydney Carlin, Representative Candidate for District 66: Her running platform.

Dave Mayor: City-University Project Fund.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Qureshi for Mohan
 VanNordstrand for Rondeau
 Hayhurst for Stohs
 Zimmer for Sheedy
 Meissen for Sourk
 Meuer for Benton
 Bowser for Alexander
 Law for Duclos

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Senate Operations: Next meeting is on Tuesday, 6:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Bill 02/03/38 has been tabled indefinitely.

Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Fine Arts Council will be under review at the next meeting.

Academic Affairs and University Relations Senator Kasper: Next meeting will be Sunday, 9:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Pack the Library Night, Rally for Higher Education is on November 12th; help is needed. Petitions for library hours need to be turned in by next week.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Tuesday, 9:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. The City-University Project Fund recommendation is still under review and will be asked to be held in committee.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Director McCandellless: Next Tuesday is Election Day.

Intern Coordinator Lafferty: Interns are going to classrooms to talk about SGA as their project.

Vice Chair Conner: **Second Visitation will be due November 23rd.**

President Cook: K-State budgets are available. Five SGA members traveled to KU Senate on Wednesday.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

Res 02/03/44 Student Recommendation for the Disbursement of the
City/University Project Fund

Moved to be Referred to committee by Quackenbush Positive Debate: Quackenbush Passes

F 9-0 Res 02/03/38 Resolution to Modify Sales, Solicitation, and Advertising Policy

Moved to Amend by Conner Positive Debate: Conner, Weigel, Laib

Negative Debate: McCandelless, Heaser, Kohman

Moved Previous Question by Meier Positive Debate: Meier

Negative Debate: Griffin

Motion of Previous Question Passes

Division Called by Stafford Amendment Fails

Moved to Amend by Conner Positive Debate: Conner, Meier, Burnett

Negative Debate: Kingsley, Beaven, Heaser

Moved Previous Question by Meier Positive Debate: Meier Passes

Amendment Passes 43/7/4

Changes moved by Muir Changes moved Unanimous Consent by Muir Passes unanimously

Positive Debate on motion as amended: Heaser, Griffin, McCandelless, Weigel

Negative Debate on motion as amended: Conner

Motion Passes 41/6/8

F 9-1 Bill 02/03/29 Increase of the University Counseling Services Privilege Fee

Positive Debate: Stryker, Urkevich, Osborn yielded speaking privileges to Dir. Newton, Green

Negative Debate: Cook

Moved Previous Question by Procter Passes

Bill passes 50/5/1

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/30 Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations

Positive Debate: Tirrell Passes 54/0/0

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/31 By-Laws Amendment Concerning Elections and Elections
Committee

Positive Debate: Laib Passes 54/0/0

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/46 Resolution to Improve Air Quality on the K-State Campus

Moved by Conway, read by Cook, held for referral

Res 02/03/47 Resolution to Support Principles of Community at Oklahoma State
University

Moved by Halliburton, read by McCandelless, held for referral

OPEN PERIOD

Director McCandelless: Leadership Challenge retreat.

Halliburton: BSU Homecoming Ceremony is Tuesday, in the Little Theater at 7:30 p.m.

Multicultural Ambassador Applications are available.

Griffin: SASS will be meeting at 9:00 p.m. in Union Station on Sunday.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/44 is referred to the Governmental Relations Committee

Res 02/03/47 and Res 02/03/46 are referred to Student Affairs and Social Services.

**ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS
REVISIONS**

NONE

ROLL CALL

49 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Senator Smith moved for adjournment until November 7th at 7:00 p.m.

Legislation held in Committee:

Bill 02/03/28 FY 2003 Allocation to Women's Rugby

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
November 7th, 2002
7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

54 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

KU Senate Representatives: Initiatives

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Stohs for Kasper
 Garrett for Green
 Charney for Muir

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting is on Tuesday, 6:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Pack the Library, Rally for Higher Education: Sponsorship, Public Relations, and Organization reports. Next Thursday night is the Reception at the Alumni Center, it begins at 6:00 p.m. There will be food, tours, and a presentation. Senate will immediately follow.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room. Discussion will include Wildcat Walk allocations.

Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Tuesday, 9:15 p.m. in OSAS prior to Pack The Library.

Senate Operations Chair Harlan: Tuesday is a mock trial for the elections system.

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin: Res 02/03/46 was held in committee. Pack the Library and campus safety are a few of the issues that were discussed at the last meeting.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Director Sturgis: **SafeRide will be meeting Tuesday in Union 203.**

Vice Chair Conner: **Second Visitation will be due December 4th.**

President Cook: New program may make more services available over the web. Board of Regents meets next Wednesday and Thursday.

Chief of Staff King: Global Community Scholars program.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

F 13-3-1 Res 02/03/44 Student Senate Recommendations for the Disbursement of the City/University Project Fund for Calendar Year 2005

Positive Debate: Quackenbush, Lair, Heaser

Negative Debate: Sturgis, Stohs, McCandelless

Previous question moved by Beavan Fails

Positive Debate: Weigel, Conner

Negative Debate: Stafford

Previous question moved by Beavan Passes

Motion fails 26/28/0

F 6-0-0 Res 02/03/47 Resolution to Support Principles of Community at Oklahoma State University

Positive Debate: McCandelless

Moved unanimous consent by Burnett Passes unanimously

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/32 FY 2003 Allocation to Students For the Right to Life

Moved by Halliburton, read by Quaife, held for referral

Bill 02/03/33 Continuance of the Fine Arts Privilege Fee

Moved by Halliburton, read by Stryker, held for referral

Moved to suspend the reading, passes

OPEN PERIOD

Senator Smith: Monday there will be a lecture in celebration of Veterans Day.

Senator Alexander: On November 25th there will be a presentation in Weber Hall 123

Chair Quackenbush: GR will be writing a new proposal for the City/University Fund, input is encouraged.

Chair Quaife: Allocations will be reviewing Wildcat Walk and Bill 02/03/32

Senator Halliburton: Multicultural Ambassador Applications are due soon.

Vice Chair Conner: Send information about Pack the Library Night over listserves.

Vice President Kohman: SafeRide will meet Tuesday, November 12th, Union 203.

Chair Griffin: SASS will meet Sunday, at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Chair Bridge: Academic Affairs will meet at 8:00 p.m. on Sunday, and at 8:45 there will be chalking for Pack the Library Night.

Chair O'Hara: Demonstration for Pack the Library begins at 9:45 p.m.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/32 will be referred to the Allocations Committee

Bill 02/03/33 will be referred to the Privilege Fee Committee

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

51 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Senator Smith moved for adjournment until November 14th at 7:00 p.m.

Legislation held in Committee:

Res 02/03/46 Resolution to Improve Air Quality on the K-State Campus

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
November 21st, 2002
7:00 p.m.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

54 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Dave Mayor

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Trater for Mohan
Osborn for Barrett
Bowser for Alexander
Sourk for Rondeau
Stryker for Prophet

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting is on Sunday, December 1st at 9:00 p.m. in OSAS. Online transcripts are under review.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday, December 24th, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, December 2nd, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS Conference room.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Tuesday, December 3rd, at 9:00 p.m. in OSAS.

***Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin:** Next meeting will 6:00 p.m. in OSAS on Sunday, December 1st. Readership Survey was Tuesday, results will be in soon.*

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Director McCandless: **We need to make contacts in the Legislative body.**

Vice Chair Conner: **Visitations are due December 4th at 5:00 p.m.**

President Cook: **This week in international week.**

Faculty Senate Representative Klingzell: Dead week and schedules are under discussion.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

F 12-0-0 Bill 02/03/34 Amendment to KSU SGA Statutes, Adding Fine Arts Council Student Organization Funding Regulations

Positive Debate: Styker Passes 59/0/0

F 11-0-1 Bill 02/03/33 Continuance of the Fine Arts Privilege Fee

Positive Debate: Styker Passes 59/0/0

Res 02/03/48 Student Senate Recommendation for the Disbursement of the City/University Project Fund for Calendar Year 2004

Positive Debate: Quackenbush, Muir

Passes

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/49 Commendation to Dr. Frank Tracz

Moved by Stafford, read by Callahan

Moved special orders by Callahan, Special Orders Passes

Positive Debate: Callahan

Moved Unanimous Consent by Callahan, Passes unanimously

Res 02/03/50 Resolution to Thank Pack the Library Night Featured Guests

Moved by Callahan, read by Conner

Moved Special Orders by Kasper, Passes

Positive Debate: Conner

Moved Unanimous Consent moved by Kasper, passes unanimously

Res 02/03/51 Resolution to Thank Pack the Library Night

Moved by Sourk, read by Bridge

Moved Special Orders by Kasper, passes

Positive Debate: Bridge

Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, Passes unanimously

Bill 02/03/35 Student Activity Fee Budget Continuance

Moved by Benton

Moved to Suspend the Readings by Green, passes

Held for referral

Bill 02/03/36 Allocation to Paraguayan Student Association

Moved by Conway, read by Quaife, held for referral

Bill 02/03/37 Allocation to Campus Crusade for Christ

Moved by Halliburton, read by Meier, held for referral

Bill 02/03/38 Allocation to PEERS

Moved by Stafford, read by Crow, held for referral.

OPEN PERIOD

Vice Chair Conner: Will be Studying Abroad in spring, so Vice Chair Position will be open.

President Cook: City University Fund Recommendation Committee to recommend recommendation to the City Commission needs student members.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/35 referred to the Privilege Fee Committee.

Bills 02/03/36, 02/03/37, and 02/03/38 referred to the Allocations Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

55 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Senator Smith moved for adjournment until December 5th at 7:00 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENTS FOR THE WEEK OF NOVEMBER 21-28

1. Dr. Barry Flinchbaugh will be speaking in Weber 123 at 5:45 p.m. on November 25th.
The event is sponsored by Agriculture Student Council and the Hormel Corporation and will include a free meal.
2. Unless there are extremely extenuating circumstances, Student Senate will NOT be meeting on Thursday, December 12th, due to the fact it is dead week.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
December 5th, 2002
7:00 p.m.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

54 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Felicia Walker: Project for Breadbasket

Doug & Jennifer: USA Today Collegiate Readership Program

O'Hara asked to extend open period for and additional 10 minutes, no objections

O'Hara asked to extend open period for and additional 10 minutes, no objections

O'Hara asked to extend open period for and additional 5 minutes, no objections

O'Hara asked to extend open period for and additional 5 minutes, no objections

Muir: President's City-University Fund Recommendations

O'Hara: Collegian correction concerning Smoking plebiscite/referendum vote.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Griffin for Stafford
 Trater for Qureshi
 Duclos for Law
 Stohs for Hayhurst

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Last meeting of the year will be on Sunday, at 9:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS.

Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: **Next meeting will be Monday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS.**

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: **Next meeting will be Tuesday, January 21, 2003, at 9:00 p.m.**

***Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin:** Last meeting of the year will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS. Campus Safety and the Breadbasket Project will be discussed.*

Senate Operations Chair Harlan: **Next meeting will be on Tuesday, January 21, 2003, at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.**

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Director Strugis: **Resigns due to an internship in New York.**

GENERAL ORDERS

Nominations for Student Senate Vice Chair

Chair Quaife nominates Senator Procter
Chair Bridge nominates Senator Kasper
Senator Threeton nominates Senator Meier
Senator Green nominates Senator Callahan, Callahan declines nomination

Senator Garrett moved to cease nominations, passes

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

- F 12-0-0** Bill 02/03/35 Student Activity Fee Budget Continuance
Positive Debate: Stryker
Passes 55/0/0
- F 7-0-0** Bill 02/03/36 Allocation to Paraguayan Student Association
Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 53/2/1
- F 7-0-0** Bill 02/03/37 Allocation to Campus Crusade for Christ
Positive Debate: Meier
Passes 46/4/6
- F 7-0-0** Bill 02/03/38 Allocation to PEERS
Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 53/1/2

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/52 Commendation to 2002 KSU Crop Judging Team
Moved by Conner, read by Bowser
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Bowser
Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, Passes Unanimously

Res 02/03/53 Commendation to Kyle Cott
Moved By Halliburton, read by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Bowser, Passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Alexander
Moved Unanimous Consent by Meier, passes unanimously

Res 02/03/54 Commendation to JJ Jones
Moved by Klingzell, read by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Beavan, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Alexander
Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, Passes Unanimously

Res 02/03/55 Resolution to Thank the Library Staff and Administrators
Moved by Benton, read by Heaser
Moved Special Orders by Stohs, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Heaser
Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, passes unanimously

Bill 02/03/43 Continuance in the Student Health Privilege Fee
Moved by Callahan
Moved to Suspend the Readings by Conner, passes
Held for referral

Bill 02/03/39 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union

Moved by Benton, read by Halliburton
Moved Special Orders by Rondeau, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Halliburton
Passes 51/2/0

Bill 02/03/40 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union
Moved by Smith, read by Rondeau
Moved Special Orders by Benton, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Rondeau
Passes 53/0/0

Stohs Moved Special Orders on Bill 02/03/43, Passes
FINAL ACTION

Bill 02/03/43

Positive Debate: Stryker
Passes 51/0/0

Bill 02/03/41 FY 2003 Allocation to Leadership Studies and Programs
Moved by Stafford, read by Benton
Held for referral

Bill 02/03/42 FY 2003 Allocation to Ordinary Women
Moved by Stafford, read by Meier
Held for referral

Res 02/03/56 Amendments to Senate Standing Rules
Moved by Benton, read by Harlan
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes

FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Harlan, Cook, McCandelless, Harlan
Negative Debate: Higginson, Weigel
Passes

Moved Unanimous Consent by Conner to change Bill 02/03/44 to Bill 02/03/43, passes

OPEN PERIOD

Callahan: Declined Greens nomination because he may be running for City Commission in April

Conner: Resigning as Vice Chair to study abroad in Prague.

Benton: Resigning to student teach

Alexander: Congressional and Legislative Fellowship

Bowser: Resigning because of Graduating

Rondeau: Resigning to study at Deacon University

Cook: Mortar Board Community Service

Callahan: Resigning to study in Italy

Bontrager: Resigning as Parliamentarian and will be taking the position of Agricultural Senator

O'Hara: Changes need to be made by Chairs and authors

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bills 02/03/41, & 02/03/42 are referred to the Allocations Committee

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

50 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Vice Chair Connor moved for adjournment until January 23, 2003, at 7:00 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
January 23rd, 2003
7:00 P.M.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

45 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Interim Assistant Coordinator for Student Activities, Bill Harlan: Elections

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Bontrager for Alexander
 Urkevich for Klingzell
 Higginson for Bucl

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting will be next Thursday at 6:00 p.m.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday at 7:00 p.m.

Privilege Fee Chair Vice Chair Urkevich: **Next meeting will be Monday at 5:30 in OSAS.**

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: **Next meeting will be Monday at 8:00 p.m. location TBA.**

***Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin:** Next meeting will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.*

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Chief of Staff King: Cabinet will be meeting next Thursday at 6:00 p.m.

Vice President Kohman: SafeRide

President Cook: Global Education Initiative

GENERAL ORDERS

Election of Student Senate Vice Chair

Senate Vice Chair Candidate Meier

Senator Vice Chair Candidate Procter

Senator Vice Chair Candidate Kasper

Stohs for Kasper

Green for Procter

Bridge for Kasper

Sheedy for Kasper

Griffin, recognize the qualities needed for Vice Chair

Intern Crow for Meier

Osborn for Procter

Senator Kasper, 30/8/8

Swearing in of Vice Chair Kasper

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/57 Approval of Elections Commissioner

Moved by Kasper, moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously

Res 02/03/58 Approval of Standing Committee Chair

Moved by Halliburton, Chair turned over to Vice Chair Kasper, moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously
Swearing in of Senate Operations Chair Tirrell
Chair turned over to Senate Chair O'Hara

FINAL ACTION

Bill 02/03/41 FY 2003 Allocation to Leadership Studies and Programs

Positive Debate: Quaife

Passes 46/0/0

Bill 02/03/42 FY 2003 Allocation to Ordinary Women

Positive Debate: Meier

Passes 45/0/1

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/44 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union

Moved by Halliburton, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/45 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union

Moved by Halliburton, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/46 FY 2003 Allocation to Vietnamese Student Association

Moved by Stafford, read by Quaife, held for referral.

Bill 02/03/47 Statutes Amendment Concerning Elections Regulations

Moved by Callahan,

Moved to suspend the readings by Stafford, passes

Moved Special Orders by Lafferty, passes

Positive Debate: Tirrell

Passes 44/0/0

OPEN PERIOD

Callahan: As a Candidate for City Commission, he is looking for support. Feb. 25th is the primary election for City Commission.

Chair Griffin: Congratulations Newlyweds!!

Muir: Feb. 11th is the elections deadline.

Graham: There will be openings in the Judicial Branch.

Heaser: There will be a Newsletter from the SGA in the Collegian.

President Cook: Congratulations to Band members for hard work.

Coordinator Spencer: Felix Justice and Danny Glover's presentation was a success.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bills 02/03/44, 02/03/45, 02/03/46, and 02/03/47 were referred to the Allocations Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

42 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Senator Smith until January 30th 2003.

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
January 30th, 2003
7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

46 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Dr. Tracz, Director of University Bands: University Bands Budget
Hutch Community College Student Government Introductions

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Stryker for Urkevich
 Porter for VanNordstrand
 Sheedy for Zimmer
 Tirrell for Lafferty
 Meissen for Sourk
 Garrett for Breeden

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: The next meeting will be on Sunday, at 8:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday, 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.
Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Monday at 8:00. State Education Day is on February 11th.

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin: Next meeting will be on Sunday at 6:00 p.m.

Senate Operations Chair Tirrell: Next meeting will be on Tuesday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Director King: Next meeting will be at 6:30 on Thursday, in OSAS.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 02/03/59 Approval of New Student Senators

Moved by Stafford, Chair turned to Vice-Chair Kasper, read by O'Hara,
Moved Unanimous Consent by Stafford, passes
Chair turned to Chair O'Hara
Swearing in of New Student Senators

Res 02/03/60 Approval of Elections Review Committee Members

Moved by Halliburton, read by Tirrell
Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, passes
Res 02/03/61 Approval of Elections Review Committee Chair and Judicial
Members

Moved by Kasper, read by Graham,
Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, passes

FINAL ACTION

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/44 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union
Positive Debate, Quaife
Passes 54/0/0

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/45 FY 2003 Allocation to Black Student Union
Positive Debate, Quaife
Passes 54/0/0

F 7-0 Bill 02/03/46 FY 2003 Allocation to Vietnamese Student Association
Positive Debate, Meier
Passes 54/0/0

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/48 Increase of the University Bands Program Privilege Fee

Moved by Alexander, held for referral

Bill 02/03/49 FY 2003 Allocation to Kansas State University Women's Softball Club

Moved by Stafford, held for referral

Res 02/03/62 Resolution to Amend Standing Rules

Moved by Stafford, held for referral

OPEN PERIOD

Heaser: Collegian SGA Excerpt

Smith: Festival of Nations and Black History Month Events

Higginson: Mortar Board and Blue Key Honoraries will be having a meeting on
Wednesday.

Crow: Up Til Dawn Philanthropy Event

Cook: Tuition will be going up, and we will find out on June 27th. There will be
tuition meetings with the administrations.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/48 to Privilege Fee

Bill 02/03/49 to Allocations

Res 02/03/62 to Senate Operations

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

52 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved By Smith to be adjourned until February 6th at 7:00 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
February 13th, 2003
7:00 P.M.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

?? Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Josh Roe, President of the Agricultural College Council: On creation of new College Council Allocation Committee.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Charney for Muir
Mohan for Duclos
Qureshi for Sheedy
Griffin for Karim
Meisser for Freed

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting will be next Sunday at 8:00 p.m.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS. College Council Allocations Committee formation will be discussed.

Privilege Fee Chair Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS. The Global Initiative was held in committee

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Monday at 8:00 p.m. location TBA. State Education Day was a success.

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin: Next meeting will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Senate Operations Chair Tirrell: Next meeting will be at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Faculty Senate Representative Klingzell: Dead week is still under review.

Vice Chair Kasper: The SGA banquet will be on March 22 at 5:00 p.m. in the Flint Hills room. Visitations will be due February 20th.

Director McCanedelless: State Education Day went well, but there are concerns about the viewpoints of a few Representatives on Higher Education.

Vice President Kohman: SafeRide proposal is going to Privilege Fee.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Approved as posted.

FINAL ACTION

- F 9-0** Bill 02/03/50 Continuance of the Union Program Council Privilege Fee
Positive Debate: Stryker, Heaser, McCandelless, Green
Passes 49/0/0
- F 8-0** Bill 02/03/51 FY 2003 Allocation to Ecumenical Campus Ministry
Positive Debate: Hoopingarner
Passes 40/2/7
- F 8-0** Res 02/03/65 Resolution to Place Smoking Policy Change Questions on the Spring
2003 Election Ballot
Positive Debate: Heaser
Passes

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

- Bill 02/03/52 Revision to the Student Activity Fee Funding Regulations
Moved by Alexander
Moved to Suspend the Readings by Stafford
Passes
Held for Referral
- Bill 02/03/53 FY 2003 Allocation to GAMMA
Moved by Stafford
Held for referral.
- Bill 02/03/54 FY 2003 Allocation to MANNRS
Moved by Alexander
Held for referral
- Bill 02/03/55 FY 2003 Allocation to Ordinary Women
Moved by Griffin
Held for referral
- Bill 02/03/56 FY 2003 Allocation Muslim Student Association
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Callahan
Passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Kasper
Passes 42/1/2
- Bill 02/03/57 FY 2003 Allocation to Ahearn Support
Moved by Alexander
Held for referral
- Res 02/03/66 Resolution for a Safer Housing Week
Moved by Alexander
Held for Referral

OPEN PERIOD

Threeton: Election list is posted on elections page.
McCandelless: Thanks to Chair Quackenbush for the success of State Ed Day.
Osborn: Blue Key and Mortar Board Apps are due tomorrow.
Baker: UPC is hosting After Hours.
Callahan: Campaign platform input is requested.
Halliburton: Orientation Applications are out.
O'Hara: Senators of the Week are Quackenbush and Quaife

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bills 02/03/52, 02/03/53, 02/03/54, 02/03/55, and 02/03/57 are referred to the Allocations Committee.

**ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS
REVISIONS**

NONE

ROLL CALL

49 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Senator Smith until February 20th, 2003, at 7:00 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
February 13th, 2003
7:00 P.M.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

47 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Josh Roe, President of the Agricultural College Council: On creation of new College Council Allocation Committee.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Charney for Muir
Mohan for Duclos
Qureshi for Sheedy
Griffin for Karim
Meisser for Freed

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting will be next Sunday at 8:00 p.m.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS. College Council Allocations Committee formation will be discussed.

Privilege Fee Chair Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS. The Global Initiative was held in committee

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Monday at 8:00 p.m. location TBA. State Education Day was a success.

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin: Next meeting will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Senate Operations Chair Tirrell: Next meeting will be at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Faculty Senate Representative Klingzell: Dead week is still under review.

Vice Chair Kasper: The SGA banquet will be on March 22 at 5:00 p.m. in the Flint Hills room. Visitations will be due February 20th.

Director McCanedelless: State Education Day went well, but there are concerns about the viewpoints of a few Representatives on Higher Education.

Vice President Kohman: SafeRide proposal is going to Privilege Fee.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

- F 9-0** Bill 02/03/50 Continuance of the Union Program Council Privilege Fee
Positive Debate: Stryker, Heaser, McCandelless, Green
Passes 49/0/0
- F 8-0** Bill 02/03/51 FY 2003 Allocation to Ecumenical Campus Ministry
Positive Debate: Hoopingarner
Passes 40/2/7
- F 8-0** Res 02/03/65 Resolution to Place Smoking Policy Change Questions on the Spring
2003 Election Ballot
Positive Debate: Heaser
Passes

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

- Bill 02/03/52 Revision to the Student Activity Fee Funding Regulations
Moved by Alexander
Moved to Suspend the Readings by Stafford
Passes
Held for Referral
- Bill 02/03/53 FY 2003 Allocation to GAMMA
Moved by Stafford
Held for referral.
- Bill 02/03/54 FY 2003 Allocation to MANNRS
Moved by Alexander
Held for referral
- Bill 02/03/55 FY 2003 Allocation to Ordinary Women
Moved by Griffin
Held for referral
- Bill 02/03/56 FY 2003 Allocation Muslim Student Association
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Callahan
Passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Kasper
Passes 42/1/2
- Bill 02/03/57 FY 2003 Allocation to Ahearn Support
Moved by Alexander
Held for referral
- Res 02/03/66 Resolution for a Safer Housing Week
Moved by Alexander
Held for Referral

OPEN PERIOD

- Threton: Election list is posted on elections page.
McCandelless: Thanks to Chair Quackenbush for the success of State Ed Day.
Osborn: Blue Key and Mortar Board Apps are due tomorrow.
Baker: UPC is hosting After Hours.
Callahan: Campaign platform input is requested.
Halliburton: Orientation Applications are out.
O'Hara: Senators of the Week are Quackenbush and Quaife

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bills 02/03/52, 02/03/53, 02/03/54, 02/03/55, and 02/03/57 are referred to the Allocations Committee.

**ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS
REVISIONS**

NONE

ROLL CALL

46 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Senator Smith until February 20th, 2003, at 7:00 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
February 20th, 2003
7:00 P.M.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

45 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Bill Harlan, Interim Director of OSAS: Role of Sports Clubs supervisors.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Stryker for Callahan
 Garrett for Breeden
 Stohs for Kasper
 Conway for Higginson
 Hayhurst for Sourk
 Osborne for Smith
 Tirrell for Halliburton
 Quershi for Mohan

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting will be next Sunday at 8:00 p.m.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.
Privilege Fee Chair Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: Next meeting will be Monday at 8:00 p.m. location TBA.

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin: Next meeting will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Senate Operations Chair Tirrell: Next meeting will be at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Vice Chair Kasper: Visitations need to be done; they are in the Bylaws. There is a one-week extension to the deadline.

Chair O'Hara: Report on Cats in the Capitol.

President Cook: Board of Regents update.

Vice President Kohman: SafeRide information.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

- F 8-0** Res 02/03/66 Resolution for a Safer Housing Week
Positive Debate: Heaser
Passes
- Bill 02/03/52 Revision to the Student Activity Fee Funding Regulations
Moved to refer back to committee by Quaife
Passes
Held for referral
- Bill 02/03/53 FY 2003 Allocation to GAMMA
Positive Debate: Meier
Passes 52/0/0
- Bill 02/03/54 FY 2003 Allocation to MANNRS
Positive Debate: Crow
Passes 52/0/0
- Bill 02/03/55 FY 2003 Allocation to Ordinary Women
Positive Debate: Carter, Crow, Quaife, Green, McCandelless
Negative Debate: Stafford, Stohs
Question Called by Stafford, passes
Passes 38/8/6
- Bill 02/03/57 FY 2003 Allocation to Ahearn Support
Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 51/1/0

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

- Res 02/03/67 Resolution to Support the Global Education Initiative
Moved by Stafford, held for referral
Held for referral.

OPEN PERION

- Intern Crow: Congratulations to Bontrager for being selected for an American Royals honor.
- Muir: We need more interest in student activity.
- McCandless: Remember to vote, and spread the word.
- Spencer: The next Landon Lecture is March 5th.
- Heaser: New technology for K-State Internet access portholes.
- Callahan: Vote for him for City Commission.
- Cook: Note from Conner, and listen to the Landon Lecture online.
- O'Hara: Letter from Senate Majority Leader, and senator of the week is Carter.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

- Bill 02/03/52 was referred to the Allocations committee, Resolution 02/03/67 was referred to the Privilege Fee Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

- 42 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Senator Callahan until February 27th, 2003, at 7:00 p.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
March 6th, 2003
7:00 P.M.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

42 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Griffen for Smith T.
 Hayhurst for Baker
 Urkevich for Klingzell
 Alexander for Bontrager
 Tirrell for Lafferty
 Meier for Threeton
 Quaife for Quackenbush
 Kasper for Stafford

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting will be next Sunday at 8:00 p.m.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be Sunday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.
Privilege Fee Chair Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Bridge: Next meeting will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Senate Operations: Next meeting will be at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Kasper: Wants volunteers to help with Junior Day tomorrow, at 3:00 p.m.

Cook: Board of Regents is coming up.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

Res 02/03/68 Resolution for Higher Education

Moved to refer back to Academic Affairs Committee by Bridge, passes

- 6-0** Res 02/03/69 Resolution to Mandate Faculty Use of K-State Online
Positive Debate: White
Moved Unanimous Consent by Hayhurst, passes unanimously
- 9-0** Bill 02/03/58 Allocation to Hillel Jewish Student Organization
Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 43/2/0
- 10-0** Bill 02/03/59 Increase in Student Publications Inc. Privilege Fee
Positive Debate: Stryker
Passes 42/3/0
- 11-0** Bill 02/03/60 Office of Student Activities and Services Privilege Fee Increase
Positive Debate: Stryker
Passes 45/0/0

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/61 FY 2003 Allocation to Hispanic American Leadership Organization
Moved to Suspend the readings on all Bills by Muir, passes
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Hayhurst, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 42-0-0

Bill 02/03/62 FY 2003 Allocation to KSU Solar Car Racing Team
Moved by Stafford
Moved Special Orders by Carter, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 42-0-0

Bill 02/03/63 FY 2003 Allocation to Kansas State University - Manhattan Chess Club
Moved by Hayhurst
Moved Special Orders by Stafford, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: White
Passes 42-0-0

Bill 02/03/64 FY 2003 Allocation to Kansas State University - Wrestling Club
Moved by Stafford
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 42-0-0

Bill 02/03/65 FY 2003 Allocation to Students for Environmental Action
Moved by Smith
Moved Special Orders by Hayhurst, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Quaife
Passes 42-0-0

Bill 02/03/66 FY 2003 Allocation to Japanese Appreciation Alliance
Moved by Halliburton
Moved Special Orders by Staffird, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Freed
Passes 40-0-0

Bill 02/03/67 FY 2003 Allocation to Muslim Student Association
Moved by Stafford
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Freed
Passes 40-0-0

Bill 02/03/68 FY 2003 Allocation to Muslim Student Association
Moved by Stafford
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Karim, Freed
Negative Debate: Beavan
Passes 35-2-3

Bill 02/03/69 FY 2003 Allocation to Muslim Student Association
Moved by Stafford
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Quaiife
Passes 39-1-0

Bill 02/03/70 FY 2003 Allocation to African Students Union
Moved by Hayhurst
Moved Special Orders by Hayhurst, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Halliburton
Passes 40-0-0

Bill 02/03/71 FY 2003 Allocation to African Students Union
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Carter, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Halliburton
Passes 40-0-0

Bill 02/03/72 Amendment to KSU SGA By-Laws Concerning Privilege Fee
Committee Duties
Moved by Carter
Moved Special Orders by Hayhurst, passes
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: Stryker
Passes 42-0-0

Bill 02/03/73 Statutes Amendment Removing Registration Fee For Student
Organizations

Moved by Hayhurst

Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Stryker

Passes 41-0-0

OPEN PERION

Kohman: Be safe, use a DD.

Muir: Vote for City Commission on Tuesday.

O'Hara: SGA members of the week are Threeton, Harlan, Cook, Kohman, and Charney.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/68 was referred to the Governmental Relations Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

39 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Smith, passes.

STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
March 13th, 2003
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

36 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Jill Oswald: Relay for Life.

President Cook: From the Czech Republic, Board of Regents

Conner: From Check Republic

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Stryker for Callahan
 Bridge for Kingsley
 Blakely for Bathel
 Carter for Sheedy
 Griffin for Smith
 Stohs for Hayhurst
 Mohan for Quershi

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting will be at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Next meeting will be the Monday following Spring break at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Privilege Fee Chair Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday at 7:00 p.m. in OSAS. Explanation of increase in Privilege Fees.

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin: Next meeting will be Sunday at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS.

Senate Operations Chair Tirrell: Next meeting will be at 6:00 p.m. in OSAS the Tuesday following Spring break.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

Faculty Senate Representative Kingzell: Dead week and Open House update.

Kasper: Banquet is coming up, please RSVP and fill out "of the year" awards.

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

NONE

FINAL ACTION

Moved by Stryker to reconsider Bill 02/03/60, passes
Moved to Amend the Bill by Stryker
Positive Debate: Stryker
Passes 42-0-0

F 8-0 Res 02/03/68 Resolution for Higher Education
Positive Debate: McCandless
Moved Unanimous Consent by Kasper, passes unanimously

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Res 02/03/70 Resolution to Strongly Encourage Kansas State University
Administration to Designate Large Portion of FY 2004 Increased Tuition
Revenue for University Enhancements
Moved by Alexander,
Chair turned to Vice Chair Kasper
Moved Special Orders by Bridge, Passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: O'Hara, Heaser, Bridge, O'Hara
Negative Debate: McCandless
Passes 43-0-0

Res 02/03/71 Approval of 2003 SGA Elections Results
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Carter, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Tirrell
Moved Unanimous consent by Carter, passes

Bill 02/03/74 FY 2003 Allocation to Asian American Student Union
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Quaipe
Passes 43-0-0

Bill 02/03/75 FY 2003 Allocation to Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators (H.I.P.E.)
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: White
Negative Debate: McCandless
Passes 43-0-0

Bill 02/03/76 FY 2004 Allocation to Honesty & Integrity Peer Educators (H.I.P.E.)
Moved by Duclos
Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: White
Passes 43-0-0

Bill 02/03/77 FY 2003 Allocation to International Coordinating Council
Moved by Alexander

- Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes
FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: White, Weigel, Heaser, Muir, Kohman
 Passes 43-0-0
- Bill 02/03/78 FY 2003 Allocation to Sexual Health Awareness Peer Educators
 Moved by Alexander
 Moved Special Orders by Alexander, passes
FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: Halliburton
 Passes 43-0-0
- Bill 02/03/79 FY 2004 Allocation to Amnesty International
 Moved to Meier to refer back to committee, motion withdrawn
 Moved by Alexander
 Held for referral
- Bill 02/03/80 FY 2004 Allocation For Institutional Services
 Moved By Duclos
 Moved Special Orders by Alexander
FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: Quaiife
 Passes: 42-0-0
- Bill 02/03/81 FY 2004 Allocation For Academic Competition Teams
 Moved By Alexander
 Moved Special Orders by Alexander
FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: Quaiife
 Passes: 42-0-0
- Bill 02/03/82 Statutes Amendment Repealing Legal Services Board
 Chair turned to Kasper
 Moved By Alexander
 Moved Special Orders by Carter, passes
FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: O’Hara
 Passes 40-1-0
- Bill 02/03/83 By-Laws Amendment to Academic Affairs Standing Committee’s Duties
 Moved by Alexander
 Held for referral
- Bill 02/03/84 Amendment to SGA Elections Regulations Code
 Moved by Duclos
 Held for Referral
- Bill 02/03/85 FY 2004 Allocation to Queer Straight Alliance
 Moved By Alexander
 Moved Special Orders by Alexander
FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: Kasper
 Passes: 42-0-0

OPEN PERION

O’Hara: Senators of the Week are Mohan, Tirrell, and Alexander.
 Alexander: Ag-Fest is next week.
 Heaser: Thanks to those who signed up for Relay for Life.
 Muir: Congratulations for holding administration accountable.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/79 was referred to the Allocations Committee, Bill 02/03/83 was referred to the Academic Affairs Committee, Bill 02/03/84 was referred to the Senate Operations Committee.

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

33 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Smith until March 27th, passes.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
March 27th, 2003
7:07 p.m.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

ROLL CALL

39 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

Marlyn Caldwell, candidate for city commission: Zoning for city commission.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proxies: Karim for White

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Affairs and University Relations Chair Bridge: Next meeting of the year will be on Sunday, 7:15, in the OSAS office.

Allocations Chair Laurie Quaife: Thank you to the committee.

Privilege Fee Chair Stryker: Next meeting will be Monday, 7:00 p.m. in the OSAS.

Governmental Relations Chair Julie Quackenbush: **Thanks to GR.**

Student Affairs and Social Services Chair Griffin: **Thanks and congrats to the committee.**

Senate Operations Chair Tirrell: **Thanks to the committee.**

DIRECTORS REPORTS

O'Hara: Board of regent's reports.

Lafferty: Thank you to interns.

King: Thanks to cabinet.

EVERYONE SAYS THANKS.

GENERAL ORDERS

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Bill 02/03/79 FY 2004 Allocation to Amnesty International
Council

Moved by Hayhurst

Chair turned to Kasper

Moved Unanimous consent by Bridge, passes unanimously

Chair turned to O'Hara

Res 02/03/83 Approval of Honor Council Appointment

Moved to Alexander

Moved Unanimous consent by

FINAL ACTION

Bill 02/03/79 FY 2004 Allocation to Amnesty International

Positive Debate: Quaife

Negative Debate: Kasper

Passes 27/1/3

Chair turned to Kasper

Chair turned to O'Hara

Bill 02/03/83 By-Laws Amendment to Academic Affairs Standing Committee's Duties

Positive Debate: Bridge

Passes 40/0/1

Bill 02/03/84 Amendment to SGA Elections Regulations Code

Positive Debate: Proctor

Passes 39/1/1

Moved to suspend the rules and reopen debate for Bill 02/03/79 by Meier
fails

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

Bill 02/03/86 FY 2003 Allocation to American Red Cross Club

Moved by Alexander

Moved Special orders by Callahan, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Quaife

Passes 35/3/0

Bill 02/03/87 FY 2003 Allocation to KSU Table Tennis

Moved by Alexander

Moved to hold bill

Moved to suspend the rules to turn chair to Callahan, passes

Moved to clarify by Alexander

Moved Special Orders by Kasper

FINAL ACTION

Positive debate: Quaife

Passes 41/0/0

Chair turned to O'Hara

Bill 02/03/88 Sports Club Organization Allocations for Fiscal Year 2004

Moved by Alexander

Moved Special Orders by Callahan, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: Quaife

Passes 38/0/0

Res 02/03/73 Resolution to Thank City of Manhattan Code Services

Moved by Alexander

Moved Special Orders by Callahan, passes

FINAL ACTION

Positive debate: Heaser

Moved Unanimous consent by Kasper, passes

Res 02/03/74 Honorary Naming of the Student Union Plaza Area

Moved by Alexander

Moved Special Orders by Callahan
 FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: Kohman, Muir, Crow, O'Hara
 Negative: Green, Weigel
 Passes

Res 02/03/75 Resolution To Commend Jennyfer Owensby
 Moved by Alexander
 Chair turned to Kasper
 Moved special orders by Callahan

FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: O'Hara, Quaife
 Moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes unanimously

Res 02/03/76 Resolution to Commend Latoya Kennedy
 Moved by Alexander
 Moved special orders by Callahan, passes

FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: O'Hara
 Moved unanimous consent by Stafford, passes

Res 02/03/77 Commendation to 2002-2003 Student Senate and Student Senate Interns
 Moved by Alexander
 Moved Special Orders by Stafford, passes

FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: Muir
 Moved Unanimous consent by Stafford, passes
 Chair turned to O'Hara

Res 02/03/78 Commendation to Student Senate Standing Committee Chairs, Elections
 Commissioner and Other Members of the Executive Committee
 Moved by Alexander
 Chair turned to O'Hara
 Moved special orders by Callahan

FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: O'Hara
 Moved Unanimous consent by Stafford, passes

Res 02/03/79 Commendation to Attorney General
 Moved by Alexander
 Chair turned to Kasper
 Moved Special Orders by Carter

FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: O'Hara
 Moved Unanimous consent by Carter, passes

Res 02/03/80 Commendation to Student Senate Chair and Student Senate Vice Chairs
 Moved by Carter
 Moved special orders by Callahan

FINAL ACTION
 Positive Debate: Cook
 Moved unanimous consent by Carter, passes

Res 02/03/81 Commendation to Student Body President and Student Body Vice
 President
 Moved by Alexander
 Moved Special Orders by Callahan

FINAL ACTION

Positive Debate: O'Hara
Moved Unanimous consent by Carter, passes
Res 02/03/82 Resolution to Commend Gayle Spencer
Moved by Alexander
Moved Special orders by Callahan
FINAL ACTION
Positive Debate: O'Hara, Smith, McCandless
Moved Unanimous consent by Stafford, passes

OPEN PERIOD

Liab
Graham: Judicial branch opportunities.
Green
Charney
Callahan
Mohan
Higginson
Stohs
Stafford
Muir
Bridge
Kasper
McCandless
Klingzell
Carter
O'Hara
Cook
Weigel
O'Hara: Advisor of the year award to Director Spencer

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

NONE

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS

REVISIONS

NONE

ROLL CALL

36 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Senator Smith moved for adjournment at 12:49 a.m.

**STUDENT SENATE MEETING
BIG TWELVE ROOM
March 28th, 2003
The second meeting
12:53 a.m.**

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman O'Hara called the meeting to order at p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman O'Hara led the pledge.

INSTALLATION OF 2003-2004 STUDENT SENATE

ROLL CALL

47 Senators were present for roll.

OPEN PERIOD

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes were approved as posted.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

COMMITTEE REPORTS

DIRECTORS REPORTS

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENTS

Res 03/04/01 Approval of The Attorney General Nominee Interview Committee
Moved by Alexander
Moved Unanimous consent by Alexander

FINAL ACTION

Nomination of Candidate for Student Senate Chair
Quaife nominated by Bridge
Procter nominated by Tirrell
Heaser nominated by Osborn

INTRODUCTION OF LEGISLATION

OPEN PERIOD

McCandless
Meier
Kazi
Muir: Encourage competition for chair position.
Crow
Alexander
O'Hara: Cabinet positions are available.

REFERENCE OF LEGISLATION

**ANNOUNCEMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL AND/OR BY-LAWS
REVISIONS**

NONE

ROLL CALL

47 Senators were present for roll.

ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Alexander until April 2nd, 2003
passes.